" MERTON
Merton Council

Development and Planning Applications
Committee Agenda

Membership
Councillors:

Aidan Mundy (Chair)
Matthew Willis (Vice-Chair)
Simon McGrath

Sheri-Ann Bhim

Michael Butcher

Edward Foley

Billy Hayes

Dan Johnston

Thomas Barlow

Martin Whelton

Substitute Members:

Susie Hicks
Kirsten Galea
Nick McLean
Stephen Mercer
Stuart Neaverson
Usaama Kaweesa

Date: Thursday 25 April 2024
Time: 7.15 pm

Venue: Council chamber - Merton Civic Centre, London Road, Morden SM4
5DX

This is a public meeting and attendance by the public is encouraged and welcomed.

The meeting will be livestreamed and
can be viewed by following this link


https://aisapps.sonicfoundry.com/AuditelScheduler/CreateSchedules/Past/49

Electronic Agendas, Reports and Minutes

Copies of agendas, reports and minutes for council meetings can also be found on
our website. To access this, click https://www.merton.gov.uk/council-and-local-
democracy and search for the relevant committee and meeting date.

Agendas can also be viewed on the Mod.gov paperless app for iPads, Android and
Windows devices.

For more information about the agenda please contact

democratic.services@merton.gov.uk or telephone 020 8545 3356.

All Press contacts: communications@merton.gov.uk or 020 8545 3181



https://www.merton.gov.uk/council-and-local-democracy
https://www.merton.gov.uk/council-and-local-democracy
mailto:democratic.services@merton.gov.uk
mailto:communications@merton.gov.uk

Development and Planning Applications Committee
Agenda

25 April 2024

1
2

10

11

Apologies for absence
Declarations of Pecuniary Interest
Minutes of the previous meeting 1-12

Town Planning Applications

The Chair will announce the order of Items at the beginning of
the Meeting.

A Supplementary Agenda with any modifications will be
published on the day of the meeting.

Note: there is no written report for this item

58 - 62 Haynt Walk, Raynes Park, SW20 9NX 13-72

Application No: 23/P1812

Ward: Cannon Hill

Officer Recommendation: GRANT Planning Permission subject
to conditions

11 Streatham Road, Mitcham, CR4 2AD 73 -104

Application No: 24/P0137

Ward: Figges Marsh

Officer Recommendation: GRANT Planning permission subject
to conditions

18 - 22 Crown Lane, Morden, SM4 5BL 105 -

Application No: 23/P2711 202
Ward: Merton Park

Officer Recommendation: GRANT Permission subject to

Section 106 obligation or any other enabling agreement

Update Report - Provision of footbridge at 42 Station Road, 203 -
Colliers Wood 204
Planning Appeal Decisions 205 -
Officer Recommendation: 208
That Members note the contents of the report.

Planning Enforcement - Summary of Current Cases 209 -
Officer Recommendation: 220
That Members note the contents of the report.

Glossary of Terms 221 -

226



12 Chair's Procedure Guide 227 -
236

Note on declarations of interest

Members are advised to declare any Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any matter to be considered at
the meeting. If a pecuniary interest is declared they should withdraw from the meeting room during
the whole of the consideration of that matter and must not participate in any vote on that matter. For
further advice please speak with the Managing Director, South London Legal Partnership.



Agenda Iltem 3

All minutes are draft until agreed at the next meeting of the committee/panel. To find out the date of the next
meeting please check the calendar of events at your local library or online at www.merton.gov.uk/committee.

DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING APPLICATIONS COMMITTEE

14 MARCH 2024
(7.23 pm - 11.00 pm)

PRESENT Councillors Councillor Aidan Mundy (in the Chair), Councillor
Matthew Willis, Councillor Michael Butcher, Councillor Edward
Foley, Councillor Simon McGrath, Councillor Dan Johnston,
Councillor Martin Whelton, Councillor Sheri-Ann Bhim, Councillor
Billy Hayes, Councillor Thomas Barlow

ALSO PRESENT Jonathan Berry (Head of Development Management and
Building Control), Tara Butler (Deputy Head of Future Merton),
Eben Van Der Westhuizen (Planner), Jayde Watts (Democratic
Services Officer)

PRESENT James Felton (Lawyer), Stephen Hill (Planner)
ONLINE

1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Agenda Item 1)

No apologies for absence were received.

2 DECLARATIONS OF PECUNIARY INTEREST (Agenda Item 2)
There were no declarations of interest.

3 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (Agenda ltem 3)

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 15 February 2024 were agreed
as an accurate record.

4 TOWN PLANNING APPLICATIONS (Agenda Item 4)

The Committee noted the amendments and modifications to the officer’s report. The
Chair advised that the agenda would be taken in the published agenda order.

Please note that members of the public, including the applicant or anyone speaking

on their behalf, are expressing their own opinions and the Council does not take any
responsibility for the accuracy of statements made by them.

5 FLAT 18, SOVEREIGN HOUSE, 1 DRAXMONT, WIMBLEDON, SW19 7PG
(Agenda Item 5)

The Chair informed the committee that this item was deferred from the meeting on 15
February 2024 due to further assessment of the late representation on Heritage.

Pager 1


http://www.merton.gov.uk/committee

Further assessment took place and officers confirmed that the application could
proceed with the previous recommendation for approval.

The Planning Officer presented the report.

The committee received representation from one objector who raised points
including:

e Design and materials were impractical and failed to respect the architecture of
the building.

e Flat 17 respected the character of the building and went unopposed.

e Not echo friendly, extensive use of south facing glass would require high
energy air conditioning.

e Took away light and privacy. The slop gave flat 17 light and a view which this
extension would take away.

e The updated light assessment looked wrong.

e The layout was impractical with inaccessible gaps between the extensions and
the main building walls. Flat 15 below suffered 3 years of ingress through the
gaps. Future repairs would be impossible like they use to be from Flat 17.

e The ingress put flat 18 in breach of their lease; they were asked to fix it before
negotiations on new works but they sought permission anyway.

e Concerned about the load aspects and amenity of neighbours.

e They reserved their rights under the lease which allowed them to stop any acts
detrimental to the aesthetics, character and structure of the building or
property of others.

e Suggested a compromise for the current application to be refused, once the
breach in the lease was fixed, they would then provide a revised proposal to
residents which addressed concerns. They would then be likely to receive a
receptive community response.

The committee received representation from Ward CliIr Hicks who raised points
including:

e Flats 17 and 18 were fortunate with a terrace the size of a room. The proposed
flank wall would be hard up against the white wall.

e The flat 17 extension had a big window facing onto the terrace to catch the
light from over the wall and did not infringe on flat 18.

e Tonight’s application was designed to sit hard up against the wall and was
considerably taller. If built, flat 17 would not look out of their window to open
space and sky. The light would be reduced, and they would lose the sense of
openness and seclusion that they had currently.

e The applicant would retain all of their sun and sky whilst taking it away from
their neighbour.

e The materials chosen were out of sync of the building.

e A symmetrical extension on the other side of the terrace would suit the
building without damaging the amenity of the next door neighbour and was
why the application should be rejected.

Page 2



The committee received representation from Ward Clir Holden who raised points
including:

Shared concerns raised by residents.

The application should be refused on design grounds. Design was subjective
and although the report suggested that the application brought balance and
was acceptable, he argued that this was only an opinion and requested that
they considered their comments instead.

The proposed extension was harmful to the design and outlook of the building
and did not bring balance, did not offer an interesting outlook, location was in a
prominent position and could be viewed by residents.

It was harmful to the listed building at 100-102 Wimbledon Hill Road.

Was not in keeping with the style of the block of flats.

This property should be locally listed as an example of the style of flats built at
the time.

The property was predominantly brick built with an offset top floor.

Flat 17 had a remarkably nice design enhancement built on the previous
conservatory and used bricks to match the age and appearance of the rest of
the building. This work was an enhancement to the building.

This application used heavy glazing and a protruding roof. The bulk and
massing were out of kilter and made Sovereign House worse off.

The sympathetic approach would have been to mirror flat 17 and been
symmetrical, used brick and minimal glazing. This would have made the
building look better and not result in building control matter issues and other
design layout issues.

The committee received representation from the agent James Latter and the
applicant Sue Thompson who raised points including:

Wanted to create an energy efficient home, enhance the block and improve
privacy between flat 17 and 18.

They wanted to modernise the interior and make the outside space usable all
year round.

Saddened to see objections from residents but realised most were not
planning related and were about construction post planning.

Understood and sympathised that it could be annoying for residents to have
another proposal for building works a couple of years after flat 17. They would
do everything they could to keep the build time to a minimum and reduce
disturbance where possible.

The high architectural design enhancements as identified by the planning
officer, would benefit everyone by increasing the block value and value of
each flat. Heating bills and sound for the flats below would be significantly
reduced.

Keen to work with directors to minimise disruption and wanted to discuss plans
before applying for planning permission. Since June 2023, they made many
formal requests which were refused on every occasion.

Met with flat 17 to discuss plans, produced daylight studies and altered
proposals to take his views into account.

They proved that there was no planning issue with daylight and sunlight.

Page 3



They were concerned with the little privacy on their balcony.

There was a small leak into flat 15 in February 2021 and another in March
2023. No further leaks were reported, they were not in breach of their lease.
Approval of the plans would create an energy efficient home, enhance the
block and improve the privacy between flat 17 and 18.

They were not building against the flank wall and moved the extension back
on the request of flat 17.

Since the deferral based on comments from the Conservation Officer, they
looked at improving the symmetry to the street elevation by removing the
recessed brick panel alongside other amendments.

The material finish to the roof canopy was also lightened in colour to further
reduce contrast to the existing material palette of the existing property.
Further adjustments were made to reduce impact to the adjoining property,
including pulling away from the neighbouring terrace and the removal of
ensuite facilities.

Daylight and sunlight studies concluded minimal impact on the immediate
neighbouring terrace.

Although not a planning consideration, a structural assessment was completed
and concluded that the lightweight construction methods could be
accommodated by the existing fabric.

In response to questions raised by the committee, Planning Officers advised:

There was a set back from the flank wall.

There was an existing wall which divided the two terraces and the proposal
was set back from it. There was also the indent to reduce the impact further. It
would be difficult to see the vast majority of the extension, it would be visible
from some extent above the dividing wall but this would be minimal.

Daylight and sunlight were formally assessed and confirmed that under BRE
standards, there was minimal reduction in light.

A number of objections raised were not planning issues. Matters of private
interest between occupiers such as arrangement by deeds between the
leaseholder and freeholder, nuisance and structure of the building were not
material considerations. In the case of non-civil matters, it was important for
members to not replace the role of building regulations and building control
departments. Building control issues were for the next stage if planning
permission was granted.

The wall already existed and sloped away from the building, at which point the
extension would be more visible. The extension was set away from the wall to
be less visible and why it indents. The wall did slope down and the design
responded to this.

As a matter of planning law, members were required to assess the proposal
before them as opposed to a preferred scheme. There was a danger to
consider possible negotiations between parties and this was not advisable.
High quality materials were to be used which provided an interesting contrast
to the building.

Page 4



There were concerns in regard to plumbing and these matters would be
controlled by building regulation. However, the bathroom which caused the
issue has been removed.

Solar panels were proposed and formed part of the scheme so the applicant
would be required to implement them. There were no policy grounds to
condition solar panels or further energy enhancements for an extension.
There was no evidence to suggest solar gain resulting from the choice of
materials and they would not consider this to be a reason for refusal.

The Chair invited the applicant to respond to clarify details raised within questions
from the committee.

The applicant informed the committee of the following:

Several attempts were made to approach the board but this was initially
denied as they were not yet the legal owner. There was then a leak in the
terrace and they were told they were in breach of their lease. They have done
all that they could to engage and wanted to discuss the application before
submission. They also engaged with their next door neighbour and was
surprised by their objection. The plans were modified but they could not
change the extension to the master bedroom as they would otherwise have to
go through the master bedroom to access the patio.

The thermal performance of the property was covered off by building
regulation. They discussed incorporating blinds to control solar gains and the
intention was to have solar controlled glazing films. They planned to upgrade
the thermal material fabric of new additions and include passive and
mechanical ventilation systems to mitigate solar gains.

They would not use air conditioning.

Brick etching was their intention.

Repairs to the terrace were carried out to the areas of concern, with building
control approval. The area was currently watertight.

The Chair moved to the vote on the Officers’ recommendation with the following
additional informatives: Votes For — 9, Against — 0, Abstentions — 1.

INFORMATIVES:

Sound levels were at an appropriate level.
Confirmation that there were no leaks.
Brick etching as intended would proceed.

RESOLVED: That the Committee GRANTED Planning permission subject to
conditions.

6

LOCAL PLAN (Agenda ltem 6)

Tara Butler presented the report.

Page 5



The committee received representation from Ward Clir Neaverson who raised points
including:

At 19 storeys tall Britannia Point dwarfed over the rest of Colliers Wood,
Visible as far as Streatham and Sutton, its scale was out of keeping with the
local character.

Considering the needs for homes in London, constructing them on this site
was common sense. What was not common sense was building something
even taller than the current tower. The original Local Plan agreed with this, but
the Planning Inspector now wished to see the height limit removed. Ward
Councillors and over 650 residents who signed a petition fundamentally
disagreed.

There should be no building taller in Colliers Wood then the current tower.
Defining a places character seemed nebulous but was something many
believe was precious.

People wanted to feel part of their community.

Resident should have reasonable requests listened to, especially when it
created a structure that would tower over the community for decades.

They did not say to building nothing but building something taller than the
existing tower would further undermine what makes Colliers Wood special. It
would rob homes and the local primary school of sunlight and worsen the wind
impact felt around the tower.

A resident was recently blown down by the winds outside of the tower. No one
should feel scared walking around the town centre.

Decisions at the site mattered, they needed to get things right and encourage
developments that enhanced and respected the character and environment of
the community.

An explicit limit on the height of new buildings was an obvious and
unambiguous way to support this.

The committee received representation from Ward Clir Cooper-Marbiah who raised
points including:

Strongly believed it was wrong to close the height restrictions on future
buildings.

Collier Wood was a fantastic place to live, work and learn. There was nowhere
quite like Colliers Wood in London.

Streets were steeped in history, had charming low-rise blocks and housing
with its own local heritage which led to a village like centre, giving Colliers
Wood a unique community feel loved by residents and visitors.

The Planning Inspectors proposal to remove the 19 storey clause would rob
Colliers Wood of its identity and heritage.

A further Britannia Point would further worsen the dangerous wind impact felt
around the tower by pedestrians and cyclist and would cast shadows on
homes, businesses, cafes and shops. This would affect day to day lives and
the economy.

Sustainability and climate change must also be a focus of the committee.

Page 6



The close proximity of the Wandle River which, in a floodplain, was also of
concern due to the potential impact on neighbouring properties.

Britannia Point was of out character with the low-rise nature of the
neighbourhood. No one would approve such a structure today so why would
they allow another 26 storey twin building right next to it.

It was not just Ward Councillors who felt this way, the local MP and almost 700
residents all vehemently opposed the removal of the clause.

They were not against increased housing developments but believed the local
plan needed to have the right protections in place to ensure responsible
developers and a fair, balanced and responsible development plan across the
borough.

Removing the clause that Britannia Point was the pinnacle would encourage
wrong developments and developers.

The committee received representation from Ward CliIr Hicks who raised points
including:

Cheered by discussions on appropriate heights but was troubled by heights
carrying great weight.

A charm of Wimbledon was how close to the centre you could find residential
streets. The edge of the 24m zone edged onto a garden on a pretty road.
Some of such roads were either allocated for 40m buildings or were within the
24m zone.

Despite the conservation area which was full of listed buildings, restaurants
and flats it was within the 24m tall building line and just beside the 40m line.
The map within the report appeared to contain a conflict as it had a red circle
delineating 49m, the amber circle delineating 40m and the black line which
had 24m. The 40m circle extended to Tabor Grove which was a quiet
residential street. If this could be addressed, it should be.

It was important to resist anything that would make it harder to say ‘no’. There
was a push for height in the centre of Wimbledon.

Tall buildings going onto the residential streets of Hillside should be an
amendment we resist.

Why are we losing the local in local amenity. The word ‘local’ had been taken
out or edited and mere amenity was a more flexible concept which may not be
helpful.

The Chair invited Ward Councillor Neaverson to respond to clarify details raised
within questions from the committee.

The Ward Councillor informed the committee of the following:

At one site, what they were potentially looking was far above what they should
be considering anywhere in the area. No height limit allowed for all manners of
developments.

It was vital for limits which would help local residents understand what was
possible and gave clear guidance to developers.

Issues from the current site were well documented but this was about not
allowing a site to massively tower over what was there currently.

Page 7



In response to questions raised by the committee, Officers advised:

Consultants were currently working on drafting the walking, cycling and curb
side strategy. It is the intention that this will be ready in time.
Changes to the Biodiversity and Access to Nature Policy were as follows:

o Section D: Introduction of the 10% statutory requirement for major and
smaller sites. The 10m buffer came from environment agency
legislation and would be applied were feasible.

o Section F: Address the deficiency of access to nature and included all
major developments.

Policy 15.10 tried to strike a balance between the fact that there were often
plants or it could be lift shafts, boilers, heat pumps and a variety of different
things. It would often be found with commercial properties with extractor fans
which could be aggravating for residents when not sited well, hence the
reference to impact to living conditions and amenity.

Paragraph 15.3.19 referred to a number of protected species and particularly
emphasised swift bricks. Two types of guidance on swift bricks were
referenced and they already received a response to the consultation from
Wimbledon Swifts who advised for one of the references to be updated to a
particular British standard, which was appropriate to do, and to change the link
to the Swift Conservation Group to another organisation which met British
standards. The response from the Wimbledon Swifts would be circulated to
members and published online.

In April 2023, the Inspectors shared their views on particular sites. During this
time there were many changes to national policy and the government
introduced requirements for a National Design Guide and National Model
Design Codes. The Inspectors also included the requirement that for sites that
are suitable for tall buildings, either the Council or the applicant should prepare
a design guide or a design code. It was added quite late, but this was because
it came into national policy quite late. Reference the proposed new paragraph
below 12.1.5 provided wording.

Decisions should be made based on the adopted policy at the time of
determination and this policy is not yet adopted. As a plan goes through the
examination stage and gathers material weight it becomes a material
consideration, however, advice from legal on unresolved issues is to give
limited weight to such issues. Building height could be considered as a
material consideration for a planning decision but you may consider it to have
limited weight until the plan is adopted. Moderate or significant weight would
not usually be given until the inspectors report has been published.
Government introduced a proposal to ensure Local Plans took 30months from
start to finish.

Members had discretion to make decisions contrary to policy if material
considerations indicated otherwise. The GLA advised that instead of stating a
‘maximum’ height, it should be ‘appropriate’ height to give members discretion.
GLA letters were online, but officers could send links to copies as requested.
Any discussion around building heights in London was tied inextricably to
housing delivery. The lower the housing land supply the greater the risk of

Page 8



going to appeal on height. The two factors needed balancing against each
other. To limit height on a taller building site, there would need to be a good
level of housing delivery elsewhere across the borough.

D12.2 paragraph S did not go into specific detail such as EV, but it was
mentioned extensively in the Transport chapter. This section emphasised the
location, scale, setting and layout of the site.

D12.2 point B was moved as opposed to taken out of the plan.

If members were able to apply conditions in relation to car and bike club
credits, the new policy would not change this. At present the plan referred to
car club but members could propose to include e bike hire Although members
would have a new Local Plan which carried great weight, the principle of
decision making would still be that applications needed to be determined in
accordance with the Local Plan and other material considerations. Inspectors
tend to not be keen on policies that were too prescriptive and set a
requirement which attempted to cover all applications in all circumstances.
The emerging Transport Strategy would be best placed to explore this further.
Most parking apps advised where to park hired electric bikes, with a reduction
in fees when parked in the correct place. Anyone using an app, such as
Human Forest, had a financial incentive to park in an appropriate place. It was
uncertain if the Local Plan would have an effect in the Council’s ability to roll
out more bikes.

In relation to paragraphs 16.4.6 onwards, the current London Plan required all
parking spaces to have passive EV parking provisions. The act of provision
current standard was for 20% and applied to disables spaces, on the grounds
that not every person with a disability had an electric vehicle. As there was a
100% passive provision, it was much easier to put in the technology when
necessary.

T16.4, paragraph D will be checked with Transport colleagues for clarification.
The Local Plan as submitted originally referred in its policies to future
supplementary guidance, but the Inspectors were clear that was that it would
be unfair on residents and applicants for Merton’s Local planning policies to
refer to future guidance that they had not seen and had not been published
yet. Officers would be supportive of the idea to have a more prescriptive
formula which said that the closer we got to 2035, a greater proportion would
be needed to cater to EV charging however, this would be a new policy which
inspectors would want to examine thoroughly. Officers would need to prepare
evidence and it was likely that the inspectors would reopen the hearings.
Proposed deletion of paragraph 16.4.5 will be investigated further and
clarification provided to members.

Paragraph 16.4.2 refers to an adopted policy from the current London Plan.
Members could still consider material considerations for particular schemes if
members felt there was a reason to deviate from the Local Plan.

The London Plan makes a point that if a development ranged across multiple
PTALs, the highest one should be the point of reference. When making a
decision for particular applications, it may be that entry to a site was within
PTAL 3 and members considered that a material consideration when making a
decision.

Rage 9



T16.4 paragraph B required certain developments to be permit free and did
allow for onsite parking. Three aspects to vehicles and parking were pollution,
road safety and traffic congestion. Merton had a fixed amount of road space
and although EV vehicles addressed pollution, it did not necessarily address
road safety and congestion. Most of the issues raised to officers was with
regards to road congestion which was what this policy was trying to address
for existing residents.

Part 1.2.43 and subsequent polices direct landowners and developers towards
focussing tall buildings in the areas identified in the plan. It was still within their
gift to submit an application, but the policy would give great weight in making a
relevant decision.

The plan was updated at part 3.1.18 to clarify that only CW2 should be
considered for appropriate tall buildings. The phrase officers wanted to retain
but was deleted, was shown in the report.

Officers felt that the removal of the pinnacle made things more ambiguous.
The Planning Inspector’s correspondence is clear that the basis for reviewing
building heights is based on the need for housing delivery.

Jon Berry informed members that the Gasworks application was complex.
They were getting closer to the applicant submitting new plans and
information. If and when that happened, officers would go out for public
consultation. Due to the nature of the application, they would go out for the full
21 day consultation statutory period. They also strongly encouraged the
applicants to carry out their own consultation with the public.

In the existing adopted Local Plan, there is no reference to appropriate
building heights or otherwise. This was introduced in the new Local Plan to
bring it in line with the London Plan.

With reference to M16, based on evidence and a character study, the proposal
is for the site to have a maximum of 10 storeys, which was originally 9 storeys
but the Planning Inspector said the council needed to deliver homes. All the
allocations were separate from any planning application, which would provide
more detail.

If officers felt that any of the proposed changes made by members would put
the plans delivery timetable at risk, they would advise members as such.

Jon Berry informed members that he was apprehensive about the proposal
made for EV permits being allowed in a CPZ where available, as they had not
put the evidence to the inspector as to where they may be, and it may be too
prescriptive. The preference would be for this to be included in one of the
material considerations rather than the Local Plan.

Section E of the Morden Policy, as detailed in the map within the report, the
Wider Morden Town Centre area highlighted in yellow was now gone and no
longer part of the plan. A lot of the references in section E related to the
previous inclusion of the Wider Morden Town Centre area.

Design guide had a slightly different function to design code. The design code
typically would have detail on materials but in the National Model Design code,
it specified that you could include height. In this instance it will likely be a
design guide for the Morden Regeneration Zone.

The Civic Centre being a pinnacle building was brought up in previous
consultation responses. It was never part of the plan, but some

Page 10



representations raised that they would prefer the Civic Centre to be the
pinnacle building. The balance was that Morden, with 2000 homes, was the
key to revitalising the town centre, delivering homes and supporting services.
The designs, height and strategic development framework were developed
over a number of years but did not put the Civic Centre as the pinnacle.

N7.1 was a new policy which created a local centre at South Wimbledon as a
result of public consultation. For a small neighbourhood there was a lot of
development and regeneration taking place.

Wider Wimbledon received many responses. The town centre had detailed
planning guidance called The Future Wimbledon SPD was adopted and
helped to reassure the Inspectors issues around design, character and
building height. This had been thoroughly considered at a detailed level and
consulted on with residents prior to the Local Plan.

In relation to the Strategic Heights Diagram for Wimbledon Town Centre,
officers adopted the guidance from the adopted Future Wimbledon guidance.
The Inspectors said officers could not be that prescriptive in the Local Plan.
The map was indicative and said ‘circa 24m could be appropriate subject to all
other policy requirements’. It was difficult to illustrate an area without reverting
to the previous building by building approach. It did not mean that all buildings
within the dotted lines would be acceptable at 40m or 24m.

Page 290 section H, officers wanted to reference the guidance, but the
Inspectors made it clear that there could not be a policy which referred to
guidance as Councils could change guidance without any recourse to
Secretary of State.

Wimbledon has been resilient in terms of office development. Officers were
aware that no one knew how lives would change from 2019 to 2024 in terms of
working arrangements. Officers remained committed in continuing to review
this.

Officers planned to bring in a proofreader with planning expertise.

A key part of the Tall Building policy was to avoid abrupt transitions. There
was reference in the Tall Buildings policy that, when looking at design, it must
step down when moving towards existing residential neighbourhoods.

Our policy had to be in line with national policy.

Additional funds from the 20% financial contribution would need to be spent on
additional affordable housing as per S106. Previously Merton used the funds
to increase the affordable housing contribution from larger sites.

Based on experience, the viability assessment policy had to be as straight
forward as possible. Officers were working on proposals with development
management colleagues to make it easy to implement. This would not require
every development to complete a viability study, as that would be unfair.
Officers will come back to members and colleagues with training and advise
should they be able to adopt the more straight forward policy.

Design codes were new so not many Councils had them yet. Those who did
tended to get consultants. The big emphasis was community consultation to
ensure buy-in from local residents. A range of people would contribute to the
design codes, then officers would pull it together and advise Councillors.

The National Model Design Code and the National Design Guides inform
Council how to approach design codes.

Rage 11



e Officers agreed to review the list of wards in the east of the borough that were
within a ‘pocket of deprivation’, within the paragraph on page 361, with the
view of including Figge’s Marsh Ward.

e Policy O15.5 required the provision for green infrastructure. Urban greening
and green infrastructure were defined in the glossary and in both definitions,
green roofs were included. Paragraph 15.5.7 within the policy listed the
required information and mentioned maintenance.

e 12.2b was required to be deleted as the Inspectors identified it as an
unnecessary repetition of policy T16.1.C.

The committee agreed to the following:

Proposed and Seconded: Votes for — 10, votes against — 0, not voting — 0
Policy T16.4, paragraph F part-f amended to include bike hire scheme clubs to also
benefit in the same way as car clubs.

Proposed and Seconded: Votes for — 8, Votes against — 2, Not Voting — 0

Section Policy T16.4, paragraph part-b to be updated with the following exceptions:
a) there was space in the CPZ and

b) for EV vehicles.

Proposed and Seconded: Votes for — 10, Votes against — 0, Not voting — 0

Section 3.1.18 be returned to the original statement of ‘Britannia Point should remain
the pinnacle building in the town centre in terms of height. This can then form the
basis for a coherent group of buildings that relate well to each other in terms of scale,
massing, form and architecture’.

Proposed and Seconded: Votes for — 10, Votes against — 0, Not voting — 0

Cabinet to review the process on how design guides are developed and for proposals
to be brought back to DPAC at the next available opportunity.

7 PLANNING APPEAL DECISIONS (Agenda ltem 7)

The report was noted.

8 PLANNING ENFORCEMENT - SUMMARY OF CURRENT CASES (Agenda
Item 8)

The report was noted.
9 GLOSSARY OF TERMS (Agenda Item 9)
10 CHAIRS PROCEDURE GUIDE (Agenda Item 10)

11 MODIFICATION SHEET (Agenda Item 11)

Page 12



Agenda Iltem 5

PLANNING APPLICATIONS COMMITTEE

25 APRIL 2024

CASE OFFICER REPORT

APPLICATION NO. DATE VALID

23/P1812 04/07/2023

Site Address: 58 - 62 Haynt Walk, Raynes Park, SW20 9NX

Ward: Cannon Hill

Proposal: APPLICATION FOR THE DEMOLITION OF NOS 58 &

Drawing Nos:

Contact Officer:

60 HAYNT WALK & ASSOCIATED BUILDINGS;
REFURBISHMENT OF NO 62 HAYNT WALK;
ERECTION OF 6 x 3 BED DWELLING HOUSES WITH
ASSOCIATED LANDSCAPING, VEHICLE ACCESSWAY
AND PARKING.

See condition 2

Leigh Harrington (020 8545 3836)

RECOMMENDATION

GRANT Planning permission subject to conditions

CHECKLIST INFORMATION

Is a screening opinion required No

Is an Environmental Statement required No

Press notice No
Site notice Yes
Design Review Panel consulted No
Number of neighbours consulted 58
External consultations No

Page 13



Internal consultations Yes

Controlled Parking Zone No
Conservation Area No
Archaeological Priority Zone No

Public Transport Accessibility Rating 2

Tree Protection Orders No

1. INTRODUCTION

1.11 This application is being brought to the Planning Applications Committee for
determination due to the number of objections received.

2. SITE AND SURROUNDINGS

211 The site comprises an uncharacteristically large rectangular plot located on the
south side of Haynt Walk in Raynes Park formed from the houses and gardens
of 58-62 Haynt Walk. A present, the application site comprises a pair of semi
detached houses, which are set back from the road frontage and accessed via
a vehicle access point between 58 and 64 Haynt Walk. One half of a pair of
semi detached houses forms part of the application site boundary on its
western side.

21.2 The site forms part of a distinctive 1920s council estate designed by architects
John Sidney Brocklesby and Wallace Marchment and based on the garden city
suburb concept. Whatley Estate housing stock is of a simple form(s), with the
majority of buildings displaying either hipped or gabled roofs, some with gables
facing the main road and other corner buildings with gables at right angles to

the road.
213 The application site is surrounded on all sides by other residential properties.
214 The neighbouring properties running along the northern boundary of the

application site comprise a pair of semi detached houses in Haynt Walk. The
semi closes to the application site is known as 56 Haynt Walk.

2.1.5 The neighbouring properties running along the eastern boundary (and partly
along the southern boundary) of the application site comprise properties in
Cannon Hill Lane. To the east, two storey semi detached houses, 132 — 136
Cannon Hill Lane are orientated directly towards the application site. The other
houses in Cannon Hill Lane comprise a small row of four houses (138 - 144
Cannon Hill Lane) sits at an angled orientation towards the application site.

216 The neighbouring properties running along the southern boundary of the
application site comprise two storey semi detached properties in Martin Way.
267 - 277 Martin Way are orientated directly to the rear of the application site.
267, 271 and 273 Martin Way have been extended with single storey rear

Page 14



217

2.1.8

3.1.1

3.1.2

3.1.3

3.1.4

3.1.5

extensions.

The neighbouring property running along the western boundary of the
application site, beyond the semi detached house to be refurbished as part of
the proposed scheme, comprises 64 Haynt Walk.

The site has the following designations and restrictions:

e Controlled Parking Zone (CPZ) — No

e Conservation Area — No

e Listed Building — No

e Tree Preservation Orders — No. There are only lower quality trees on the
site.

e Open spaces - The site is within 300m of Joseph Hood Recreation
Ground.

e Flood Zone — 1 although it is within a Critical Drainage Area and area of
increased potential for elevated groundwater

e Employment Site — No

e (Classified Road — No

e PTAL — 2 measured on a scale of 0-6b where 0 is the worst and 6b the
best and is roughly equal distance between South Merton and
Wimbledon Chase railway stations.

CURRENT PROPOSAL

The proposal is for demolition of Nos 58 & 60 Haynt Walk & associated
buildings; refurbishment of no 62 Haynt Walk and erection of 6 x 3 bed dwelling
houses with associated landscaping, vehicle accessway and parking.

Height/design

The proposal has been amended since its original pre application submission to
reduce the overall bulk, scale and number of proposed houses (from 6 to 8
units) that would comprise the terrace of six 3 bedroom houses.

The proposed terrace would comprise a standard two storeys with an additional
level of accommodation within the roof space. The eaves height is to match the
existing eaves height whilst the roof height would be only 0.42m higher than the
existing whilst the design has utilised the same 51% roof slope and the large
chimney arrangement that is a feature of the original estate into the design of
the new terrace. The exterior has been designed to create a terrace of
matching houses whilst the house at 62 Haynt Walk would be refurbished

Layout

The terrace would be served by an access road from Haynt Walk that would
extend to the front and side of the block.

The terrace would feature 6 houses in three pairs of adjoining entrances
reached by paired paths flanked by refuse and cycle stores. Each entrance hall
would serve a reception room to the front and then a utility area that would

Page 15



3.1.6

3.1.7

3.1.8

3.1.9

3.1.10

3.1.11

3.1.10

open to a guest bathroom. The rear of each house would be given to a large
open plan combined kitchen/dining/living room area leading to the rear garden.
Part of the rear element would be single storey and be served by a large
skylight.

On the first floor there would be a pair of ensuite double bedrooms whilst the
second floor would accommodate a master bedroom and a separate family
bathroom.

The new houses would all feature policy compliant gardens to the rear with
cycle storage and refuse storage at each house.

Materials

External construction materials would comprise a light buff mix exposed
brickwork for the ground and first floor levels as well as chimneys with graphite
and steel grey coloured aluminium fenestration and graphite grey standing
seam roof.

Highways

The proposals involve the provision of an off street parking bay for each house
with the site access reflecting the current arrangement for access from Haynt
Walk. The original design proposed a car park to the rear of the site, however
the new arrangement is considered more efficient layout with parking provided
directly outside each house for ease of occupants and the ability for the
installation of EV charging points.

Cycle & refuse stores

These would be situated to the front of each house with a collection point area
located by the entrance to the site.

Sustainability

The application has been accompanied by an Energy and Sustainability
Statement which states that the development will achieve an improvement in
build fabric at over 11.50% at the “Be Lean” stage and an overall improvement
(DER/TER) in regulated emissions at over 66.58% above Part L 2021 standard,
through the adoption of very high standards of insulation, heat pump driven
heating and hot water systems and a roof mounted PV array.

Flooding

In terms of drainage, the site is proposed to be attenuated by a combination of
permeable paving and an attenuation tank. A Hydrobrake manhole or similar
would be required to limit discharge from the storage features to the public
network and the storage features have been designed to attenuate all flows
below ground up to and including the 1 in 100 year (plus 40% climate change
and 10% urban creep allowance). The building will also utilise a green roof and
rainwater harvesting could be used on site where the roof runoff can be taken
through the down pipes and into a rainwater tank and reused for the likes of
plant watering.

Page 16



3.1.11

3.1.12

3.1.13

411

Accessibility

Access to the site would utilise the existing but widened access route to the
houses via a shared pedestrian and vehicular accessway providing step free
access to the site.

Trees

There are nine trees, five single trees and a group of four fruit trees that would
be removed. Tree hedging would be provided along both main boundary
elevations with a more natural looking interspersed tree planting along the two
side boundaries.

Documents

The application is accompanied by the following supporting documents:

e Air and Acoustics Air Quality Assessment

e Construction Logistics Plan

e Covering letter & Planning statement

e Daylight & sunlight Report

e Design and Access Statement

e Energy & Sustainability Statement

e Fire Strategy

e Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage Strategy
e Landscape design report

e Parking and parking stress surveys

e Preliminary Ecological Assessment

e Preliminary Roost Assessment

e Site Waste Management Plan

e Transport Statement

e Tree Survey and Arboricultural Impact Assessment
e Urban Analysis — Four Pillars

e Urban Character appraisal

PLANNING HISTORY

58 Haynt Walk

15/P4803 - Planning permission refused for ERECTION OF NEW TWO

STOREY DETACHED DWELLING HOUSE WITH REAR ROOF DORMER AND
3 X ROOFLIGHTS TO THE FRONT ROOF SLOPE. Reason;

The proposed dwelling by reason of its size, siting and height is
considered an unneighbourly form of development which would be
overly large and overbearing on neighbours in the proposed location on
site, and visually intrusive, and harmful to the amenity of neighbours in

Page 17



41.2

And

terms of overshadowing, overlooking and visual intrusion, appearing
unduly dominant and out of context and character with the existing Haynt
Road urban landscape and would be contrary to policies 7.4 and 7.6 of
the London Plan 2015, policies CS13 & CS14 of the Merton LDF Core
Planning Strategy (2011), policy DM D2 of the Merton Sites and Policies
Plan (2014) and Standard 3.1.1 of the London Housing SPG 2012.

The proposed development would fail to contribute to meeting affordable
housing targets and in the absence of a legal undertaking securing a
financial contribution towards the delivery of affordable housing off-site
would be contrary to policy CS8 of the Merton LDF Core Planning
Strategy (2011).

Proposed block plan for member ref below (new house in shade)

Ew -

) _f_
3 et o . R
Ay i i
L N LLOEH s
i -
ki
Nt l; -
;o H\'
i St
' ! LA
‘.'\. 'Q.':' ...}_ r "y
S b 2
b i . P L J
- . e L
Il g

17/P2447 - Planning permission refused and appeal dismissed for ERECTION

OF A TWO STOREY 3 BEDROOM TERRACE DWELLINGHOUSE. Reason;

The proposed dwelling by reason of its design, size, siting and height
would be an unneighbourly form of development which would be:

a) Overly large, visually intrusive and overbearing to the detriment
of the visual amenities of neighbours;
b) Result in loss of privacy and overshadowing to the detriment

of neighbour amenity; and

Page 18



c) Would appear out of context and character with this part of the
Haynt Walk street scene which is characterised by a distinct and orderly
layout of semi-detached dwellings.

The proposals would therefore be contrary to policies 7.4 and 7.6 of the London
Plan (2015), policies CS13 & CS14 of the Merton LDF Core Planning Strategy
(2011), policy DM D2 of the Merton Sites and Policies Plan (2014).

Proposed block plan for member ref below (new house within red line boundary)

Below, for member information, relevant comments from the planning Inspector when
dismissing the appeal:

Living conditions

3. The appeal site comprises part of the side and rear garden to No 58 Haynt
Walk. It is an irregular shaped plot in a corner position within the street.

4. The proposed dwelling would be positioned close to the side and rear of No
56 Haynt Walk. The north western corner of the dwelling would be around 2
metres from the boundary with No 56 and in close proximity to the rear elevation
of that property. A new dwelling in this position would be an imposing presence
along the boundary that would dominate the part of the garden closest to the

Page 19



house. It would also remove a significant part of the open aspect to the south
and would partly enclose the garden along this side. In this regard, it would
have a significant overbearing effect to users of the garden area. Whilst the
appellant states that the proposal would be less harmful than the existing
relationship between Nos 52 and 54, that is a longstanding arrangement that
likely dates to when the estate was first built. My attention has also been drawn
to a recent development at 153-159 Cannon Hill Lane. However, that
development has a very different relationship to neighbouring properties than
is the case here.

5. The proposed side elevation would contain a single window above ground
floor level, which would be obscurely glazed. Similarly, the first floor bathroom
window in the front elevation would also be obscurely glazed. A replacement
boundary treatment could also be secured by condition that would prevent
direct overlooking of the rear garden and ground floor windows to No 56. These
measures would ensure that no significant loss of privacy would occur.
However, that does not overcome my concerns in relation to outlook.

6. For the above reasons, | conclude that the development would significantly
harm the living conditions of the occupiers of No 56 Haynt Walk with regard to
loss of outlook. It would therefore be contrary to the relevant sections of Policy
7.6 of the London Plan (2015), Policy CS 13 of the Merton Core Strategy (2011),
and Policy DM D2 of the Merton Sites and Policies Plan (2014). These policies
seek to ensure, amongst other things, that new development achieves a good
quality of living conditions for both proposed and adjoining buildings and
gardens.

Character and appearance

7. The appeal site is set within a large inter-war housing estate that contains a
mix of terraced and semi-detached properties. The semi-detached pair at Nos
58 and 60 are set back from the street, behind the established building line on
either side. 8. The development would create a short terrace of 3 dwellings that
would be offset from the central position occupied by the existing semi-
detached pair. However, it would be in a secluded position with restricted
visibility from the street. In this regard, any loss of symmetry within the site
would not be readily perceptible from along most of Haynt Walk. The design of
the proposed dwelling would also be consistent with the existing semi-detached
pair, and there are a number of existing terraced properties in the immediate
vicinity. The development would therefore not be out of keeping with the
surrounding area, in my view. 9. For the above reasons, | conclude that the
development would not significantly harm the character and appearance of the
area. It would therefore accord with the relevant sections of Policies 7.4 and 7.6
of the London Plan (2015), Policies CS 13 and CS 14 of the Merton Core

Page 20



Strategy (2011), and Policy DM D2 of the Merton Sites and Policies Plan (2014).
These policies seek to ensure, amongst other things, that new development
responds to the local context and character of the site.

Conclusion

12. For the reasons set out above, | conclude that the development would
significantly harm the living conditions of the occupiers of No 56 Haynt Walk
with regard to loss of outlook. Balanced against this, the development would
create a new family dwelling on a small urban site in a relatively accessible
location, to which | attach moderate weight. In addition, there would be no
significant harm to the character and appearance of the area.

13. My attention has been drawn to the emerging Draft New London Plan, which
was recently subject to public consultation. This proposes a significantly higher
housing requirement for Merton, as well as a new policy that would introduce a
“presumption in favour of small housing developments”. However, the Draft
New London Plan is still at a relatively early stage and has not yet been
examined, nor has the proposed housing requirement been tested. Moreover,
it is unclear whether these aspects of the draft plan are currently subject to
unresolved objections. At this stage, | therefore attach only limited weight to the
Draft New London Plan. In any event, | consider that the harm | have identified
in this case would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits of the
development.

14. For the reasons given above | conclude that the appeal should be
dismissed.

41.3 18/P2416 Planning permission refused and appeal dismissed for ERECTION OF
A TWO STOREY END OF TERRACE DWELLINGHOUSE. Reason;

The proposed dwelling, by reason of its size, siting and design, would
constitute an unneighbourly form of development being visually
dominant and overbearing and resulting in overlooking and loss of
privacy, to the detriment of the amenities of the occupiers of 568 Haynt
Walk, contrary to policies 7.6 of the London Plan (2016), policies DMD2
and DMD3 of the Adopted Sites and Policies Plan (2014), and policy
CS14 of the Merton Core planning Strategy (2011).

Page 21



Proposed Block Plan (house set back compared to previous dismissed appeal)

Propsoed First Floor Plan

HacH
; _
i
= g
d_"'”_ == | oy == 1l s ol !;1
_l 1: Lok |||'- -I T | £
| == e ——
—='r E -'""- Lt
- : It
=l 1l P ' i [:
il =217 : oy
el |
11 =1
3 i s 1 o
i
| = 1
T = - HEH
‘o H [
E | -
i B
: b '
4 il 2 E
— [ i o
: & Sl
- s s Pom B Sl
H T ' L w2
ey o5 e _ﬁ"
. = - H o

Hi

Below, for member information, relevant comments from the planning Inspector when
dismissing the appeal:

Reasons

5. The appeal relates to the irregular shaped side and rear garden area of 58

Page 22



Haynt Walk, which is a semi-detached house that is located in a corner position.
The proposed dwelling would be attached to its flank wall to create a short
terrace. This would result in the newly formed garden area of No 58 being of an
awkward ‘dog-leg’ shape, extending outwards from the rear of that property and
spanning across the rear elevation of the proposed dwelling and beyond.

6. The submitted plans also show that the proposed two-storey dwelling would
project approximately 1.5 metres beyond the rear elevation of No 58. At such
close quarters to the shared boundary and rear garden area of No 58 | consider
that the mass and bulk of the proposal would visually dominate and have an
oppressive and overbearing effect from that neighbouring garden.

7. Furthermore, the proposal would have two sole habitable first-floor rear
bedroom windows. Again, the proximity of these windows to the shared boundary
and rear garden area of No 58 would be such that a substantial amount of
overlooking and a significant loss of privacy to the users of this garden area
would occur.

8. | therefore find that the proposal would have a significantly harmful effect on
the residents of 58 Haynt Walk, with particular regard to outlook and privacy. In
this regard the most relevant polices referred to me are Policy DM D2 of the
Merton Sites and Policies Plan 2014 and Policy 7.6 of the London Plan 2016.
These seek, amongst other things, to ensure that new development does not
cause unacceptable harm to the amenity and quality of living conditions to both
proposed and adjoining buildings and gardens. The proposal would conflict with
the aims of these policies.

Other matters

9. In terms of the proposal’s relationship with other adjoining properties, the
appellants’ sketches and the submitted plans indicate that the set back of the
proposal would result in an approximate separation distance of 4.7 metres
between it and the shared boundary of 56 Haynt Walk. As a consequence of this,
| acknowledge that the intervening distance between the proposal and the
dwelling at No 56 would be around 8.8 metres at its closest point. | also note that
the appellants consider this to be an improvement on the previous appeal
scheme (Ref: APP/T5720/W/17/3187813) and | have had regard to the car
parking layout and open plan aspect of the location. Nonetheless, these factors
do not outweigh or overcome the harm that | have identified above.

10. The appellants have requested that their statement of case be read in
conjunction with the previous appeal statement for APP/T5720/W/17/3187813.
However, | have not been provided with this information so am unable to consider
it. | also recognise that the appellants are disappointed with the Council’s
processing of the application and the errors that were made by the Council’s
Highways Section during this time. However, this is a matter that would need to
be pursued with the Council in the first instance.

11. My attention has been drawn to previous oversights in respect of the
separation distances that were referred to in the previously refused planning
application and subsequent appeal decision on this site. Nonetheless, these
matters have had little bearing on the outcome of this appeal as | have
determined it on the basis of its own planning merits and the evidence that is

Page 23



before me.

12. For the reasons given above, the appeal is therefore dismissed, and planning
permission is refused.

414 18/P4357 Planning permission granted by the Planning Applications Committee
for ERECTION OF A TWO STOREY END OF TERRACE DWELLINGHOUSE
WITH ASSOCIATED OFF STREET CAR PARKING.

415 20/P1362 Planning permission granted for ERECTION OF A TWO
STOREY SIDE AND REAR EXTENSION TO PROVIDE 4 x SELF-CONTAINED
FLATS WITH ASSOCIATED WORKS.

4.1.6 60 Haynt Walk
Nil.

4.1.7 62 Haynt Walk
Nil.

5. CONSULTATION

511 The application has been advertised by site notice procedure and letters of
notification to the occupiers of neighbouring properties (58). 10 letters of
objection and 1 letter of support were received along with a 78 signature petition
raising concerns relating to:

Visual impact, privacy and amenity

e overshadowing my property, privacy issue.

Page 24



Impact on the streetscene and local area

e The building design is out of character with the area.

e Years ago | applied to have my front window widened and move out to
obtain more light in the house as my elderly mother was visually impaired.
| got told it would not get approved in planning as it was not keeping in
line with the street scene. So how can demolishing 3 houses and building
new ones fit the spec. of the current street scene. | am aware other
neighbours made requests too and were rejected.

e Lots of applications have been refused for being out of keeping with the
area.

e The houses look so different from the rest of the street, definitely not in
keeping with the rest of the street.

e Cladding as a material for the build well this is not acceptable.

e Over developed and overcrowded.

e A development of this scale should surely be considered for a larger more
open area and not in the small confines of an established residential area.

e While | understand the need to increase housing, | do not believe that
increasing the concentration of residents is beneficial to residents of the
planned properties, existing residents or the community as a whole.

e It will increase demand on local resources: parks, schools, hospitals,
leisure, doctors, parking, etc. Long term.

e The removal of the houses to only create three extra would also create
added pollution, when refitting and extending of the properties may make
more sense.

Construction Process

e Disruption caused to all residents would be unacceptable.

e You cannot destroy 3 perfect houses to replace by 6 shoe boxes.

e [t will be a logistical nightmare which will have a detrimental impact on
neighbouring amenity.

e The consequences of such a construction project would undoubtedly lead
to significant disruption for the residents in the surrounding
neighbourhood. Noise pollution from the demolition and construction
activities, as well as the subsequent increase in traffic, would disturb the
peaceful environment that many of us have come to cherish in this area.

e Harmful impact on Joseph Hood Primary School

e The construction activities, including heavy machinery and increased
traffic, would pose potential hazards and risks to their well-being. As
responsible members of this community, we cannot overlook the grave
danger this project could impose on the young and vulnerable population.

Page 25



This development could negatively impact the air quality in the area,
further compromising the health and well-being of the residents, especially
the children whose health is particularly susceptible to pollution-related
issues.

Factor-in the prolonged noise, disruption and pollution that we neighbours
have to endure during demolition, construction, sales, marketing, etc. Etc.
and you will understand | hope the basis of our objections.

Transport/Highways

The impact of increased traffic and parking.

The road is currently used as a cut through now. So this will be even
worse.

Parking will be a serious problem

The houses at no 56 and 62/64 are at risk of accident that will not have a
pathway to access and will be walking out of their gardens directly into
traffic.

The so-called driveway should only be a foot path but was widened in an
agreement with previous occupants.

Collective approval of all these plans will lead to significant over
development in the area and also put additional pressure on parking and
traffic in the area.

Any parking audits fail to take account of the collective impact of multiple
sites being redeveloped or proposed EV charging requirements/plans.
The planning pack suggests there could be as many as 60 vehicle
movements per day at peak.

The proposed accessway was just a path/strip and not a road, this road
will cause danger.

Flooding

| have noticed, over the last seven or eight years, that my neighbour
(no.56) has endured an increased problem with garden surface water, as
well. This is probably due to the increase of house extensions and
additional paving, in the area. To make matters worse, the developer now
wants to take away most of the earth, associated with the gardens of no’s
58 & 60, and replace it with concrete foundations and roadways. This will
cause even more garden flooding in the area! | understand from the
planning application that we are in a ‘medium’ risk area for surface water
flooding. This gives me no confidence whatsoever!

The drainage infrastructure cannot cope with more houses/ families.
Likewise our old sewer system regularly blocks up and Dynorod have to
make clearances. More houses will impact down the street.

Page 26



5.1.2

Most of the plot will be paved/concreted.

Wildlife and biodiversity

Harm to biodiversity and loss of garden wildlife habitats

Adverse effect on local wildlife, we have bats, foxes and especially slow
worms in that area and their habitat is already eroded.

Other Matters

There's is plenty of land elsewhere in the borough if you need more
houses.

| am writing as | am totally dumbfounded as to how this application has
not already been refused by you.

In all my 60 years of living in Haynt Walk have | ever seen such a ridiculous
proposal and am totally against it.

That proposed development will be bad for the area, creating congestion
and overcrowding.

| would like to object to the surreptitious plans to develop various
properties in Cannon Hill Ward, increasing the overall number of
properties and residents without any commensurate improvement in local
infrastructure such as transport, GP services, schools, sewerage capacity
etc.

Due to current planning consultation guidance there is no requirement for
the council to consult any residents beyond the immediate vicinity of
properties that are going to be altered, as a result of which | believe most
residents are unaware of plans which might have a detrimental impact on
the area and serve only to profit developers and inflate rental and house
prices so that the adult children of local residents cannot afford to live in
the area

Communication from the Council has been poor, many residents had not
been written too or seen the notices displayed.

One letter of support was received

It would be lovely to see more nice new family homes built in the area.

Re-consultation (31.1.24)

Following the changes to the parking arrangements and privacy improvements
the application was reconsulted upon (31/01/2024) and two letters of objection
were received raising the following concerns;

Page 27



5.2
5.2.1

5.2.2

5.2.3

These buildings built in the late 1920s/30s by one of the first woman
architects and have a particular character. The proposal for the
demolition and rebuilding would be totally against the look of the whole
street.

The proposed plans do not fit in with the rest of the locality as it is large,
overbearing and unneighbourly.

The whole drainage systems and the way they are all connected could
not cope with this huge influx of people using it and would no doubt cause
us all along Haynt Walk massive and potentially expensive problems in
the future.

We are concerned that this new development would lead to greater
flooding.

Parking and additional traffic would also become a huge problem.

This is just in the wrong place and would potentially start the ball rolling
for demolition of the whole street.

We believe our privacy would be affected as it overlooks our garden, and
with the proposed height, we aren’t happy with the effect it would have
on our privacy. Even if privacy glass is installed, it could easily be
replaced after the works have been signed off. As well as this, windows
overlooking the property could easily be opened.

There would also be issues with loss of light as the proposed
development would overshadow our garden.

We are particularly concerned with the state of the border with our
property. 58 Haynt Walk recently moved the border fence of the
neighbouring garden, and we are concerned that they would also do the
same to our border fence that backs on to 58 Haynt Walk once these
works commence. We sought legal representation as the property owner
tried to claim part of our garden as his land.

Works will have a negative effect on our property price

Internal Consultees:

LBM Highways Officer 07/02/2025

No objection subject to conditions.

LBM Transport Officer 22/08/2023

The disabled bay as shown is unacceptable as there is no turning facility within
the site. The applicant to demonstrate how the disabled bay can turn within the
site to approach the highway in a forward manner.

There is no turning facility for parking bay for house no.62. Reversing on to the
public highway is unacceptable.

It is unclear how vehicle access can be provided to house n.56.

Secure cycle storage is acceptable

Page 28



524

5.2.5

5.2.6

5.2.7

5.2.8

5.2.9

5.2.10

Refuse: it appears the designated refuse collection point is substandard to
accommodate the required bins for the development. The drag distance from
the adopted highway should not exceed 10 metres.

Updated comments 11/03/2024 (amended plans)

The width of the access road fronting the terrace houses shows 5.5m. Although
the required width should be 6.0m, | will accept the reduced width to retain the
newly planted trees to north of the boundary.

Raise no objection to the proposed access. The access would remain private
and not adopted by the Council.

Updated Comments 25/03/2024

The turning head at the entrance is adequate to service the development of 6
units although a service vehicle may have to reverse a short distance if all the
car spaces are occupied.

As | can remember an earlier scheme showed a disabled bay at the very end of
the access road and my comments were they must provide a turning head.

Updated comments 16/04/2024

The results (of the parking stress survey) indicate there is adequate level of
reserve capacity exits within the roads surveyed.

LBM Tree & Landscape Officer (22/08/2023)

No arboricultural objection is seen to the loss of the existing trees. these are
described in the arb. report as being in generally poor quality/condition. The
Landscape Design Report shows there is an intention to plant a diverse range
of species of trees and plants, and these are an improvement on the existing
landscape.

The Preliminary Ecological Appraisal does set out measures to oversee the site
work and to protect any species of Amphibian, reptile, hedgehog, bird and
invertebrate that may be found there. This will require the on-going services of
an ecologist.” Conditions recommended.

LBM Waste Management (09/02/2024)

The officer was involved in on site discussions with officers and the applicant in
order to resolve issues of the optimum location and size for refuse storage for
collection and was satisfied with the proposed arrangements.

LBM Flood Risk Officer (25/08/2023)

No objection subject to the following condition:

Condition: Prior to the commencement of development, a detailed
scheme for the provision of surface and foul water drainage shall be

Page 29



5.2.11

5.2.12

5.2.13

submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority for
the development. The drainage scheme will dispose of surface water by
means of a sustainable drainage system (SuDS) at the agreed runoff
rate (no more than 2I/s, with no less than 120.m3 of attenuation volume),
in accordance with drainage hierarchy contained within the London Plan
Policy (Sl 13 and SPG) and the advice contained within the National
SuDS Standards. For this development this will include onsite storage
and permeable paving as part of the overall strategy and the drainage
plans shall include pipe sizes and direction of flow.

Reason: To reduce the risk of surface and foul water flooding to the
proposed development and future users, and ensure surface water and
foul flood risk does not increase offsite in accordance with Merton’s
policies CS16, DMF2 and the London Plan policy Sl 13.

LBM Environmental Health (Air Quality) (06/03/2024):

The applicant has submitted an Air Quality Assessment report dated June 2023
and produced by Air & Acoustic Consultants. Air Quality Air quality conditions
for future occupiers of the proposed development have been shown to be
acceptable, with concentrations below the air quality objectives throughout the

site. Impacts during the demolition and construction phases, such as dust
generation and plant vehicle emissions, are predicted to be of short duration
and only relevant during this period. However, mitigation of any emissions
should be considered. Air Quality Neutral The AQA indicates that both the
building and transport emissions associated with the proposed development
would be ‘air quality neutral,’ in line with the GLA (2023) guidance. Based on
the information above, | have no objections.

LBM Environmental Health (noise and disturbance) (10/10/2023)

The officer raised no objections subject to two conditions.

LBM Design Officer

No objections received, some minor comments as follows:

The Applicant may consider alternative treatments (e.g. colour/texture)
to the shared road surface to aid in distinguishing pedestrian and
vehicular movement.

The Applicant could consider orientation of first floor oriel-style windows
and potential overlooking concerns onto the private amenity of 130/132
Cannon Hill Lane.

Page 30



5.2.14

5.3

5.3.15

LBM Climate Change (16/10/2023)

| don’t generally comment on minor schemes at the planning stage but I've had
a quick look at the energy statement provided.

e The applicant is proposing to achieve a 66.58% improvement against
Part L 2021 which is welcome. | suggest that you secure the carbon
savings proposed in the Energy & Sustainability Statement dated 20
June 2023 via condition.

e Be Lean - the applicant is proposing to achieve an 11.50% improvement
against Part L 2021 in line with the Mayor’s Be Lean target.

e Be Green o Solar PV — the applicant is proposing to install a 5.28kWp
array across the 6 units (2 panels per unit)

e ASHP - the applicant is proposing to use ASHP systems to provide
heating and hot water to the development.

e Overheating — | suggest you encourage the applicant to complete the
Good Homes Alliance overheating tool to confirm if the risk of
overheating has been mitigated.

e Internal water usage rates — internal water usage rates of less than 105
litres per person per day will need to be secured via condition wording.

External Comments

Metropolitan Police — Secured by Design

Crime Statistics For the year ending September 2023, the crime rate in Merton
was lower than average for The Metropolitan Police force area with 67.13
reported crimes per one thousand residents. The crime rate across London is
currently 101.95 crimes per one thousand residents for this time period. This
development would fall under the Cannon Hill ward within the London borough
of Merton.

The top ten crime types for the Cannon Hill Ward, Feb 2023 — Jan 2024 are as
shown below. Violence and Sexual Offences (it should be noted that this
includes Domestic Incidents) is the highest reported with anti-Social behaviour
second. Robbery, vehicle and cycle crime are currently on the increase not only
within the ward but in Merton as a whole. (Source, www.police.uk).

Tanvan i B i

|
T

‘ ¥
=
o #

Page 31



General Recommendations

Secured by Design (SBD) is an initiative that works to improve the security of
buildings and their immediate surroundings to provide safe places to live, work,
shop and visit. SBD is the Police Preferred Specification and provides a
recognised standard for all security products that can deter and reduce crime.

SBD has produced a series of Design Guides to assist the building, design and
construction industry to incorporate security into developments. It is therefore
recommended that the applicant consider the appropriate best practice design
guidance and approved tested products which can be found at the Secure by
Design website https://www.securedbydesign.com.

Approved document Q (ADQ) specifies that windows and doors must meet a
basic minimum security specification. However, this may not be adequate for
developments in London where typically there is a bigger crime risk. It should
be noted compliance with SBD specification is more comprehensive than ADQ,
so achieving SBD accreditation will also satisfy this building regulation
requirement.

Design considerations.

Having given due consideration to the design of this development, |
recommend the following security features be addressed / included:

» The external bicycle parking facilities appear to be a shed like storage system.
I’'d recommend any cycle parking that is designed for secure storage using
bicycle lockers, hangers or dedicated storage devices and be certified to one of
the following minimum standards, or above:

o Sold Secure SS104 Silver, or o Element (Wednesbury) STS 501
Security Rating TR2, or

o Element (Wednesbury) STS 503 Security Rating TR2, or

0204060 80 100 120 140 131 63 59 42 38 27 26 9 8 7 Cannon Hill
Ward Crime Type o Warringtonfire STS 205 Issue 7 Burglar
Resistance BR2, or

o Warringtonfire STS 225 Issue 2 Burglar Resistance BR2(S), or o
Loss Prevention Certification Board LPS 1175 Issue 7 Security Rating
2,0or

o Loss Prevention Certification Board LPS 2081 Issue 1 Security
Rating B

* All easily accessible windows and doors should be SBD approved, tested and
certificated or an agreed equivalent.

* The ledge that runs along the front of the houses gives some concern. | fear if
someone got onto the ledge at any point access to all the first floor windows
would be achievable to those looking to commit crime. Whilst the angled
brickwork does provide some resistance | also feel this could provide some
concealment too. Consideration should be given to installing some kind of

Page 32



separator between houses and at each end of the ledge. This could be a
decorative railing or piece of iron work that would still allow light through but
also restrict movement along the ledge.

The outside wall to garden 2 would benefit from some trellis or other topper.
This wall could be vulnerable to climbing especially with the car parked in close
proximity which could act as a climbing aid. Once in this garden you would be
concealed and then be able to ‘garden hop’ to the other addressed out of sight.

Lighting can contribute to discouraging crime and vandalism and making
people feel secure. Whilst lighting is present to the front of the properties there
doesn’t seem to be any lighting shown in the car parking area between gardens
1 and 2. With little overlooking | would suggest that lighting here is important.
Bollard lighting is not recommended for car parking areas as this tends to be
easily damaged or obscured and does not project sufficient light at the right
height. Bollard lighting should be used purely for wayfinding.

Please note for all products requiring certification the manufacturer or fabricator
supplying the finished product to site is required to present independent third
party certification from a UKAS accredited certification body satisfying all the

Page 33



5.3.16

5.3.17

performance elements. All door and window styles and components will need to
be adequately described within the scope of certification and accompanying
Technical Schedule.

As with any development these recommendations are not exhaustive and
further consultation would be encouraged once the detailed design stage is
reached.

Conclusion

| would ask that my interest in this planning application is noted and that | am
kept appraised of any developments.

If you require clarification or wish to discuss any aspect of the SBD
accreditation, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Updated Comments (MET)

The officer’s observations were supplied to the applicant for comments to which
the officer responded (16/04/2024)

e I'm pleased to see the positive comments from the applicant in regard
to the doors, windows and cycle storage.

e An anti-intruder strip would seem to be a fair compromise. Again |
would recommend that a SBD tested and certified product is used and
that signage is used identifying that is present in line with the
occupiers liability act.

e | still think that trellis would beneficial on the fence of garden two as
the external visitors cycle parking located here will provide a greater
risk to climbing. The lighting plan shows wall lighting will be included
here.

Wimbledon swifts

The inclusion of integrated swift bricks in the proposed new build would
contribute towards conserving the UK's endangered swift populations. Swift
bricks are considered as universal bird nesting features since other birds, such
as the red listed house sparrow, and members of the tit family, take readily to
swift bricks.

POLICY CONTEXT

List of relevant planning policies

National Planning Policy Framework (2023)

e Chapter 2 Achieving sustainable development
e Chapter 8 Promoting healthy and safe communities

Page 34



Chapter 9 Promoting sustainable transport

Chapter 11 Making effective use of land

Chapter 12 Achieving well-designed places

Chapter 14 Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal
change

Chapter 15 Conserving and enhancing the natural environment

London Plan 2021

Policy D3 Optimising site capacity through the design-led approach
Policy D4 Delivering good design

Policy D5 Inclusive design

Policy D6 Housing quality and standards

Policy D8 Public realm

Policy D11 Safety, security and resilience to emergency
Policy D12 Fire safety

Policy D13 Agent of Change

Policy D14 Noise

Policy H2 Small sites

Policy G5 Urban greening

Policy G6 Biodiversity and access to nature

Policy G7 Trees and woodlands

Policy Sl 1 Improving air quality

Policy Sl 2 Minimising greenhouse gas emissions

Policy Sl 3 Energy infrastructure

Policy SI 4 Managing heat risk

Policy SI 5 Water infrastructure

Policy SI 7 Reducing waste and supporting the circular economy
Policy S| 8 Waste capacity and net waste self-sufficiency
Policy SI 12 Flood risk management

Policy Sl 13 Sustainable drainage

Policy T1 Strategic approach to transport

Policy T2 Healthy Streets

Policy T3 Transport capacity, connectivity and safeguarding
Policy T4 Assessing and mitigating transport impacts
Policy T5 Cycling

Policy T6 Car parking

Policy T6.1 Residential parking

Policy T7 Deliveries, servicing and construction

Merton Core Strateqgy (2011)

Page 35



e Policy CS 13 Open space, nature conservation, leisure and culture
e Policy CS 14 Design

e Policy CS 15 Climate Change

e Policy CS 16 Flood Risk Management

e Policy CS 17 Waste Management

e Policy CS 18 Active Transport

e Policy CS 19 Public Transport

e Policy CS 20 Parking, Servicing and Delivery

Merton Sites and Policies Plan (2014)

e DM O2 Nature Conservation, Trees, hedges and landscape features

e DM D1 Urban design and the public realm

e DM D2 Design considerations in all developments

e DM EP2 Reducing and mitigating noise

¢ DM EP3 Allowable solutions

e DM EP4 Pollutants

e DM F1 Support for flood risk management

e DM F2 Sustainable urban drainage systems (SuDS) and; Wastewater and
Water Infrastructure

e DM T1 Support for sustainable transport and active travel

e DM T2 Transport impacts of development

e DM T3 Car parking and servicing standards

Supplementary planning considerations

¢ National Design Guide — October 2019

e Draft Merton Local Plan

e GLA Guidance on preparing energy assessments — 2018

e London Environment Strategy - 2018

e Mayor’s Air Quality Strategy - 2010

e Mayor's SPG — Sustainable Design and Construction 2014

e Mayor's SPG — Character and Context 2014

e DCLG Technical Housing Standards - Nationally Described Space Standard
2015

e Mayor’'s Housing Design Standards London Plan Guidance 2023

e LB Merton — Air quality action plan - 2018-2023.

e LB Merton - Draft Sustainable Drainage (SUDS) Design and Evaluation
Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) 2018

e Merton’s Waste and Recycling Storage Requirements — A Guidance for
Architects

Page 36



6. PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS

6.1.1 The key issues in the assessment of this planning application are:

e Principle of development
o Contribution towards housing targets
o  Small Sites
o Merton's five year land supply
o Provision of student accommodation
o Conclusion on principle of development
e Design (character and appearance)
o  Massing and heights
o Layout
o Design and appearance
e Urban Greening Factor and trees
e Impact on neighbouring amenity
o  Daylight and Sunlight
o Privacy and overlooking
o  Noise/disturbance
o Conclusion on impact on neighbouring amenity
e Standard of accommodation
¢ Inclusive design and accessible accommodation
e Transport, parking and cycle storage
o Conclusion on impact on neighbouring amenity
Car Parking
Cycle Parking
Deliveries and servicing
Trip Generation
Construction process
o Conclusion on transport matters
e Sustainable design and construction
e Air Quality and potentially contaminated land considerations
¢ Flood risk and drainage
e Biodiversity
e Secure by Design considerations
o Fire Safety

0O O O O O

6.2 Principle of development

6.2.1 Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 states that
when determining a planning application, regard is to be had to the development
plan, and the determination shall be made in accordance with the development
plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

Contribution towards housing targets

Page 37



6.2.2

6.2.3

6.2.4

6.2.5

6.2.6

6.2.7

Policy H1 of the London Plan 2021 states that development plan policies should
seek to identify new sources of land for residential development including
intensification of housing provision through development at higher densities.
Core Strategy policies CS8 & CS9 seek to encourage proposals for well-
designed and conveniently located new housing that will create socially mixed
and sustainable neighbourhoods through physical regeneration and effective use
of space.

Policy H1 of the London Plan 2021 has set Merton a ten-year housing target of
9,180 new homes. The proposal would make a valuable contribution to meeting
that target. For London to accommodate the growth identified in the new Plan in
an inclusive and responsible way, every new development needs to make the
most efficient use of land by optimising site capacity. This means ensuring the
development’s form is the most appropriate for the site. By providing an
additional four family sized houses the proposals are considered to accord with
policy goals to provide new housing.

Small Sites

The application site has a site area of 0.18ha. The application site therefore falls
under planning policy H2 (Small Sites) of the London Plan 2021. Following on
from the housing targets set out above, small sites are expected to deliver 2,610
new homes over the 10 year period (2019/20 - 2028/29). Policy H2 sets out that
for London to deliver more of the housing it needs, small sites (below 0.25
hectares in size) must make a substantially greater contribution to new supply
across the city. Therefore, increasing the rate of housing delivery from small sites
is a strategic priority. Achieving this objective will require positive and proactive
planning by boroughs both in terms of planning decisions and plan-making.

Merton's five year land supply

Merton currently does not have a five-year supply of deliverable housing. It is
therefore advised that members should consider this position as a significant
material consideration in the determination of planning applications proposing
additional homes.

Where local planning authorities cannot demonstrate a five year supply of
deliverable housing sites, relevant decisions should apply the presumption in
favour of sustainable development. This means that for planning applications
involving the provision of housing, it should be granted permission unless:

» the application of policies in the Framework that protect areas or
assets of particular importance provides a clear reason for refusing the
development proposed; or

+ any adverse effect of doing so would significantly and demonstrably
outweigh the benefits when assessed against the policies in the
Framework taken as a whole

In real terms, if Merton continues to not meet its housing supply, then greater
weight will need to be given to delivering more housing in the planning balance.
Therefore, it is important that the Council seeks to deliver new housing now and
make the most efficient use of sites to deliver new homes with appropriately

Page 38



6.2.8

6.2.9

6.3
6.3.1

6.3.2

designed buildings. The scheme is considered to make efficient use of the site
with a good quality development that respects the character and appearance of
the area without being harmful. The additional accommodation in the form of an
additional four family sized homes created on the site would make a valuable
contribution towards Merton meeting its housing targets.

Housing mix

SPP policy DM H2 states that residential developments would be looked upon
favourably where they contribute to meeting the needs of different households
such as families with children, single person households and older people by
providing a mix of dwelling sizes. To that end the Council looks to achieve
indicative proportions such that 33% of units should be one bedroom, 32% two
bedroom and 35% three plus bedrooms. With the majority of new residential
developments in Merton coming forward as flatted accommodation, it is
welcomed that larger family sized homes are being proposed. This application
would therefore contribution towards wider housing choice in the Borough.

Conclusion on principle of development

The proposal is considered to respond positively to London Plan and Core
Strategy planning policies to meet increased housing targets and optimising sites
through the provision of additional family sized housing. The principle of
development is considered to be acceptable subject to compliance with the
relevant policies of the Development Plan. Due to the scale of the development
it is not subject to a requirement to consider affordable housing.

Design (character and appearance)

The NPPF, London Plan policies D3 and D4, Core Strategy policy CS 14 and
SPP Policy DM D2 require well designed proposals which make a positive
contribution to the public realm, are of the highest quality materials and design
and which are appropriate in their context. Thus, development proposals must
respect the appearance, materials, scale, bulk, proportions and character of their
surroundings. Paragraph 130 of the NPPF advises that permission should be
refused for development of poor design that fails to take the opportunities
available for improving the character and quality of an area and the way it
functions, taking into account any local design standards or style guides in plans
or supplementary planning documents. Conversely, where the design of a
development accords with clear expectations in plan policies, design should not
be used by the decision-maker as a valid reason to object to development.

Character

The application was accompanied by an Urban Character Assessment which
noted:

‘the majority of buildings have either hipped or gabled roofs, with some
facing the main road and others at the right angles of the corner
buildings. The distinctive features are roofs that have a combination of
the different roof pitches within the body of the roof, starting from the low
pitch at approximately 33 degrees and then raising on the hip side to a
typical 51-degree steeper pitch. These roofs are complemented by

Page 39



6.3.3

6.3.4

6.3.5

prominent chimney stacks, making them a contributory factor in their
appearance and character.

Originally, the terraces were all built in brick, some of which have had
more distinctive brick detailing and some fairly plain. However, over time,
many buildings had their facades altered by additions of render,
pebbledash, and mock-Tudor style features. Multiple examples of such
changes are found on Haynt Walk, Martin Way and elsewhere in the
area. There is a wide variety of window types used: Crittal, UPVC
casements and box sashes with small glass panes. Whilst some houses
feature cottage-style entrance doors with glass panes in the upper part,
many have modern timber doors of various styles. The entrances feature
porches with neo-Georgian details’. The assessment goes onto explain
that these elements have been carried across in the design rationale.
‘The main frontages of these dwellings would be set some distance from
general public view, with a dedicated driveway. In this way, the
development would not be perceived as a tightly spaced scheme from
the surrounding area. The terraced development is not an alien form in
this neighbourhood; on the contrary, the whole estate is formed of the
juxtaposition of alternating semi-detached pairs and terraces.

The existing urban context, its scale, massing and architectural detalil
were utilised, translated and applied in a contemporary manner. The
proposed materials to be used are brick and modern, sustainable solar
roofs. The front elevation has a strong horizontal emphasis enhanced by
the addition of a contemporary interpretation of the bay windows on the
ground floor, with the upper floor exhibiting angled windows, adding
rhythm to the fagade whilst ensuring that there will be limited overlooking
of the neighbouring properties. The design of the roof form was informed
by the analysis of the surrounding houses and their roofscape, ensuring
that the eaves height matches the eaves levels of the surrounding
properties’.

Officers have considered the comments submitted by the applicant and have
found no issue with them and consider that the proposals have been developed
to be reflective of local character.

Massing and heights

Consideration of matters of massing and height may reasonably be informed by
the application of both London Plan and local planning policies and in this
instance the eaves height has been carried across into the new houses whilst
the overall height is only 0.42m more than the existing houses which is required
to reflect newer building regulations requirements.

At pre application stage the proposals involved a terrace of 8 houses but this has
been reduced to 6 which is the same number as in the other terraces on the
estate and whilst the proposed houses are wider, the impact of that is considered
mitigated by the position and orientation of the proposed terrace. In view of these
factors the height and massing are considered acceptable.

Page 40



6.3.6

6.3.7

6.3.8

6.3.9

6.3.10

6.3.11

6.3.12

Layout

The main block of housing has been designed to be centrally located within the
site and set back from boundaries by gardens or the access drive. There would
be visitor cycle storage, a vehicle turning head and a dedicated refuse
presentation area at the entrance.

The external layout has been amended to remove the communal parking area
from the boundary with the neighbour at 275-277 Martin Way and to provide
parking in front of each house.

Conclusion (design)

It is acknowledged that the local area has its own characteristic nature and
appearance resulting from it having been constructed as an estate with a
commonality of building forms in terms of pairs of semi-detached and short
terraces of houses, roof designs and materiality. However, officers raise no
objection to the modern design approach, as it is considered to respect the
context of the site, surrounding buildings in terms of character, appearance,
height, massing and layout, whilst ensuing that the site optimises its potential to
deliver much needed housing.

Standard of Accommodation

As three bedroom, 6 occupier houses on three floors the proposals would be
expected to provide a minimum Gross internal Area of 108sqm and a Best
Practice size of 120sgm. Best Practice reflects the GLA preference for properties
to be larger so as to more easily accommodate space for home working. With
GlAs of over 170sgm the proposals provide a generous quantum of internal
accommodation whilst all the rear gardens exceed the minimum 50sgm
requirement.

In addition to the large floor areas and size compliant rear gardens, the houses
are all at least dual aspect and have regularly shaped rooms with good levels of
natural light from the fenestration such that they are considered to provide a high
standard of residential amenity for future occupiers. The houses would also
include a separate reception room which accords with best practice guidance to
provide a separate amenity space within the home so that residents have
different areas within the home to engage in different activities from each other.

Inclusive Design and Accessible Housing

Policy D5 (Inclusive Design) of the London Plan 2021 states that development
proposal should achieve the highest standards of accessible and inclusive
design. Inclusive design creates spaces and places that can facilitate social
integration, enabling people to lead more interconnected lives. Development
proposals should help to create inclusive neighbourhoods that cumulatively form
a network in which people can live and work in a safe, healthy, supportive and
inclusive environment.

Planning Policy D7 (Accessible housing) of the London Plan 2021 seeks to
provide suitable housing and genuine choice for London’s diverse population,

Page 41



6.3.13

6.4
6.4.1

6.4.2

6.4.3

6.4.4

6.4.5

including disabled people, older people and families with young children,
residential development must ensure that at least 10 per cent of dwellings meet
Building Regulation requirement M4(3) ‘wheelchair user dwellings’ and all other
dwellings meet Building Regulation requirement M4(2) ‘accessible and adaptable
dwellings.

The proposal includes houses (shown in greater detail on the plans as House
type A) designed to accord with these requirements and therefore the proposal
would be acceptable in terms of inclusive design and accessible housing.

Impact on neighbouring amenity

Planning Policy D6 (Housing quality and standards) of the London Plan 2021
states that the design of development should provide sufficient daylight and
sunlight to new and surrounding housing that is appropriate for its context, whilst
avoiding overheating, minimising overshadowing and maximising the usability of
outside amenity space.

Planning policy CS policy 14 of Merton’s Core Planning Strategy and policy DM
D2 of Merton’s Sites and Policies Plan seek to ensure new developments does
not unacceptably impact on the amenities of the occupiers of any adjoining and
nearby surrounding properties. Planning policy DM D2 (Design considerations in
all developments) states that amongst other planning considerations that
proposals will be expected to ensure provision of appropriate levels of sunlight
and daylight, quality of living conditions, amenity space and privacy, to both
proposed and adjoining buildings and gardens.

Policy DM EP2 (Reducing and mitigating noise) states that development which
would have a significant effect on existing or future occupiers or local amenity
due to noise or vibration will not be permitted unless the potential noise problems
can be overcome by suitable mitigation measures.

Lighting

The development would require the provision of new lighting measures to
facilitate safe access to the houses and provide a safe and secure environment.
The proposals involve the use of a mixture of low level lighting methods which

are designed to illuminate the site whilst at the same time not impact the amenity
of neighbours or have an injurious impact on wildlife.

Daylight and Sunlight

The Building Research Establishment (BRE) numerical guidelines should be
considered in the context of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF),
which stipulates that local planning authorities should take a flexible approach to
daylight and sunlight to ensure the efficient use of land. The NPPF states:

“Local planning authorities should refuse applications which they consider
fail to make efficient use of land, taking into account the policies in this
Framework. In this context, when considering applications for housing,
authorities should take a flexible approach in applying policies or guidance
relating to daylight and sunlight, where they would otherwise inhibit

Page 42



6.4.6

6.4.7

6.4.8

6.4.9

making efficient use of a site (as long as the resulting scheme would
provide acceptable living standards).

The application is accompanied by a Sunlight and Daylight Analysis with the
results of the examination being based upon the standard assessment procedure
of the BRE Guide ‘Site Layout Planning for Daylight and Sunlight - A Guide to
Good Practice’ 3rd Edition 2022 (The BRE Guide). The report found that where
reductions are applicable to the daylight and sunlight to neighbouring residential
properties, these readily meet the BRE Guide default target criteria and on that
basis, should be considered acceptable. It has not been necessary to analyse
Daylight VSC and Daylight Distribution for neighbouring Nos. 130-136 & 138-144
(evens) Cannon Hill Lane and Nos. 267-277 (odds) Martin Way, since when
considering the nearest of these proposals at Nos. 271 & 273 Martin Way, the
proposal is set below the BRE Guide test relating to a 25 degree line to the
horizontal from the lowest and closest windows to the proposal, as detailed
further within this report (and for the other neighbouring properties within this
group, this would also readily be the case as set further away). On this basis,
further daylight review is not necessary for these particular neighbouring
properties.

Overshadowing

In relation to Sun on the Ground the report undertook analysis of the nearest
applicable surrounding amenity areas relating to the rear gardens to 56 Haynt
Walk, 130-136 & 138-144 (evens) Cannon Hill Lane and Nos. 267-277 (odds)
Martin Way. The analysis confirms that for the nearest applicable amenity areas,
there are effectively no reductions in comparing existing to proposed scenarios
in reference to the BRE Guide 2 hours test for sunlight availability on the ground
on the 21st of March Equinox, thus readily meeting BRE Guide default target
criteria. Given that the maijority of gardens are predominantly to the south of the
proposal combined with the low-rise nature of the proposal these results are not
unexpected.

56 Haynt Walk

Located along the northern boundary of the application site, this neighbour sits
at a right angle to the application site. The proposed terrace would be orientated
to face directly towards the flank wall of 56 Haynt Walk and its front and rear
garden areas. The proposed terrace would be set back from the side boundary
of this neighbouring property by 11m. A row of trees are also proposed along the
northern boundary of the application site to help reduce views of the proposal
from the neighbours garden. Whilst the proposed terrace would have windows
facing towards this neighbour, the design of the first floor windows includes
angled windows which direct views toward the rear section of this neighbours
garden. The roof skylights on the front elevation are angled upwards to reduce
overlooking and the proposed lighting arrangements designed so as not to
impact occupier amenity from light pollution. A planning condition requiring that
the first floor windows serving the staircase would also ensure that there is no
undue overlooking or loss of privacy.

The submitted Daylight & Sunlight Report compiled by Schroeders Begg (UK)
LLC found that the need for review was limited to No. 56 Haynt Walk given that

Page 43



6.4.10

6.4.11

6.4.12

6.4.13

6.4.14

6.4.15

for the rear elevation windows (rear elevation facing towards site) within
neighbouring Nos. 130-136 & 138-144 (evens) Cannon Hill Lane and Nos. 267-
277 (odds) Martin Way, these are not facing within 90° of south, so not
applicable for assessment given the orientation context. The report found that
for this property;

for all VSC (Vertical Sky Component) reductions, for all windows
appropriate for consideration, where reductions are applicable, these all
meet BRE Guide default target criteria thus should be considered
acceptable. For daylight to applicable rooms analysed, there are
effectively no reductions in daylight distribution, thus readily meeting
BRE Guide default target criteria’.

As set out above, light levels to the neighbours garden are also retained within
the recommended acceptable levels.

64 Haynt Walk

Located beyond the western boundary of the application site, forming the other
half of the semi detached house to be refurbished as part of the application, this
neighbours is well distanced away from the proposed terrace to ensure that there
would be no undue loss of amenity. The window orientation is such that there
would be no direct line of sight between windows.

132 — 136 Cannon Hill Lane

These properties are located to the south east of the application site at a
distance of over 40m between the proposed block and their rear windows. The
proposed terrace would also be set away from the rear boundary by approx.
3m. Given the level of separation from the neighbours rear boundary, plus the
level separation from the neighbouring properties themselves and the modest
size of the proposed flank elevation, it is considered that there would be no
undue loss of amenity in terms of overlooking or visual intrusion. A planning
condition restricting any new openings in the flank elevation of the proposed
terrace would ensure that the council retains controlled over any new openings
at the upper levels (to ensure that there would be no undue loss of privacy or
overlooking).

The submitted Daylight & Sunlight report identified that it had not been necessary
to analyse Daylight VSC and Daylight Distribution for neighbouring Nos. 130-136
& 138-144 (evens) Cannon Hill Lane since the proposal is set below the BRE
Guide test relating to a 25 degree line to the horizontal from the lowest and
closest windows to the proposal.

The combination of orientation, layout and separation distances mean that there
are not considered to be sufficient material impact on neighbour amenity from
loss of light, privacy and visual intrusion to warrant a refusal of the application

138 — 144 Cannon Hill Lane

These properties form a short terrace of houses situated to the south of the
application site at a distance of over 36m between the proposed block and their
rear windows, albeit the two end houses do not directly border the site. These
properties, at the closest point, face the corner of the proposed block window.

Page 44



6.4.16

6.4.17

6.4.18

6.4.19

6.4.20

6.4.21

The windows in the development that would look towards them serve bathrooms
and would be obscure glazed. The combination of orientation, layout and
separation distances mean that there are not considered to be sufficient material
impact on neighbour amenity from loss of light, privacy and visual intrusion to
warrant a refusal of the application.

267 — 277 Martin Way

These properties are a series of semi-detached houses located to the south west
of the application site at a distance of over 35m between the windows in the
proposed block (which serve bedrooms on the first and top floors) and their rear
windows. The rear gardens border the boundary with the site. The proposed
terrace has been designed with a staggered building form at the upper levels
which will help reduce massing when viewed from these neighbouring properties.
The closes element of the proposed terrace at the rear (rear wing), has been
designed with no openings on the rear elevation given that this element would
be the closest element to these neighbours gardens. A planning condition
restricting any openings within this elevation (upper level) would ensure that the
Council retains control over any changes (in order to control impact on
neighbours). Another planning condition preventing the use of the flat roof of the
ground floor would also ensure that this space is not used as a terrace.

As with the other neighbours the report determined that it was not been
necessary to analyse Daylight VSC and Daylight Distribution for neighbouring
Nos. 267-277 (odds) Martin Way, since when considering the nearest of these
proposals at Nos. 271 & 273 Martin Way, the proposal is set below the BRE
Guide test relating to a 25 degree line to the horizontal from the lowest and
closest windows to the proposal.

Again, the combination of orientation, layout and separation distances mean that
there are not considered to be sufficient material impact on neighbour amenity
from loss of light, privacy and visual intrusion to warrant a refusal of the
application.

279-283 Martin Way

These houses represent a continuation of the Martin Way building line and are
further away (42-50m) than their neighbours above and are subject to the same
considerations and impacts as the properties at 138-144 Martin Way, that being
that there would be no material harm to their amenity.

Privacy/overlooking/visual intrusion

Officers engaged with the applicants at an early stage of the pre application
process to consider potential overlooking and loss of privacy for the neighbouring
occupiers. As a result the applicants have further developed methods for
protecting neighbouring amenity including angled windows and the use of
obscure glazing and louvres and as a result there have been very limited
objections to a loss of privacy and officers consider that those measures should
result in no loss of privacy for adjoining neighbours.

Noise/disturbance

The existing lawful use of the site is residential and the same use, albeit

Page 45



6.4.22

6.4.23

6.4.24

6.5
6.5.1

6.5.2

6.5.3

intensified, would continue as a result of the proposals. Given the level of
separation from neighbouring properties, residential nature of the use and limited
number of car parking spaces, it is considered that the proposal would not result
in undue impact on neighbours byway of noise disturbance.

Conclusion on impact on neighbouring amenity

The proposed block of houses is set away from neighbouring occupiers in or
order to reduce visual intrusion and this combined with the site orientation mean
that the impact on light and overshadowing would be within BRE guidance. With
the measures put in place such as the angled windows and louvres there are not
considered to be any concerns in relation to privacy and there have been no
objections in this regard.

The construction of the development will cause disturbance during the demolition
and construction phases but this can be mitigated by conditions surrounding
hours of construction and demolition and construction management plans.

Overall subject to the imposition of suitable conditions, the impact of the
proposed development on neighbouring amenity, is, on balance, considered to
be acceptable.

Transport, parking and cycle storage

Planning Policy T6 of the London Plan states that Car-free development should
be the starting point for all development proposals in places that are (or are
planned to be) well-connected by public transport. At a local level Policy CS20
requires developers to demonstrate that their development will not adversely
affect on-street parking or traffic management. Policy T5 seeks to ensure that
adequate cycle parking is provided. Policies DMT1-T3 seek to ensure that
developments do not result in congestion, have a minimal impact on existing
transport infrastructure and provide suitable levels of parking.

Car Parking

The potential impact of new residential development on parking in the area has
been raised as a concern by neighbouring occupiers. The proposal would now
provide (following amendments to the scheme) a car parking space for each
house with active EV charging. Given the PTAL rating of the scheme being 2 and
each house have 3 bedrooms, the London Plan sets a maximum requirement of
1 parking space per unit. As set out above, each house would have one car
parking space and would therefore comply with London Plan standards.

The site is not located within a controlled parking zone, there is no mechanism
to make the development permit free. Therefore, officers need to consider what
impact the proposal would have on the surrounding road network. The applicant
submitted a Parking stress survey in conjunction with a Transport Statement. It
was undertaken around the site, in line with the Lambeth Parking Survey
Methodology. The overall parking stress levels around the site area were found
to be 57% over the two nights (60% on the first night and 54% on the second
night). The Council Transport Planning has confirmed that he has no objection
to the findings of the parking survey. Impact on the surrounding road network

Page 46



6.5.4

6.5.5

6.5.6

6.5.7

from 6 new houses is considered to be limited, as each house would have their
own dedicated car parking space. Any additional car ownership created by the
proposed development is considered to be low (even if each house has 2 cars,
this would only generate 6 cars on the local highway network). In any event, the
parking survey shows that there is ample capacity in the local area to
accommodate any additional cars without causing adverse impact on the local
road network.

Cycle Parking

London Plan Policy T5 (Cycling) states that proposals should be designed and
laid out in accordance with the London Cycling Design Standards. Houses of this
size are required to be provided with two secure and accessible cycle storage
spaces. Houses 1 and 6 would have cycle storage facilities within their rear
garden. These can be directly from the highway via the side garden entrances.
The middle houses, have good sized rear gardens, but no direct access to the
highway, so bikes would need to be manoeuvred through the house if stored
within the rear gardens. This is not considered to be ideal, however, owners may
choose to house their bikes here. However, a dedicated shared cycle storage
area for houses 2 — 5 would be provided at the end of the cul-de-sac. Additional
visitor spaces is also provided in the area located to the flank of house 1. The
proposed development is therefore considered to be in accordance with London
Plan standards. Full details of cycle parking can be secured via planning
condition.

Deliveries and servicing

Policy CS20 of Merton’s Core Planning Strategy states that the Council will
require developments to incorporate safe access to and from the public highway
as well as on-site parking and manoeuvring for emergency vehicles, refuse
storage and collection, and for service and delivery vehicles.

The layout has been designed to allow for space for on-site vehicle manoeuvring
so that delivery vehicles can enter the site and turn around and then leave in
forward gear. Delivery drivers would be expected to use the turning area
provided, however in the event that vehicles manoeuvre along the access road
to get closer to some houses, a degree of reversing would take place (if cars are
not parked). The Councils Transport Planner has confirmed no objection to this
scenario (see paragraph 5.2.5).

Trip Generation

The Transport Statement sets out that the proposed development will generate
an additional 2 trips (1 arrival and 1 departure) in the AM peak hour, and 1 trip (1
arrival) with in the PM peak hour. The statement comments that this level of trip
generation is considered to be completely insignificant, and well within the daily
variation of traffic levels within the local area and that the scheme will therefore
not generate any perceivable impacts on the local highway network. Officers
consider that this statement is reasonable, and officers have received no
comments from the Councils Transport Planner to contest these predictions.

Page 47



6.5.8

6.5.9

6.5.10

6.5.11

6.6
6.6.1

6.6.2

Construction process

The submission includes a Construction Logistics Plan (CLP), which shows
swept path analysis drawings for small and medium rigid construction vehicle,
reviewing how small HGVs will safely access, turn within and then egress from,
the neighbouring site. The CLP confirms that construction related deliveries
would avoid the high peak periods. The finer details would be secured through
condition once a contractor is appointed.

A number of conditions are recommended to minimise impacts of the
construction process, such as the submission, once a contractor has been
appointed, of a Demolition/Construction Logistics Plan, to ensure that impacts
are minimised as far as reasonably practicable.

Conclusion on transport matters

The proposed use would represent an intensification of the existing residential
use but the net increase in dwellings is only four and each house would have its
own parking space with EV charging facilities and secure cycle storage. Any
additional car parking could be adequality accommodated in the local area
without causing any adverse impact. Suitably conditioned, the construction
process can be managed to minimise the impact on neighbours and the
operation of the highway network or generate a significant number of traffic
movements. Consequently it is considered that the impact on transport related
issues would be acceptable and not be such as to warrant a refusal of the
application.

Refuse Collection

The refuse arrangements have been formulated in consultation with the
Council’s waste services officer. Each house will have its own storage
arrangements in the front gardens. For collection purposes an area to the front
of the site has been designated for this such that residents would manoeuvre
their bins to this space for the designated collection day. They could then be
collected from this space by the Council’s refuse operatives without the need to
enter the site. The residents would then return them to their homes once
emptied.

Sustainable design and construction

London Plan policies Sl 2 to SI 5 and CS policy CS15 seek to ensure the highest
standards of sustainability are achieved for developments which includes
minimising carbon dioxide emissions, maximising recycling, sourcing materials
with a low carbon footprint, ensuring urban greening and minimising the usage
of resources such as water.

The application is accompanied by an Energy and Sustainability Statement that
notes that ‘a ‘Lean, Clean, Green” strategy has been adopted and the
development achieves an improvement in build fabric at over 11.50% at the “Be
Lean” stage and an overall improvement (DER/TER) in regulated emissions at
over 66.58% above Part L 2021 standard, through the adoption of very high
standards of insulation, heat pump driven heating and hot water systems and a
roof mounted PV array. This meets the requirement of Policy S| 2 of the London
Plan 2021.

Page 48



6.6.3

6.7
6.7.1

6.7.2

6.7.3

6.7.4

6.7.5

6.7.6

6.8
6.8.1

6.8.2

6.8.3

The Climate Change Officer raised no objections to the proposals and was
satisfied with the proposed energy savings and suggested that the Council
secure the carbon savings proposed in the Energy & Sustainability Statement
dated 20 June 2023 via condition and recommended conditions to be attached
to any consent.

Air Quality

The whole of Merton is within an Air Quality Management Area. The site is within
one of the Greater London Authority’s (GLAs) air quality focus areas.

The submitted Air Quality Assessment complied by Air & Acoustics Consultants
which considered potential impacts on air quality from dust and emissions. Part
of the document included an Air Quality Neutral Assessment which noted:

‘It is anticipated that each dwelling will be fitted with a gas boiler with
NOx emissions rated at less than 40 mg/kWh. On this basis, the
assessment of the building emissions indicates the impacts are
considered to be ‘air quality neutral.’

The AQNA also found that it has been confirmed by the project transport consult
that each new dwelling will be provided with one new car parking space, with the
refurbished dwelling also providing one car parking space. On this basis, and in
line with the GLA (2023) guidance, as the proposed development complies with
the London Plan (2021) residential parking standards (plus all spaces would be
fitted with electric charging points), an AQNA is not required, and the proposed
development can be considered ‘air quality neutral’ for transport emissions.

The AQA went on to offer a number of mitigating operational activities which
would address the risk of harm from dust during demolition and construction.

During the construction works, a range of best practice mitigation measures will
be implemented to reduce dust emissions and the overall effect will be ‘not
significant’

The Council’s Air Quality Officer has considered the arrangements and raises no
objection subject to condition.

Flood risk and drainage

Policy SI 13 of the London Plan (Sustainable drainage) sets out that development
proposals should aim to achieve greenfield run-off rates and ensure that surface
water run-off is managed as close to its source as possible. There should also
be a preference for green over grey features.

The site is within Flood Zone 1 (low probability of flooding) although it is within a
Critical Drainage Area and area of increased potential for elevated groundwater.

The scheme includes details of a Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage Strategy
document Sustainable Urban Drainage System which sets out mitigation
measures such as the water attenuation methods and the green roof which when
combined with the proposal to raise finished floor levels 300mm above surface
water flood levels, should effectively manage all runoff within the site and
possible surface water flood risk to the proposed development. The proposed
surface water drainage system can effectively control all runoff generated within

Page 49



6.8.4

6.9
6.9.1

6.9.2

6.9.3

6.10

6.10.1

6.10.2

6.10.3

the site and maintain pre-development Greenfield runoff, without increasing flood
risk to neighbouring properties.

The document has been assessed by the Council’s flood risk team and they
raised no concerns subject to a more detailed scheme being submitted,
approved and implemented.

Biodiversity

The London Plan sets out at Policy G6 that development proposals should
manage impacts on biodiversity and aim to secure net biodiversity gain. The
proposals would see the removal of the existing trees and the existing garden
areas albeit they also include a landscaping package. In order to provide an
overview of the existing situation on site the proposal was accompanied by a
Preliminary Ecological Assessment and Preliminary Roosting Assessment.

The report found that the existing habitats tended to be poor quality and that
reported sightings of mammals and reptiles were very limited and then off site.
There has been an objection on the grounds of harm to slow worms but there
have been no sightings since 2015 and that was more than 1lkm away with
closest sighting being 60m away in 2014.

The report found that there were no existing suitable sites for Schedule 1 Birds
(Barn Owls etc) or roosting bats. It did however make a number of
recommendations for ensuring that the impact of the scheme on existing
biodiversity was mitigated during construction and improved measures for
implementation post construction. A condition that the works be undertaken in
accordance with the findings and recommendations of the reports is
recommended.

Urban Greening Factor and trees

As the proposal is not a ‘'major’ development there is no requirement comply to
with Policy G5 of the London Plan and achieve a prescribed Urban Greening
Factor (UGF). As set out above, Policy G6 of the London Plan does set out that
development proposals should manage impacts on biodiversity and aim to
secure net biodiversity gain, including sites not within areas of special protection.
In addition to the improvements for wildlife the report outlines the need to protect
hedges and trees in neighbouring properties

In relation to trees none of the trees on site are rated above Category C and
therefore of limited amenity and ecological value to the degree that there would
be no in principle objection to their removal but they should be replaced with new
specimens and a landscaping condition to this effect is recommended.

The application was supported by a Landscape Design Report which sets out
landscaping proposals for the site. The Councils Tree Officer has raised no
objection to the proposal subject to conditions.

Page 50



6.11
6.11.4

6.11.5

6.12
6.12.1

6.12.2

Secure by Design considerations

Policy DMD2 of Merton’s Sites and Policies Plan sets out that all developments
must provide layouts that are safe, secure and take account of crime prevention
and are developed in accordance with Secured by Design principles.

The proposal includes the creation of 6 new houses on the site. The site is
surrounded on all sides by existing residential properties, therefore a degree of
natural surveillance would exist. In addition, the proposal would add to creating
improved surveillance of neighbouring sites once completed. As part of the
consultation process, officers consulted the MET Police for comment. The MET
raise no objection to the proposed scheme, but do offer some advice. These
comments have been presented to the applicant for comment. The applicant has
agreed to address the points raised. Officers consider these points can
reasonably be covered in planning conditions. In addition, members should note
that the car parking arrangements have be altered since the MET comments
were received so that car parking is now provided directly in front of each house
(rather than a parking area for vehicles to the side of the terrace).

Fire Safety

Planning Policy D12 (Fire safety) of the of the London Plan 2021 highlights that
fire safety of developments should be considered from the outset. How a building
will function in terms of fire, emergency evacuation, and the safety of all users
should be considered at the earliest possible stage to ensure the most successful
outcomes are achieved, creating developments that are safe and that Londoners
can have confidence living in and using.

Although the application is not a ‘major’ and therefore with no requirement to do
so, the application was supported by a detailed Fire Safety Statement compiled
by Mr Andrew O.M. Ballantyne BArch MEng CEng MIFireE PMSFPE, a
Chartered Engineer registered with the Engineering Council by the Institute of
Fire Engineers, and Full Member of the Institute of Fire Engineers (Member
00056660). The statement notes that:

“The building will be designed in accordance with the recommendations
of BS 9991 [4], including further documents and standards referenced
therein. This will be augmented by recent updates to Approved
Document B — Volume 1: Dwellings (ADB) [5], being above and beyond
the expectations of BS 9991. Fire engineering principles may be
employed to support alternative solutions where strict adherence to BS
9991 guidance would conflict with the aspirations of the scheme.

In addition to building regulations requirements the dwellinghouses are
to be fitted with an automatic fire detection system to meet Grade D1
Category LD2 in BS 5839-6 [6], This will include heat detection in the
kitchen area, and smoke detection throughout living areas, hallways,
and internal stairs.

The site will not feature sufficient road widths to allow a fire appliance to
turn within the site, such that access is limited to the maximum of 20 m
dead-end reversing distance. As such, this location is taken as the fire

Page 51



6.12.3

7.1.1

8.1.1

8.1.2

9.1.1

9.1.2

9.1.3

9.14

9.1.5

appliance hardstanding position when considering the maximum hose
laying distances. Consequently automatic suppression with a Category
2 sprinkler system to BS 9251 [8] would be required within Houses No.3
to No.6 as a minimum to support the extended hose laying distances
from the fire appliance hardstanding”.

Whilst the application is not a major application and there is no requirement for
a fire strategy to be submitted, the applicant has taken a proactive view on this
scheme, especially given the constraints of the site. Any planning approval can
be subject to a planning condition requiring that the development is in built in
accordance with the submitted fire strategy and building regulations.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT

The application does not constitute Schedule 1 or Schedule 2 development.
Accordingly, there are no requirements in terms of EIA submission.

LOCAL FINANCE CONSIDERATIONS

Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) provides
that a local planning authority must have regard to a local finance consideration
as far as it is material. The weight to be attached to a local finance consideration
remains a matter for the decision maker. The Mayor of London's CIL and Merton
CIL are therefore material considerations.

On initial assessment this development is considered liable for the Mayoral and
Merton CIL.

CONCLUSION

The existing site is underused and provides an opportunity for a more dense
redevelopment. The proposed development is considered to make good use of
the site by creating 6 good quality family houses which respond satisfactory to
the site and its context in terms of design, massing, height and layout. The design
and siting of the proposed houses would ensure that the amenity of surrounding
residential properties is preserved to a reasonable level.

The standard of accommodation proposed is considered to be good with each
house exceeding minimum space standards, all habitable rooms receiving
adequate levels of light and outlook and each house having suitable bin and bike
storage facilities.

Transport impacts from the proposed development are considered to be modest
with each house having its own car parking space and any overspill car parking
being be absorbed into the local highway network without causing adverse
impact.

All other material planning considerations as set out in the report above are
considered to be acceptable subject to planning conditions in some instances.

Officers consider that the proposal is acceptable in planning terms, subject to
conditions and therefore the recommendation is for approval.

Page 52



10. RECOMMENDATION

GRANT planning permission subject to conditions

4.

. Commencement - The development to which this permission relates shall be

commenced not later than the expiration of 3 years from the date of this
permission.

Reason: To comply with Section 91 (as amended) of the Town & Country
Planning Act 1990.

. Approved Plans - The development shall be undertaken in accordance with

the following details: Site location plan and drawings 3213 BR-102E, 3213
BR-103E,3213 BR-104E, 3213 BR-105E, 3213 BR-106E, 3213 BR-107D,
3213 BR-108E, 3213 BR-109E and 3213 BR-120F.

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning

Materials - Prior to commencement of above ground works, full details and
samples of all materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces
of the development hereby permitted shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the local planning authority. Details must include a detailed
schedule of materials, physical examples of materials from the manufacturer
where appropriate, a photographic sample board, sample panels where
appropriate and notwithstanding the submitted drawings, rendered drawings,
elevations and sections at a scale of 1:20, showing details of window reveals,
glazing type, framing, glazing bars, cills, soffits and brickwork detailing. The
development shall be carried out only in accordance with the agreed details.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory appearance of the development and to
comply with the following Development Plan policies for Merton: policies D4
and D8 of the London Plan 2021, policy CS14 of Merton's Core Planning
Strategy 2011 and policies DM D2 and D3 of Merton's Sites and Policies
Plan 2014.

Surfacing - Prior to the commencement of above ground works, details of the
surfacing of all those parts of the site not covered by buildings or soft
landscaping, including any parking, service areas or roads, footpaths, hard
and soft shall be submitted in writing for approval by the Local Planning
Authority. No works that are the subject of this condition shall be carried out
until the details are approved, and the development shall not be occupied /
the use of the development hereby approved shall not commence until the
details have been approved and works to which this condition relates have
been carried out in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory standard of development in accordance
with the following Development Plan policies for Merton: policy D4 of the
London Plan 2021, policy CS14 of Merton's Core Planning Strategy 2011 and
policies DM D1 and D2 of Merton's Sites and Policies Plan 2014.

Boundary Treatment - No development shall take place until details of all
boundary walls or fences are submitted in writing for approval to the Local

Page 53



Planning Authority. No works which are the subject of this condition shall be
carried out until the details are approved, and the development shall not be
occupied / the use of the development hereby approved shall not commence
until the details are approved and works to which this condition relates have
been carried out in accordance with the approved details. The walls and
fencing shall be permanently retained thereafter.

Removal of PD (Extensions/Alterations) - Notwithstanding the provisions of
the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England)
Order 2015 (or any Order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or without
modification), no extension, enlargement or other alteration of the
dwellinghouse other than that expressly authorised by this permission shall
be carried out without planning permission first obtained from the Local
Planning Authority.

Removal of PD (Windows/Doors) - Notwithstanding the provisions of the
Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development)(England)
Order 2015 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or without
modification), no window, door or other opening other than those expressly
authorised by this permission shall be constructed in rear or flank elevations
at the upper levels without planning permission first being obtained from the
Local Planning Authority.

Obscured Glazing (Fixed Shut) - Before the development hereby permitted is
first occupied, the staircase windows in the front elevation at first floor level
shall be glazed with obscure glass and fixed shut and shall permanently
maintained as such thereafter.

Refuse & Recycling (Details to be Submitted) - No development shall take
place until a scheme for the storage of refuse and recycling has been
submitted in writing for approval to the Local Planning Authority. No works
which are the subject of this condition shall be carried out until the scheme
has been approved, and the development shall not be occupied until the
scheme has been approved and has been carried out in full. Those facilities
and measures shall thereafter be retained for use at all times from the date
of first occupation.

10.No Use of Flat Roof - Access to the flat roof of the development hereby

11.

permitted shall be for maintenance or emergency purposes only, and the flat
roof shall not be used as a roof garden, terrace, patio or similar amenity area.

Construction Times - No demolition or construction work shall take place
before 8am or after 6pm Mondays - Fridays inclusive, before 8am or after
1pm on Saturdays or at any time on Sundays or Bank Holidays.

12.Landscaping - No development shall take place until full details of a

landscaping and planting scheme has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority and these works shall be carried out
as approved before the commencement of the use or the occupation of any
building hereby approved, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The details shall include on a plan, full details of the size,
species, spacing, quantities and location of proposed plants, together with
any hard surfacing, means of enclosure, and indications of all existing trees,

Page 54



hedges and any other features to be retained, and measures for their
protection during the course of development.

13.Hardstanding (Flooding) - The hardstanding hereby permitted shall be made

of porous materials, or provision made to direct surface water run-off to a
permeable or porous area or surface within the application site before the
development hereby permitted is first occupied or brought into use.

14.Fire Strategy - The development shall be carried out in accordance with the

provisions of the Fire Strategy Statement prepared by Mu.studio (dated 26th
June 2023) and must fully comply with The Building Regulation 2010 (as
amended) unless otherwise approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.

Reason - To ensure that the development incorporates the necessary fire
safety measures in accordance with the Mayor's London Plan Policy D12.

15.Cycle Parking - Details to be Submitted - No development shall commence

until details of secure cycle parking facilities for the occupants of, and visitors
to, the development have been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The approved facilities shall be fully implemented
and made available for use prior to the first occupation of the development
and thereafter retained for use at all times.

16.Refuse - No refuse or waste material of any description shall be left or stored

anywhere on the site other than within a building or refuse enclosure.

Reason: To safeguard the appearance of the property and the amenities of
the area and to accord with Policies D3 and D6 of the London Plan 2021,
Policy CS14 of the Core Planning Stragegy 2011 and Policy DM D2 of the
Sites and Policies Plan 2014.

17.Working Method Statement - Development shall not commence until a

working method statement has been submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority to accommodate:

(i) Parking of vehicles of site workers and visitors;
(i) Loading and unloading of plant and materials;
(iii) Storage of construction plant and materials;
(iv) Wheel cleaning facilities

(v) Control of dust, smell and other effluvia;

(vi) Control of surface water run-off.

No development shall be carried out except in full accordance with the
approved method statement.

Reason: To ensure the safety of pedestrians and vehicles and the amenities
of the surrounding area and to comply with the following Development Plan
policies for Merton: policies T4 and T7 of the London Plan 2021, policy CS20
of Merton's Core Planning Strategy 2011 and policy DM T2 of Merton's Sites
and Policies Plan 2014.

Page 55



18.Demolition and Construction Logistics Plan - Prior to the commencement of

the development hereby permitted, a Demolition and Construction Logistics
Plan (including a construction management plan in accordance with TfL
guidance) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The approved measures shall be implemented prior to the first
occupation of the development hereby permitted and shall be so maintained
for the duration of the use, unless the prior written approval of the Local
Planning Authority is first obtained to any variation.

Reason: To ensure the safety of pedestrians and vehicles and the amenities
of the surrounding area and to comply with the following Development Plan
policies for Merton: policies T4 and T7 of the London Plan 2021, policy CS20
of Merton's Core Planning Strategy 2011 and policy DM T2 of Merton's Sites
and Policies Plan 2014.

19.Heat pumps - Any installation of external heat pumps shall be first subject a

noise assessment which shall be submitted to the LPA for approval.

Reason: To protect the amenities of future occupiers and those in the local
vicinity.

20.The works shall be undertaken in accordance with the findings and

21

recommendations of the Preliminary Ecological Assessment and Preliminary
Roosting Assessment compiled by Arbtech.

Reason: to protect and enhance the biodiversity of the development in the
interest of nature conservation and to comply with the following development
policies for Merton: policy G5 of the London plan 2021; policy CS13 of
Merton's core planning strategy 2011 and policy DMO2 of Merton's sites and
policies plan 2014.

.All Non-Road Mobile Machinery (NRMM) of net power of 37kW and up to and

including 560kW used during the course of the demolition, site preparation
and construction phases shall comply with the emission standards set out in
chapter 7 of the GLA's supplementary planning guidance "Control of Dust and
Emissions During Construction and Demolition" dated July 2014 (SPG), or
subsequent guidance. Unless it complies with the standards set out in the
SPG, no NRMM shall be on site, at any time, whether in use or not, without
the prior written consent of the local planning authority. The developer shall
keep an up to date list of all NRMM used during the demolition, site
preparation and construction phases of the development on the online
register at https://nrmm.London/

Reason: To manage and prevent further deterioration of existing low quality
air across London in accordance with London Plan policies GG3 and SlI1, and
NPPF 181.

22 External Lighting - Any external lighting shall be positioned and angled to

prevent any light spillage or glare beyond the site boundary and in
accordance with Institution of Lighting Professionals, The Reduction of
Obtrusive Light Guidance Note 01/21.

Reason: To safeguard the amenities of the area and the occupiers of
neighbouring properties and ensure compliance with the following

Page 56



Development Plan policies for Merton: policies DM D2 and DM EP4 of
Merton's Sites and Polices Plan 2014.

23.Secured by Design - The development hereby permitted shall incorporate
security measures to minimise the risk of crime and to meet the specific
security needs of the development in accordance with Secured by Design.
Details of these measures shall be submitted to and approved in writing by
the local planning authority prior to commencement of the superstructure and
shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details prior to
occupation.

Reason: In order to achieve the principles and objectives of Secured by
Design to improve community safety and crime prevention in accordance with
Policy: Chapters 01B & 01C Merton New Local Plan, Policy D11 London Plan,
Section 17 Crime and Disorder Act 1988 and National Planning Policy
Framework (NPPF).

24 Secured by Design Certificate - Prior to occupation a Secured by Design final
certificate or its equivalent from the South West Designing Out Crime office
shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason - In order to achieve the principles and objectives of Secured by
Design to provide a safer environment for future residents and visitors to the
site and reduce the fear of crime in accordance with Policy: Chapters 01B &
01C Merton New Local Plan, Policy D11 London Plan, Section 17 Crime and
Disorder Act 1988 and National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

25.Residential CO2 reductions and water use - No part of the development
hereby approved shall be occupied until evidence has been submitted to the
Local Planning Authority confirming that the development has achieved CO2
reductions in accordance with those outlined in the energy statement (dated
20th June 2023) and wholesome water consumption rates of no greater than
105 litres per person per day.

Reason - To ensure that the development achieves a high standard of
sustainability and makes efficient use of resources and to comply with the
following Development Plan policies for Merton: Policy SI2 of the London Plan
2021 and Policy CS15 of Merton's Core Planning Strategy 2011.

26.Sustainable drainage system - Prior to the commencement of development,
a detailed scheme for the provision of surface and foul water drainage shall
be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority for the
development. The drainage scheme will dispose of surface water by means
of a sustainable drainage system (SuDS) at the agreed runoff rate (no more
than 2I/s, with no less than 120.m3 of attenuation volume), in accordance with
drainage hierarchy contained within the London Plan Policy (Sl 13 and SPG)
and the advice contained within the National SuDS Standards. For this
development this will include onsite storage and permeable paving as part of
the overall strategy and the drainage plans shall include pipe sizes and
direction of flow.

Reason: To reduce the risk of surface and foul water flooding to the proposed
development and future users, and ensure surface water and foul flood risk

Page 57



does not increase offsite in accordance with Merton’s policies CS16, DMF2
and the London Plan policy Sl 13

INFORMATIVES

27.Informative - The applicant is advised to check the requirements of the Party

Wall Act 1996 relating to work on an existing wall shared with another
property, building on the boundary with a neighbouring property, or
excavating near a neighbouring building. Further information is available at
the following link:

http://www.planningportal.gov.uk/buildingregulations/buildingpolicyandlegisl
ation/current legislation/partywallact

28.Informative: No surface water runoff should discharge onto the public

highway including the public footway or highway. When it is proposed to
connect to a public sewer, the site drainage should be separate and combined
at the final manhole nearest the boundary. Where the developer proposes to
discharge to a public sewer, prior approval from Thames Water Developer
Services will be required (contact no. 0845 850 2777). No waste material,
including concrete, mortar, grout, plaster, fats, oils and chemicals shall be
washed down on the highway or disposed of into the highway drainage
system.

29.Informative - You are advised to contact the Council's Highways team on 020

8545 3700 before undertaking any works within the Public Highway to obtain
the necessary approvals and/or licences. Please be advised that there is a
further charge for this work. If your application falls within a Controlled Parking
Zone this has further costs involved and can delay the application by 6 to 12
months.

30.Informative - Demolition of buildings should avoid the bird nesting and bat

31.

roosting season. This avoids disturbing birds and bats during a critical period
and will assist in preventing possible contravention of the Wildlife and
Countryside Act 1981, which seeks to protect nesting birds/bats and their
nests/roosts. Buildings should also be inspected for bird nests and bat roosts
prior to demolition. All species of bat in Britain and their roosts are afforded
special protection under the Wildlife and Countryside act 1981. If bats are
found, Natural England should be contacted for advice (tel: 020 7831 6922).

Informative - This permission creates one or more new units which will require
a correct postal address. Please contact the Street Naming & Numbering
Officer at the London Borough of Merton Street Naming and Numbering
(Business Improvement Division)

Corporate Services

7th Floor, Merton Civic Centre
London Road

Morden

SM4 5DX

Email: street.naming@merton.gov.uk

Page 58



32.Informative - It is Council policy for the Council's contractor to construct new
vehicular accesses. The applicant should contact the Council's Highways
Team on 020 8545 3829 prior to any work starting to arrange for this work to
be done. If the applicant wishes to undertake this work the Council will require
a deposit and the applicant will need to cover all the Council's costs (including
supervision of the works). If the works are of a significant nature, a Section
278 Agreement (Highways Act 1980) will be required and the works must be
carried out to the Council's specification.

33.Informative - You are advised to contact the Council's Highways team on 020
8545 3700 before undertaking any works within the Public Highway to obtain
the necessary approvals and/or licences. Please be advised that there is a
further charge for this work. If your application falls within a Controlled Parking
Zone this has further costs involved and can delay the application by 6 to 12
months.

34.Informative - Any works/events carried out either by, or at the behest of, the
developer, whether they are located on, or affecting a prospectively
maintainable highway, as defined under Section 87 of the New Roads and
Street Works Act 1991, or on or affecting the public highway, shall be co-
ordinated under the requirements of the New Roads and Street Works Act
1991 and the Traffic management Act 2004 and licensed accordingly in order
to secure the expeditious movement of traffic by minimising disruption to
users of the highway network in Merton. Any such works or events
commissioned by the developer and particularly those involving the
connection of any utility to the site, shall be co-ordinated by them in liaison
with the London Borough of Merton, Network Coordinator, (telephone 020
8545 3976). This must take place at least one month in advance of the works
and particularly to ensure that statutory undertaker connections/supplies to
the site are co-ordinated to take place wherever possible at the same time.

35.Informative - Written schemes of investigation will need to be prepared and
implemented by a suitably professionally accredited archaeological practice
in accordance London. This condition is exempt from deemed discharge
under schedule 6 of The Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015

36.Informative - A Groundwater Risk Management Permit from Thames Water
will be required for discharging groundwater into a public sewer. Any
discharge made without a permit is deemed illegal and may result in
prosecution under the provisions of the Water Industry Act 1991. We would
expect the developer to demonstrate what measures he will undertake to
minimise groundwater discharges into the public sewer. Permit enquiries
should be directed to Thames Water's Risk Management Team by
telephoning 020 3577 9483 or by emailing trade.effluent@thameswater.co.uk
. Application forms should be completed on line via www.thameswater.co.uk.
Please refer to the Wholsesale; Business customers; Groundwater
discharges section.

37.Informative - Thames Water will aim to provide customers with a minimum
pressure of 10m head (approx 1 bar) and a flow rate of 9 litres/minute at the

Page 59



point where it leaves Thames Waters pipes. The developer should take
account of this minimum pressure in the design of the proposed development.

38.Informative - No surface water runoff should discharge onto the public

highway including the public footway or highway. When it is proposed to
connect to a public sewer, the site drainage should be separate and combined
at the final manhole nearest the boundary. Where the developer proposes to
discharge to a public sewer, prior approval from Thames Water Developer
Services will be required (contact no. 0845 850 2777.

39.Informative - No waste material, including concrete, mortar, grout, plaster,

fats, oils and chemicals shall be washed down on the highway or disposed of
into the highway drainage system.

40.Informative - No surface water runoff should discharge onto the public

41.

highway including the public footway or highway. When it is proposed to
connect to a public sewer, the site drainage should be separate and combined
at the final manhole nearest the boundary. Where the developer proposes to
discharge to a public sewer, prior approval from Thames Water Developer
Services will be required (contact no. 0845 850 2777). No waste material,
including concrete, mortar, grout, plaster, fats, oils and chemicals shall be
washed down on the highway or disposed of into the highway drainage
system.

Informative - In accordance with paragraph 38 of the NPPF, The London
Borough of Merton (LBM) takes a positive and proactive approach to
development proposals focused on solutions. LBM works with
applicants/agents in a positive and proactive manner by:

i) Offering a pre-application advice and duty desk service.

i) Where possible, suggesting solutions to secure a successful
outcome.

iii) As appropriate, updating applicants/agents of any issues that may
arise in the processing of their application.

In this instance:
i) The applicant/agent was provided with pre-application advice.

i) The applicant was offered the opportunity to submit amended plans
in order to make the proposal acceptable in planning terms.

iii) The application was considered by the Planning Committee where
the applicant/agent had the opportunity to speak to the committee and
promote the application.

Page 60



NORTHGATE SE GIS Print Template

Page 61



29 abed

4 N

( ORIGINAL SIZE 75MM )

Notes

DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING.

ALL DIMENSIONS TO BE VERIFIED ON SITE BY CONTRACTOR
PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF ANY SHOP DRAWINGS AND

ANY WORK ON SITE.

REPORTALL DISCREPENCIES TO THE ARCHITECT IMMEDIATELY.
THIS DRAWING IS TO BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH ALL
RELATED ARCHITECT/ENGINEERS DRAWINGS / DETAILS AND
ALL OTHER RELEVANT INFORMATION.

168915

KEY PLAN

e Vv

1

1. STREET VIEW.

READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS
DESIGN AND DETAILS

Existing structure retained

Existing structure to be removed

Existing RC concrete structure

New structure
New wall linings

New Brickwork
New Blockwork 7Kn lightweight thermal standard

New Reinforced Concrete

New Acoustic Partition or lining to AD:E1 and 2, Table 1b
43 dB Airborne

New internal partition to 1/2 hour fire resitance and
insulation standard

—

\‘Q Z
[

YV FR

Foul Drainage above ground
Foul Drainage below ground

Surface water Drainage above ground

168865

Surface water Drainage below ground

Combined Drainage above ground

s

Combined Drainage below ground

AV Existing Radiators

Emergency Exit Sign to BS 5499-1:2002

30min Fire Rated construction

60min Fire Rated construction

Dry Riser

DG.01 Door reference
WG.01 Window reference
SFI Saintary fitting reference

LG/F1 Fixture and/or Fitting reference
DG..../ISC Self Closing FD30/60s door with self closer

DG..../KLS Self Closing FD30/60s door to be kept locked shut
- Escape direction

Recessed Ceiling LV ‘ Heat Detec
Q) fogeesed €D Heat Detoctor
©  \Wall Securiy Sensor &

Pendant Light Motion Detector Light
Internal Wall Lights @ Junction Box

®juse Fuse spur switch
Downlights

TV Coax Sky compatible
Table lights

HD Coax
External Wall Lights Cat6
Isolator switch Security Keypad

GD®  Gang Dimmer Light

Single switched socket switch

Double switched socket LED Strip Lighting

Smoke Detector
4 x Double Sockets
UH wall thermostatic
Alarm Panel control unit

i Foul Drainage below
Light switch around

Dimmer Light switch

5Amp.

Combined Drainage
below ground
New Radiators

168815

New Extract Fan Blank Plate

Thermostat Recessed Light Fitting

Video Entry System Bulk Head Light

Central Vacuum outlet Alarm Box at High Level

Speaker Switch Audio Telephone point

Sound Settings Fresh Air Grill

Fire Detector Outdoor Speaker

Motion Sensor Panic Button

Sounder (security) Steam Controls

Extract Fan + Isolator T In-Seat Wall Lights
Low Voltage Light
Converters

Data Chute

LED Downlights

Fan Coil
Fuseboards

Coaxial Socket

Cat 6

Shaver / electric toothbrush
socket / hair dryer

MELY oBHo@e-<AHO0 »SFIP T & @0 6@

Ceiling Speaker
Fan Coil Grill

Domestic Sprinkler Mist System
head

o
3
o}
)

Air Source Heat Pump

I
5

IWMED%EEFA’IEEE/VEIQEEE | 13O

COLOUR CODE FOR SERVICES

PROPOSED [ | EXISTING [] REMOVED [ ]
Planning Set

(General Arangement)
EXISTING SITE AREA = 1786m2

Revisions

®EEEE)

14.05.22 Rev. A - General Amendments

18.07.22 Rev. B - Neighbourig No.62 site area added.
House Nos increased to 7 units. General Amendments
24.02.23 Rev. C - Proposed scheme has been redesigned
based on pre-application advice received on 20/02/23.
General Revision

20.04.23 Rev. D - Roof gables changed to hip Solar Roofs
General Revision

15.02.24 Rev. E - Parking layout changed as per officer's
request. General Revision

168765

Client

LINCOLN ASSET HOLDINGS LTD.

Project

58-60 Haynt Walk Mews
Raynes Park
SW20 9NX

Drawing Title

Proposed Site (Block) Plan
Perimeter Streetscape views to the
Proposed Site

Scale Date.

1:400 @ A1 1:800 @ A3 ‘ ‘ Apr. 2022

VOoLUTES

SCALE 1: 400

Q) 0 0 0 ) Architectural & Design Consultants
o O o O o Studio A, 32 Murray Road, Richmond, Surrey TW10 7QG
AN (a\] ™ ™ ademir@volumethree.com
< < < < g- [TTTTTT \ \ \ \ T. 020 8 332 2332
(9\] (9\] AN (9\] AN - - ~
lo] H Vo) Ye) Yo) Job No. Drawing No.

168715

0O 5 10 20 30 40 50m

HWM/3213 3213 BR-102E
\ (©) 2024 Copyright VaA )




g abed

279
MARTIN WAY

N
N 54

SCHEDULE OF ACCOMMODATION
7 Dwellings (40 Persons | GIA/m2 Private Amenity | Communal Amenity Area = 369m2
HOUSE 1 | 3B/6P  [172.0m2 [136.9m2 14 Cycle Store Spaces (2 per Dwelling)
HOUSE 2 | 3B/6P [177.0m2 |94.9m2 7 Parking Spaces (1 per Dwelling)
HOUSE 3 3B/6P 177.0m2 |93.3m2 0 Visitor Parking Space

HOUSE 4 | 3B/6P  [177.0m2 |92.2m2 1 Disabled Parking provision within DP8
HOUSE 5 | 3B/6P  [177.0m2 |92.0m2 7 EVC Points(1 per Dwelling)

HOUSE 6 | 3B/6P  [172.0m2 [135.5m2 14 Refuse Bin Area Point (2 per Dwelling)
HOUSE 1-6 18B/36P 1052.2m2 821.3m2 4 Visitors Cycle Store Spaces

NO.62 3B/4P 100m2  |176.5m2 Existing Site Area = 1749m2

ORIGINAL SIZE 75MM )

| ¢

| Notes

DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING.

| ALL DIMENSIONS TO BE VERIFIED ON SITE BY CONTRACTOR

| PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF ANY SHOP DRAWINGS AND
ANY WORK ON SITE.

| REPORTALL DISCREPENCIES TO THE ARCHITECT IMMEDIATELY.

| THIS DRAWING IS TO BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH ALL

| RELATED ARCHITECT/ENGINEERS DRAWINGS / DETAILS AND

| ALL OTHER RELEVANT INFORMATION.

| KEY PLAN

N

green outline indicates land parcel in third party
% ownership, whereby land within the green line zone is
—VA used by No 56 and residents within red line zone both
of which enjoy the right of way and access for servicing

(A No. 56 ENTRANCE %

56

Note:
Houses No's 2-5 Haynt Walk Mews are referenced as Type A, and are of a generic design.

Houses No's 1&6 Haynt Walk Mews, forming two ends of terrace with second floor hipped roofs,
are referenced as Type B for clarity.

| READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS
DESIGN AND DETAILS

Existing structure retained

Existing structure to be removed

Existing RC concrete structure

New structure

New wall linings

New Brickwork

New Blockwork 7Kn lightweight thermal standard
New Reinforced Concrete

New Acoustic Partition or lining to AD:E1 and 2, Table 1b
43 dB Airborne

New internal partition to 1/2 hour fire resitance and
insulation standard

T - e~ e R A AR A R
i O R ame b N S0S ’LL’;@‘TL“Q,L’E." Fon ’.L}(}’.‘iﬁ SoAE A PN A N g ’{L}e"f;‘éri&.‘- o '.’L’{}“.}." N NN LI L ’JL}.@",L‘#,SE.‘- P ';L'{}’.‘i.’- R A S SR SO SN - A AES PLXAEN, TR PRSEIARS (ST :
designated refuse SR AR I T R R R R s SRR T R TR TR S R ST TR S I S TSR S T TR TR ST SR S T ST TR ST RIS T STt h .w?’.wfg»wf’.w. »wf’-vsfg.m.’.w Foul Drainage above ground
collection point i i Foul Drainage below ground
i
- i Newly planted trees to north boundary visual screening Newly planted trees to north boundary visual screening Surface water Drainage above ground
-
- Surface water Drainage below ground
7
7
FROI&IT GAI_{DE_T/CA pOT b Hi Combined Drainage above ground
Permiable ‘oun ,
A=19.8mg 7 . .
- Haynt Wal k MeWS Co-ml-amed D.ralnage below ground
’ Existing Radiators
i
/
/! Emergency Exit Sign to BS 5499-1:2002
/ - .
£ 30min Fire Rated construction
/
& —I’ —————————————————————————— 60min Fire Rated construction
! Resident Secure Bike Storage Station
(Houses 2-5) .
” designated wheelchair designated wheelchair Dry Riser
access route i i access route
'INO . 62 ENTRANCE i Street lighting post L S et i o SadiE S(ree/t I\Eh(mg post
, ool /s T/ — /= ity ¥ : i /e E Sab el DG.01 Door reference
N > 1 > h ) 5
; =¥ 3 of : T30 3 : o} 5 W s WG.01 Window ref
2 ¢ - 5 3 3 9 ~ Lz z %P T L < ‘ ~ L, 2 2 . indow reference
7 - J 4 ¥ - J < ) ( 7 Jox 5 . .
B L 52 z e 5 E E o sE D PO % b 2 3 SFI Saintary fitting reference
el S = 1 J = X Y s g = =
M 3 F ] 2 z Mo 5 = LG/F1 Fixture and/or Fitting reference
5 b 5 § > < |
\ = z : I ) .
] \T/ \JN/ \]w/ \j} \II/ \T/ 3 2 DG..../ISC Self Closing FD30/60s door with self closer
Pl
/| .
6 .) : I \ ;‘ H ) Prgjecting (directional view bays I {‘ ‘; p Projecting directional view bays \ \Tﬂ H I DG.../KLS Self Closing FD30/60s door to be kept locked shut
\ : N iflh /1§ to first floor bedroom windows to prevent \ il / to first floor bedroom windows to prevent . il , - Escape direction
\ ; N il 7 overlooking to neighbouring garden of No 56 L | overlooking to neighbouring garden of No 56 N -
\ ST || T ~ - - S~ yfffi u
1 o
\ H KEY TO SERVICES
1 <
\ i &
\ 3
! w
\ w
i R d Ceili (A%
‘\ / : Qg e s
Existing house No. 62 to be ! ! 4 (®  pendant g HO  idion Detectr Lignt
retained and refurbished as \ ] E] F®  intomal Wall Lights [ Junction Box
\ i _ ®juse Fu itch
part on new development \ ; W ®  ooungns use spur switd
\ L4 TV Coax Sky compatible
\ i — PORCH BELOW ’ ‘7 PORCH BELOW PORCH BELOW ‘ ‘7 PORCH BELOW PORCH BELOW PORCH BELOW = Table fights HD Coax
1
\\ | fl T — H®  External Wall Lights Cat6
-
| /, @ @ - ! ! 5 o [ rsolator switch Security Keypad
\ 4 I /% ¢ = Gang Dimmer Light
\ ,’ BEDROOM 2 BEDROOM 2 g [ BEDROOM 2 BEDROOM 2 g BEDROOM 2 BEDROOM 2 It 4 L’k‘ Single switched socket oo
\ ; A=19.2m2 " . A=19.2m2 2 A=19.2m2 . N A=19.2m2 A=19.2m2 s 2 A=18.4m2 L= ”“y% [KX|  Double switched socket === LED Stip Lighting
\ 2
\ ,/ 24 ml B> 2 | 24 ml > Iﬂl 2 | | 24 ml 1 2 4 x Double Sockets @ Smoke Detector
\ | o 2| | % s al 2 25 N 2 X UH wall thermostatic
D trol it
‘\ ; 22 i 2 22 B 2 = 1 r = ‘ porm Pone izzlri)r::age below
i /’ " = = o | n = [ - | o 2| [ ” «  Light switch around
\ 1 20 R 2 : 20 o . 20 o 20 A DX Dimmer Light switch — p  Combined Drainage
A I 5 MEWS HOUSE NO.6 below ground
' i B] MEWS HOUSE NO.1 EZ e MEWS H:01U7SE NZO.Z a4 B MEWS H=01U7SE NZO.3 £ ad B o D 5Amp peiow aroune
: GIA=173.m2 ‘ H GIA=178.m {B GIA=178.m ‘ =l [= ‘ {D ‘ 2 @ New Extract F
] ew Extract Fan 5
: l/ i 1 b L C _d ML | — L Blank Plate
T - - P ST T e N == Th tat B
- = ¥ N = ¥ g y ~¥=| ¥ . y S~ - B e
. GEN-SUETE / \ / EN-SUITE EN-SUITTE \ / \ /. EN-SUITE EN-SUITE \ / \ /la//fT""_ S e Hole No.6) E5  vieoeniy sysem ®°  Buk Head Light
i ‘r*ﬂ‘ N Lol i 1 F W___, ,// BATHROOMZ(*W ‘r*ﬂ‘ BATHRO M2\\7 | 1r ___ | _ 7 BATHROOM2 ‘r ﬂ‘ i 1 BATHROPM 2\ __ | [ 1 G oy 0 i v Central Vacuum outlet ED  Alarm Box at High Level
i | | 1 AR LANDIN E Q | | | | ] LANDING 1 LANDING | | | | ] LANDING T LANDING 7 | | L Speaker Switch Audio v Telephone point
\ === o m=== ik == = e P F===[ il A
L—- f 1 St s ok ¥ 4 —i o Sound Settings o3 Fresh Air Gril
°©o o o =i 1y | \ | [ / nis= =i 1 4] \ N L)l = e T NN 1L / e
N 1 13 P / ~_ 1 b N ‘ = Pa) Motion Sensor Panic Button
q [+ — %ﬂ
P, ‘@ H H %I U =4 H = 4 Sounder (security) B9 Steam Controls
¢ Z il 15 > ¢ 19 2
Cj ~ = H = " m - J H = pe B e = 2 = o e 4 ) Extract Fan + Isolator T In-Seat Wall Lights
lp 5 s 2 o =2 . .- [e) LED Downlights (L:‘;“r‘:v\é‘r“‘;arge Light
5 Vi S Bike Stc Stati be R
< 5 ifors Secure Bike Storage Station MASTER BEDROOM |~ .| MASTER BEDROOM MASTERBEDROOM [~ fil | . MASTER BEDROOM MASTER BEDROOM | Il |, . MASTER BEDRQOM £ pata chute
A=20,7m2 Y " " LI A=20,7m: A=20,7m2 v " A=20,7m2 A=20,7m2 - A=20,7m2 FC| Fan coi T Fuseboards
[j =2 . “See E3 Coaxial Socket ﬁ Shaver / electric toothbrush
LT o S| socket / hair dryer
. 5 Cat6
. . . T q 3 s Ceiling Speaker ﬁ Egﬁn:sﬂc Sprinkler Mist System
Secure Unit & E‘ﬂ |%} F':]C Grill - Fan Coil Grill Air Source Heat Pump
(HousH No. 62) H% I
WALK IN I I I WALK IN 'EEII ’IEE l WALK IN L WALK IN '%Eﬁl N WALK IN —_ WALK IN | ngi T COLOUR CODE FOR SERVICES
i WARDROBE WARDROBE i i WARDROBE WARDROBE i T WARDROBE WARDROBE
PROPOSED [ | EXISTING [] REMOVED [ ]
H U [ En——— 1 [ T—— ¥ { [ [—— 1 [ —— i | H ‘F ’’’’’’’ 1
1 T | i ‘ | 1 ! i i ‘ !
It / \ i i } } i It / A il i i i i \ :\I | ‘ Fw) H ) DW:\\ U;:\\ =~
1 I i ! i i I I : i ! ! ) H H H
. b N ‘ \ \ ! / S 1 \ I ' Sl ' ! @
, | NI ~. : ! | R N i ! ! i Gl i
P | No. 62 SERVICE ENTRANCE T = ‘ | | ‘ I [ T ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ i ‘
/ ! \ i i \ ‘ \ | \
MASTER BATHROOM : ; ; i ; : MASTER BATHROOM i ~
Lo masTeR BATHROOM [ - || [l.—- A=6.5m2 b= | = MASTER s oM [ [l [[-—- | masTERBATHROOM == | = MASTEREATHROOM - . (Il ey = i TNV o
y I A=6.5m2 T i | I : | (. A=6.5m2 i | : [ L L sEene DV al
Z SR el B [ [ SEDUM ROOF BELOW SEDUM ROOF BELOW (S| (B SEDUM ROOF BELOW SEDUM ROOF BELOW [ I SEDUM ROOF BELOW \ = = S
L
g A i J i
g
w
Secure Bikg ptorage Unit g
H
(HousH No. 1) & ] Revisions

REAR GARDEN 1
136m2

P

™,
v ey

REAR GARDEN 3 REAR GARDEN 4
ggf‘;mgARDEN 2 A=51.8m2 A=50.3m2

REAR GARDEN 5 REAR GARDEN 6 §ES§ gﬁgDEN 7
A=50.7m2 A=50m2 o

s
SRS o P R N
A IR RN i L g 98 1]
T o8 "'\"."r‘.'-,,’r‘,d *'O'T&T:,l TV e v \\
.—.'——roOOV'i"T, YR TE ATN P TS Y \
N & 5% ““:‘“"'O’"? PR VIR s AT e 8 Pk s i \\\
R TSNS MBSV O o TR |
RIS AT IR TR T = ATHINT b |
S s . . i
Ty e Newly planted trees to south boundary visual screening |
- Q‘ ) |
MY A |
|
|
|
|
|
Newly planted trees to south boundary visual screening |
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
SCALE 1: 100 | \ \ \ [] |
0 1 2 3 4| 5m

277 275 273 271
MARTIN WAY MARTIN WAY MARTIN WAY MARTIN WAY

269 267 |
MARTIN WAY MARTIN WAY fCAN

LINCOLN ASSET HOLDINGS LTD.
Project
58-62 Haynt Walk Mews
\ Raynes Park
\ SW20 9NX
\\
\
\\ Drawing Title
\\\
AN
N
N\ Proposed First Floor Plan Layout
\
Scale Date.
1:100 @ A1 1:200 @ A3 Apr. 2022
e :3\
14 2 Architectural & Design Consultants
Studio A, 32 Murray Road, Richmond, Surrey TW10 7QG
NON H I L L ademir@volumethree.com
- T: 020 8 332 2332
N J
LAN E Job No. Drawing No.
HWM/3213 3213 BR-104E

14.05.22 Rev. A - General Amendments

18.07.22 Rev. B - Neighbourig No.62 site area added.
House Nos increased to 7 units. General Amendments
24.02.23 Rev. C - Proposed scheme has been redesigned
based on pre-application advice received on 20/02/23.
General Revision

20.04.23 Rev. D - Roof gables changed to hip Solar Roofs
General Revision

06.10.23 Rev. E - parking arrangement revised as per
planning officer's request. General Revision

EXISTING SITE AREA = 1786m2

Client

(©) 2023 Copyright VaA )




"Solar Roof" system by "Roofit" with integrated
hi-tech photovoltaic cels within metal standing seam

panels (RAL 7024-Graphite Grey) All visible associated fascia panels and rain
harvesting troughs to match main roof covering

Aluminium powder coated window/passive vent frames with integrated
spandrel panels finished in powder coated RAL 7015 - Slate Grey to be fitted within
projected window bays at first floor level to prevent direct overlooking.

Passive ventilation operable first floor windows to front
elevation of houses 1 & 6 to be fitted with double glazed panes
and external vertical (fixed) obscure glass louvres to prevent
overlooking to neighbouring garden of No.65.

Aluminium powder coated feature frames to stair window/roof light
with integrated spandrel panels, fixed and operable clear and obscured double
glazed panes, finished in powder coated RAL 7024-Graphite Grey to be fitted
within brick wall and solar roof sections.
Front roof fascia/wall panel enclosure to be finished in matching window colour

Feature brick chimney stacks to be fitted with combined ventilation/extraction and fresh air intake ducts for each dwelling ( No. 2 dwelling per each stack) All metal louvers and top panels to be finished in
(RAL 7024-Graphite Grey) All visible ssociated fascia panels to match main roof covering

Aluminium powder coated window/passive vent frames with integrated———
spandrel panels finished in powder coated RAL 7015 - Slate Grey to be fitted
within projected window bays at first floor level to prevent direct overlooking.

Aluminium powder coated feature frames to stair window/roof light

with integrated spandrel panels, fixed and operable clear and obscured double
glazed panes, finished in powder coated RAL 7024-Graphite Grey to be fitted
within brick wall and solar roof sections.

Front roof fascia/wall panel enclosure to be finished in matching window colour

"Solar Roof" system by "Roofit" with integrated
hi-tech photovoltaic cels within metal standing seam

panels (RAL 7024-Graphite Grey) All visible associated fascia panels and rain

harvesting troughs to match main roof covering

Aluminium powder coated window/passive vent frames with integrated
spandrel panels finished in powder coated RAL 7015 - Slate Grey to be fitted within
projected window bays at first floor level to prevent direct overlooking.

Passive ventilation operable first floor windows to front
elevation of houses 1 & 6 to be fitted with double glazed panes
and external vertical (fixed) obscure glass louvres to prevent

overlooking to neighbouring garden of No.65.

2256

Ridge

existing eaves line level maintained
throughout new roof perimeter

19.74

Tiles
Dn

e N

[ ORIGINAL SIZE 75MM ]

Notes

DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING.

ALL DIMENSIONS TO BE VERIFIED ON SITE BY CONTRACTOR
PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF ANY SHOP DRAWINGS AND
ANY WORK ON SITE.

REPORTALL DISCREPENCIES TO THE ARCHITECT IMMEDIATELY.
THIS DRAWING IS TO BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH ALL
RELATED ARCHITECT/ENGINEERS DRAWINGS / DETAILS AND
ALL OTHER RELEVANT INFORMATION.

[ h
KEY PLAN

Q

READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS
DESIGN AND DETAILS

Existing structure retained

Existing structure to be removed

Existing RC concrete structure

1063 1 [—
2 W 2 s @gy = 2 Wﬁ =
5 = = O E 2 o e =
% i % 5 1 18.60
= ) ) - I ) g = | = ) g =
X ! | ! i 74 !
- 3 ! \ i ¥
. : : 3 . : E / E 1 : E . Pebble Dashed
® &
);3 = = = = = = = < 9 Light 17.07
B N o e SR R — ' oo [
° y I o) Al H i) ' I I I Al 1 |
g S5 sl iS= ooy e85z Sl [ e ] ]
I = :;s [——
et — g
Shes = = : oo A
=S — = | -lﬂ|_——== ””” -
— 15.96 —
i — * Pebble @ Vent 15.68
H — Dashed O 15.17
{,’i‘,‘ m Brick I Brick
H — — — — — s — —
s - - - — — : el e\
TSR | I | b e || l| R [ ey | EEEE S T | eSS e ) )| E —e— ) ]| pEemssseilER s e e e L i s s L ) e e e ) Ee s s e (esEe s a—eesess Sy Sl 0 []|S ey w— | |1 [ e S e | | g e e R | (| e s e —.ase e m S |5 p—w— ] |5 JREe e Sy ||| | e [ e .~y ) (R
1
PROPOSED FRONT ELEVATION (Haynt Walk Mews Houses No's.1-6) No. 62 Haynt Walk
Aluminium powder coated window frames - _ N _ _
Aluminium main entrance doors finished in powder coated RAL 7024 - Graphite Grey with integrated spandrel panels finished in powder coated (RAL 7024-Graphite Grey) to be Aluminium main entrance doors f|n|sh§d in p_om{der coate_d RAL 7024 - Graphite Grey
to be fitted within reconstituded stone feature frames. ) ) o fitted within reconstituded stone feature frames at ground and first floor levels of all bay windows. to be fitted within reconstituded stone feature frames.
Rear bathroom wing hipped "Solar Roof" system by "Roofit" with integrated . . . .. .
hi-tech oh taic cels withi tal standi Decorative metal railing to front bay windows to be finished to match window colour o
"Solar Roof" system by "Roofit" with integrated Itech photovoltaic cels within metal standing seam ) ) "Solar Roof" system by "Roofit" with integrated
hi-tech photovoltaic cels within metal standing seam panels (RAL 7024-Graphite Grey) All visible associated fascia panels and rain hi-tech photovoltaic cels within metal standing seam
panels (RAL 7024-Graphite Grey) All visible associated fascia panels and rain harvesting troughs to match main roof covering Feature stone frames to blind window panels designated to house "Eco Habitats" panels (RAL 7024-Graphite Grey) All visible associated fascia panels and rain
harvesting troughs to match main roof covering = = incorporating Swift and Enclosed Bat boxes = harvesting troughs to match main roof covering
Aluminium powder coated dormer window/vent frames . . ) . . o Aluminium powder coated dormer window/vent frames
within pitched roof finished in powder coated (RAL 7015 - Slate Grey) Feature stpne frqmeséoEbllr;d w:jn(éowbpanels designated to house "Eco Habitats Aluminium powder coated dormer window/vent frames within pitched roof within pitched roof finished in powder c<:ate|(|:| (R:fAL 7015.— SlatetllG?ey)
to allow for passive ventilation incorporating Swift and Enclosed Bat boxes finished in powder coated (RAL 7015 - Slate Grey) to allow for passive ventilation 0 allow Tor passive ventilation
2252 22.56
existing eaves line level maintained
throughout new roof perimeter
19.71
19.63
I’y
ah
AN
. Aluminium powder coated sliding/folding door to rear ground floor ’ Forterra - Belgravia Gault Blend
Fortgrr_a y Belgrawe_l Gault_ Blend kitchen/living room finished in powder coated RAL 7024 - Graphite Grey to be (or similar) to all bricE favéing Wl;”S TBC
(or similar) to all brick facing walls TBC fitted within reconstituded stone feature frames.
"Solar Roof" system by "Roofit" with integrated ) o )
hi-tech photovoltaic cels within metal standing seam Passive ventilation fixed/operable vents to detail
panels (RAL 7024-Graphite Grey) All visible associated fascia panels and rain Aluminium powder coated frames finished in RAL 7024 - Graphite Grey
- harvesting troughs to match main roof covering Roof fascia/wall panel enclosure to be finished in matching window colour
"Solar Roof" system by "Roofit" with integrated Passive ventilation operable bathroom vents to side rear offshoot elevation "Solar Roof" system by "Roofit" with integrated
hi-tech photovoltaic cels within metal standing seam to be fitted with double glazed obscure glass panes to prevent overlooking. hi-tech photovoltaic cels within metal standing seam
panels (RAL 7024-Graphite Grey) All visible associated fascia panels and rain Aluminium powder coated window frames finished in RAL 7024 - Graphite Grey panels (RAL 7024-Graphite Grey) All visible associated fascia panels and rain
harvesting troughs to match main roof covering — Rear roof fascia/wall panel enclosure to be finished in matching window colour harvesting troughs to match main roof covering
Aluminium powder coated window frames
with integrated spandrel panels finished
in powder coated RAL 7015 - Slate Grey to be Aluminium powder coated window frames
fitted within projected window bays with integrated spandrel panels finished
at first floor level to prevent direct overlooking. in powder coated RAL 7015 - Slate Grey to be
Aluminium powder coated dormer window/vent frames fitted within projected window bays
. ; at first floor level to prevent direct overlooking.
within pitched roof finished in powder coated (RAL 7015 - Slate Grey) P 9
to allow for passive ventilation
b oy
o8 f
d BN s
b ,‘ . /R5%
o, STRRT {‘?’%%‘1
=N ooty
Q\r\ STYFZ%?‘? \\@% 2 7% . )
o ggé%?%\%%? ey :
. ol " e\ ] e “ R ol K
A m&d ’%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%g A TN
I e \&., [ |55 Y
e ISV AP
%% \§hgin, t
t
1/ /
- \
- i
1l ] [ ] [ ] [ 11 1
; EEEEEEE |
.......................................................................................................................................................... !
il
im| |
PROPOSED SIDE ELEVATION (House No.1) PROPOSED SIDE ELEVATION (House No.6)
Forterra - Belgravia Gault Blend Rain protected/sun shading canopy over Rain protected/sun shading canopy over —— Forterra - Belgravia Gault Blend SCALE 1: 75 ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘
(or similar) to all brick facing walls TBC visitors secure bike station at ground floor kitchen sliding folding door at ground floor (or similar) to all brick facing walls TBC 0 1 2 3 4 5m

TBC

TBC

New structure
New wall linings

New Brickwork
New Blockwork 7Kn lightweight thermal standard

New Reinforced Concrete

New Acoustic Partition or lining to AD:E1 and 2, Table 1b
43 dB Airborne

New internal partition to 1/2 hour fire resitance and
insulation standard

—_——— Foul Drainage above ground

< —---—+% Foul Drainage below ground

Surface water Drainage above ground
Surface water Drainage below ground
Combined Drainage above ground
Combined Drainage below ground
Existing Radiators

Emergency Exit Sign to BS 5499-1:2002
30min Fire Rated construction

60min Fire Rated construction

Dry Riser

DG.01 Door reference
WG.01 Window reference
SFI Saintary fitting reference

LG/F1 Fixture and/or Fitting reference

DG..../ISC Self Closing FD30/60s door with self closer
DG.../KLS  Self Closing FD30/60s door to be kept locked shut
- Escape direction

KEY TO SERVICES

head

()  Reoessed Ceiing Lv Heat Detector
Downlight
©  \Wall Securiy Sensor &
® Pendant Light Motion Detector Light
H@ Internal Wall Lights @ Junction Box
&fuse  Fuse spur switch
[2] Downlights
TV Coax Sky compatible
Table lights
N HD Coax
H®  External Wall Lights Cat6é
[ isolator switch Security Keypad
Gang Dimmer Light
Single switched socket oo e N
[XX]  Double switched socket ©=— LED Stip Lighting
57 6:9 Smoke Detector
'< 4 x Double Sockets
Pa.S UH wall thermostatic
Alarm Panel control unit
S ——p  Foul Drainage below
o Light switch ground
LN Dimmer Light switch ——p»  Combined Drainage
5Amp below ground
WIS New Radiators
@ New Extract Fan Blank Plate
. Thermostat Recessed Light Fitting
] )
Video Entry System ® Bulk Head Light
v Central Vacuum outlet [BO7  Alarm Box at High Level
L Speaker Switch Audio v Telephone point
o Sound Settings 3 Fresh Air Grill
Fire Detector 53] Outdoor Speaker
4 Motion Sensor Panic Button
= Sounder (security) B9 steam Controls
O Extract Fan + Isolator T In-Seat Wall Lights
) Low Voltage Light
LED D« lights LV
0 oy e
DC
Ds hi
Fan Coll [
[FB  Fuseboards
] Coaxial Socket i Shaver / electric toothbrush
cate s socket / hair dryer
s Ceiling Speaker 4 Domestic Sprinkler Mist System
DS

.n
Is}
@

Fan Coil Grill

2

Air Source Heat Pump

I
i

COLOUR CODE FOR SERVICES

PROPOSED [ | EXISTING [] REMOVED [ ]

Planning Set
(General Arangement)

Revisions

®EEEE)

14.05.22 Rev. A - General Amendments

18.07.22 Rev. B - Neighbourig No.62 site area added.
House Nos increased to 7 units. General Amendments

24.02.23 Rev. C - Proposed scheme has been redesigned
based on pre-application advice received on 20/02/23.
General Revision

20.04.23 Rev. D - Roof gables changed to hip Solar Roofs
General Revision

06.10.23 Rev. E - parking arrangement revised as per
planning officer's request. General Revision

EXISTING SITE AREA = 1786m2

Client

LINCOLN ASSET HOLDINGS LTD.

Project

58-60 Haynt Walk Mews
Raynes Park
SW20 9NX

Drawing Title

Proposed Front, Rear & Side Elevations

Scale Date.
175 @A1 1:150 @ A3 J ‘ Apr. 2022
Architectural & Design Consultants
Studio A, 32 Murray Road, Richmond, Surrey TW10 7QG
ademir@volumethree.com
T: 020 8 332 2332
Job No. Drawing No.
HWM/3213 3213 BR-108E
\_ (©) 2023 Copyright VaA )




G9 abeg

279
MARTIN WAY

N
N 54

SCHEDULE OF ACCOMMODATION
7 Dwellings (40 Persons | GIA/m2 Private Amenity | Communal Amenity Area = 369m2

HOUSE 1 | 3B/6P  [172.0m2 [136.9m2 14 Cycle Store Spaces (2 per Dwelling)
HOUSE 2 | 3B/6P [177.0m2 |94.9m2 7 Parking Spaces (1 per Dwelling)
HOUSE 3 3B/6P 177.0m2 |93.3m2 0 Visitor Parking Space
HOUSE 4 | 3B/6P  [177.0m2 |92.2m2 1 Disabled Parking provision within DP8
HOUSE 5 | 3B/6P  [177.0m2 |92.0m2 7 EVC Points(1 per Dwelling)
HOUSE 6 | 3B/6P  [172.0m2 [135.5m2 14 Refuse Bin Area Point (2 per Dwelling)
HOUSE 1-6 18B/36P 1052.2m2 821.3m2 4 Visitors Cycle Store Spaces

NO.62 3B/4P 100m2  |176.5m2 Existing Site Area = 1749m2

|
( ORIGINAL SIZE 75MM )

Notes

| DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING.

| ALL DIMENSIONS TO BE VERIFIED ON SITE BY CONTRACTOR
PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF ANY SHOP DRAWINGS AND

| ANY WORK ON SITE.

| REPORTALL DISCREPENCIES TO THE ARCHITECT IMMEDIATELY.
THIS DRAWING IS TO BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH ALL

| RELATED ARCHITECT/ENGINEERS DRAWINGS / DETAILS AND

| ALL OTHER RELEVANT INFORMATION.

KEY PLAN

| N

green outline indicates land parcel in third party
% ownership, whereby land within the green line zone is
—VA used by No 56 and residents within red line zone both
of which enjoy the right of way and access for servicing

(A No. 56 ENTRANCE %

56

Note:
Houses No's 2-5 Haynt Walk Mews are referenced as Type A, and are of a generic design.

Houses No's 1&6 Haynt Walk Mews, forming two ends of terrace with second floor hipped roofs,
are referenced as Type B for clarity.

| READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS
DESIGN AND DETAILS

Existing structure retained
Existing structure to be removed
Existing RC concrete structure
New structure

New wall linings
New Brickwork

New Blockwork 7Kn lightweight thermal standard
New Reinforced Concrete

New Acoustic Partition or lining to AD:E1 and 2, Table 1b
43 dB Airborne

New internal partition to 1/2 hour fire resitance and
insulation standard

REAR GARDEN 1
136m2

P

™,
v ey

REAR GARDEN 3
A=51.8m2

REAR GARDEN 2
98.5m2

REAR GARDEN 7
A=97.9m2

REAR GARDEN 6

REAR GARDEN 4 REAR GARDEN 5
A=50.7m2 A=50m2

| P, A R A A R AT N A PP A A RS
SNSRI SO AR SRS MO IO MO RIS SN IS NI SRS SN RO MO AT S AN OIS MO IR0 ML DALY N SRS M LA M SR .
designated refuse webfrer M es et igen P et Phet Fhet g et her et Phct et St et i het igen P het fhet P het et i her Mot hetigerthed Mertherdfer P her et I cr R er e Mot hebtherfrea et et igen P et fhet P het ig e i hen Mot et igen et .uf'.ufg,,»cf'.»u, .»c".»sfg.u,'.u Foul Drainage above ground
collection point i Foul Drainage below ground
i Newly planted trees to north boundary visual screenin i i .
i i y p ry g Newly planted trees to north boundary visual screening Surface water Drainage above ground
-
- Surface water Drainage below ground
7
/ s . .
FRONT GARDEN/CAR PORT/1 Hi Combined Drainage above ground
(Permi ilgﬂg g ound i
A=19.8m ’ Combined Drainage below ground
- Haynt Walk Mews e
’ o Existing Radiators
/ o
4 s o
/! Emergency Exit Sign to BS 5499-1:2002
/ - .
£ 30min Fire Rated construction
/
E —,’ —————————————————————————— 60min Fire Rated construction
! Resident Secure Bike Storage Station
(Houses 2-5) :
” designated wheelchair designated wheelchair Dry Riser
access route i i access route
INO. 62 ENTRANCE i Stret lighing post H Sl S Street lighting post
i Ty oy R St DG.01 Door reference
1 : S J 3 . - T v " it - ]
1 = > ~ > .
¢ . 5 3 Z Q Lz QO 5 2 S ¢ O WG.01 Window reference
4 o < E 4 ¢ ( o ) )
P 2 P 5 § § P 1‘ 3 § P D 2 ; i _ SFI Saintary fitting reference
s SR o= = T® = = 1
3100 - c ) -
L ¥ FROr&lT GAI}DE[]I/CAR POST 2 2R o 8 g FRorgT GAP}DE{I‘/CAR POET 3 FROF&IT GAI}DE_IN/CAR POST 4 g FRorgT GAI_ZDE_IN/CAR FOST 5 FROr&lT GAI_ZDE[;I/CAR POST 6 < z ) (FRON_T l)QIARDEN 7 i LG/F1 Fixture and/or Fitting reference
Permiable groun o Permiable groun Permiable groun Permiable groun Permiable groun < z Permiable groun . .
iiiiiiiiiiiiiii AL19.8n3) g P ﬂ \T/ \T/ A=20.9m2) A=20.9n3) \r/ A=20.9m2) A=20. 9n3) \I/ \T/ A=19.8m2) 1 3 2 DG.../sC Self Closing FD30/60s door with self closer
\ I [ .
62 \ g a il i DG.../KLS  Self Closing FD30/60s door to be kept locked shut
\ \ i l \ \ nffp l o
\ : N allh y N . uflh p <a——  Escape direction
\ / N 1 7 N N 1 e
\ : T || T S~ S~ e - w
. ; F KEY TO SERVICES
! E
\ 2
| &
. . ¢ @  Roseed celing LV Heat Detector
Qg 5 Wall S S &
EX|st|ng house No. 62 to be \\ I/ utifity services points utility services points ufility services points “f ® Pendant Light [2S)] M:‘,me[c)‘;rtgm,et‘s:hr‘
retained and refurbished as \ ] E] F®  intomal Wall Lights [ Junction Box
\ T I e i ey ) — St e s e e e T N ek e — 323C — @&fuse  Fuse spur switch
part on new development \ | E\ﬁﬁ"p ﬂ IF H F\k P R ® Downlights
\ ; L] PORCH PORCH [ [ Tabie T TV Coax Sky compatible
i . —| R — — ave fonts HD Coax
\\ g £ — —_ — — s - H®  Extemal Wall Lights Cat6
: \ ) =1 % o =1 %
\ / j#) % ) H / \ ” - 4 H / \ H ; H // 5 . CF  solator switeh Security Keypad
: . ==~ = [ / AN -~ ==~ g I 4 AN —— —— i 2 Single switched socket ORI et
! | x x o =? - X X |X | % x s o =? - N X % |X nx x N X X |X L Y
! : \ / S & [XX]  Double switched socket ©——= LED Strip Lighting
\\ /, K| x x ENTRANCE HALL ENTRANCE HALL XX |X | x x ENTRANCE HALL ENTRANCE HALL \ Ty AGES O XX [N (| < x Q T AGER XX [N A zg N @ Smoke Detector
; : | x % X % | | x x N S8m2 N X% [X (| % x 13.8m2 [ X % |X - X = UH wall thermosatic
\ : % x - - X % |X | X % X % |X | % x J X X (X Alarm Panel control unit
\\ I i x x - & )| x|y i X x X X | | X x ) x| «  Light swich ;:uln[;ramage below
I
\ | < x ) ) XX K < x XX X XX D®  Dimmer Light switch — p  Combined Drainage
k I X X X X | X X X X | X X X X[ below ground
\ / — N N — — — S — SAme AN New Radiators
\‘ | 5 5 ‘ @ New Extract Fan Blank Plate
! 6 6
The tat B
\\ | : 7 7 : Secure Bikd Storage Unit ermests B Recessed Light Fiting
\ // | 0 s | (Hoyde No. 6) E Video Entry System Q Bulk Head Light
\ == | 5 5 | = \ Central Vacuum outlet @ Alarm Box at High Level
\ , Z | | \\ S allest / 7 L Speaker Switch Audio v Telephone point
[©) é) [©) / : 2 : \ BATHROOM 1 O Sound Settings 03 Fresh Ai Gril
(E | " " | = 4 Fire Detector Epl Outdoor Speaker
: 2| |2 Pa) Motion Sensor Panic Button
c H = 13 :3 =4 H / = Sounder (security) B9 Steam Controls
ci’ B iy X = - \— e * - - - * - A - 71 - < < Extract Fan + Isolator T In-Seat Wall Lights
D > ~ | > I T
L 5] N [o) LED Downlights (L:"W V‘r‘“‘age Light
f% S Visitors Secure Bike Storage Station X X gL == LIVING' ROOM LIVING' ROOM LIVING' ROOM X XX oo D"‘“"Z:’j
% % x UTILITY | | UTALITY 41.6m2 41.6m2 41.6m2 X x| Fan Coil [
L " " " B Fuseboards
X x - - X % |X
U x x « x| E3 Coaxial Socket ﬁ Shaver / electric toothbrush
s socket / hair dryer
ke Cat6
KX x S R { ) X X | S Ceiling Speaker ﬁ Egﬁn:sﬂc Sprinkler Mist System
| > X s o XX | X FC Grill  Fan Coil Grill AS
Secure Unit Air Source Heat Pump
_________________ — — N - ————— -~ — GIA=172 2 — | —==—=—=
COLOUR CODE FOR SERVICES
_________________________ 4 L . ___ feo=——m=c=====
: PROPOSED [ ] EXISTING [_] REMOVED [ ]
1
N X
IR AT | D/H/f\ BV DV
~ T * 1 as =
< NG N 1 E: j . Al H H
// | No. 62 SERVICE ENTRANCE AN YIN W >
/ ! |
s
A =\ A /A
- . . Gene
z N V17 Lo g 0 \ N\ N
£ NING LT BN KITCHEN/DINING KITCHEN/DENING @
& L 1
w 0o W - . L_________ ¥ ______J A ____. L_________ Lo
Secure Bikd ftorage Unit s ]—
H No. & < .
(Hossho-1 8 EESS s R S S e, e = = = = = Revisions
s 1 1 i | 1 1 1 1 I
1 1 i | 1 1 1 1 I
W | i | 1 1 1 1 I
2F S 1T,’ ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, === Sl===cdl===d
14.05.22 Rev. A - General Amendments
18.07.22 Rev. B - Neighbourig No.62 site area added.
House Nos increased to 7 units. General Amendments
24.02.23 Rev. C - Proposed scheme has been redesigned

based on pre-application advice received on 20/02/23.

General Revision
20.04.23 Rev. D - Roof gables changed to hip Solar Roofs
General Revision

06.10.23 Rev. E - parking arrangement revised as per
planning officer's request. General Revision

EXISTING SITE AREA = 1749m2

Client

LINCOLN ASSET HOLDINGS LTD.

A=50.3m2

IR -
g FRACIRAC eR
O.vtf'-*“ =

s

ol . y - ‘g By~

3 LN A L
e
s

Y

R
00 ' E
Lt P
= i

et Phet A

Newly planted trees to south boundary visual screening

273

275
MARTIN WAY

277
MARTIN WAY

MARTIN WAY

Project

4\ 58-62 Haynt Walk Mews

T Ttk R R e Geley ===\
e, e s N Raynes Park
bk Newly planted trees to south boundary visual screening “ \ SW2O 9NX
| N
| \
“‘ \\ Drawing Title
c AN
| \
\
| \
\‘ \\
s AN Proposed Ground Floor Plan Layout
| N
“‘ Scale Date.
;‘ 1:100 @ A1 1:200 @ A3 Apr. 2022
SCALE 1: 100 L]
0 1 2 3 4| 5m
~

267

269
MARTIN WAY

271
MARTIN WAY

MARTIN WAY

J‘ ( 8

Architectural & Design Consultants
Studio A, 32 Murray Road, Richmond, Surrey TW10 7QG

142
- CANNON HILL a"em"@%"c!‘é??gé?'z?s?)

-
Drawing No.

| LANE Job o,

HWM/3213

3213 BR-103E

(©) 2023 Copyright VaA )




This page is intentionally left blank



/9 abed

M4 - Section 2: Category 2 — Accessible and adaptable dwellings

Section 2A: Approach to the dwelling Application

2.1 The provisions of Section 2A apply only where a planning condition requires compliance with optional requirement M4(2) for accessible and
adaptable dwellings (see paragraphs 0.3 to 0.6).

2.2 The provisions of Section 2A apply to external and internal areas and elements that form part of the approach route to the individual dwelling
and fall within the plot (or curtilage) of the dwelling or the building containing the dwelling.

2.3 The provisions also apply to the approach route between the dwelling and the point, or points, at which an occupant or visitor, including a
disabled person, would expect to get in and out of a car. This point, or points, of access may be within or outside the plot of the dwelling or the
building containing the dwelling (typically a block of flats). These provisions do not apply beyond the curtilage of the development.

2.4 Reasonable provision should be made to ensure that the approach route to any communal facilities that serve the dwelling meets these
provisions. Communal facilities include storage areas, such as those used for depositing refuse and recycling, but not plant rooms or other

Circulation Areas and internal Doorways
Door and Hall Widths

2.22 To facilitate movement into, and between, rooms throughout the dwelling, doors and corridors should comply with all of the following

a. The minimum clear width of every hall or landing is 900mm.

b. Any localized obstruction, such as a radiator, does not occur opposite or close to a doorway or at a change of direction and is
no longer than 2m in length: and the corridor is not reduced below minimum 750mm width at any point

C. Every door has a minimum clear opening with as set out in Table 2.1

d. A minimum 300mm nib is provided to the leading edge of every door within the entrance storey

Private Stairs and Changes of Level within the dwelling

2.23 To allow people to move between storeys, and to allow a stair lift to be fitted to the stairs from the entrance storey to the storey
above (or the storey below where this contains the bathroom required by the provisions of paragraph 2.29), stairs should comply
with all of the following.

service areas unless occupants need regular access, for example for meter reading. a.  Access to all rooms and facilities within the entrance storey is step free
_ oo . . _ b. Level changes within every other storey are avoided where possible.
2.5 For a house (or other dwelling that sits within its own plot) the approach route will often only involve a driveway, or a gate and a path, but for a c. the stair from entrance storey to the storey above ( and below) has a minimum clear width of 850mm when measured 450mm
welling within a larger building (typically a block of flats) the approach route will usually involve one, or more, communal hs, entran above the pitch line of the treads (ignoring any newel post)
dwelling t a a.ge building (typically a block of flats) the app c?ac oute . usually involve one, or more, communal gates, paths, entrances, d. All stairs meet the provisions of Part K for private stairs.
doors, lobbies, corridors and access decks, as well as communal lifts and stairs.
Part M(2) - Access to and use of Buildings
The proposed scheme aims to achieve the compliance with Category 2 - Building \/ PORCH BELOW PORCH BELOW
Regulations Part M for Accessible and Adaptable Dwellings, subject to successful L
completion of structural, mechanical and detail design. 2 © _
|
. O @) Y
Current proposals have allowed for creation of fully permeable "step free @
accessible" principal floor at ground floor level with sufficient amount "built-in" 1 BEDROOM 2
provisions on upper floors to be able to accommodate the partial conversion of 1 A=19.2m2 »
dwelling(s) for future needs of occupants, visitors, including a disabled person. rl [ - -
— | | 24
Particular attention has been given to ensure that surrounding areas of the site are a | 2 i
also fully accessible via step free zone in order to provide uninterrupted approach 2 i | | 22 28
routes within the entire site plot demise. Q 22 2 | ps
29 ) 21
Please see relevant extracts from the Building Regulations Part M Category 2 used 21 - e 2 %
to try to achieve inclusive design principle on submitted proposals. < 20 1 31
¥ 1@ 32
rall Ll (L e [ P i 33
SR SRR T o el o A - =B > A\ ¥ =
& /
‘::i:::::::::::::::::::::::::::%;;;;;;;;‘:::::::::::::::;ﬁ‘M EN-SUITE \\/
= \ V: 35 T~ 4BATHROOM 2 [ -
I | | EocssSmss o ==
T \ LANDING 5 A | LanDING —
H - b I I e
0 O .~ SO S | YN e FJE\ E
N L =y - J—— \ 1
S N ! £ F IR B N L] J EH \ T j\ \  -
< :g \\\\\ Pﬁg U 13
% & 14
N 3 19
@ \:l—- STORAGE/ ;R — 15
BEDROOM 3 N || PLANT N
. Q 22.M2 N . MASTER BEDROOM .
Services and controls ) | A=20,7m2 Il e . o

2.30 To assist people who have reduced reach, services and controls should comply
with all of the following.

a. Consumer units are mounted so that switches are between 1350mm and 1450mm D
above floor level.

/7
\ /7
\\(I//\
L < PL
,
|
i

b. Switches, sockets, stop cocks and controls have their centre line between 450mm ¥

and 1200mm above the floor level and a minimum of 300mm (measured 1
horizontally) from an inside corner. 4

C. The handle to at least one window in principal living area is located between
450mm and 1200mm above floor level, unless the window is fitted with a remote
opening device that is within this height range. ||

\
\
\«
I
| |
R #on
1
i

BATHROOM

l
WALK IN
T WARDROBE

FAMILY

N
1]}
[N /
[N /

d. Handles to all other windows are located between 450mm and 1400mm above
floor level, unless fitted with a remote opening device that is within this height 2
range.

e. Either:

*Boiler timer controls and thermostats are mounted between 900mm and 1200mm
above finished floor level on the boiler, or

I
I 2

MASTER BATHROOM
A=6.5m2

*Separate controllers (wired or wireless) are mounted elsewhere in an accessible SEDUM ROOF BELOW

SEDUM ROOF BELOW

location within the same height

e -

NOTE: The loading for strengthened walls is considered suitable for many types of

adaptations but additional localized strengthening may

be required if adaptations are fitted that impose high point loads.

PROPOSED SECOND FLOOR PLAN

Habitable Rooms - Living, kitchen and eating areas

2.24 To provide usable living spaces and easy, step free access between living area, a WC and the principal private entrance, key accommodation
should comply with all of the following

a. Within the entrance storey there is a living area (which may be a living room, dining room or a combined kitchen and dining room)
b. A minimum 1200mm clear space is provided in front of and between all kitchen units and appliances
C. Glazing to the principal window of the principal living area starts a maximum of 850mm above floor level or at the minimum height necessary

to comply with the requirements of part K for guarding to windows.
Bedrooms
2.25 To enable a wide range of people to access and use them, bedrooms should comply with all of the following.

Every bedroom can provide a clear access route a minimum 750mm wide from the doorway to the window.

At least one bedroom (the principal bedroom) can provide a clear access zone a minimum 750mm wide to both sides and the foot of the bed.
Every other double bedroom can provide a clear access zone a minimum 750mm wide to one side and the foot of the bed.

above the pitch line of the treads (ignoring any newel post)

All single and twin bedrooms can provide a clear access zone a minimum 750mm wide to one side of each bed.

It can be demonstrated (for example by providing dimensioned bedroom layouts, similar to the example in Diagram 2.4) that the provisions
above can be achieved.

P OO0

Sanitary Facilities

general provisions

2.26 All walls, ducts and boxings to the WC/cloakroom, bathroom and shower room should be strong enough to support grab rails, seats and
other adaptations that could impose a load of up to 1.5kN/m2. Additional sanitary facilities beyond required to comply with this guidance
need not have strengthened walls.

NOTE: The loading for strengthened walls is considered suitable for many types of adaptations but additional localized strengthening may
be required if adaptations are fitted that impose high point loads.

PROPOSED FIRST FLOOR PLAN

WC Facilities on the Entrance Story

2.27 To provide step-free access to a WC that is suitable and convenient for some wheelchair users and, where reasonable, to make
provision for showering, dwellings should comply with all of the following.

a. Every dwelling has a room within the entrance storey that provides a WC and basic (which may be within a WC/cloakroom
or a bathroom.

b. In two or three storey dwelling with one or more bedrooms the WC (together with its associated clear access zone) meets
the provisions of Diagram 1.3 and the basin does not impede access to the WC.

C. In a two or three storey dwelling with three or more bedrooms, the room with the WC and basin also provides an installed

level access shower or a potential level access shower, and the shower, WC and basin (together with their associated clear
access zones) meet the provisions of Diagram 2.5. Examples of compliant WC layouts are shown in diagram 2.6.
d. The door opens outwards.

2.28 Where the dwelling provides both an accessible bathroom with a WC and WC/cloakroom within the same storey, the WC
may comply with provisions of Diagram 1.3.

Bathrooms

2.29 To provide convenient access to a suitable bathroom, the dwelling should comply with all of the following.

a. Every dwelling has a bathroom that contains a WC, a basin and a bath, that is located on the same floor as the double
bedroom, described as the principal bedroom in paragraph 2.25b.

b. The WC, basin and bath (together with their associated clear access zones) meet the provisions of Diagram 2.5. Examples
of bathroom layouts are shown in Diagram 2.7.

C. Provisions for a potential level access shower is made within the bathroom if not provided elsewhere within the dwelling.

N
© z
PORCH
P =~
I Il
———— [ wq‘}—fl} U ’/
e i J/
I //
0 X X il
0| ox X , 4 \
RECEPTION/LOUNGE / B JE HALL
i XX o 13.8m2
N X X \
NS 1
0o x| -
S I ;
WX % / -
- | -
7 6
l
] Eh*ﬂg] ] | :
****** 1
o | i
| 1 D el | 9
L L777J * b2 // !
GUEST , > ! o
‘ FATHROOM 1 i |
/ / : 1
(et e o K= |
=] 12
\ i 13
\ (1] S
— — >< )( >< \ 1 | 4
”7_\A _____ i 7777:7777
KX x| X X X SIS T s
<A o
XX XX X X RN
LIVING.. ROOM >
K| X 41.6m2 m UTIL;Iy
X X | N )
X >< >< “\“ ,,77,"/”’,_; ,"":
X| X X ’
] X X o N
- = N
J i
N L N
AN e
' N/ |
[ AN |
1| / AN
= Y
an — \ \ N
N - | N
=5 _ I P ‘ :/\\\
"T = 5t >
: % | \L/\x/
[ | PARN
: ! Y | AR FARRN
‘\‘E: ﬂ : 6\7777%‘
1 AN
[ I N
ke : | //\\ |
o = LN
N ! ! NN
44{;;;547 KJTCHEN/DINING NN
17
’/ |
| |
GARDEN

PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR PLAN

( ORIGINAL SIZE 75MM )

Notes

DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING.

ALL DIMENSIONS TO BE VERIFIED ON SITE BY CONTRACTOR
PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF ANY SHOP DRAWINGS AND

ANY WORK ON SITE.

REPORTALL DISCREPENCIES TO THE ARCHITECT IMMEDIATELY.
THIS DRAWING IS TO BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH ALL
RELATED ARCHITECT/ENGINEERS DRAWINGS / DETAILS AND
ALL OTHER RELEVANT INFORMATION.

KEY PLAN

Q

READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS
DESIGN AND DETAILS

Existing structure retained
Existing structure to be removed
Existing RC concrete structure
New structure

New wall linings

SCALE 1: 50 |

0

New Brickwork
New Blockwork 7Kn lightweight thermal standard
New Reinforced Concrete

New Acoustic Partition or lining to AD:E1 and 2, Table 1b
43 dB Airborne

New internal partition to 1/2 hour fire resitance and
insulation standard

Foul Drainage above ground

Foul Drainage below ground

Surface water Drainage above ground
Surface water Drainage below ground
Combined Drainage above ground
Combined Drainage below ground
Existing Radiators

Emergency Exit Sign to BS 5499-1:2002
30min Fire Rated construction

60min Fire Rated construction

Dry Riser

DG.01 Door reference

WG.01 Window reference

SFI Saintary fitting reference

LG/F1 Fixture and/or Fitting reference
DG..../ISC Self Closing FD30/60s door with self closer

DG..../KLS Self Closing FD30/60s door to be kept locked shut
- Escape direction

KEY TO SERVICES

Recessed Ceiling LV
@ S @
® Pendant Light H®
F®  intemal Wall Lights b8l
Kﬁise
® Downlights
TV Coax Sky compatible
Table lights
HD Coax
|-(:) External Wall Lights - Cat6
[ rsolator switch Securlty Keypad
Gang Dimmer Light
Single switched socket GD® i 9
[XX] Double switched socket ©=—= LED Strip Lighting
K 6:9 Smoke Detector
" 4 x Double Sockets
X2 5 UH wall thermostatic
Alarm Panel control unit
Foul Drainage below
«  Light switch ground
LN Dimmer Light switch — = Combined Drainage
5Amp below ground
WA New Radiators
@ New Extract Fan Blank Plate
Thermostat Recessed Light Fitting
B
Video Entry System =4 Bulk Head Light
\ Central Vacuum outlet [BO7  Alarm Box at High Level
L Speaker Switch Audio v Telephone point
o Sound Settings 3 Fresh Air Grill
Fire Detector 53] Outdoor Speaker
Pa) Motion Sensor [Fe] Panic Button
= Sounder (secur B9 Steam Controls
Extract Fan + Isolator T In-Seat Wall Lights
o LED Downlights Low Voltage Light
Converters
DC
Data Chute
Fan Col )
B Fuseboards
] Coaxial Socket ﬁ Shaver / electric toothbrush
cats s socket / hair dryer
s Ceiling Speaker 4 Domestic Sprinkler Mist System
DS head
FC Grill Fan Coil Grill A Source Hest Pump

COLOUR CODE FOR SERVICES

PROPOSED [ | EXISTING [] REMOVED [ ]

o 7

NY
—) N\

AN
\Va =\ TAA) /A ') \)
I = \ s )

Vaay= _ _ \
([ = > [Fe) /A
([ (52 DA
\ IS UU“\\J U/ ‘\Q“ Vj
\ == = Al

Revisions

®EEEE)

14.05.22 Rev. A - General Amendments
18.07.22 Rev. B - Neighbourig No.62 site area added.
House Nos increased to 7 units. General Amendments

24.02.23 Rev. C - Proposed scheme has been redesigned
based on pre-application advice received on 20/02/23.
General Revision

20.04.23 Rev. D - Roof gables changed to hip Solar Roofs
General Revision

06.10.23 Rev. E - parking arrangement revised as per
planning officer's request. General Revision

Client

LINCOLN ASSET HOLDINGS LTD.

Project

58-60 Haynt Walk Mews
Raynes Park
SW20 9NX

Drawing Title

HOUSE TYPE A (Inclusive Design)
Proposed Ground, First, Second &
Roof Plan Layouts

Scale Date.

1:50 @ A1 1:100 @ A3 ‘ ‘ Apr. 2022

-

~

3

Architectural & Design Consultants

Unit A119, Riverside Business Centre, Wandsworth London SW18 4UH
www.volumethree.com

T: 020 8332 2332

J

Job No. Drawing No.

HWM/3213 3213 BR-109E

(©) 2023 Copyright V3A




89 abed

279
MARTIN WAY

\\\’\,»\60

&

66

277
MARTIN WAY

Newly planted trees to south boundary visual screening

275

MARTIN WAY

273
MARTIN WAY

271

MARTIN WAY

269

MARTIN WAY

SCALE 1: 100 | [ [ [

0 1 2 3

267

MARTIN WAY

142
CANNON HILL
LANE

Y ¢ E
o
6 @a\ )| &
(\\ 6\'\ \5.\ i 5 4
R
%Qﬂ 4 c% SCHEDULE OF ACCOMMODATION [ ORIGINAL SIZE 75MM ]
/& ; 7 Dwellings |40 Persons | GIA/m2 | Private Amenity | Communal Amenity Area = 369m2 4 Notes
fo B
= ® b) HOUSE 1 | 3B/6P  |172.0m2 [136.9m2 14 Cycle Store Spaces (2 per Dwelling)
" HOUSE2 | 3B/6P  [177.0m2 |94.9m2 7 Parking Spaces (1 per Dwelling) A DIVENSIONS 1O BE VERIFIED ON'SITE BY CONTRACTOR
HOUSE 3 | 3B/6P  [177.0m2 |93.3m2 0 Visitor Parking Space m{?‘f\%’ 58 Iggkllll\sllll_ErECEMENTOF ANY SHOP DRAWINGS AND
HOUSE 4 | 3B/6P [177.0m2 |92.2m2 i i isi ithi REPORT ALL DISCREPENCIES TO THE ARCHITECT IMMEDIATELY.
§ 1 Disabled Parking provision within DP8 THIS DRAWING IS TO BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH ALL
oN AD HOUSE 5 | 3B/6P  [177.0m2 |92.0m2 7 EVC Points(1 per Dwelling) RELATED ARCHITECT/ ENGINEERS DRAWINGS / DETAILS AND
N AD ALL OTHER RELEVANT INFORMATION.
HOUSE 6 | 3B/6P  [172.0m2 [135.5m2 14 Refuse Bin Area Point (2 per Dwelling)
HOUSE 1-6 18B/36P 1052.2m2 821.3m2 4 Visitors Cycle Store Spaces
b A ,\54\,\ o B NO.62 3B/4P 100m2  [176.5m2 Existing Site Area = 1749m2
15.08 6 NN
<« Ao
< D = 15 KEY PLAN
b )
o0 e =T
N N iz
A9* &l [©
=
N O
e SN
COND D nS;
N o o2 ) &
\c_T.j green outline indicates land parcel in third party
'S’y ownership, whereby land within the green line zone is
6\% L used by No 56 and residents within red line zone both
A 6“ N of which enjoy the right of way and access for servicing
Stone 4 é‘/y AN %‘\o
¥ + Wal SN |73 © No. 56 ENTRANCE %
OV\/:16_ P) /%\
% READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS
< DESIGN AND DETAILS
NG
"] .74/
& o\ O@K\ |:| Existing structure retained
L \ 7 %C‘@ [[] Existing structure to be removed
(9]
= i = Q [_] Existing RC concrete structure
N ; 0 .
x
'2 s - % \ © NOte . New structure
o \ i 2 Q 1 1 1 .
. \ . & Houses No's 2-5 Haynt Walk Mews are referenced as Type A, and are of a generic design. === New walllinings
= \ i 8,7 5 6 ' H H H New Brickwork
. ; - 0% Houses No's 1&6 Haynt Walk Mews, forming two ends of terrace with second floor hipped roofs, ]
) - s . [C] New Blockwork 7Kn lightweight thermal standard
\ - are referenced as Type B for clarity. ,
: e New Reinforced Concrete
Nk \ L 14.90 14.96 14.94
\\ i N New Acoustic Partition or lining to AD:E1 and 2, Table 1b
\ et 43 dB Airborne
i R
1S C/B Fence New i I iti 1/2 hour fire resitance and
\ € _ B ew internal partition to our fire resitance a
\\ AB) Top=16.05 : C/B Fence _ Top=16.88 C/B Fence _ Top=16.90 insulation standard
e e e s
! PO OT0 R 0 o O L0 o DI AT & ORI & Ol S0vh o GO0 SHBIN o O sn0 5 O S BN O g & OGRS & O Bae 0 f Con NS B0 Sgrn & OO0 DN S OO g T T OO0 RS CR pRg TR OO0 BT DO Rin & O AR B D T h e e g .
\\ designated refuse g.»tf’.ttQth’.vtfi.vtf’.tsfq.vtf’.vbfi.‘-t",vtgttf’.ttfg.&tf’.$§§(}.t$f’.vtf§.vtf’.va»tf’.vbfi.&t".&t.{}.:tf’.ttf%.stf’.tt,i}.ttf’.vtfg.vtf’.th»tf’.vbfg.&i,"vb,{}.:bf’.tif’g.&tf’.tQE(}.ttf’.vtfg.vtf’.vbﬁvtf’.vbf ‘{}.tbf’.vtf TN AT A TR RN —_—— Foul Dl'alnageabovegl'ound
Pl \\ collection point i A ,\bﬁb e ] < —---—+% Foul Drainage below ground
\ Newly planted trees to north boundary visual screening Newly planted trees to north boundary visual screening Surface water Drainage above ground
\
Surface water Drainage below ground
FROIEIT GAI_(DE_T/CA pOT b Combined Drainage above ground
Permiable ‘oun
1. 8n2 Haynt Walk MeWS Combined Drainage below ground
Existing Radiators
Emergency Exit Sign to BS 5499-1:2002
30min Fire Rated construction
pi l 60min Fire Rated construction
Resident Secure Bike Storage Station
H 2 .
) designated wheelchair designated wheelchair (Hovses 29 Dry Riser
% INO. 62 ENTRANCE access route Street lighting post it SHE SR Street lighting post access route
- B ,, mﬁt - '/ B HEER treet lighting post N, - '/ = ;Tf ‘Lk? Né‘fm = '/ & mﬁk DG.01 Door reference
g . N> > > > .
£ ] = =] o i
— — 1 o ’ E E1 o o ’ z O Z o P b o ’ i 2 5 J P_ 1;% WG.01 Window reference
6 ) 8 2 z S b £ 9 J 3 3 — / SFI Saintary fitting reference
= =~ L = = L = e nd . _
4 el g [ e z  [rerd oo 5 || LG/F1 Fixture and/or Fitting reference
S 5 S 5 > <
\ K . .
- ~ w I'S z elf Closing s door with self closer
HHH J N J J \I/ \L DG..../ISC Self Cl FD30/60s d th self cl
T __________ s
62 il A 7 e fr qu DG..../KLS Self Closing FD30/60s door to be kept locked shut
T 1 g fir / 3 1 /] . .
I\ af|fi / i of i / el [\ flh y | <a——  Escape direction
s il 4 L | m N it ’ ““’{
~Jflf - ~ e - N - R KEY TO SERVICES
z
<
o
] £
L H
] ¢ @  Roseed celing LV Heat Detecior
[ i nsor
Existing house No. 62 to be o 8 @ pentantign HO  Nion Betoror Lot
retained and refurbished as g F@®  ternal Wall Lights [ Junction Box
t on new development 1 i ®  bownighs e Fuse spur switch
par p SEDUM ROOF BELOW SEDUM ROOF BELOW Tabl I‘in TV Coax Sky compatible
SEDUM ROOF BELOW SEDUM ROOF BELOW able lights HD Coax
- : H®  External Wall Lights Cat6
I / r swi Security Keypad
Il / Lt froto s_ . & Gang Dimmer Light
I , Single switched socket GO switch
= [XX]  Double switched socket ©——— LED Strip Lighting
4 x Double Sockets @ Smoke Detoctor
o H wall therme i
Alarm Panel ZJONV:I u‘": osate
o« Light switch — ;’;ﬂn[;m‘"age below
LN Dimmer Light switch ——p»  Combined Drainage
. below ground
SAmp WA New Radiators
@ New Extract Fan Blank Plate
Secure BikY Storage Unit 1 4 Thermostat B Recessed Light Fitting
(Hoyse No. 6) Video Entry System ® Bulk Head Light
v Central Vacuum outlet [BD7  Alarm Box at High Level
L Speaker Switch Audio v Telephone point
o Sound Settings o Fresh Air Grill
Fire Detector (53] Outdoor Speaker
4 Motion Sensor Panic Button
= Sounder (security) B9 steam Controls
Extract Fan + Isolator T In-Seat Wall Lights
Visitors Secure Bike Storage Station o LED Douniighis EZ‘:‘I"\S:‘I:? o
n Coil (] Data Chute
— Fan Col fiz:1] Fuseboards
4 Coaxial Socket Shaver / electric toothbrush
cat6 sﬂ socket / hair dryer
Y s Ceiling Speaker g Domestc Sprinlr Mit System
(f Secur(eH ) oge Unit L : L w\\\ fesan Fan Coll Gl Air Source Heat Pump
o[ o i - COLOUR CODE FOR SERVICES
@) o
} PROPOSED [ | EXISTING [] REMOVED [ ]
Planning Set
// : No. 62 SERVICE ENTRANCE g
4 ! 2, »
| | w
Bl = <
g o (G | Arangement)
< E SEDUM ROOF BELOW SEDUM ROOF BELOW FLAT ROOF BELOW FLAT ROOF BELOW SEDUM ROOF BELOW SEDUM ROOF BELOW @ m@ ra ra m @ @ m
« & 5
o Y & ;
. Secure Bikg ptorage Unit g
. L (Hossho-1 ] n 1 3 6 Revisions
H
: : (A)EEEE
§§2RZGARDEN 1 W = | zwﬁ\ .
m. T )
\ ‘ @) 14.05.22 Rev. A - General Amendments
N ; 18.07.22 Rev. B - Neighbourig No.62 site area added.
S~ House Nos increased to 7 units. General Amendments
24.02.23 Rev. C - Proposed scheme has been redesigned
based on pre-application advice received on 20/02/23.
- | General Revision
2, 20.04.23 Rev. D - Roof gables changed to hip Solar Roofs
4 General Revision
o }5 06.10.23 Rev. E - parking arrangement revised as per
o P planning officer's request. General Revision
’ EXISTING SITE AREA = 1786m2
o w REAR GARDEN 3 REARSGARDEN S REAR GARDEN 5 REAR GARDEN 6 NS e 7 )
o &% TR RO 2 A=51.8m2 A=50.3m2 A=50.7m2 A=50m2 ASI7-9m Client
Ea— LINCOLN ASSET HOLDINGS LTD
2 T .
Z \
B
e o v Project
R o
o £ o ‘ ATH LIRS 58-62 Haynt Walk Mews
- ) x
o £V o 5 Ty o T % ZELTIRY Raynes Park
2 % e A AR A e {f;?,:; l=ATHIRTY = Newly planted trees to south boundary visual screening SW20 9NX
ST SN NI IS ST R TN Nk
7.7.._;’7 v o+ B s 0 *0 - 3 1, H
o

Drawing Title

Proposed Roof Plan Layout

Scale Date.
1:100 @ A1 1:200 @ A3 ‘ ‘ Apr. 2022
[ 3
Architectural & Design Consultants
Studio A, 32 Murray Road, Richmond, Surrey TW10 7QG
ademir@volumethree.com
T: 020 8 332 2332
N J
Job No. Drawing No.

HWM/3213 3213 BR-106E

(©) 2023 Copyright V3A




69 abe

| ( ORIGINAL SIZE 75MM )
‘ / Notes

DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING.

| ALL DIMENSIONS TO BE VERIFIED ON SITE BY CONTRACTOR
PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF ANY SHOP DRAWINGS AND

| ANY WORK ON SITE.
REPORTALL DISCREPENCIES TO THE ARCHITECT IMMEDIATELY.

| THIS DRAWING IS TO BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH ALL

| RELATED ARCHITECT/ENGINEERS DRAWINGS / DETAILS AND

| ALL OTHER RELEVANT INFORMATION.

| KEY PLAN

| N

\\ ‘E
SV A0 © o
A AR S D
\\\(\/\VJ'N = () \\(\ 2 .
' o @0 5
N ¥ a N &
o N ot ©Hg 54
\e\® & SCHEDULE OF ACCOMMODATION
405.0 b 7 Dwellings (40 Persons | GIA/m2 Private Amenity | Communal Amenity Area = 369m2
b . B HOUSE 1 3B/6P  [172.0m2 [136.9m2 14 Cycle Store Spaces (2 per Dwelling)
A" HOUSE 2 | 3B/6P [177.0m2 |94.9m2 7 Parking Spaces (1 per Dwelling)
HOUSE 3 3B/6P 177.0m2 |93.3m2 0 Visitor Parking Space
HOUSE 4 | 3B/6P  [177.0m2 |92.2m2 1 Disabled Parking provision within DP8
\%,\0 6\% HOUSE 5 | 3B/6P  [177.0m2 |92.0m2 7 EVC Points(1 per Dwelling)
R
HOUSE 6 | 3B/6P  [172.0m2 [135.5m2 14 Refuse Bin Area Point (2 per Dwelling)
HOUSE 1-6 18B/36P 1052.2m2 821.3m2 4 Visitors Cycle Store Spaces
A5 A3 © »(\ o NO.62 3B/4P 100m2  [176.5m2 Existing Site Area = 1749m2
15.08 6 S
x\“@o "’ —
<@ A =| |© J
A 9l |w
oN° N =l 5
N A1 S =
Ao a| [©
|
ok S\ \© |
QOQ AD D I\-T! |
= ) AD ® no: O R o ‘
AQ= green outline indicates land parcel in third party |
% ownership, whereby land within the green line zone is ‘
6\‘«) 7# used by No 56 and residents within red line zone both |
Ao f which enjoy the right of way and access for servicing
Ston Bij %\\ o © |
a % N
r © Stone Wal N _7( o AN\ @
c° A *+ No. 56 ENTRANCE |
ToW:76 )
.12 /%\
2
¢ |
A Q”)\
AN
o,
|
%, S
ot < @/%
) |
w AV &
= o Q
I Ghng 5 0, N .
> T > Q ote
< © .
L% \\ i 8 A ] . .
: \ . & s Houses No's 2-5 Haynt Walk Mews are referenced as Type A, and are of a generic design. |
© \ BESE S 5 6 ' . . .
. ) - ¢ Houses No's 1&6 Haynt Walk Mews, forming two ends of terrace with second floor hipped roofs,
o ~
>4 \ s H |
6 6 \ - are referenced as Type B for clarity. |
W \\ B 14.90 14.96 14.94 |
~ |
‘\ i |
\ H ‘
\\ A C/B Fence
\ AB) Top=16.05 C/B Fence _ Top=16.88 C/B Fence _ Top=16.90 |
: i O R A B e O s O amp s SO R % O 0 et B I R, O R g e OO s o R SO O IR O S g, B e R BP0 S O A D o R DA me Ol R, R g e OO N D YO sy o s R T
\\ designated refuse ST AT AT R AN AR T X T R TN .u,'.u,lzuf'.uf e B e B e e et P e S e P ent et e TMen P e R e P e MM e Bl A e D e Bt B e ! STRECAR AT TN T AT TR AT R LN AR b P hen Mo e ig e P e ¥ .uf'.ufg,»cf'.»t, .»cf'.»sfg.u,'.u
Pl \ collection point Hiiitims \bfbb 1499 !
\
Newly planted trees to north boundary visual screening Newly planted trees to north boundary visual screening

FRONT GARDEN/CAR PORT 1
(Permiable g ound
=19.8m

DES

Haynt Walk Mews

Fi 60min Fire Rated construction
Resident Secure Bike Storage Station
(Houses 2-5) H
) designated wheelchair designated wheelchair Dry Riser
%- INo. 62 ENTRANCE access route Street lighting post L Shga i Street lighting post access route
) n treet lighting post WL, el
! e 75 & Sl s S /T & " f“""ﬂ% » & “"““"r% DG.01 Door reference
s o > \ s Nz > 5 S .
= 7 > 7 - =] 5 H
& o @5 5 o ’ P 3 g & o @ 5 O 3 & o ‘ P r Ve N 0] P(- o = 2 ® 2 TR WG.01 Window reference
B ] ] ) ] 7 | \ Y, ¥ N . .
6 75 53 z : 7& 5z E Y 5 D IIN— D 3 3 P/ i SFI Saintary fitting reference
2 J = ~ L L J = = L i il = = Il . "
4 o z z [ Moo z z b of” | ‘ o £ £ ‘ L LG/F1 Fixture and/or Fitting reference
S 5 5 b > > '
\ < < | . .
] & & & | @ 3|3 N 1 3 2 DG../SC  Self Closing FD30/60s door with self closer
-
62 vl u i T, i L‘ ‘ DG.../KLS  Self Closing FD30/60s door to be kept locked shut
e T VB g fir / 1 /] . .
2R ufffr /% i il fr / i ¥ K il / - Escape direction
\ 1fh e N i 4 N 1 4
~ N - < .
~ Ui — ~ Y- - o ~ - — ]
3 i o |l z KEY TO SERVICES
i i 5
—14 &
| ¢ (@ Recessed Ceilng Lv Heat Detector
1 i 1 o
Existing house No. 62 to be | : e S ®  ronion =ty
retained and refurbished as \ i s i it il E F@®  iemal v Lighs (8  suncion Box
) / — &use  Fuse spur switch
part on new development | ; o O Downloris TV Goax Sky compativl
\ ] (] v oax Sky compatible
\ // ’7 PORCH BELOW PORCH BELOW \/ RS Gl PORCH BELOW \/ PORCH BELOW PORCH BELOW I e b Cosx
\ / H®  Extemal Wall Lights Cat6
\ / T =
‘\ / H // ‘5 o [ rsolator switch Securlty Keypad
: /’ I / %&‘ y X Single switched socket GO Gang Dimmer Light
‘ / I - ”‘“;:{’ [XX]  Double switched socket == LED Strip Lighting
> I / 2 ST Smoke Detector
\ \ n Ml b XX 4 x Double Sockets @ moke
\ // —— 1— r ]_“ \ L *ooule Sedke UH wall thermostatic
: ! — \\ 23 o s 23 1 2 Alarm Panel control unit
\\ | N O " = [= 22 n | | ” . O o Lightswich —— ;r:nzramage below
! B MEWS HOUSE NO.
\ | — \ MEWS HOUSE NO.1 21 I ” MEWS HOUSE NO.2 MEWS HOUSE NO.3 21 [ MEWGSI:=01U758E mNZO'S ] — & = = GIA=173.m2 // DX Dimmer Light switch —  Combined Drainage
\ / \ GIA=173.m2 0 E B EY GIA=178.m2 GIA=178.m2 » : * 2 ; 5Amp below ground
\ I F \\ Bl B EX 7 WIS New Radiators
\‘ i — ?7 \ = e / @ New Extract Fan Blank Plate
\ /I y———t - P ----H—=F=Pf—-——H----H---|-- - - - - - |- - - - |- =- - == = = - - —— - — — Lo - — = — == ) ’ Thermostat Recessed Light Fitting
i - A N _CCTH e S Y [ (S . s S e o ety Sy ©  sukeas Lan
i T R Ty S i iy il e == = = = — ideo Entry System
it il \ (N / v Central Vacuum outlet B0 Alarm Box at High Level
\», I— L : \ LANDING ; %] [ ; LANDING / L Speaker Switch Audio v Telephone point
PR Il s ! | SR o Sound Settings w2 Fresh Air Grill
Y O (@) O | il ittt il | = ol =1 = il el ittt el ra
; ~ — ‘L777 I [777 _ > /2 | R ) U D SEN SO el | | e Y R N N Fire Detector [SB]  Outdoor Speaker
& . 3 N pe) Motion Sensor Panic Button
Ao L] WE P 7 , N , \ = Sounder (security) B9 steam Controls
< y A\ i \ —
’; e) / BEDROOM 3 - AV STORAGE, STORAGE, «‘V/ Sl storace STORAGE /|| /{'\ STORAGE/| | STORAGE/[i=)" BlﬁgDRGOOM2 3 \ Extract Fan + Isolator T In-Seat Wall Lights
5 & v s skes st — O 18.6mm2 ,/‘\\\ PLANT PLANT ,/'/‘\ BEDROOM 3 BEZDZROOZM 3 /A\\\ PLANT PLANT //’7‘ N BEZDZR(:;)ZM 3 BEZDZR(LOZM 3 /]| PLANT PLANT |7\ . 6mm ° \£D Dowmignts E‘;“:VZ‘:“':,SE Lght
e % /| . ]  DataChute
g “ S \ Fan Coil
? N I | / [— N N — — N/ N — — N J/// \\\v 7 — A\ H— FCJ Fanco B  Fuseboards
pu | o > . ANT [ E3 Coaxial Socket Shaver / electric toothbrush
g PL ANT A7 Pu b \ i
i /7 , ’“\\ //'7‘ N , /‘\\\ //"‘ N R 5N Cat6 E socket / hair dryer
>
i, :? D W] ] D D \ D [] (I : ' D o s Ceiling Speaker ﬁ Domostic Sprinklr Mist Systam
f% e b /I : h " /I \ | ‘: : \ H (J{P" e N FESa! Fan ColGril Air Source Heat Pump
5 i1 N Il i1 [l ! N @ : T
p A % / \ | Il S —
O = Lz ~ - S~ = > S COLOUR CODE FOR SERVICES
N > ®)
s~ MILY FAMILY FAMILY FAMILY FAMILY [
t N BATHROOM BATHROOM BATHROOM BATHROOM BATHROOM BATHROOM ? PROPOSED [ ] EXISTING [_] REMOVED [ ]
U AT { — '(z\/\\ o
RALNET S o Y
- Planning Set
- vl \
T = = al Ul U\% @\f/ -
/ | No. 62 SERVICE ENTRANCE el ] " r % E//
! ! 2f — T el
(I = = ——— Vara) N _
| : (General Arangement)
: SEDUM ROOF BELOW WIS IS @l /Ml @ Uu \ ) 1= \yi
S SEDUM ROOF BELOW SEDUM ROOF BELOW SEDUM ROOF BELOW SEDUM ROOF BELOW SEDUM ROOF BELOW N\ = = A/ = J
[
5
&
w
Secure Bikd ftorage Unit ;
(HousH No. 1) & Revisions
; 136
W (A)E)EE)(E
REAR_GARDEN 1
136m2 T
\ ‘ 14.05.22 Rev. A - General Amendments
| . . .
AN \ 18.07.22 Rev. B - Neighbourig No.62 site area added.
S~ House Nos increased to 7 units. General Amendments
24.02.23 Rev. C - Proposed scheme has been redesigned
based on pre-application advice received on 20/02/23.
oo, General Revision
J 4] .
IS 20.04.23 Rev. D - Roof gables changed to hip Solar Roofs
o S General Revision
i 5 / . .
. ", { O 06.10.23 Rev. E - parking arrangement revised as per
; 5 ¢ $ planning officer's request. General Revision
le) < <, I3
B « 8
. S STING S =
b T e, o EXISTIN ITE AREA = 1786m2
2 A "y . AR GAGEER 5 REAR GARDEN 4 REAR GARDEN 5 REAR GARDEN 6 ey e 7 ;
N 5 é o 3 SEA';M‘ZEARDEN A=51.8m2 A=50.3m2 A=50.7m2 A=50m2 =27 Client
S R R R ’
9 o™
2, 5 U LINCOLN ASSET HOLDINGS LTD.
e £
. Nt g J
{ A ‘é ¢ © S Project
(E‘\ 9,'; oy, o, < Y
g L N o é
o N A Ay 4
y oy 2, & . B o T A XL ABERE AN MY 58-62 Haynt Walk Mews
é § 0§ = 4 ot 2 L ey v, oA "*:.J;‘.‘d,i.’:7.‘«,&:4,2:‘(2'757:7' ATEERTY »ATHENTS:. X1
, ) P , N o 2 ORI REELATLETL MOEIES RIS Sl ipiey. MiTies SATHIN AR AT Raynes Park
4 E y © § 5 s S PSR . RN LRI 'Ls’7'7 ROV IRTY AT AT RTERT Y, AT IR AT IR B SR
PP ] C - LRI e PRACIMALAL, (A Y v 44 het HRCLALTS sl . .
PP g ){; ); g £ ¢ ,,f Ji/ ey R T S s Beaen L% RO - 3o ¢ H 5 v ,‘f;Q:‘ (R ’.‘{» [N AT RN T RS T AR o Newly planted trees to south boundary visual screening “ SW20 9NX
I S . ety 5 % ") te P A BN P ) P ) &
L/%’LL APV }>-J b JVLW: JJ“M ’”"f ff\ N AT BT MY . Y AT |
AN / + |
|
|
‘\‘ Drawing Title
|
|
|
|
|
|

Newly planted trees to south boundary visual screening

271
MARTIN WAY

273

275
MARTIN WAY

277
MARTIN WAY

MARTIN WAY

279
MARTIN WAY

269
MARTIN WAY

| READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS

IGN AND DETAILS

Existing structure retained
Existing structure to be remov
Existing RC concrete structure
New structure

New wall linings
New Brickwork

New Reinforced Concrete

43 dB Airborne

New internal partition to 1/2
insulation standard

New Blockwork 7Kn lightweight thermal standard

New Acoustic Partition or lining to AD:E1 and 2, Table 1b

Foul Drainage above ground

Foul Drainage below ground

Surface water Drainage above ground

ed

hour fire resitance and

Surface water Drainage below ground
Combined Drainage above ground
Combined Drainage below ground
Existing Radiators

Emergency Exit Sign to BS 5499-1:2002

30min Fire Rated construction

“ Proposed Second Floor Plan Layout

|
‘ Scale Date.

| 1:100 @ A1 1:200 @ A3 Apr. 2022

SCALE 1: 100 |

0

267
MARTIN WAY

c“ ( 3

Architectural & Design Consultants

Studio A, 32 Murray Road, Richmond, Surrey TW10 7QG
ademir@volumethree.com

142
“J‘“ CAN NON HI LI.- L T 02083322332)
| LANE

Drawing No.

3213 BR-105E

(©) 2023 Copyright V3A

Job No.

HWM/3213




35800

Passive ventilation operable bathroom vents to side rear offshoot elevation

to be fitted with double glazed obscure glass panes to prevent overlooking.
Aluminium powder coated window frames finished in RAL 7024 - Graphite Grey
Rear roof fascia/wall panel enclosure to be finished in matching window colour

"Solar Roof" system by "Roofit" with integrated

hi-tech photovoltaic cels within metal standing seam
panels (RAL 7024-Graphite Grey) Al visible associated fascia panels and rain
harvesting troughs to match main roof covering

Brick
Chimney

2254

"Solar Roof" system by "Roofit" with integrated
hi-tech photovoltaic cels within metal standing seam

panels (RAL 7024-Graphite Grey) Al visible associated fascia panels and rain

harvesting troughs to match main roof covering

13630

Aluminium powder coated window frames

with integrated spandrel panels finished

in powder coated RAL 7015 - Slate Grey to be
fitted within projected window bays

at first floor level to prevent direct overlooking.

Ridge

2447

-

2252

Brick
Chimney

—__Flashing _|

existing eaves line maintained throughout roof perimeter
w8 N — Sl Dish
N\,
W we, \\\\\ o Awring
\. ~
1707 1707 \\ — gl
|——| Air Brick AN w Trelis
N\, R
777777777777777777777777777777 S ———— 00 wh
e \\
RWP 16.31 16.32 RwWP \\ e
» N\
7 N 1601 s
Opering " S/ ik &
= = 2
P == Ee—— — 4‘\‘ i —
| =
- =
E A _
Slanted section of the hip rcf)of end containg integrated Solar Rf‘oof/water
harvesting infrastri re and plant and i: inished in
MARTIN WAY NO.273 HAYNT WALK MEWS NO.58-62 B o HAYNT WALK NO.56
Rain protected/sun shading canopy over Forterra - Belgravia Gault Blend
I_I(_ig:gen sliding folding door at ground floor (or similar) to all brick facing walls TBC SCALE 1 75 ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘
0 1 2 4 5m
9-? Newly planted trees to south boundary visual screening ;E Newly planted trees to north boundary visual screening
% \\\ //,/ —mTTT T -
: >
= ,// // \\
© / : // \
/ // Z
) /// /,/ 7
o / 7 7
// ‘\‘ % / g = /
// ‘ ° Y / //
/| Y /
/ ,/’/ )/ N\
// / \\
/| / \
/ L N
,/// 7 \\
/ e N\
I\ /// ‘\“\“‘ ,,/’/ \\\ —
N o ya e BEDROOM 3/LOFT STUDIO N\ o N
oe) =, =, ™
AN Q) // N CL(\)] ™
- . Q\ - N\ - .
Existing garden perimeter e i A N\ Existing garden perimeter
fencing zone /level /! ! % fencing zone /level
/,/ I \\
7 : \o
O i 7= ! T \\ Lo
T I -
Lo i | [S— i~ 1‘-—1 : \\\ ©
(N ///, | : : . : (N
. : \ 1
/,/ : / : : : Aluminium powder coated window frames with integrated spandrel panels
P : ~——__ | | "*1 | L finished in powder coated RAL 7015 - Slate Grey to be fitted within projected
e | - AN | - | N window bays at first floor level to prevent direct overlooking.
E — B (e L — = —~— e 1 ) h
12.6 m o ! RGO REEEEEEEE o ~ IR e . o 12.1m
. oL = — L I | | - | MASTER BEDROOM | BATHROOM 2 ~._ ~—- BEDROOM 2: 6‘ 3 o . >
I ~ — \.
c'{?r/\\ d\ | : i S S- CL(\)I 20T
) \ ! ~ ! N B 4
//,/ \\ OO : : : JF - >'/’/7 ***** 4| Q (\ N ~ \L —
.S : | A ' . " e
\ | | - 1 Lf) / Iz
| | | | | | L WY N
NS ! , . . ! r= . QY ~l=
‘ | - I o\ i
~— |7 Lo / ! i i ! - ! O ‘L(_3 wﬁ -
LO /] @ ! 1 | : I [ @ |
: I __________ 1 P
L S5 I — ! | —— : . | : o~ O
///’ ‘\\\\ : | ___ \\1771 : | :
/ S—-< ! ~_ te- ! | .
/! == ! SO Lo ! 1 \\
// Teedo_ \\\, 177 : : \\\
) e O | Lot 5 N .
o | DN | N o 7
/ I I B -- I /7
/ | ~d __ 1 W/
S . : L : S Haynt Walk Mews
/ | | ~ 1 ¥
/ | KITCHEN/DINING \ LIVING ROOM ' GUEST - -, RECEPTION/LOUNGE | |
4 N ! | I 'BATHROOM / | D N | \‘
| | | | H | /
i | | | L | | |
! l : ! | | .
! | | St ] I |
: : : : B |
Il " ; >~ | " I
| i ! | |
! [ | [
l : : :
|

WATER TANK ASSEMBLY

TYPICAL CROSS SECTION (HOUSE NOS.1-6) - PROPOSED SUSTAINABILTY CONCEPT DIAGRAM

WATER ATTENUATION

SCALE 1:50

SCALE 1: 50 | |

.

[ ORIGINAL SIZE 75MM ]

Notes

DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING.

ALL DIMENSIONS TO BE VERIFIED ON SITE BY CONTRACTOR
PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF ANY SHOP DRAWINGS AND
ANY WORK ON SITE.

REPORTALL DISCREPENCIES TO THE ARCHITECT IMMEDIATELY.
THIS DRAWING IS TO BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH ALL
RELATED ARCHITECT/ENGINEERS DRAWINGS / DETAILS AND
ALL OTHER RELEVANT INFORMATION.

KEY PLAN

Q

READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS
DESIGN AND DETAILS

I
/T
1]
1
I
L1

Existing structure retained
Existing structure to be removed
Existing RC concrete structure
New structure

New wall linings

New Brickwork
New Blockwork 7Kn lightweight thermal standard

New Reinforced Concrete

New Acoustic Partition or lining to AD:E1 and 2, Table 1b
43 dB Airborne

New internal partition to 1/2 hour fire resitance and
insulation standard

—_——— Foul Drainage above ground

< —---—+% Foul Drainage below ground

Surface water Drainage above ground
Surface water Drainage below ground
Combined Drainage above ground
Combined Drainage below ground
Existing Radiators

Emergency Exit Sign to BS 5499-1:2002
30min Fire Rated construction

60min Fire Rated construction

Dry Riser

DG.01 Door reference

WG.01 Window reference

SFI Saintary fitting reference

LG/F1 Fixture and/or Fitting reference

DG..../SC Self Closing FD30/60s door with self closer
DG..../KLS Self Closing FD30/60s door to be kept locked shut
- Escape direction

KEY TO SERVICES

Recessed Ceiling LV ‘ Heat Detec
® Downlight C, feat Detector
©  \Wall Securiy Sensor &
® Pendant Light Motion Detector Light
F®  intemal Wall Lights 8 sunction Box
o fuse Fuse spur switch
® Downlights
TV Coax Sky compatible
Table lights
HD Coax
H®  External Wall Lights Cat6é
[  Isolator switch Security Keypad
Gang Dimmer Light
Single switched socket oo e N
[XX] Double switched socket ©=— LED Stip Lighting
X 6:9 Smoke Detector
B 4 x Double Sockets
UH wall thermostatic
Alarm Panel control unit
Light switch — ;’;ﬂn[;’a‘"age below
Dimmer Light switch —p  Combined Drainage
5Amp. below ground
WA New Radiators
New Extract Fan Blank Plate
Thermostat Recessed Light Fitting
]
Video Entry System ® Bulk Head Light
Central Vacuum outlet [BO7  Alarm Box at High Level
Speaker Switch Audio v Telephone point

-
Ny

Sound Settings Fresh Air Grill

Fire Detector Outdoor Speaker
Motion Sensor Panic Button
Sounder (security) Steam Controls
In-Seat Wall Lights

Low Voltage Light
Converters

Data Chute

Extract Fan + Isolator T

LED Downlights

Fan Coil
Fuseboards
Coaxial Socket
Cat6

Ceiling Speaker
Fan Coil Grill

Shaver / electric toothbrush
socket / hair dryer

“BEZ) 08B -<EAEHOOS »&

Domestic Sprinkler Mist System
head

.n
3
Q
)

Air Source Heat Pump

I
5

Eise B (REEREAY

COLOUR CODE FOR SERVICES

PROPOSED [ ] EXISTING []

Planning Set
(General Arangement)

REMOVED [ ]

Revisions

®EEE)

14.05.22 Rev. A - General Amendments

18.07.22 Rev. B - Neighbourig No.62 site area added.
House Nos increased to 7 units. General Amendments

24.02.23 Rev. C - Proposed scheme has been redesigned
based on pre-application advice received on 20/02/23.
General Revision

20.04.23 Rev. D - Roof gables changed to hip Solar Roofs
General Revision

EXISTING SITE AREA = 1786m2

Client

LINCOLN ASSET HOLDINGS LTD.

Project

58-62 Haynt Walk Mews
Raynes Park
SW20 9NX

Drawing Title

Proposed Sectional Side Elevations
and Typical House Cross Section Detail

Scale Date.
175 @A1 1:150 @ A3 ‘ ‘ Apr. 2022
[ 3
Architectural & Design Consultants
Studio A, 32 Murray Road, Richmond, Surrey TW10 7QG
ademir@volumethree.com
T: 020 8 332 2332
N J
Job No. Drawing No.

HWM/3213

3213 BR-107D

(©) 2023 Copyright VaA )




(U
Planning
gl M@L@S 01856 898 022

www.UKPIlanningMaps.com

168853

168803

%

168753

524252
524302
524352

Produced on 08 April 2022 from the Ordnance Survey National Geographic Database and incorporating surveyed revision available at this date.
This map shows the area bounded by 524252 168753,524352 168753,524352 168853,524252 168853,524252 168753

Reproduction in whole or part is prohibited without the prior permission of Ordnance Survey.

Crown copyright 2022. Supplied by copla Itd trading as UKPlanningMaps.com a licensed Ordnance Survey partner (100054135).

Data licence expires 08 April 2023. Unique plan reference: v1c//780744/1056012

10 0 10 20 30 40 50

SITE LOCATION PLAN
58-62 HAYNT WALK - RAYNES PARK SW20 9NX

DWG NO. 3213-100 SCALE 1:1250

© Crown Copyright and database rights 2022 OS 100019980

Page 71



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 6

PLANNING APPLICATIONS COMMITTEE
25 APRIL 2024

CASE OFFICER REPORT

APPLICATION NO. DATE VALID

24/P0137 25/01/2024

Site Address: 11 Streatham Road, Mitcham, CR4 2AD

Ward: Figges Marsh

Proposal: APPLICATION FOR THE CONVERSION OF
DWELLINGHOUSE (C3) INTO AN 5 BEDROOM, 5
PERSON HMO (C4) INCLUDING NEW FRONT
BOUNDARY WALL WITH INTEGRATED REFUSE
STORE, CYCLE STORAGE AND ASSOCIATED
WORKS.

Drawing Nos: See condition 2

Contact Officer: Lan Pham (020 8545 4292)

RECOMMENDATION

GRANT Planning permission subject to conditions

CHECKLIST INFORMATION

Is a screening opinion required No

Is an Environmental Statement required No

Press notice No
Site notice Yes
Design Review Panel consulted No
Number of neighbours consulted 5
External consultations Yes
Internal consultations Yes
Controlled Parking Zone No
Conservation Area No
Archaeological Priority Zone No

Page 73



2.11

21.2

Public Transport Accessibility Rating 4

Tree Protection Orders No

1.

INTRODUCTION

This application is being brought to the Planning Applications Committee at the
request of Councillor Natasha Irons. The application is subject to a requirement
for planning permission because the site is in an area where the article 4
directions has removed the permitted development rights for the conversion of
homes (Use Class C3) to HMO (Use Class C4), therefore the proposal is subject
to a requirement for planning permission.

SITE AND SURROUNDINGS

The application site comprises a two-storey semi-detached dwelling located on
the south-eastern side of Streatham Road. The property does benefit from a
single storey rear extension and a single storey rear detached garage/outbuilding
on the eastern border of the site. The site already been converted into a 6-bed
6-person HMO, however as the application site is located within the Figge’s
marsh ward of the Borough, the article 4 direction removed permitted
development rights and therefore planning permission is required.

9 Streatham Road is located west of the site and forms the partnering property
of the semi-detached property. The property is currently operating as a dentist,
benefiting from a two-storey side and a part two part single storey rear
extensions.

To the east of the application site is 13 Streatham Road, which benefits from a
single storey rear garage/outbuilding, access from the shared access with the
site.

The site is not located within a conservation area nor is it in anyway listed. The
site is not located within a controlled parking zone and has a public transport
accessibility level (PTAL) of 4 (0 being the lowest and 6b being the best).

The site is within Flood Zone 1 but is within an area at risk of ground water
flooding, as detailed in the Council’s Strategic Flood Risk Assessment.

The application site is located within the Article 4 Direction area which was
introduced in November 2022 which removed permitted development rights for
the conversion of homes (Use Class C3) to small houses in multiple occupation
(Use Class C4) in seven wards in Merton:

Colliers Wood
Cricket Green
Figge’'s Marsh
Graveney
Lavender Fields
Longthornton
Pollards Hill

Page 74



3.1.1

3.1.2

3.1.4
3.1.5

3.1.7

411

3.

CURRENT PROPOSAL

The proposal is for the conversion of dwellinghouse (C3) into an 5 bedroom, 5
person HMO (C4) including new front boundary wall with integrated refuse
store, cycle storage and associated works.

On the ground floor there would be three single occupancy ensuite bedrooms
and a communal kitchen/dining room, providing access to the rear garden.

The first floor would have two single occupancy ensuite bedrooms and a
kitchen.

There are no additions proposed to the building through this application.

Accommodation
Bedroom No. of Gross Council min | Compliant
occupants internal area | SPD
(GIA-m2) standard
1 1 10.71 7.5 Yes
2 1 10.31 7.5 Yes
3 1 10.2 7.5 Yes
4 1 12.98 7.5 Yes
5 1 10.71 7.5 Yes
Shared Kitchen 5 16.85+12.13 | 15 Yes

Habitable Rooms total: 5

A new bin store area to the frontage of the site will be added as part of the new
boundary wall enclosure. An enclosed cycle store has been moved to the rear
garden area.

Internal waste has also been identified at the request of the chair of planning
committee.

HISTORY

The previous planning application, 23/P2062 sought planning permission for the
conversion of the property into a 6 bed, 6 person HMO. However, that application
was refused on the 24" of October 2023 for the following reasons:

- The proposals by reason of unsatisfactory layout and substandard size
and absence of windows to the main communal spaces of the property,
specifically the kitchen, would create a poor standard of internal
environment for occupiers of the C4 HMO. The proposal would
therefore be contrary to polices DM D2 of the Sites and Policies Plan
2014, and policies CS 8, CS9 and CS14 within the Council's Adopted
Core Strategy 2011

- The proposals by reason of lack of satisfactory layout/access to
external amenity space to meet the likely needs of future occupiers the
scheme the proposal would fail to provide an acceptable standard of
accommodation and living space resulting in a cramped and

Page 75



unsatisfactory standard of accommodation to the detriment of the
amenities of future occupiers of the HMO. The proposal would
therefore be contrary to policies London Plan 2021 policy D6, CS 9 &
CS.14 in the Merton Core Strategy 2011, Policy DM D2 of the Merton
Sites and Policies Plan 2014

- In the absence of an air quality statement, the applicant has failed to
demonstrate that the development would be air quality neutral, thereby
failing to comply with policy S1 of the London Plan 2021.

- In the absence of a site specific flood risk assessment commensurate
to the nature and scale of the development the scheme is considered
to increase risk of flooding in the locality contrary to the aims and
objections of, in particular, London Plan policy S| 13, Merton Core
Strategy (2011) policy CS16 and Merton Sites and Policies Plan (2014)
policies DM F1 and DM F2.

41.2 The application before members of the planning committee is for a HMO with
one less bedroom, so a 5 bed, 5 person HMO. The reduction in the number of
bedrooms and a change of internal layout has sought to overcome the refusal
reasons relating to 23/P2062. Details will be discussed later in the report.

5. CONSULTATION

5.1 Consultation letters were sent to 5 neighbouring properties and a site notice was
posted. 4 objections were received with the following points:

5.1.1 Increased Population Density

- Exacerbating issues relating to parking, waste disposal and overall
detriment to the residential character and amenities

- Despite the reduction from the previous application this does little to
reduce the increase in population density/ the number of people living in
this part of the street in the conversion of a family house to an HMO with
five separate rooms for five individuals, who may themselves share that
accommodation with others.

- There is no guarantee that the ‘single’ rooms will not accommodate up to
ten people in total. We consider this to be an overconcentration
‘detrimental to residential character and amenity' which will lead to
pressure on parking, waste disposal and other issues.

51.2 Infrastructure Strain

- Including risk to drainage and wastewater systems through overuse by
numbers of individuals it was not designed to cope with.

- Old pipes that have been blocked
5.1.3 Excessive Proliferation of HMOs
- Undermining the residential character of the area

- There is already an over proliferation of HMOs in the area and in our

Page 76



personal experience we have noted the growth in the conversation of
family homes to HMOs. As above, we cannot see how this supports the
‘residential character’ of the area

5.1.4 Precedent for Unregulated Development

Giving developers the green light to convert family homes into HMOs with
minimal scrutiny, oversight, or community consultation, potentially
bypassing existing planning and enforcement standards.

5.1.5 Inappropriate Use and Management of Premises

Raising serious concerns about a host of issues including antisocial
behaviour, property damage, noise disturbances, child safeguarding, and
the suitability of the existing HMO structure for housing vulnerable children
without a current licence to operate this business or scrutiny from
regulatory bodies.

Numerous call-outs to and attendance by police and ambulance services
to deal with ongoing issues in recent months suggest much public funding
is currently being wasted.

After the last few months, the neighbourhood is on edge, and we are
apprehensive that these patterns will be repeated over the coming years
through an unregulated and unmanaged business operating in our
community whatever the character of the occupancy.

Police have knocked on neighbour properties in regards to a resident of
no.11 about a missing teen.

Since September 2023 there has been a 14-year-old girl with behavioural
and emotional challenges being kept at the house under supervision of
Melburay staff. She has escaped twice and is currently still at large. The
local Police and Ambulance Service have attended the property on
numerous occasions to deal with anti-social behaviour such as breaking
of windows and smashing up of furniture by the incumbent.

11 Streatham is currently leased out to Yellowstone Healthcare Ltd, a
private commercial company which has subcontracted, we believe, to
Melburay Healthcare for use as a ‘half-way house’ medical facility for
rehabilitation into the community of young patients who may be suffering
from various kinds of mental and emotional disorder and ill-health or be in
the later stages of addiction recovery

5.1.6 Anti-Social Behaviour and Crime

We have caught on video and in person a number of intruders coming
down our driveways by day and night to urinate near the shared garages
or on one occasion, we suspected, to shoot up with drugs though that
individual was disturbed before she could evidence what we understood
to be her intention.

We are concerned that there is an environment of anti-social behaviour
centred on this stretch of the road which this development does not help
reduce. We note that there have been calls for an updated planning

Page 77



5.1.7

5.2

5.2.9

5.2.10

Waste

Trees

condition relevant to Designing out Crime and question whether a Design
Out Crime survey in consultation with the local Police, whose time is
constantly being wasted by the above-mentioned activity, has been
considered with this development given what has taken place over recent
months. As things stand on this issue, we see this unwelcome
development as a clear risk for the future.

The approach to waste disposal by the occupants of 11 Streatham also
gives rise for concern. There are a number of bins on the forecourt but a
very large amount of general rubbish is produced by the occupants weekly
and it has taken months to try and get Melburay staff to deal with recycling
appropriately, putting different materials into the correct containers
despite active support from neighbours.

This week there were plastic bags and containers of rotting food all over
the shared drive with 13 Streatham Road where bin men (or animals) had
tipped out contents of food from waste containers which of course should
not contain plastic. This will of course attract foxes, rats and other vermin.
Rubbish of all types is often strewn round the site from overloaded bins
giving the front garden area the flavour of a rubbish tip and of dereliction,
encouraging anti-social activity.

There is a huge black poplar tree in the rear garden which we estimate as
in excess of 25 metres (80 ft) tall, perhaps taller. This tree dominates the
rear aspect of all our properties in this section of the neighbourhood and
is a haven for birds and wildlife. Another smaller tree, a sycamore, on the
boundary fence with #9 was cut down at an early stage of the development
work, along with every other shrub and plant in the rear garden which is
now entirely laid out with artificial turf. These trees are clearly shown on
the Flood Risk Assessment report by Stone and Brick Solutions from
which the photo below is extracted. The tree in question is the one nearest
the bottom edge of the picture. The tree next to it nearer the house was
the one cut down by builders in 2022. The tree at the front of the house
nearest to the street still survives.

Internal Consultees:

LBM Waste Services

The dwellings would be on the alternate weekly wheeled bin service, collection
service the same as those neighbouring properties on Streatham Road.

The bin storage they suggested would be confirmed following the successful
application for an HMO certificate.

LBM Highway Officer

Recommended Conditions — H9, INF9 AND INF12

Page 78



6. POLICY CONTEXT

List of relevant planning policies

National Planning Policy Framework (2023)

Chapter 5 Delivering a sufficient supply of homes
Chapter 8 Promoting healthy and safe communities
Chapter 9 Promoting sustainable transport

Chapter 11 Making effective use of land

Chapter 12 Achieving well-designed places

London Plan 2021

Policy D3 Optimising site capacity through the design-led approach
Policy D4 Delivering good design

Policy D5 Inclusive design

Policy D6 Housing quality and standards

Policy D7 Accessible housing

Policy H9 Ensuring the best use of stock

Policy H10 Housing size mix

Policy SI 12 Flood risk management

Policy T4 Assessing and mitigating transport impacts
Policy T5 Cycling

Policy T6 Car parking

Policy T6.1 Residential parking

Merton Core Strateqgy (2011)

Policy CS 8 Housing Choice

Policy CS 9 Housing Provision

Policy CS 16 Flood Risk Management

Policy CS 17 Waste Management

Policy CS 18 Active Transport

Policy CS 20 Parking, Servicing and Delivery

Merton Sites and Policies Plan (2014)

DM H2 Housing mix

DM H3 Support for affordable housing

DM H5 Student housing, other housing with shared facilities and bedsits
DM D1 Urban design and the public realm

DM D2 Design considerations in all developments

DM T1 Support for sustainable transport and active travel

DM T2 Transport impacts of development

Page 79



7.1.1

7.2
7.2.2

7.2.3

7.2.4

7.2.5

7.

e DM T3 Car parking and servicing standards

Other quidance:

e London Housing SPG - 2023

e London Character and Context SPG - 2014

e London Borough of Merton Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMO)
Requirements (Revised July 2021)

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS

The principal planning considerations in this case relate to the impact that the
proposed development would have on the existing building, the character of the
local area, the impact that it would have on the amenity of neighbouring residents
and future occupiers.

Principle of development

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 states that
when determining a planning application, regard is to be had to the development
plan, and the determination shall be made in accordance with the development
plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

Policy CS 8 states that the Council will seek the provision of a mix of housing
types, sizes and tenures at a local level to meet the needs of all sectors of the
community. This includes the provision of family sized and smaller housing units,
provision for those unable to compete financially in the housing market sector
and for those with special needs. Property managed and regulated Houses in
Multiple Occupation can offer good quality affordable accommodation to people
who cannot afford to buy their own homes and are not eligible for social housing.

Policy H9 of the London Plan notes that HMO accommodation is a strategically
important element of London’s housing offer although it does acknowledge that
it's quality can give rise to concern. In terms of the standard of accommodation
for the HMO, this is largely addressed under Licencing requirements as opposed
to through the planning system.

History

Members will note within the planning history section of this report that the
applicant applied for a 6 bedroom, 6 person HMO under a full planning
permission but this was refused (refusal reasons below and how the scheme,
before members, has overcome those reasons). The application before the
members of the planning committee has been assessed on 5 bedrooms which
are single bedrooms in terms of size and therefore designed for 1 occupant per
bedroom, so a total of 5 persons. The level of occupancy would be set out in the
decision notice and controlled via a planning condition. Should the applicant wish
to increase the number of persons within the HMO this would be subject of a
separate application and assessed on its own merits.

Previously refused application.

Page 80



7.2.6

7.2.7

Officers consider that the proposed scheme has fully addressed all the previous
refusal reasons (reason underlined). Note, the refusal reasons relating to
previous application was for a 6 bed, 6 person HMO, current application has
reduced number of bedrooms to 5 bed, 5 person HMO.

The proposals by reason of unsatisfactory layout and substandard size
and absence of windows to the main communal spaces of the property,
specifically the kitchen, would create a poor standard of internal
environment for occupiers of the C4 HMO. The proposal would therefore
be contrary to polices DM D2 of the Sites and Policies Plan 2014, and
policies CS 8, CS9 and CS14 within the Council's Adopted Core Strategy
2011.

Officer comment — Room changed at ground floor to dinning/kitchen space with
windows. All rooms meet space standards and all residents have direct access
to rear garden.

The proposals by reason of lack of satisfactory layout/access to external
amenity space to meet the likely needs of future occupiers the scheme
the proposal would fail to provide an acceptable standard of
accommodation and living space resulting in a cramped and
unsatisfactory standard of accommodation to the detriment of the
amenities of future occupiers of the HMO. The proposal would therefore
be contrary to policies London Plan 2021 policy D6, CS 9 & CS.14 in the
Merton Core Strategy 2011, Policy DM D2 of the Merton Sites and
Policies Plan 2014

Officer comment — See above

In the absence of an air quality statement, the applicant has failed to
demonstrate that the development would be air quality neutral, thereby
failing to comply with policy S1 of the London Plan 2021.

Officer comment — Provided

In the absence of a site specific flood risk assessment commensurate to
the nature and scale of the development the scheme is considered to
increase risk of flooding in the locality contrary to the aims and objections
of, in particular, London Plan policy S| 13, Merton Core Strategy (2011)
policy CS16 and Merton Sites and Policies Plan (2014) policies DM F1
and DM F2.

Officer comment — Provided

The applicant has removed one of the bedrooms (marked as X) and made into a living
space (solves the previous refusal). Officers have also secured amended plans to
ensure the tree in the front garden is retained, bin store to form part of front boundary
wall and moved cycle store to rear garden.

Page 81



7.3
7.3.8

7.3.9

o e
Erapored Sihe Fan
WL T

Change of use

The proposal has received representations involving the use of the site as a care
facility rather than a standard HMO. The applicants agent has been contacted
for further clarification; the applicant has provided the following statement:

The site is a standard HMO with 5 unrelated individuals living in the
property as their only or main residence, who share basic amenities such
as a kitchen, toilet or bathroom.

Occupants will not require any support or staff being present on site or
staff members sleeping within the accommodation to assist other
occupants.

Firstly, the sourcing of tenantsincludes rigorous testing and
investigations. This means that tenants will be well behaved people.
Secondly, any antisocial behaviour will be dealt with promptly and the
tenants will be held to account.

The development description has also included that the site would be for
5-bedrooms 5 persons as agreed upon with the applicant’s agent

Officers have sought clarification from the applicant on this point on a number of
occasions given the content of the objections raised. As set out above, the
applicant has clearly stated that the proposed use is for a standard HMO with no
care facilities or staff being present. They have also stated that they will take
action to limit and resolve any antisocial tenants/behaviour incidents should they

Page 82



7.3.10

7.4
7.4.11

7.5
7.5.12

occur. Members must note that as part of the planning application process,
officers can only assess an application with the information as submitted and
assess material planning consideration in accordance with adopted planning
policies of the land (unless material planning considerations state otherwise).
The behaviour of existing or future tenants, whether good or bad, is not a
planning consideration to consider as there is no meaningful way to make that
judgment (for example not all HMO tenants are bad). The matter of antisocial
behaviour is however covered by the Councils Housing Department when issuing
an HMO licence (separate process from planning). The Councils licensing officer
has confirmed that as part of any licence agreement, the following conditions
apply (note — this forms part of the licence agreement currently at 11 Streatham
Road):

“The License holder must deal with anti-social behaviour within the
premises under the terms of the Tenancy Agreement”

&

“The Licence holder or Manager must notify the Council and the Police of
any anti-social behaviour outside the building and must work with them to
eliminate it”.

The proposed HMO only requires planning permission due to the existing Article
4 direction in the area. Whilst the article 4 direction does not prevent HMO
accommodation, it allows the Council to assess HMO standards if the site is
located within one of the 7 wards in Merton where the article 4 direction is active.
Therefore, officers have the ability to assess the quality of the HMO as part of a
formal planning application. Any planning approval can therefore be subject of
planning conditions. In this instance, a planning condition stating that permission
relates to a 5 bedroom, 5 person HMO would ensure that the development must
be carried out in accordance with the approved plans and any conditions. In this
instance, the proposed plans and submission of material from the applicant has
confirmed that the proposed is for a standard HMO with 5 bedroom and for 5
persons. It must be noted that any breaches of planning controls can be subject
of enforcement action.

Impact on existing building

The proposals do not involve any additions to the existing building. The additional
facilities that would be required, namely the cycle storage, would be
accommodated in the rear garden and the refuse store would be to the forecourt
from where there is direct access out to Streatham Road. Consequently, it is
considered that the impact on the appearance of the existing building would be
minimal.

Impact on the character of the area

The NPPF, London Plan policies D3 and D4, Core Strategy policy CS 14 and
SPP Policy DM D2 require well designed proposals which make a positive
contribution to the public realm, are of the highest quality materials and design
and which are appropriate in their context. Thus, development proposals must
respect the appearance, materials, scale, bulk, proportions and character of their

Page 83



7.5.13

7.5.14

7.5.15

7.5.16

surroundings

Policy DM H5 of the Site and Policies (July 2014) aims to create socially mixed
communities, catering for all sectors of the community by providing a choice of
housing with respect to dwelling size and type in the borough. The policy states
that Houses in Multiple Occupation Housing will be supported provided that the
following criteria are met:

The proposal will not involve the loss of permanent housing;

Officer comment

The current lawful use of the existing application property is as a single
dwelling A house in multiple occupation is a form of permanent housing
where occupants have their own bedrooms, have access to shared
facilities and take care of their own everyday needs. Paragraph 2.59 in
the Supporting text to the policy also states that short stay
accommodation is intended for occupancy of less than 90 days. The
proposal is therefore, considered acceptable in regard to this criteria.

The proposal will not compromise the capacity to meet the supply of land

for additional self-contained homes;

Officer comment

The current application involves the use of existing building and will
therefore not compromise any capacity to meet the supply of land for
additional self-contained homes.

The proposal meets an identified local need;

Officer comment

HMO accommodation is considered to be a viable source of housing for
many people, which can meet personal preferences (short term
accommodation for example) and provides a source of accommodation
for those with restricted options for other types of housing. The Councils
Housing Stock Condition and Stressors Report September 2022 states
that:

“Shared HMOs tend to be the cheapest form of private housing
available and have traditionally been occupied by single adults,
however in recent years many more couples and children reside
in HMOs. Pressure on affordable housing and higher rates of
homelessness has driven demand for this type of dwelling”.

The Councils Housing Delivery Strategy 2022-2027 highlights the
difficulty for people to secure housing:

Page 84



7.517

7.5.18

“...the high costs of private renting and house purchase relative
to local incomes is the main barrier to securing a suitable home
for many households. While demand is met effectively by the
market for many, this is not the case for households at or below
median income levels. Improving affordability is therefore a key
goal and the priorities and actions identified in this document
place a strong emphasis on homes at social or London Affordable
Rent levels and delivery of a higher proportion of these than is
currently achieved. Market and intermediate options will also be
needed but, to some extent at least, the former will be delivered
without the need for significant intervention and delivery of the
latter is already at an acceptable level. The key question,
therefore, is what the council can do, alone and in partnership, to
shift delivery in a direction more attuned to local needs and local
incomes.

While not directly a matter for this exercise, there is a need to
identify the groups that new supply aims to assist. In the short
term it will not be possible to meet all needs, so it will be
necessary to prioritise and to explain the basis for decisions”

HMOQO’s are not technically affordable housing, in planning policy terms, it
nevertheless in reality provides a more affordable form of accommodation for
many people. Whilst the Council are actively looking at increasing affordable
housing in the Borough through both planning policy (new local plan) and direct
delivery (in partnership), it is unlikely to fulfil all the demand for such housing.
Therefore, other types of affordable accommodation still have an important role
in meeting housing demand. In this instance, officers consider that the proposed
HMO accommodation meets an identified local need.

The proposal will not result in an overconcentration of similar uses
detrimental to residential character and amenity;

Officer comment

It is noted that Councillor Natasha Irons has raised concerns relating to
The over proliferation of HMOs in the Figge’s Marsh ward and the anti-
social behaviour and use of property

In relation to the number of registered HMOs in the area in the CR4 2- -
postcode area there are 81 registered HMOs, this would cover both the
Figge's Marsh and Graveney wards. In Streatham Road there are 13
properties that are registered HMOs including the proposed site (see
map below showing some HMO's close to the application site — black dot
represents the application site — red dot represents other registered
HMO properties).

Page 85



Garringe Park
Primary School

HMOQO'’s in the area

Streatham Road (13)

11 Streatham Road

14 Streatham Road

37 Streatham Road

51 Streatham Road

66 Streatham Road

72 Streatham Road

104 Streatham Road

130 Streatham Road

198 Streatham Road

Flat 1, 205A Streatham Road
205 Streatham Road

Jubilee Guest House, 219A Streatham Road
249 Streatham Road

Graham Avenue (1)
e 56 Graham Avenue

Graham Road - None

Page 86



In addition, the Councils Houses in Multiple Occupation Planning
Guidance Supplementary Planning Document 2023 (not yet adopted)
sets out examples of where HMO accommodation is suitable and not,
this assessment is known as the Sandwich Test.

The Sandwich Test (paragraph 6.3 — 6.4)

6.3 Where C3 residential properties are sandwiched between two
HMOs, issues commonly associated with HMOs regarding disturbance
and impact on amenity can be intensified. This test ensures there is a
balance of dwellings and prevents the potential for negative impacts
upon existing dwellings. Planning permission would not be granted
where the introduction of a new HMO would result in an existing
residential property (C3) being sandwiched by any adjoining HMOs on
both sides.

6.4 The diagrams below indicate how this principle would be applied.

=n:|.p-c:=:~r- w0 m

Samimg HLKL .

In the example above the proposed HMO {at number 22) would resull in a
neighbouring nan-HMO property (number 20} being sandwiched between teo HMOs.

Page 87



In the example above the proposed HMO (at number 18) would not result in a non-
HMD property being directly sandwiched between Iwo HMOs. This woulo be

accnplabln 0 principls.

s >3]
--\'\-\. '}
‘x\f /
I B - - g -
== - -

B g

In the example above the proposed HMO would result in a row of three HMOs, This

LI i

Page 88



Frepesed WAl [

tambimg HREKI E

In the example above, whilst the proposed HMOD (a1 number 28] would resull in a
row of three consecutive HMDs, 1he property is sandwiched between Iwo existing
HMOs. It is considered that allowing this property to converd to a HMO would solve
an existing prablem of a single home being sandwiched between two HMOs, This

7.5.19 The proposed HMO would not result in any properties being sandwich as
demonstrated from the sandwich test as set out above (single house adjoining
and dentist on the other half of the semi-detached property). In addition, there
are at least 265 properties in Streatham Road, this would only be the 13" HMO
in Streatham Road, which in comparison to the overall number of properties in
Streatham Road is relevantly low (HMO’s around 5% of the housing type in this
road). As a result of the proposed development, the majority of the housing stock
in this area would remain as single family houses. Therefore, whilst officers
acknowledge that the local community have raised concerns with HMO
accommodation, officers consider that permission cannot be reasonably refused
on overconcentration and impact on residential character and amenity grounds.

7.5.20 The proposal complies with all relevant standards;

Officer comment

The proposal complies with relevant standards including those set out in
the London Borough of Merton Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMO)
Requirements (Revised July 2021)

7.5.21 The proposal is fully integrated into the residential surroundings;

Officer comment

Page 89



7.6
7.6.22

7.6.23

7.6.24

7.6.25

The current application does not include any external alterations other
than cycle parking and bin storage. It is therefore considered that the
proposal is fully integrated into the residential surroundings.

Impact upon neighbouring amenity

Planning policy CS policy 14 of Merton’s Core Planning Strategy and policy DM
D2 of Merton’s Sites and Policies Plan seek to ensure new developments does
not unacceptably impact on the amenities of the occupiers of any adjoining and
nearby surrounding properties. Planning policy DM D2 (Design considerations in
all developments) states that amongst other planning considerations that
proposals will be expected to ensure provision of appropriate levels of sunlight
and daylight, quality of living conditions, amenity space and privacy, to both
proposed and adjoining buildings and gardens.

Policy DM EP2 (Reducing and mitigating noise) states that development which
would have a significant effect on existing or future occupiers or local amenity
due to noise or vibration will not be permitted unless the potential noise problems
can be overcome by suitable mitigation measures.

Noise & Disturbance

During the consultation period, objections have been received that raise
concerns with antisocial behaviour occurring at the property. It has been claimed
that the property has been used as a care facility. As set out above, officers have
sought clarification from the applicant about the proposed use. The application
has confirmed the following:

e The proposed HMO, will be a standard HMO with 5 unrelated individuals
living in the property as their only or main residence, who share basic
amenities such as a kitchen, toilet or bathroom.

e Occupants will not require any support or staff being present on site or
staff members sleeping within the accommodation to assist other
occupants.

e Firstly, the sourcing of tenantsincludes rigorous testing and
investigations. This means that tenants will be well behaved people.
Secondly, any antisocial behaviour will be dealt with promptly and the
tenants will be held to account.

Officers acknowledge that HMO accommodation can sometimes generate
disturbance to neighbours (evidence shows Merton received more complaints
from HMO accommodation than other sources of housing), but this would
depend on the individuals creating that disturbance. However, this can also be
true for other types of housing, including single family homes. Given the variables
in tenants behaviour (some good, some bad) from a planning perspective,
officers cannot reasonably refuse planning permission on these grounds. At the
time of writing, officers understand that there have been no recent incidents.
Should this not be true or there are continued incidents of antisocial behaviour,
then the Council would require evidence to be gathered and presented to the

Page 90



7.6.26

7.6.27
7.6.28

7.6.29
7.6.30

7.7
7.7.31

7.7.32

Council Housing Department. As set out above, the terms of the HMO licence
include conditions relating to antisocial behaviour.

In this instance, the proposed HMO would pass the Sandwich Test as set out in
the report above, with the other half of the semi-detached property being a
commercial use (so no loss of amenity) and the other adjacent residential
property (13 Streatham Road) being separated by a side access (which provides
some level of separation from the application site). Considering all the above
factors, whilst officers have noted the concerns raised by neighbours and Clir
Irons, there would be very limited grounds to refuse planning permission.

9 Streatham Road — Figge’s Marsh Dental Practice

9 Streatham Road is located west of the site and forms the partnering property
of the semi-detached property. No extensions are proposed under the current
application. The only external alterations would include bin and cycle storage
facilities that would be located in the front and rear garden respectively. These
are modest structures and have been designed to respect the property and street
scene. Given the fact that this neighbour is commercial, there would be no loss
of amenity. In any event, the proposed development would have a limited impact
on this neighbour in terms of the physical changes proposed.

13 Streatham Road

13 Streatham Road is located east of the site, being separated from the
application site by a side access. No extensions are proposed under the current
application. The only external alterations would include bin and cycle storage
facilities that would be located in the front and rear garden respectively. These
are modest structures and have been designed to respect the property and street
scene. The proposed development would therefore have a limited impact on this
neighbour’s amenity in terms of the physical changes proposed.

Standard of accommodation

London Plan policy H9 notes that the quality of some HMO properties can be a
cause for concern whilst policy D3 requires that developments achieve indoor
and outdoor environments that are comfortable and inviting for people to use. As
noted above, certain standards of accommodation are addressed through the
requirement to licence an HMO.

In terms of the assessing the standard of accommodation, the Councils SPD
creates standards which go beyond Merton’s HMO Licencing department. In this
instance, single room letting with a shared kitchen and a shared
living/room/dinning room would require a bedroom area of at least 7.5sqm and a
kitchen area of at least 15sgm (3sgm per occupant). In this instance, each of the
bedrooms receives appropriate levels of light and outlook, all include ensuite
bathrooms and have a floor area of at least 10.2sgm. In addition, the shared
living spaces would include a 16.85m2 kitchen/dining area, on the ground floor
with direct access to a good-sized rear garden area and another 12.13sgm
kitchen at first floor level. As set out above/below, the proposed HMO meets
(exceeds) the Councils standards and is therefore considered to offer a good
standard of HMO accommodation (as witnessed by the case officer on his site
visit). The Council’s HMO officer also has confirmed no objection to the proposal

Page 91



7.8
7.8.33

7.8.34

as it would meet their requirements/standards (licence already permitted).

Tabili | - bilsnial Rozin Size Standeada

Single Raam Letlings
Where Ceohing amil Weahing
Faolibes are SHuated i the

Ruorm
Single Boam Lettngs wih
Shared Krchen

Single Haom Letlings
with Shared Krchen snd &
Shared Lvieg/ Dining Room

Twa Room Laltings
Comprining Cormined Living,!
Batsin antd Sesaiala
Hrirkan fnol Shered)]

Liraalar Than Tws Room
abirgs lnal Shared]

Mumbwr ol
{icoepanis
| Parson

2 Faiaors

1 Farson
2 Persan
Hirhan
| Farson
2 Permn
Krchen

| Farson

2 Farsoia

Eace Bed-com

Ewmch Kilchun

Each asdillonal

Rzam

13m2 o raarg

FL.EE ar mare

1022 & ar more
am2 o= rmare
E=? pee pmraom
ThAmd® o mare
11 22mf ar more
Imid pee parsen
1028 ar morg bor Uvingd Badroom
1.5l nr mare fer Kitchan

15m2 o irra lor leing hetdooem
T2 nor mose kilchen

V.5%mid* or more || per=on!
1032ZmE ar more {£ garsondG!

T e ep— Il parsonl

Ahend™ or miore |l perzan;

* Tre= requirameani= for = 1-per=cn room {0 schieee 1,5m i 0 sccordance veth London
Fan galicy 02 (UL This skandznd is fegher tham that cutined in ke Morion Liceesing
stamdards dorurmant. Al =landsres shauld be viewed as & mimmuo 2nd apclicsnts

shod laok o excesd them

Proposal

Bedroom No. of Gross Council min | Compliant

occupants internal area | SPD
(GIA-m2) standard

1 1 10.71 7.5 Yes

2 1 10.31 7.5 Yes

3 1 10.2 7.5 Yes

4 1 12.98 7.5 Yes

5 1 10.71 7.5 Yes
Shared Kitchen 5 1711 +125 |15 Yes

Refuse facilities

As set out in the Councils SPD, appropriate refuse storage must be provided for
developments in accordance with policy CS 17 of the Core Strategy. Emerging
Local Plan Policy W14.4 also supports the objectives of sustainable waste

management set out by the NPPF and London Plan.

London Plan Policies SI7 and SI8 also dictate that developments should include
adequate, flexible, and easily accessible storage space and collection systems
that support, as a minimum, the separate collection of dry recyclables (at least

card, paper, mixed plastics, metals, glass) and food.

Page 92




7.8.35 Applications for HMOs must clearly demonstrate that adequate space for waste
storage will be provided. The bin storage must be sufficient to meet the needs of
the future occupiers. Where adequate bin provision is not provided or has been
provided and is not used, enforcement notices under licensing can be served.

7.8.36 Applications should be accompanied by a site plan showing the location, size,
and type of bin store. The storage should be well integrated with the surrounding
property and street scene.

7.8.37 The provision of sufficient off-street storage ensures that bins are accessible and
do not obstruct footways, especially for people with mobility or mental health
problems that make it difficult to navigate obstacles, block accesses or
carriageways. Bins should be moved onto the front edge of the property on
collection days.

7.8.38 The number and type of bins appropriate for the occupancy level is listed below.
Where occupancy exceeds the numbers below, officer judgement for appropriate
bin provision will be used.

Bin Type HMO Occupancy Bin Slze/Mumber

4% occupants 1B0L wheelie bin per fortnight for Refuse

Mon-recyclable
nousehold waste

¥ occupants 240L wheelie bin per Fartnight for Refuse
i & T« occupants 24DL+180L wheeslia hins par fortnight for Refuse
8 & 9 occupanis Zx Z00L wheelie bins per fartmight for Refuse
Paper and Card 43 OCCUpants IB0L wheale bin per fortnight for paperfcard
% occupants 240L wheelie bin per forkmght for paperdcard

5

b & Tx occupants 240L wheelie bin per fortnight for paperscard

8 & Tx occupanis 3600 wheedie bin per fortneght for paperfcard

Recycling Boxes 4% actupants
#x BAL mixed recycling caddies par forinight

Sx occupants
b & Tx accupants
45 5L mived recyeling caddies per farinighd

B B %% occupanis

Food Waslae 4% aceupants
[Externall

The council also offer an eptional and chargeable, fortnightly colleciion service for
garden waste.

fx occupants
FAL caddies far food waste per week [provisian

& & Tx occupanta to be increased whare need is identified)

8 & 9% occupanis

Tahis 2- Bin Sizas

7.8.39 The proposed development would incorporate an enclosed bin store at the front

Page 93



7.9
7.9.40

7.9.41

7.9.42
7.9.43

7.9.44

7.9.45
7.9.46

7.9.47

7.10
7.10.48

of the property which would be designed into the front wall. This would ensure
that the bin enclosure is of a high standard and well integrated with the
surrounding property and street scene. The submitted plans show 2 x 240l
general waste and 2 x 240l recycling which would exceed (double) the standards
above for 5 persons. Further details of recycling boxes and food waste can be
submitted as part of a planning condition. In addition, the applicant has updated
their plans to show space within the unit for internal refuse storage. The Councils
Waste Officer has confirmed no objection and officers are therefore content that
the amount of refuse storage is appropriate for the intended number of
occupants.

Parking and Highways considerations

Planning Policy T1 (Strategic approach to transport) of the London Plan 2021
states that the delivery of the Mayor’s strategic target of 80 per cent of all trips in
London to be made by foot, cycle or public transport by 2041. All development
should make the most effective use of land, reflecting its connectivity and
accessibility by existing and future public transport, walking and cycling routes,
and ensure that any impacts on London’s transport networks and supporting
infrastructure are mitigated.

Planning Policy DM T2 (Transport impacts of development) of Merton’s Sites and
Policies Plans seeks to ensure that development is sustainable and has minimal
impact on the existing transport infrastructure and local environment.

Car Parking

The application site has an average level of accessibility to public transport with
a PTAL rating of 4. The application site is also not located in a Controlled Parking
Zone.

Therefore, in this instance, officers do not consider that a permit-free agreement
can be justified or enforced as there is no CPZ in place. Given the acceptable
scale of the development it is considered that there would be no harm to the local
highway network. Given the acceptable scale of the development it is considered
that there would be no harm to the local highway network.

Cycle Parking

Cycle storage is required for new development in accordance with London Plan
policy TS5 and table 10.2 and Core Strategy policy CS18. Cycle storage should
be secure, sheltered and adequately lit; for a 5-bedroom 5-persons HMO, 2 cycle
spaces would be required.

The London Cycling Design Standards Chapter 8 para.8.5.3 states that access
to cycle stores should be simple and should not be less than 1.2m in width. The
cycle area is accessed through side access to the rear garden, which
demonstrates that there is spaces for the cycle storage. It is considered that the
proposal would comply with this policy with 2 secure covered cycle spaces
provided at the rear of the property.

Flooding and site drainage

London Plan policy SI 13, CS policy CS16 and SPP policies DM F1 and DM F2
seek to minimise the impact of flooding on residents and the environment and

Page 94



7.10.49

7.10.50

7.10.51

7.1
7.11.52
7.11.53

7.11.54
712
7.12.55

8.1.1

9.1.1

promote the use of sustainable drainage systems to reduce the overall amount
of rainfall being discharged into the drainage system and reduce the borough’s
susceptibility to surface water flooding.

The site is within Flood Zone 1 (low probability of flooding) but is within an area
at risk from ground water flooding.

The application is accompanied by a Flood Risk Assessment, given that there
are no external alterations proposed to the site, there is limited opportunity to
implement SuDS.

The Flood Risk Assessment goes onto recommend that it is not required to
implement flood mitigation measures, given that the proposal will not chance the
impermeable footprint of the site post-development

Air Quality
The whole of Merton is an Air Quality Management Area (AQMA).

The application is accompanied by an Air Quality Assessment which sets out that
predicted pollutant levels were below the relevant criteria across the
development. As such, the site is considered suitable for the proposed end use
from an air quality perspective. Potential emissions from the proposals were
assessed in order to determine compliance with the air quality neutral
requirements of the London Plan. The building energy strategy does not produce
emissions to atmosphere. In addition, the proposals are predominantly car free
(only 2 spaces onsite). As such, the development was considered to be air quality
neutral. Based on the assessment results, air quality issues are not considered
a constraint to planning consent for the proposals.

The proposal is considered to be acceptable in terms of air quality.

Biodiversity

Policy G6 of the London Plan sets out that development proposals should
manage impacts on biodiversity and aim to secure net biodiversity gain. As no
physical changes are proposed, biodiversity gains are limited in this instance and
therefore no objection can be made.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT

The application does not constitute Schedule 1 or Schedule 2 development.
Accordingly, there are no requirements in terms of EIA submission.

CONCLUSION

It is considered that the proposed HMO would offer good quality affordable
accommodation to people who cannot afford to buy their own homes and may
not be eligible for social housing. Whilst there are other HMOs in the local area,
officers do not consider there to be an overconcentration of HMQO’s in the vicinity
and as such the prevailing character of the area remains single family houses
and flats.

Whilst officers have considered to the objections raised from neighbours and Clir

Page 95



10.1

10.

Irons in regards to disturbance from the existing HMO, the proposal would see a
reduction in the number of occupants from 6 to 5 and there would be no solid
grounds to refuse planning permission on potential disturbance.

The proposal involves no additions to the existing building and the refuse and
cycle facilities are considered to respect the host building, street scene and
neighbour amenity.

Officers consider that the proposal is acceptable in planning terms, subject to
conditions and therefore the recommendation is for approval.

RECOMMENDATION

GRANT planning permission subject to conditions:

1.

Comments of development (Full Permission) — The development to which
this permission relates shall be commenced not later than the expiration of 3
years from the date of this permission.

Reason: To comply with Section 91 (as amended) of the Town & Country
Planning Act 1990.

. Approved Plans - The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in

accordance with the following approved plans: Site location plan and
drawings SR.11.LP, SR.11.EX.PR.SP - Rev-B, SR.11.PR.01 - Rev-B,
SR.11.PR.02

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning

Refuse & Recycling (Details to be Submitted) - No development shall take
place until a scheme for the storage of refuse and recycling (including new
boundary wall) has been submitted in writing for approval to the Local
Planning Authority. No works which are the subject of this condition shall be
carried out until the scheme has been approved, and the development shall
not be occupied until the scheme has been approved and has been carried
out in full. Those facilities and measures shall thereafter be retained for use
at all times from the date of first occupation.

Reason: To ensure the provision of satisfactory facilities for the storage of
refuse and recycling material and to comply with the following Development
Plan policies for Merton: policies T4 and T7 of the London Plan 2021, policy
CS17 of Merton's Core Planning Strategy 2011 and policy DM D2 of Merton's
Sites and Policies Plan 2014.

. Cycle Parking to be implemented - The development hereby permitted shall

not be occupied until the cycle parking shown on the plans hereby approved
has been provided and made available for use. These facilities shall be
retained for the occupants of and visitors to the development at all times.

Reason: To ensure satisfactory facilities for cycle parking are provided and to
comply with the following Development Plan policies for Merton: policy T5 of
the London Plan 2021, policy CS18 of Merton's Core Planning Strategy 2011
and policy DM T1 of Merton's Sites and Policies Plan 20145 Bed/Person

Page 96



8.

HMO

No refuse or waste material of any description shall be left or stored
anywhere on the site except within the designated internal waste storage
area, or specified refuse enclosure.

Reason: To safeguard the appearance of the property and the amenities of
the area and to comply with policy DMD2 of Merton’s Sites and Policies Plan

2014

D11 Construction Times — No demolition, construction or conversion work
or ancillary activities such as deliveries shall take place before 8am or after
6pm Mondays - Fridays inclusive, before 8am or after 1pm on Saturdays or
at any time on Sundays or Bank Holidays.

Use - The property shall be solely occupied as a 5 bedroom 5 persons
House in Multiple Occupation (HMO) and for no other purposes within Use
Class C4 as specified in the schedule to the Town and Country Planning
(Use Classes) Order 1987, or in any provision revoking or re-enacting that
order, unless otherwise agreed in writing with the local planning authority.

Reason: To accord with terms of this application, safeguard local road and
parking conditions and residential amenity of nearby occupants and to comply
with policies D4 and T5 of the London Plan 2021, policies DM D2 and DM T1
of Merton's Sites and Policies Plan 2014

In accordance with paragraph 38 of the NPPF, The London Borough of
Merton (LBM) takes a positive and proactive approach to development
proposals focused on solutions. LBM works with applicants/agents in a
positive and proactive manner by:

i) Offering a pre-application advice and duty desk service.
ii) Where possible, suggesting solutions to secure a successful outcome.

iii) As appropriate, updating applicants/agents of any issues that may
arise in the processing of their application

Page 97



NORTHGATE SE GIS Print Template

This material has been reproduced from Ordnance Survey digital map data with the permission of the controller of Her
Majesty’s Stationery Office, © Crown Copyright.

Page 98



FIVOS

ybisH 400a - HA
ybisH buijied - HO

ybisaH mopuim - o

S3dLAN

ybraH jis - D

odsup|dibgojul

SNV1d [V
V.

zT2Rez 5292555
3755632 32323 8°%
09555380 3Fzeoz*8
3.9 2 00895049
F=nQe o X 350 asLs
~<o$m38m 239 o ==
pESg8ce ©2S F33
£8§8¢€=s58 §2 ;%%
S2dpF O 2o s @
o 59T T > O g
38O:c @ o 9 3
grg®3 s 3 &
# & 2 R
o @) —
=4 = 3
@l @ @ o4
— O
e | I =
nw I8l |10 w
o Ow = ~+
S |@ ] Tt ®
> A =
@ O
w D Q
o 3] A 3
N O
—_—
o
o o
2|®
>
w

100[{ puno.Jo

1004 3514

ueld Jooy

T30

=

£ NOO¥
T

NIAYVO dv3ad

% - ~§ 2= § \
U L’ -]§ * \
= I\\\\ = ::::: P z E § =
3 E i 2220 ELC @ =
=2 . 3 § Eﬁig E g\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\'
3 N S8 N N
LR
Av_. — . . —H L= H
2 P
2 3220
5 n=0
o ;g;g
3
B
=z &\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\ ijjjjgj \\\\\\\\\\ | S
| . -4
i : . =i}
vpy 2 / E 3%
! ) [ 1N z
| NN | I \ -
! II 5 i 2 N 0o
1 N I \ © N 00
OO E T T T \\\\\\\\\\
M I MMM
00

wbs ge7|
0092 H)

JLYNIWYT
S NOOY

=

m

frrrrrrrrrrsey

ST -

2.

0002 H(j

\
AR \\ N 7N
N
5L0 00F | =] § o
\ N
| \ \
I MMM T n ThTEHTHTTEHTTEETTTT D

11iNg SV

b

(%)
S
&
<K
=
3
g
SLOPING ROOR
S A
=
BING RO § SLOPING|ROQF
L LA EELE L LY FEE L LR LR LA Q- L L L
O O
oo

Page 99

— v,




00T abed

METRES
0

REAR GARDEN

My

I I
R

NANNNN

i

NN\

LIRIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIS

PSS

ILILIIIIIISIIIIIIISIIIIIISIIIINIS

LIVING ROOM
LAMINATE

LTI

L FRONT GARDEN

<

Ty | 12
N/

ol
S|

DINING ROOM
LAMINATE

|

§
\

NN

KITCHEN
LAMINATE

NN

Z)

H HERAANREIN

AN

SN

NN

Ground Floor

5

I E I .

SCALE

PRE-EXISTING

<
i IP

/ T

/ i

/ |

/ !

/
/ FLAT ROOF

/ i
/ | |

/ 1
/ I \
V) e V7 40—V 777

NN

AN

BEDROOM |

DI

i
LAMINATE é 7
, /
0 BEDROOM
e 'é LAMINATE /
iy .
BATHROOM ’//////////////////////////////////////////////
TILES ‘ "“ P g
> e
alis |
/l I!IIIIIIIII/// /
% Ve — g
/// v
= =
(EIN|
, %Eé I==

BEDROOM
LAMINATE

DAMMIDIDIIN
(aF.

AN

(22222, 022

v—

First Floor

C - Sill Height

F - Window Height
CH - Ceiling Height
DH - Door Height

g

AJd PLANS

info@a jplans.co

NOTES

The contractors are to
check all the
dimensions, levels,drain
runs and

general condition of the
site before works
commence.

All works are to be
carried out in
accordance with current
Building Regulations,
British Standards, Code
of Practice and Local
Authority Requirements.

<
g
!
| |
| |
|
ool
ool
SLOPING ROOF RING ROOF FLAT ROGF |
i
|
| |
<
Roof Plan
Project:

11 Streatham Road,
Mitcham, CR42AD

Tite:  pRE-EXISTING

Floor Plans
Pt 130623 [P 1400 @ A3
Dwg. No Rev:
SR.11.P-EX.01



AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
METRES

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
SLOPING ROOF

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
AJ PLANS    info@ajplans.co

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
TILES

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
DH: 2000

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
VOID

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
FLAT ROOF

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
SLOPING ROOF

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
SLOPING ROOF

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
SLOPING ROOF

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
SLOPING ROOF

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
SLOPING ROOF

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
LAMINATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
LAMINATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
TILES

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
LAMINATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
LAMINATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
LAMINATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
LAMINATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
TILES

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
TILES

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
FLAT ROOF


PROPOSED

L [}

1 e peen: R
IO = s~

- Loft Floor o | | _ LoftFloor  Loft Floor | ,
o e i 1 H
: Ry o i : R . : —H | First Floor . = m __ First Floor __ First Floor ... e : ,
CETE s e e EEE e (ElEneE=E e ——
xm>xw | | el g@@ : f_m,_nmto w mm ” | 2 DD _D
W R | e BRI U I = Mii,:,::,,f;m— e ,ﬁg_,ﬁu;‘, S
e e . o . |55 - Ground Floor = 3ie _Ground Floor  Ground Floor 1 | . : =
m dee = = T ®
. . | . | | . o)
Side Elevation Front Elevation | Rear Elevation 5
\\\\
\ LOFT
& S S ——— | _Loft Floor
KITCHEN 2 m ROOM Project:
' The contractors are to 11 Streatham Road,
m _ First Floor dimensions, levels,drain _/\_ H
. h e itcham, CR42AD
\\\\\ \ mm:mﬂw_noo:a:_o: of the
, ‘ m m mwm;wgmmﬁmmmio}m Title: _U_No _Uommo
| - Section and Elevations
: All works are to be
—Sm._lm mm REAR ! k carried out in
0 5 T ourd o Buiding Reauatons, |00 13.0623 > 1.100 @ A3
ot TR S T T e T T T T T A AR >— PLANS  srsh Standgaras, Cose ,
LﬂEﬂEﬂEﬂEﬂEﬂEﬂHﬂHﬂEﬂEﬂEﬂEﬂEﬂEﬂEﬂEﬂEﬂEﬂEﬂEﬂEﬂEﬂHﬂEHEHEHEHEHEHEHHHHHH,,,HEHEH,:HEHEHEH, ) of Practice and Local _U<<©. No. Rev:
r”r”r”r”r”_ , ms_noanwU_sz.no Authority Requirements. m_ﬂ\_ A _U_NON
Section A-A

SCALE




%%@; """ |
| |

T r’mR
>
E

SN

T

20T abed

D LI

AN

METRES
o) S

e L L

SCALE

WWW

<
>

ROOM 3

LAMINATE
CH: 2330
02sqm

PR
7z

REAR GARDEN

F:970

---------
' '

' '
.........

DINING

LAMINATE
CH: 2340
flhsqm

L FRONT GARDEN
<

Ground Floor

INTERNAL WASTE

KITCHEN 1
g
@ ;O

v TILES
" 2590
H : S45sqm

LIS

N

7,

PROPOSED

NN

00
AN

7777, )

N

AN

NN

g
R L T IR

AN

/ |
/
/ |
/ .
/ FLAT ROOF |
/ |
/ | ROOF |
/ : LIGHT
[ex]] G130
R F: 1560 F: 1560
I 2 ATH ¢ o200
KITCHEN|2
= & 1
003 = : 2000 wn sqn
i) | G185 Y
g F: 665 DH: 2000 } ¢
e
TILES CBD
CH 2590
’ (135 | v
F 1125 | . I
e |55
A e | @ VoD
AeatH] by Y
| 200
ROOM 4
LAMNATE
" | o
.00
o =

First Floor

C - Sill Height

F - Window Height
CH - Ceiling Height
DH - Door Height

T T T T YT YT YT T T YT I I T T T YT I T YT T YT YT TITT YYTYTEY |

\LDplNG %

Tl

SLOPING! R[l(lFa

FLAT ROOF

Pl

<

Roof Plan

A
A) PLANS

info@ajplans.co

NOTES

The contractors are to
check all the
dimensions, levels,drain
runs and

general condition of the
site before works
commence.

All works are to be
carried out in
accordance with current
Building Regulations,
British Standards, Code
of Practice and Local

Authority Requirements.

Project:

11 Streatham Road,
Mitcham, CR42AD

Title:

PROPOSED
Floor Plans

Date:

13.06.23

Scale:

1:100 @ A3

Dwg. No

SR.11.PR.01

Rev:

B



AutoCAD SHX Text_34
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
METRES

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
SLOPING ROOF

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
CH: 2490

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
LAMINATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
CH: 2390

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
LAMINATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
CH: 2330

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
LAMINATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
CH: 2340

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
LAMINATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
CH: VARY

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
TILES

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
CH: 2390

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
TILES

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
DH: 2100

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
DH: 2000

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
DH: 2000

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
DH: 2000

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
DH: 2000

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
DH: 2000

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
DH: 2000

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
DH: 2000

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
DH: 2000

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
DH: 1990

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
DH: 1990

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
C: 935 F: 1555

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
C: 1230 F: 925

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
C: 800 F: 1505

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
C: 1090 F: 970

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
C: 1090 F: 970

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
DH: 2000

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
DH: 2000

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
DH: 2000

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
DH: 2000

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
DH: 2000

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
DH: 2000

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
DH: 2000

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
CH: 2600

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
LAMINATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
CH: 2600

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
LAMINATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
CH: 2570

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
TILES

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
VOID

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
CH: 2590

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
TILES

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
FLAT ROOF

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
FR.

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
FR.

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
C: 755 F: 1515

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
C: 1135 F: 1125

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
C: 1135 F: 665

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
C: 730 F: 1560

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
C: 730 F: 1560

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
10.71 sq m

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
10.31 sq m

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
10.2 sq m

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
11.4 sq m

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
12.98 sq m

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
10.71 sq m

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
12.13 sq m

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
5.45 sq m

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
FLAT ROOF

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
SLOPING ROOF

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
SLOPING ROOF

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
SLOPING ROOF

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
SLOPING ROOF

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
SLOPING ROOF

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
DH: 2000

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
ROOF  LIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
INTERNAL WASTE STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
INTERNAL WASTE STORAGE


[ ] site

PROPERTY ADDRESS:

11 Streatham Road,
Licence number 100020449 Mitcham, CR42AD

TITLE:

Location Plan 1:1250 e

1:1250 (A4) || SR.11.LP.

DATE: DRAWN BY:
15.06.23. Al




GARAGE 1

|
|
|
|
|
|
|
REAR GARDEN |
|
|
|
|
|
|
|

REAR GARDEN

DINING ROOM
LAMINATE

AN

KITCHEN
LAMINATE

SR
NN

i\

N

22222

| NN

LIVING ROOM
LAMINATE

FRONT GARDEN

©

[ ] [
Pre - Existing Site Plan

|
|
|
|
_L_
|
I

Keter bike storage shed Brick Bin enclosure

@

D75x W 133 x H 112cm

H 120 x W 284 x D 80cm

x2 240! general waste
x2 240l recycling

to be incorporated into front boundary wall

REAR GARDEN

GARAGE 1

REAR GARDEN

o N

---------

ROOM 3

LAMINATE
CH: 2330

02sqm

' '
.........

/////////////////////;

CBD
G

o | SELIERN AN AT AT AR RN R AN R AR NN AR RN

LAMINATE
CH: 2490
0.71sqn

FRONT GARDEN

@)

|
|
|
l
|
S

Proposed Site Plan

B|E|n

METRES
0

5

I I

SCALE

A

A) PLANS
e 1040@ajplans.co

Project:
Ec(o:l}rggors are to 1 1 Streatham Road,
;jlirr?segiigns, levels,drain M Itch am , C R42AD

general condition of the

site before works Title:

commence. EXISTING & PROPOSED

All works are to be Slte PlanS

carried out in

accordance with current Date: :

Building Regulations, 13.0623 > 4.100 @ A3
British Standards, Code

of Practice and Local Dwg. No. Rev:

Authority Requirements.

SR.11.EX.PR.SP

B



AutoCAD SHX Text_118
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
CH: 2490

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
LAMINATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
CH: 2390

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
LAMINATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
CH: 2330

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
LAMINATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
CH: 2340

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
LAMINATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
CH: VARY

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
TILES

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
CH: 2390

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
TILES

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
DH: 2100

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
DH: 2000

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
DH: 2000

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
DH: 2000

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
DH: 2000

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
DH: 2000

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
DH: 2000

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
DH: 2000

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
DH: 2000

AutoCAD SHX Text_140
DH: 1990

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
DH: 1990

AutoCAD SHX Text_142
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_143
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_144
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_145
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_146
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_147
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_148
C: 935 F: 1555

AutoCAD SHX Text_149
C: 1230 F: 925

AutoCAD SHX Text_150
C: 800 F: 1505

AutoCAD SHX Text_151
C: 1090 F: 970

AutoCAD SHX Text_152
C: 1090 F: 970

AutoCAD SHX Text_153
FR.

AutoCAD SHX Text_154
10.71 sq m

AutoCAD SHX Text_155
10.31 sq m

AutoCAD SHX Text_156
10.2 sq m

AutoCAD SHX Text_157
11.4 sq m

AutoCAD SHX Text_158
5.45 sq m

AutoCAD SHX Text_159
DH: 2000

AutoCAD SHX Text_160
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_161
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_162
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_163
METRES

AutoCAD SHX Text_164
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_165
TILES

AutoCAD SHX Text_166
DH: 2000

AutoCAD SHX Text_167
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_168
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_169
LAMINATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_170
LAMINATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_171
TILES

AutoCAD SHX Text_172
LAMINATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_173
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_174
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_175
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_176
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_177
INTERNAL WASTE STORAGE


Agenda Item 7

PLANNING APPLICATIONS COMMITTEE

25 APRIL 2024

CASE OFFICER REPORT

APPLICATION NO. DATE VALID

23/P2711 02/10/2023

Site Address: 18 - 22 Crown Lane, Morden, Raynes Park, SM4 5BL
Ward: Merton Park

Proposal: DEMOLITION OF THE EXISTING BUILDINGS AND

Drawing Nos:

Contact Officer:

REDEVELOPMENT FOR A 7 STOREY BUILDING
COMPRISING A HOTEL (USE CLASS C1) AND
ANCILLARY USES WITH ASSOCIATED PARKING,
GROUNDWORKS, HARD AND SOFT LANDSCAPING,
SERVICING, PLANT AND ASSOCIATED WORKS.

See condition 2

Leigh Harrington (020 8545 3836)

RECOMMENDATION

Grant Permission Subject to Section 106 Obligation or any other enabling agreement

CHECKLIST INFORMATION

Is a screening opinion required No

Is an Environmental Statement required No

Press notice Yes
Site notice Yes
Design Review Panel consulted Yes
Number of neighbours consulted 251
External consultations Yes
Internal consultations Yes
Controlled Parking Zone No

Page 105



Conservation Area No
Archaeological Priority Zone Yes
Public Transport Accessibility Rating 6a

Tree Protection Orders No

211

INTRODUCTION

This application is being brought to the Planning Applications Committee for
determination due to the nature and scale of the development and number of
objections received.

SITE AND SURROUNDINGS

The existing site, which is located on the north side of Crown Lane, to the west
of the junction with Windermere Avenue in Morden town centre comprises three
x two storey units with commercial at ground floor and residential use on the
floors above. Two of these units are vacant, the occupied unit being in use as a
cafe. The remainder of the adjoining terrace (24 to 34 Crown Lane) to the west
comprises other units with commercial uses at ground floor level and residential
use above. Beyond the adjoining terrace is the two storey Morden Baptish
Church.

In the rear section of the site, the land is currently hard standing and used for
informal parking. Beyond the car parking area is a rear access road, serving the
application site and adjoining terraced buildings to the west.

To the west east of the application site, on the opposite side of Windermere
Avenue there is a another terrace comprising predominantly commercial use at
ground floor and residential above.

To the south of the application site, the opposite side of Crown Lane comprises
various commercial uses at ground floor level and the Civic Centre above.

The rear of the site, properties in Windermere Avenue comprise two storey
terraced houses, which sit at a right angel to the application site.

The site is located within the Morden Town Centre boundary, with the main
centre of the town centre being located to the east. This area includes a mixture
of commercial uses and residential, with building heights ranging from two to four
storeys.

Outside the town centre, the surrounding area is predominantly two storey
detached, semi detached and terraced houses.

The site has the following designations and restrictions:

e Controlled Parking Zone (CPZ) — No but is adjacent to CPZs MP4 and M1
e Conservation Area — No
e Listed Building — No

Page 106



3.1.1

e Tree Preservation Orders — No.

e Open spaces - The site is within 330m of Kendor Gardens and 390m of
Morden Hall Park.

e Flood Zone — 1

e Employment Site — Yes

e Classified Road — Yes, managed by TfL

e PTAL - 6a measured on a scale of 0-6b where 0 is the worst and 6b the
best (within 100m of Morden Underground station, 12 bus routes and
walking distance to South Merton and Morden South railway stations as
well as Phipps Bridge and Morden Road Tram stops).

e Located within the Town Centre boundary of Morden, identified as a
District Centre.

e Within the draft Local Plan, the site is outside the Morden Regeneration
Zone but is within the Morden Town Centre & Opportunity Area.

CURRENT PROPOSAL

Demolition of the existing building and redevelopment for a 7 storey building
comprising a hotel (Class C1) and ancillary uses with associated parking,
groundworks, hard and soft landscaping, servicing, plant and associated works.

History

For member information, the redevelopment of the site was originally subject to
a pre application advice proposal for a residential use within a similarly sized
building. Following the feedback from the Design Review Panel and Officers the
notion of a residential use was abandoned by the applicants who sought further
pre application advice for the hotel use subject of this application. The scheme
has been subject to amendments in light of DRP and Officer comments resulting
in the proposal now before members. A further amendment was made to provide
air conditioning plant behind a raised parapet on the fourth floor roof.

Height and massing

The proposal is for a 7 storey building for use as a hotel (Class C1) with a GIA of
3,029sgm and an upper storey height of 20.85m with a step down in height to 4
storeys to the north (rear) of the site.

Layout

The principal entrance to be located on the corner of Crown Lane and
Windermere Avenue, to serve the hotel and ground floor ancillary uses. This
entrance opens into a lobby with the main reception desk, restaurant area, a bar
area, lift lobby, stairwell, WCs and kitchen. A separate service entrance on Crown
Lane would be for linen and goods deliveries and staff facilities.

A Plant room and secondary emergency staircore would be accessed from
Windermere Avenue. At the rear of the site there would be access from
Windemere Avenue to the refuse and cycle stores as well as to two disabled EV
served parking bays.

Page 107



3.1.7

3.1.10

3.1.11

3.1.12

3.1.10

3.1.11

The upper floors, 1-6 would be for the proposed 85 rooms of which 20 would be
family rooms, 56 Double rooms and 9 accessible rooms.

Materials

External construction materials would comprise exposed brown brickwork for the
majority of the exterior with projecting brick headers in vertical sections between
the windows. Reconstituted stone details would frame the brick panels with the
curved corner junction element to be finished in glazed green brickwork.

The lower top floor would be finished in a bronze effect coloured cladding finish

Planting & Greenery

A series of internally located planters would be supplemented by three external
planting elements; living green walls at first floor level, oversized planters at the
hotel entrance along with a series of blue/green roofs on top of the building.

Highways

The existing rear access road would be resurfaced to provide shared access for
on-site refuse collection and pedestrians. The road would measure 5.7m wide
and would include a sliding gate, to control access to the rear of the neighbouring
units at 24 to 34 Crown Lane.

Cycle & refuse stores

Short stay visitor cycle spaces would be provided on the pavement in front of the
building whilst there would be a dedicated enclosed bay to the rear for 9 cycles.

Sustainability

The application has been accompanied by an Energy and Sustainability
Statement which explains that the development has been designed to follow a
‘Lean, Clean, Green” strategy that includes; a communal heating and hot water
network (fuelled by an electrical heat source), the installation of an air source
heat pump using a variable refrigerant flow system, which would use heat pumps
to provide space heating and hot water. In order to reduce the emissions from
the hot water demand it is proposed to install waste-water heat recovery systems
to all showers. The Statement also details the installation of photovoltaic panels
on selected roof sections of the building.

Flooding

The proposals involve the use of green/blue roof areas to reduce water run off
rates and improve biodiversity.

Documents
The application is accompanied by the following supporting documents:

e Acoustic design statement
e Air Quality Assessment

e Archaeological report

e BREEAM report

Page 108



411

e Construction Environmental Management Plan
e Construction Logistics Plan

e Covering letter & Planning statement

e Daylight & sunlight Report

e Delivery and Servicing Plan

e Design and Access Statement

e Energy & Sustainability Statement

e Fire Strategy

e Flood Risk Assessment and SuDs Strategy
e Preliminary Ecological Assessment

¢ Preliminary Risk Assessment

e Statement of Community Involvement

e Transport Statement

e Travel Plan Statement

e Urban Greening Factor

e Ventilation Report

PLANNING HISTORY

20-22 Crown Lane

22/P2901 - Deemed prior approval for CHANGE OF USE FROM CLASS E TO
4 X DWELLINGHOUSES (CLASS C3)

20 Crown Lane

09/P0936 Planning permission refused for CHANGE OF USE OF FIRST FLOOR
FROM FINANCIAL OFFICE (CLASS A2) TO 24 HOUR CAR HIRE BUSINESS
(SUI GENERIS). Reason for refusal

The proposal by reason of its location in close proximity to residential
side streets, would have the potential to generate additional demand for
on-street parking thereby adding to parking pressure in the streets, and
the potential, given the proposed 24 hour mode of operation, to generate
noise and activity at times when a greater degree of peace and quiet
may be expected to the detriment of the amenities of nearby residential
occupiers contrary to policies S.3, S.9 and PK.3 of the Council's Adopted
Unitary Development Plan (October 2003).

20 Crown Lane

09/P1014 Planning permission granted for CHANGE OF USE FROM
FINANCIAL OFFICE (CLASS A2) TO FOOD & DRINK USE (CLASS A3)
INCLUDING INSTALLATION OF NEW SHOP FRONT AND EXTERNALLY
MOUNTED REAR FLUE.

18A Crown Lane

22/P2672 - Prior approval granted FOR CHANGE OF USE FROM AN OFFICE

Page 109



415

5.1.1

5.1.2

(CLASS E) TO A DWELLINGHOUSE (CLASS C3).

Land to rear of 18 Crown Lane.

22/P2871 - APPLICATION refused FOR PERMISSION IN PRINCIPLE OF 4 TO
9 RESIDENTIAL UNITS AND 10-30SQM CLASS E FLOORSPACE. Reason for

refusal

The amount of proposed development fails to represent a design-led
approach to optimising site capacity, which should be based on an
evaluation of the site's attributes, its surrounding context and its capacity
for growth to determine the appropriate form of development for that site.
The proposal is contrary to policy DM D2 (Design considerations in all
developments) of Merton's Sites and Polices Plans, policies CS 8
(Housing Choice), CS 9 (Housing Provision) and CS14 (Design) of
Merton's Core Planning Strategy and policies GG2 (making the best use
of land), H1 (Increasing housing supply), D3 (Optimising site capacity
through the design-led approach) of the London Plan 2021

18 Crown Lane

21/P2274 APPLICATION TO DETERMINE WHETHER PRIOR APPROVAL IS
REQUIRED IN RESPECT OF THE PROPOSED CHANGE OF USE OF THE
FIRST FLOOR LEVEL FROM OFFICES (CLASS B1(a)) TO A 1 BED SELF-
CONTAINED RESIDENTIAL UNIT (CLASS C3). Prior approval refused for the
following reasons:

The proposed conversion, by reason of its unit size, would fail to meet
the minimum gross internal floor area as set out by the Technical
Housing Standards - nationally described space standards 2015;
thereby failing to comply with Article 3, Paragraph 9A of the GPDO 2015
(as amended).

And

The proposed development would be subject to a section 106 legal
agreement restricting future occupiers/users from obtaining a parking
permit. The lack of an agreement in this instance is not considered
compliant and would raise concerns with potential increase in car use
resulting in pressure toward on-street parking, congestion, road safety
and local amenity. This would be contrary to Policy CS20 of the Merton
Sites and Policies Plan (July 2014) and DM T2 and DM T3 of Merton's
Adopted Core Planning Strategy (July 2011).

CONSULTATION

Prior to the submission of the application the applicants undertook their own
community involvement exercise for businesses and local residents comprising
a 300 leaflet drop and four days of exhibits in July 2023.

The application was advertised in the local paper as a major application and
individual letters of notification to the occupiers of neighbouring properties

Page 110



(251). As a result of consultation, 24 letters of objection and 2 letters of support
for a hotel were received.

Objections
The 24 letters of objection raise concerns on the following points:

Visual impact, privacy and amenity

Overlooking and loss of privacy of properties and gardens.

Should not have windows disturbing the privacy of adjacent properties.
Overshadowing of gardens and loss of light to properties (including
Morden Baptist Church gardens).

Destroy skyline and view will be spoiled.

Loss of value to properties

Eyesore.

Visually overbearing and intrusive in the skyline,

The building is too high for the area, it would be imposing on neighbouring
properties.

The proposed height breaches Merton Planning Policy which restricts
heights outside the regeneration zone, this should be adhered to as it
was put in place for a good reason.

A hotel will provide a constant traffic of people who are not habitual
residents could increase crime rates and make my walk home from the
station feel unsafe.

Sound pollution. Deliveries to the hotel will likely happen in unsociable
hours and vans and unloading crates will create Sound travelling noise
Once built the Windermere Avenue residents nearest the hotel will have
to endure the noise of regular deliveries of food, alcohol, clean linen etc
and the collection of all waste from behind the hotel, which according to
the plans will be close to the residents houses.

There will be the noise of taxis dropping off and picking up customers
throughout the day and night.

Impact on the streetscene and local area

The building design is out of character with the area

It will be totally out of proportion with the neighbouring properties along
that road, we already have a 14 storey building opposite!

The proposed changes to Policy D12.6, which would allow tall buildings
in limited locations within the Wider Morden Town Centre Area, should
be rejected. The proposed changes introduce ambiguity, risk altering the
established local character, and may lead to overdevelopment in
unsuitable areas.

Page 111



Compared to the existing parade of shops the proposed structure is
significantly taller and this will have an adverse impact on the
environment especially for nearby households.

A 7 storey hotel would add to the wind tunnel effect we already have with
Crown House and is too tall

Pedestrians have to walk through strong winds blowing around Crown
House, while walking along the pavements during winter. It will make it
even more dangerous. Putting people at risk.

Has Merton Council considered this risk (of high winds) to residents
walking along this part of the Crown Lane? This risk has not even been
mentioned in the application even though it is a well known issue for
residents living in the area. | would like a wind modelling study to be made
and assure that the building will not create more wind to the surrounding
area.

Anyone can experience this local air "tunnel effect" when walking along
Crown Lane (between Londis and the junction at Windermere Avenue).
The curvature of the Crown House (Merton Civic Centre) means that the
flow of air is pushed along the curvature of the building to either side of
the Civic Centre (Crown Lane and London Road). This increases the
speed of the air flow. The air is directed to either side, so that the wind
speeds are increased in this local area. The combination of the existing
height of the Crown Lane buildings, the proximity to the Civic Centre and
shape of the existing buildings are all factors to creating this local wind
effect.

Even the existing situation has mild winds blowing pedestrians over.
This proposed height breaches the current Morden Planning Policy,
which restricts building height outside of the Morden redevelopment
zone.

It would be visually disruptive.

Building would alter the height restrictions as this is close to the
conservation area of Merton Park

Siting, appearance, height and scale which would be visually intrusive
and inappropriately conspicuous, harmfully spoiling the setting of the
Crown Lane street scene, due to the 7-storey height of the proposed
hotel.

If the proposal were to be considered favourably, | strongly urge that the
construction be limited to a structure of 3 or 4 storeys. This would
harmonize better with the adjacent library and the existing parade of
shops and residences.

The building is extremely overpowering. We have the eyesore of the
Crown House building and now you want to put another massive building
next to it. Two wrongs don't make a right.

Page 112



It would also destroy the symmetry that currently exists between the two
parades either side of Windermere Avenue. It would look very odd in that
normally one would expect the height of buildings to decrease further
away from a town centre - in this case it would be the reverse.

It does not harmonise with the streets and buildings in the vicinity.
Design is incongruous with the existing lower height buildings.
Introducing a seven-storey building here would be out of keeping and
character.

The proposed structure is not in keeping with the neighbourhood given
its height and size is significantly greater than any apart from the Merton
Civic Centre. Though it is on Crown Lane, its location is embedded in a
residential neighbourhood

The size/height would also cause the structure to be seen throughout this
residential area - again not in keeping with the look and feel of the family
area.

The Hawkins Brown design was not meant to encompass the entire area
and this site falls outside the regeneration zone.

| would like to emphasize that development within Morden should occur
in alignment with the areas highlighted in the approved H&B (Hawkins
Brown) document and should not extend beyond its boundaries. This
established document and its boundaries were created with careful
consideration of the local context and community needs, and any
development that falls outside these boundaries’ risks disturbing the
delicate balance of the area.

The materials mean that dark bricks will darken the building and its
surrounding. The green glazed bricks as a fagcade never work on tall
buildings.

Would suggest replicating the Art Deco style.

Art Deco styling is common in the area, this tall building would create an
unsightly imbalance.

| feel the applicant didn’t know what Art Deco was. | am therefore very
concerned we are handing over our legacy to someone who is only
interested in profit margins, when we could be working in partnership with
someone who wants to do something that will make residents want to be
proud of Morden.

The design of the back needs to be considered as this is what residents
see.

An anonymous letter objecting to any projects done to alter the
appearance of Morden.

There will be no visual excitement every time you look at the building.
There is a general feeling that the design is bland, boring and only just
functional (sorry architects). No creative thought has gone into the
design. It only suits temporary visitors to Morden.

Page 113



It will set a precedent for the rest of the parade to be built up to a similar
height.

Hotel use

We are surprised a hotel is needed in Morden. There's a very good
Travelodge at the George, Morden.

There is no need for a huge hotel in Morden, we have lots in the nearby
area, Travel Lodge Morden is literally down the road.

| believe there is no community need for a hotel in Morden.

There is no need for an Hotel in Morden as there no touristic attractions
to attract anyone and also the traffic will suffer a lot.

There is nothing in Morden that warrants a hotel, plenty of hotels in
Wimbledon area.

The application fails to provide any information or market research to
support the need for such a development in this location. This lack of
information raises questions about the viability of the project and its
relevance to the local community.

there seems to be no real viability for a hotel of this magnitude in Morden,
which is not a significant tourist area. | propose restricting the hotel's use
to ensure it would only function primarily as tourist or business traveller
accommodation and not as a long-term bed and breakfast facility.

We would like our opticians shop back and flats could be built above the
shops. There is a distinct lack of 1/2 bedroom flats in Morden and the
community needs an independent opticians.

Affordable housing for our young people would have been a far more
welcome proposal in this location.

The area will be better served with affordable house which is really
needed.

Local youngsters are in need of truly affordable housing.

A block of affordable housing with underground parking would serve the
community better. Is there a buyer lined up for this hotel? Who are they?
The residence of the area should be given that info. What clientele are
they aiming for? Will it be housing illegal immigrants? If a buyer is not
already lined up this is also a concern. | have a strong feeling this will get
passed no matter what the residence say let’s hope I'm proved wrong.

| can see no positives in this application whatsoever, surely decent
retailers should be encouraged to come to Morden not hotels, of which
we already have in Epsom Road Travel lodge, the Holiday Inn Colliers
Wood, and a number of hotels in Wimbledon, including a big Travelodge
again overlooking residents in surrounding roads.

It also will disturb the peace and tranquillity of the area.

the planned use as a large hotel is also not in keeping with the area.

Page 114



The site should remain available for retail and not be any higher than
surrounding buildings.

the use of an hotel in this area is not required as this is a residential area
requiring housing and would be detrimental to the regeneration of
Morden.

As hotels up and down the country are being filled with illegal immigrants,
this would also add to the degeneration of Morden.

Hotels (especially budget hotels) become hotspots for petty crime, which
can be seen by looking up crime statistics for other local areas that have
budget hotels, such as Colliers Wood and Balham. It will adversely impact
the safety of residents.

Who will use the hotel when there are no tourist attractions or conference
facilities nearby? It would be more profitable for the developer to fill with
migrants but do nothing for the residents of Morden.

| would like to understand exactly why you feel a hotel is needed at this
location and who the target market is.

The plans are already encroaching on and affecting small businesses.
Investment is needed for improving and developing our existing shopping
area and better facilities for local residents.

Investment also needed for affordable housing.

The whole idea of this hotel seems a bit of a sham, something that is not
needed in Morden, no local residents would benefit from this.

The proposed hotel, though new, does not help progress the
regeneration of the development zone itself.

| do not agree with the overall proposal as | do not believe that it fits in
with the overall regeneration requirements of Morden residents. The
Merton engagement document of 2021 identified that residents would like
'a greater variety of cafes and shops' along with 'revitalised high streets
that encourage residents to spend more time shopping and provide
opportunities to socialise'.

| think that this is a poorly thought through gateway project, like many of
the other projects Mr Leslie is involved in.

Construction Process

What kind of time frame are you talking about?

How long will it take for the buildings to be completed?

The building phase of the hotel will increase traffic congestion along
Crown Lane especially in relation to bus access. The area is already very
congested at certain times during the day. Crown Lane is the main route
into and out of Morden for buses.

Construction of the hotel will generate considerable noise pollution and
dirt pollution generally whilst being carried out over nearly 2 (two) years.

Page 115



e Even if there are traffic marshals, many lorries will need to be directed to
and from Crown Lane many times a day thereby holding up the flow of
traffic. This will cause problems for buses, emergency vehicles (police,
ambulance, fire engines) and for car users.

Transport/Highways

e The impact of increased traffic and parking.

e Currently there are double red lines and a notice saying this is red route
with parking restricted to one hour with no return. Even service vehicles
for the hotel will have to park on hotel land and not in the road. We already
have all types of restaurants without needing anymore. Motorists could
not park outside.

e Given the size and density of the facility, would increase traffic in an area
already being overused as a through street - adding to challenges faced
by families, children and elderly using the roads and pavements including
anti-social behaviour.

e |t will cause even more traffic congestion and noise to already very busy
roads.

e This will greatly affect foot and road traffic in Windermere Avenue during
the day and the night-time.

e The lack of parking is extremely concerning for such a big hotel, parking
in Morden is already very limited.

e What considerations for visibility and swept path analysis have been made
for post-construction traffic? Running a hotel business will require frequent
deliveries, where the traffic will be coming from Crown Lane. If there is
another vehicle turning from Windermere Avenue onto Crown Lane at the
same time, then the visibility will be greatly reduced. How will the junction
be improved following this development?

e Note that there is a local school - Poplar Primary School, where children
walk along Crown Lane, and notably this aforementioned junction. How
will visibility be improved to assist children to cross this junction safely?

e | also feel that being a hotel they will be receiving large deliveries which
will also adversely impact an already congested area.

e The hotel would take up valuable parking space.

e Will there be parking anywhere or are we going to have a queue of taxis,
Uber drivers blocking Windermere Avenue on a regular basis?

e How much more traffic will there be on Windermere Avenue and will the
building work block the road for months on end?

e Insufficient parking facilities, both on the street and paid, will inevitably
contribute to increased congestion and inconvenience to residents, on
what is a very busy street.

Page 116



e There will only be two parking spaces allocated to hotel residents. This
will severely impact local parking provision especially in roads nearby.
Grasmere Avenue is already experiencing the increased usage of Zip cars
since the introduction of permits in the road. Hotel residents may have to
resort to the use of Zip cars, thereby further restricting parking availability
for Grasmere Avenue's parking permit holders.

e Deliveries to the hotel will cause further traffic congestion because parking
bays for lorries will be limited. Some of the lorries could be up to twelve
metres in length.

e What has not been mentioned is the likely impact of the use of hire cars.
In the case of ZIP Cars these are dropped off in all the local streets without
paying for residents parking. There are always several of these cars
parked along Grasmere Avenue each day. Between Christmas and New
Year 2022 the most cars parked along Grasmere Avenue on one day was
11 (eleven) ZIP cars. The parking of ZIP cars and other rental cars along
the local streets will increase substantially thereby denying the local
residents the use of parking spaces outside their own houses (with the
requisite parking permit of course) for visiting tradesmen, family and
friends.

Wildlife and biodiversity

e Would you be planting more trees on Windermere Avenue to make it
nicer?

Other Matters

e |s a hotel going to be a chain? Or an independent?

e How many stars will it be and the pricing they are planning to have? |.e.
what kind of customers they are planning to attract?

e The consideration of this hotel proposal, which lies outside the Morden
development zone, is perplexing, especially given the absence of tangible
progress in the zone's regeneration. This speculative initiative appears
geared towards escalating the value of the plot to the detriment of the
neighbourhood without concurrent local benefits.

e Misrepresentation of Public Opinion: The consultation document
accompanying the application seems to misrepresent the feedback from
attendees. It suggests that people were happy with the plans shown, but
the reality is that people were likely pleased with the idea of
redevelopment on the site, not necessarily the specific plans presented.
This misrepresentation does not accurately reflect the attitude of the
attendees and highlights the need for a more transparent and honest
assessment of public opinion.

e There has been insufficient public consultation. | was unable to attend the

Page 117



event at metronome.

e | didn’t get a letter from the Council.

e Waste management and recycling for the hotel would both need to be
closely monitored. There could easily be a rapid build-up of waste if
disposal is not adequately managed. Waste management in Morden is
already not up to the standard residents require.

e There appear to be no facilities available within the hotel for local resident
usage, only for the hotel residents.

Letters of Support

5.1.4 Two letters of support were received, the letters raise the following points:

e | am supportive of the building of the hotel and ancillary uses as well as
the extensive windows to relieve the facade, but the exterior design is ugly

¢ | have been living in Wimbledon and Merton Park for the past 50 years to
date and | support this plan on the following grounds:

1. There have been talks for the past 10-20 years of the development
of Modern town but nothing has come to fruition!

2. Morden has been lacking behind in developments as compared to
the neighbouring towns, e.g. South Wimbledon, Colliers Wood,
Wimbledon Chase, Range Park, etc,

3. The current plan will bring employment, more tax (PAYE & NIC),
non domestic rates and people into this town, which has been looking

so tiring all these years,

4. If this plan is approved, it will attract more investors and developers
to develop this town. | sincerely hope you will approve this Plan.

5.1.5 Merton Park Ward Residents Association

Comments include:

o The impact of a seven-storey block on neighbouring two-storey housing,
some of which backs directly on to the subject site, would be significantly
detrimental in terms of overshadowing, loss of sunlight and skyline and
a feeling of being "enclosed". Such adverse impacts are also likely to be
felt by shoppers, commuters and also the many parents and carers of
children attending Poplar Primary School on their (at least) twice daily
walk along Crown Lane.

o The impact of even a four-storey building due south of the houses in
Windermere and Grasmere Avenues is massive, and the massing of the

Page 118



proposed seven storey build is both unneighbourly and completely
overbearing to properties of domestic scale.

o The applicant states that the height of the building is 20.85 metres,
whereas the definition of a tall building is 21metres (Policy D12.6). We
do not think that the residents of the two Avenues would find a reduction
of 0.15 metres makes an appreciable difference to the massing effect on
their skyline. In the process of building, the height of 21 metres could
easily be achieved unintentionally. This application should be treated as
being for a tall building.

o The height contravenes polices CS14 and DM D2 as well as Paragraph
124 of the NPPF.

o Windermere and Grasmere Avenues are outside the WMTCA and lie in
the Morden Neighbourhood (MN) which has very different characteristics
to the MRZ.

o The Civic Centre itself already causes a wind tunnel effect in Crown Lane
and around the entrances to Windermere and Grasmere Avenues. The
addition of a seven-storey building seems likely to cause an even bigger
problem.

o The Acoustic Assessment Report focuses on 2022 ambient noise levels
and the sound insulation status for users of the building i.e., staff and
guests. It does not address the impact on local residents of disturbance
and noise generated by the use of the site for an 85 roomed hotel and
ancillary catering operations, for example, waste bin operation, music,
operation of service doors/shutters at unsocial hours.

o The ground floor restaurant use should be open to all.

There is no indication at all as to what levels of employment (P/T or F/T)
the scheme will generate

No details of opening hours

If consent is given conditions should be imposed relating to; achieving
Excellent or Outstanding BREEAM rating, a Dust Management Plan,
Construction Environmental Management Plan, Construction Logistics
Plan, Delivery & Servicing Plan, the respective Conditions
recommended by Historic England and Metropolitan Police be
incorporated, Swift boxes, predetermined “allowable levels” of
ventilation, tree planting and greening within containers.

5.1.6 The John Innes Society

e We consider Chapter 3, Policy D3 of the Adopted London Plan has not
been followed as regards the height and bulk of this proposal. When
optimising site capacity, a design led approach should be followed, so that
the new building is the most appropriate form of land use for the site and
responds to the site’s context, capacity, and the existing character of its
setting. It does not mean cramming as much as possible onto a site.

Page 119



5.1.7

e The height and bulk of this Crown Lane/ Windermere Avenue proposal will

result on an unacceptable impact on outlook for the neighbouring
residential area and cause substantial harm to its character which is not
outweighed by public benefit. A similar sized development in New Barnet
was refused on appeal because of impact on suburban neighbours.
Public benefit will be damaged. Another high building on Crown Lane will
worsen the dangerous wind tunnel already created by the Civic Centre.
The applicant has been told about this but chooses to ignore it. It's an
inconvenient truth and making conditions worse for pedestrians and
cyclists will not help to achieve Merton’s Active Travel aims.

We also doubt whether a hotel, or hostel, will really bring worthwhile
economic benefits to Morden. As the proposal stands, it is unlikely there
will be a restaurant or other facilities open to the public, and the result will
be the loss of three shop front trading units leaving dead frontages on both
Crown Lane and Windermere Avenue. The hotel guests may seek
refreshments in Morden, but being so close to Morden station, it is more
likely they will use it as a dormitory and return to central London in search
of a greater choice of entertainment. Morden is a handy transport
interchange, and useful for everyday household shopping, but hardly the
place for a night out.

In summary, it is too tall, too bulky, and too damaging to character and
public safety, and there is no significant public or economic benefit. If it
goes ahead as submitted, it will be a sadly missed opportunity to improve
Morden.

Re-consultation (14.02.2024)

The application was re consulted (14.02.2024), following changes to provide
the parapet around the new plant on the fourth floor. There were three letters of
objection received, these raise the following points:

Thank you for your letter regarding the amendments to the parapet. To a
lay person it is unclear what the changes really are? If the developers have
employed a sculptor to attach a floating red cloud on the building | might
be a little more interested. BUT the amendments do not appear to negate
the overall negative effect that this building will have on the neighbours, or
the local area. The changes do nothing to blend this building into a
suburban local.

| am very concerned with the rebuttals to all of the residents concerns.
Many are without substance, for example the sunlight report only
assessed number 1 and 2 Windemere Avenue and did not assess number
1, 3, 5 and 7 Grasmere Avenue who will all be close to and have raised
concerns about sun impacts to the council as part of their individual
objections. Why has the impact on us not been assessed? Also | am
struggling to find the wind report as one of my biggest concerns is a wind

Page 120



tunnel - would you mind advising me which document that is? During a
very windy day last year | was trying to walk through that same section
and got blown into the road in front of incoming traffic. | was very fortunate
that day not to have been injured. This is a huge concern to me.

The Wind Report acknowledges that this modelling is not an exact
science and claims that the current wind tunnel shows only a very small
“distressed condition “for pedestrians, including those who are frail and
cyclists. This may be what the modelling suggests but | (and other local
residents) have real practical experience of this effect and | strongly
object to the opinion that the effect is very small. It is not. On many
occasions | have had to fight hard to remain upright in the face of strong
winds and this experience is certainly not “comfortable”. Climate change
may exacerbate this.

It is unclear how many jobs will be above minimum wage, the only
concession to staff will be the provision of showers.

| cannot see that having different storey heights within the same building
will have any real impact in reducing the overbearing scale of the
building as a whole- it will be the highest part that draws the eye and
causes the loss of amenity. Even the four storey section of such a hotel
would represent a doubling in height compared to the existing, adjacent
two story residential properties along Crown Lane and in Grasmere and
Windermere Avenues.

| also note the many references in the response to the “need” for a hotel.
What market research supports this? Is this the best use of the site? The
applicant claims that the “need” for a hotel has been clearly
demonstrated and part of the “evidence” for this appears to be that a
hotel operator has shown interest in the proposal. Just because an
operator is interested does not imply there is a need for a hotel.

A smaller residential development would be better.

No evidence of economic benefit and will cause added congestion to the
tube

The responses submitted do not significantly address the original
objections raised by myself and other residents and that the applicant
has not provided clear evidence to support his arguments, for example,
likely additional employment figures or a demonstrated need for hotel
accommodation.

2"d Re-consultation (15.03.2024) & (04/04/2024)

For the sake of clarification, a 14 day re-consultation took place to confirm that
neighbours were fully aware of all amendments received during the application
process. Re-consultation letters were sent on 15.03.2024 advising interested
parties of the following amendments:

Page 121



(15/3/24) Introduction of air conditioning plant and increased parapet wall
height on the fourth floor, altered window design, new windows on rear
elevation (with privacy louvres), amendments on drawings dated
13.02.2024 and wind report.

(04/04/24) New technical information submitted relating to separation
distances and light impact on surrounding gardens.

5.1.9 Following the latest re-consultation three further representations were received
raising the following issues;

Will hotel residents be able to see my garden and house from any
windows in the hotel (i am number 7 Grasmere Avenue).

Will the hotel create a wind tunnel for me.

There are several issues for concern regarding over heating in extreme
environmental conditions, which we do seem to be experiencing on a
regular basis each summer

There is no concession to "greening", or creation of garden spaces for
hotel residents, places for plants at walls or windows etc.

The people developing this land are not local, but "outside" interests.

The subdivided garden at 2 Windermere Avenue, and it's use as a
carpark, points to a lack of sensitive consideration. There is little
understanding from the applicant regarding the suburban nature of
Merton Park, and it's historical position as a garden suburb.

| see that the parapet wall is to be increased in height with the
introduction of an air conditioning unit plus altered window design and
new windows on the rear elevation. This, of course, is the proposed
part of the building that is lowest at 4 storeys and directly adjacent to
the two story residential buildings in Windermere Avenue. In my
opinion these changes will only add to the visual intrusion for residents
in the vicinity. One of the arguments put forward by the developer is
that the building is sensitive to the scale of existing residential buildings
by its graduated height with the lowest part being at the rear. Now the
developer seeks to increase that height which even under the original
design is already twice the height of the original buildings. Moreover
the addition of an air conditioning unit is likely to increase the level if
noise pollution for existing resident.

As for the changes to windows, the developer indicated that there
would be no “overlooking” to adjacent properties in that windows would
be located to avoid this. | cannot tell from the diagram where exactly
these new windows will be but in the letter it states that they will be on

Page 122



5.2

5.2.10

5.2.11

5.2.12

5.2.13

5.2.14

5.2.15

5.2.16

the rear elevation. The proposed changes indicate that there will be
privacy louvres but it is unclear how these will affect residents living
close to the rear of the proposed building.

Design Review Panel

Comments 1 June 2022 (residential scheme)

The panel considered a residential scheme for the site which received an Amber
towards Red rating

The busy road created a hostile environment for noise and pollution and the
Panel questioned whether residential was the best use for the site, particularly
for the units closest to the road.

The Panel felt that the reasoning for the basement was weak, and a gym did not
have to go in a basement. This was linked to one of the main criticisms of the
proposal, which was the ground floor, it's layout and integration with the street. It
was felt the basement was not good in terms of sustainability, given the proposed
gym use could be located on the first floor.

The Panel was not particularly concerned regarding the overall height of the
building as shown, but felt that the transition to the adjacent residential to the
north was a bit stark and the stepping needed to be more substantial, rather than
just 1-2 storeys.

What was more important was the design and appearance of the building and it
was agreed that there was a significant way to go on getting this right. It was a
local landmark and needed to be a high quality building, notably at the corner.
As the height was higher than that recommended, this was another reason for
ensuring the design was exceptional.

The high-level details seemed pointless and a more meaningful approach was
needed to identifying and interpreting local distinctiveness into a bespoke design.
The precedent example shown (Barratt scheme at Savoy Circus) was considered
a good example. More work was needed on getting the base, middle and top
proportions right, especially if the first floor was to have non residential use and
the transition between the commercial and residential floors needed to be clear
and work well. Round windows were not considered to work well and further work
in general was needed to get the architecture and materials right, with a
restrained but relevant materials palette.

Overall the panel felt that whilst there was some good work done. However,
there was a lack of attention to sustainability issues and some clear urban
design work needed about how the building worked and fitted in to its
surroundings and the street. This meant that there were some key areas that
needed more thought and development, this being the reason the verdict was
nearly Red.

Image below shows the proposed residential building for background information
purposes only.

Page 123



South Elevation

East Elevation

Page 124



5.2.17

Fourth Floor

Comments 19.07.2023 (hotel scheme)

The Panel noted that it had reviewed a residential scheme for this site from the
same applicant team on 1 June 2022, receiving an AMBER (towards RED)
verdict. The current proposal being reviewed is for an hotel, with a similar form,
scale and massing, though with less height.

Site Planning

The Panel were unanimous that the form, massing and height were appropriate
for the site, and an improvement on the former residential scheme. They felt that
the uses were also appropriate. The main elements at this level the Panel were
concerned with, primarily relate to the frontages facing Crown Lane and
Windermere Avenue.

Whilst there was some merit in using the Savoy Circus building as a precedent,
it was felt that this was a larger site which has distinct side wings in addition to a
strong corner element. This site does not really have the wings and it is all about
the corner, which is not yet sufficiently strong and bold in its design. Therefore,
the Panel felt that the stepping down on Windermere Avenue only needed one
step

Page 125



Access & Parking

The Panel questioned the provision of two parking spaces, instead of one and
suggested this could or should be provided on-street. This would allow for more
cycle parking. The visitor cycle parking on the street was also considered to be
poorly arranged and cluttering the entrance area to the building. This could be
better sited.

Architecture and Elevations

Whilst the Panel were supportive of the work done to identify local design styles
to inform the design of the building, they felt that, because of its relatively small
size, far too much was being included on the elevations. The materials needed
to be pared back and a simpler approach taken. It was also felt that the top floor
cladding element on Windermere Avenue, would hardly be seen and should also
be in brick.

The building also still lacked a clear base, middle and top. Instead, the ground
floor was not strong enough, including the corner in general. The darker brick
element stopped inexplicably half way down the first floor windows, and it also
formed a horizontal band higher up without a clear rationale. It was unclear
whether the building wanted to emphasise the vertical or horizontal in its fagade.
The windows of the ground floor did not relate well to the upper floor windows
and they did not take any design cues from the adjacent building in terms of size
and positioning.

For such a small building there also seemed to be an excessive amount of space
given over to signage and advertising. The upper level frieze seemed out of the
way and unnoticeable and it was suggested this should be lower and maybe
reclaiming the existing signage should be considered.

Ground Floor and Public Realm

The experience of approaching, entering and using the hotel, was not felt to be
good or sufficiently considered. Overall, it seemed cramped and the whole
seemed rather two-dimensional — notably the ground floor elevation. There were
no entry canopies, orientation space inside or outside the building, no window
openings, opportunities for outdoor seating, recesses in the elevation or
maximising the space in the footway outside the entrance.

The entrance, although in a logical place to celebrate the corner, seemed small
and underwhelming, neither celebrating the hotel or the building itself. It was also
suggested there was scope for greening in the public realm, notably along the
building on the Windermere Avenue elevation and possible tree planting in the
footway (depending on utilities). Generally it was felt that there needed to be a
far more fluid interface between the outside and inside of the building.

Internal Layout

Internally it was felt that the ground floor felt very cramped. There lacked a sense

Page 126



of a foyer space for waiting to check-in or preparing to depart the hotel. The
arrangement and spacing of the restaurant seating appeared to be very close,
such that access past occupied tables by waiters or just by-passing customers
would be difficult and practically impossible for wheelchair users. It was felt the
whole entrance area would not present a good image for the hotel or make it a
pleasant space to be.

On the upper floors the rooms on the front corner seemed to be poorly designed,
with 4 windows but a large amount of wasted space where customers would
access the bathroom and have to walk right past the windows. These needed to
be reconfigured. The corridor serving the south facing rooms seemed to be
wasting space that could be given over to making the rooms bigger.

Most of the rooms on the north and west sides were considered to have a poor
and dark outlook, even for a hotel and it was felt that a different arrangement of
the space should be explored to address this.

Generally it was felt that light levels would not be good in the rooms and it was
suggested that some form of Juliet balcony or projection could be considered for
the windows to address this and the somewhat two-dimensional feel to the
facade.

The Panel raised a number of questions regarding sustainability issues and had
no specific issues to raise.

Overall it was felt that the composition of the design needed further work and
refinement to achieve the level of quality exhibited by Savoy Circus — less is more
— regarding the materials. The elevations are key to this small site and they
needed further work. The corner was key to this building and it needed to be
stronger and bolder. The entrance experience, public realm and interface
between inside and outside needed to work much better. Internally further work
was needed to make the ground floor work better and feel welcoming and
spacious, rather than cramped.

Verdict: AMBER

Images below of DRP hotel scheme for members information only:

Page 127



Ground Floor

j A el THE LR,

Frie
d
| =
|
] L
T
|
|
|
il
L
|
|
1
]

Page 128



6! Floor

East Elevation

L

Page 129



South elevation

PRSI L T

—_— e L R

=i s . L) |

CGIl — DRP v CGl proposal

DRP

Page 130



Proposal

Officer comment — The applicant has made the following changes between the

DRP scheme and that before members (points below provided by the applicant):

Recessed corner entrance on ground floor to include external planting to
celebrate the entrance

Widened and more spacious lobby arrival area

Improved cafe layout and seating arrangement

Revised canteen seating layout to improve user movement/permeability
Increased internal planting on Crown Lane and Windermere Avenue to
improve active frontage and visual outlook

Introduced green wall/external facade planting

Reduced the amount of hotel signage and refined the stone detailing at
ground level to provide a more elegant and cleaner design and
emphasised base.

Refined facade design with added brick detailing and simplified material
palette

Two tone brick changed in favour singular tone brown brick

Lengthened windows with removal of transom bars to provide a more
vertical aesthetic

Adjusted first floor glazing to align with adjoining property

Removed white tile cladding in favour of metallic set back top floor (the
top floor cladding has always been metal, not white tiles)

Realigned window of unit 01 off the western boundary to northern
boundary.

Revised internal configuration to unit 10

Increased the width of the internal user corridor

Page 131



5.3

5.3.18

5.3.19

Internal Consultees

LBM Highways Officer 16/10/2023

Raised no objection subject to conditions.
LBM Transport Officer 14/11/2023

The officer raised no objections commenting;

Car Parking - The development would be car free with the exemption of
two disabled bays to the rear of the site off Windermere Avenue. The
two disabled bays to provide EVCP. Car free development for the
proposed development is acceptable.

Cycle Parking - The applicant has proposed 7 long stay cycle parking
spaces, and 2 short stay spaces at the front of the building. This is
compliant with London Plan Policy T5 (Cycling).

Deliveries and Servicing - TfL are satisfied with the pre-arranged
agreement for on street servicing, however TfL believe the use of loading
bay 3, on the opposite side of Crown Lane does not comply with London
Plan Policies T2 (Healthy Streets) and Mayor Transport Strategy Policy
3 (Vision Zero). Tracking diagrams shown for Refuse and car vehicles
manoeuvring into and out of the site off Windermere Avenue are
acceptable.

Off site highway works TfL requests the LBM securing the tactile paving
improvement identified at the junction of Mostyn Road and Martin Way
as the highway authority for these roads in line with London Plan policy
T2 (Healthy Streets).

Travel Plan - The application includes a draft travel plan and this is
broadly welcomed. The details of the travel plan should be subject to
detailed agreement and monitoring over a five-year period. A sum of
£2,000 (two thousand pounds) is sought to meet the costs of monitoring
the travel plan over five years, secured via the Section106 process.

Following conditions are recommended,;

2 no. Disabled bays as shown with provision for EVCP.

Amendments to Cycle parking provision.

Off site improvements identified by TfL.

A sum of £2,000 (two thousand pounds) is sought to meet the costs of
monitoring the travel plan over five years, secured via the Section106
process.

Demolition/Construction Logistic Plan (including a Construction
Management plan in accordance with TfL guidance) should be submitted
to LPA for approval before commencement of work.

Page 132



5.3.20

5.3.21

5.3.22

5.3.23

LBM Tree & Landscape Officer (01/11/2023)
The officer raised no objection subject to the imposition of suitable conditions.
LBM Waste Management (13/10/2023)

The officer raised no objections stating; This will be fully commercial and they
will need to arrange collections with a commercial waste provider of their choice.
Access seems suitable for any collection vehicle.

LBM Flood Risk Officer (22/11/2023)

The officer has assessed the application and commented;

| have reviewed the drainage strategy and find it acceptable.

As there are proposed sewer diversions and connection | would advise that
Thames Water is consulted on this application. In terms of drainage and Suds,
the proposed design strategy provides for the source control techniques of green
/ blue roofs and permeable paving techniques appropriately designed at detail
design stage. A drainage layout plan is submitted drawing ref: FRA20160-DS-
001.

Surface water will have a controlled discharged into the existing Thames Water
surface water sewer network diverted adjacent to the proposed development.
The SuDS provides a surface water management solution that reduces the
surface water run off that leaves the site and shows that the proposed
development does not result in an increase to the risk of flooding on or off site.

A gravity discharge rate from the site of 0.6 I/s for the 1 in 100yr + 40% is
proposed. The proposed runoff for 1 in 100yr + cc calculations for this flow
requires attenuation of 72.7m3.

The officer recommended conditions be imposed in relation to sustainable
drainage.

LBM Future Merton policy (27.10.2023)

With regards to the Strategic Development Framework and the above planning
application:

e Asthe name indicates, the SDF is a strategic level document for the proposed
Morden Regeneration Zone ”...which sets out the vision, core objectives, and
first principles’ for the regeneration of Morden Town Centre” and provides
Project Objectives, and Delivery and Spatial Principles.

e The subject image ‘Figure 1-1 More Morden Vision Aerial View’ is an artist’s
impression of the above referred ‘vision’ and the planning application site is
not within the proposed Morden Regeneration Zone boundary.

e References to the SDF and the proposed Morden Regeneration Zone
boundary are within Merton’s draft Local Plan, which is still undergoing
Examination In Public and the most recent draft indicates that the chapter on

Page 133



5.3.24

Morden contains a significant amount of proposed modifications. | would
therefore recommend that the contents of this part of the draft Local Plan be
awarded very limited weight in the determination of this planning application.

LBM Future Merton policy (updated comments 19.3.2024)

There is strong policy support in adopted and emerging parts of Merton’s
Development Plan on the principle of developing a hotel at 18-22 Crown Lane,
Morden. The application site lies within Morden’s town centre boundary in the
existing and emerging Local Plans and the whole site has excellent public
transport access (+6). A hotel is suitable for this very accessible town centre
location, would provide jobs locally and visitors would also help to boost Morden’s
economy by using the other restaurants, cafes, shops and services within the
town centre.

Adopted Development Plan: London Plan 2021 policy SD6 town centres and
high streets states The vitality and viability of London’s varied town centres
should be promoted and enhanced by ...(G) Tourist infrastructure,
attractions and hotels in town centre locations, especially in outer London,
should be enhanced and promoted (see also London Plan Policy E10 Visitor
infrastructure)

Adopted Development Plan: Merton’s Core Planning Strategy 2011 states
at policy CS3 Morden town centre for sites within Morden town centre
boundary that we will support Morden regeneration by (a) Capitalising on
Morden's excellent transport links and attractive suburban surroundings to
make Morden a vibrant centre that people want to visit not simply pass
through; (b) Improving the quantity and quality of commercial, residential
and leisure uses, with a range of uses that is appropriate to a District Centre;

Adopted Development Plan: Merton’s Sites and Policies Plan 2014 (policy
DMRG6 Culture, arts and tourism development By recognising the value of
arts, culture and tourism uses to Merton’s economy and employment, the
council aims to protect and provide additional arts, culture and tourism uses
in the borough. These uses will also create economic and social benefits for
the borough by attracting tourist and business visitors to Merton. The council
will maintain, improve and encourage cultural, arts and tourism in Merton
by: a) Supporting: i. All proposals for cultural and tourism development
which are likely to generate a large number of visitors in either: Merton’s
town centres; ore Other areas of the borough which have high levels of
accessibility (PTAL level 4 or above) and are within close proximity to
additional services for employees and visitors.

Merton’s emerging Local Plan policy TC13.9 Culture Arts and Tourism
development proposes a similar approach to the Merton’s Sites and Policies
Plan 2014.

Representations received on this application include representations that
consider that a hotel should be located within the Morden Regeneration Zone (as

Page 134



5.3.25

5.3.26

5.3.27

proposed in the Emerging Local Plan as site allocation MO01), that the
regeneration of Morden should be underway prior to a hotel being built and that
a hotel would not have a positive economic impact on Morden town centre and
that this site would be more appropriate for new homes. Our view is that there is
strong policy support for locating a hotel within the town centre boundary of a
District Centre that also has excellent public transport accessibility and that there
is evidence that London-wide hotels and tourism have a positive economic effect.
Should a planning application have been received for a mixed use development
including new homes we would have considered that in the normal way and there
is a need for new homes across the borough, however this site is not allocated
for new homes and there is policy support on this particular highly accessible
town centre site for a hotel.

LBM Environmental Health (Air Quality) (23/10/2023):

The officer noted that The applicant has submitted an amended Air Quality
Assessment report (Ref.: PP1994/CL/AQA/202309-EC) dated September 2023
and produced by NRG Consulting and A Construction Environmental
Management Plan has been submitted (Ref.: PP1994/CL/CEMP/202309-EC)
highlighting the need of submit in the future a detailed Air Quality Dust
Management Plan. Based on that information the officer has no objections
subject to conditions.

LBM Environmental Health (Contamination) (11/10/2023)

The officer raised no objections but recommended two conditions be imposed
relating to site contamination.

LBM Environmental Health (noise and disturbance) (03/11/2023)

The officer noted, ‘the application has been submitted with a noise impact
assessment in order to assess the suitability of the site in terms of acoustics for
internal amenity standards for the development. with suitable noise mitigation
measures, suitable controls can be implemented to protect future occupants. the
recommendation of the af acoustics report should be implemented prior to
occupation.

With regards to mechanical plant and any extraction systems, there is a
submitted report ‘ventilation and extraction philosophy’ states that ‘the strategy
will be developed further as part of the detailed design stage and therefore future
updates of this report will be required.” once the details of the mechanical plant
if known a suitable acoustic survey report shall be produced for this element and
comply with the relevant noise criteria. Additionally a condition relating to
reducing light spillage is also recommended.

The applicant has submitted Demolition and Construction Environmental
Management Plans and these should be complied with throughout the duration
of the project.

Page 135



5.3.28

5.3.29

LBM Environmental Health (noise and disturbance) (22/02/2024)

My previous comments covered plant noise in general so should cover this
amendment.

LBM Design Officer 02.11.2023

There have been some improvements, notably to the ground floor entrance,
which has tried, with some success, to address the last DRP comments. There
are other issues that remain:

« The west facing oriel window is an exceptionally poor solution and
demonstrates the room has been designed poorly. For a new build to require
a main window to a room to have no views out is unacceptable and there is
no reason why a north facing window can be incorporated. Remedial
measures to a new-build simply demonstrate over development or poor
design. The design of the oriel window also seems out of character to the rest
of the building design.

e There are two elements of design detail that have been taken from the local

context. These are the protruding brick headers on the main building and the
cladding detail for the top floor. The re-interpretation of these is exceptionally
tenuous - to the extent that no-one will make these links. Whilst the headers
work OK on the building, the cladding does not. It bears no resemblance
whatsoever to tiling on the underground and none of this is visible on the
outside of the Tube station anyway. the cladding jars with and is discordant
with the rest of the building materials. If the applicant feels this top floor needs
to be a lighter colour to blend with the skyline, what about the other top
elements of the building that are in brown brick? This set back top floor
doesn't work and | recommend this section is removed.

« The simplification of the materials is welcomed, but | have reservations about

such a large extent of brown brick and feel this could make for a very dull
appearance to the building. A richer tone is needed and this needs to be
resolved with the applicant. Also, the white stone banding around groups of
windows does not work well. It serves to give a level of chunky, over-size
detail and it would be better to rely on strong setbacks (at least one header
deep) and perhaps more subtle differences in brick colour. This does seem
to work better to link the ground and first floors and could be retained here.

« | am happy for the corner to be accentuated with glazed green tiles - which

will need to be agreed with the case officer,

« The green wall panels either side on the elevations appear to serve little

architectural purpose but, as the proposed green walls, could become a
distinctive feature of the building. However this needs to be got right and be
well maintained otherwise it could become an eyesore that is eventually
removed to reveal a bland expanse of brick wall. a good example of how this
could work really well (on a smaller scale) is the green wall on Wilko in Sutton
town centre. There would need to be sufficient depth to the reveal to provide

Page 136



5.3.30

5.3.31

5.4

enough earth/growing room for plants, and a proper irrigation system. This
would need to be conditioned with any planning permission.

« There needs to be a proper signage strategy for the building as retrofitting

extra signs at a later date would undermine the appearance of the building
and should not be permitted.

« Windows on the adjacent building are taller than they are wide and give some

vertical emphasis to an otherwise low rise building. In taller buildings it works
better to extend the verticality of the windows to reflect the building
overall. however, the windows proposed are almost square. They should
have slightly more vertical emphasis than the adjacent windows (not less) and
this will aid in giving a more subtle vertical emphasis rather than having the
large stone banding around groups of windows.

Following the submission of revised drawings, the officer had no further issues
with the design and as of March 14" commented ‘my general view is that the
design for the proposal has evolved sufficiently for me to be happy with it,
subject to discharge of conditions relating to materials etc’.

LBM Climate Change Officer 22.02.2024

To summarise, the applicant is proposing to achieve an overall improvement of
35.35% against Part L 2021 across the site.

The applicant is proposing a saving of 10.04% at the Be Lean stage which is
below the GLA’s minimum requirement of 15%, however the scheme is
proposing to use waste water heat recovery which in a hotel with high hot water
use could contribute significantly (non-residential developments cannot currently
include waste-water heat recovery in their calculation methodology - as per
paragraph 7.11 of the GLA’s Energy Assessment Guidance — hence why this has
not been accounted for in the Be Lean figure). The applicant is also proposing
good fabric standards which go beyond the Part L 2021 notional and Mechanical
Ventilation with Heat Recovery which all contribute to more savings through
energy efficiency.

The final carbon offset contribution which will need to be secured through S106
is £81,058 as per the latest version of the Sustainability and Energy Statement
dated 5" January 2024.

I’'m satisfied the other information which has now been provided aligns with
Merton’s sustainability requirements and propose the condition wording outlined
below. As discussed, please note that some of these are pre-commencement
conditions given that the applicant hasn’t been able to provide all the detail at the
planning stage.

External Comments

Metropolitan Police — Secured by Design (20/10/2023)

Page 137



5.4.32

| have had consultation with the architect prior to this application, throughout all
stages of this proposal. During the meetings we covered how Secured by
Design (SBD) principles could be incorporate into the layout and design of this
development. Many of the subjects we discussed have now been included in
the latest plans.

Having given due consideration to the design of this development, | recommend
the following security features be addressed / included:

» Secured by Design recommends compartmentalisation for any development
that comprises over 26 units. This limits permeability within a block and allows
guests to only access their floor or designated areas by way of an encrypted key
fob or card. Fobs should always be encrypted to reduce the risk of them being
copied by a third party.

* The goods inwards door located on Crown Lane should be included as part of
the access control system.

* | recommend that tested and certified security rated doors and windows are
used on all communal and easily accessible areas. Due to the usage that the
doors will suffer, a more robust security rating should be considered for these
doors as they may provide better long-term reliability and savings in maintenance
costs.

* CCTV can help deter crime and criminal behaviour and provide reassurance
for guests and visitors. It can also provide key evidence of any criminal activity. |
recommend a CCTV & lighting strategy around the building and communal
areas, including entrances and cycle stores.

* Lighting is a very important element and should provide sufficient coverage to
supplement any CCTV system that is installed as well as providing reassurance
for guests during the hours of darkness.

» Smoke Vent grills and louvre doors are vulnerable as these are usually made
of aluminium which can be easily bent or distorted. Steel vents would be
recommended but alternatively weld mesh should be affixed to the inside to
provide protection from this.

* English bond and projecting headers (hit and miss brickwork) should be
carefully designed to eliminate any climbing aids or places for concealment of
drugs or weapons.

* Roller shutters or grilles should be located as close to the building line as
possible to avoid the creation of a recess. Such products should be certificated
to one of the following standards: LPS 1175: Issue 7, SR2, STS 202: Issue 3,
BR2 and Sold Secure Gold

» Landscaping and planting should be designed to prevent obscuring vision in
and out of the glass frontage.

Recommendation Crime Prevention and community safety are material
considerations. If The London Borough of Merton are to consider granting

Page 138



5.4.33

5.4.34

consent, | would seek that conditions be attached. This is to mitigate the impact
and deliver a safer development in line with the Merton New Local Plan (Stage
3), the London Plan, Section 17 Crime and Disorder Act 1988 and National
Planning Policy Framework (NPPF).

Historic England

It was identified that the site is located within a Tier 2 Archaeological Priority Zone
due to its proximity to the route of the Roman Road. It is considered that the
proposal could harm archaeological remains and a field evaluation was needed.
The officer recommended that a two stage pre commencement condition could
offer suitable safeguarding and protection.

Transport for London 08/11/2023

Site Location and Context.

The site is located within Morden town centre and is bound by the A24 Crown
Lane to the south, Windermere Avenue to the east, a private access road and
residential properties to the north and retail units to the west. The A24 Crown
Lane forms part of the Transport for London Road Network (TLRN). The site is
served by twelve bus services (80, 157, 154, 118, 201, 93, 470, 293, 413, 163,
164 and K5) within an acceptable walk distance of the site with stops located on
Crown Lane and Windermere Avenue. Morden Underground station is located
approximately 200m east of the site. Morden South rail station is also located
within an acceptable walking distance.

Deliveries and Servicing

TfL are satisfied with the pre-arranged agreement for on street servicing,
however TfL believe the use of loading bay 3, on the opposite side of Crown
Lane does not comply with London Plan Policies T2 (Healthy Streets) and Mayor
Transport Strategy Policy 3 (Vision Zero). TfL request the use of the bays must
follow sign restrictions. The restrictions on the bay fronting the site are ‘no
stopping Mon-Sat 7am — 7pm except loading maximum of 20 minutes or disabled
parking maximum 3 hours. The use of a delivery booking system is welcomed by
TfL. TfL welcome all deliveries are scheduled outside of the peak hours of 08:00
—10:00 and 16:00 — 18:00. This is expected in line with London Plan Policy D3
(Optimising site capacity through the design-led approach), paragraph 3.3.17,
and London Plan Policy T7E (Deliveries, Servicing and Construction).

Officer comment - Loading bay 3 does not form part of the applicants proposed
servicing arrangements.

Page 139



Car parking

TfL welcome the car free nature of the proposal. The applicant has proposed 2
disabled bays to the rear of the site accessed off Windermere Avenue. TfL expect
the provision of disabled parking to be reduced to 1 disabled person’s space only
in line with London Plan Policy T6.5 (Car Parking).

Officer comment — Now agreed, see updated comments below.

Cycle parking

The applicant has proposed 7 long stay cycle parking spaces, and 2 short stay
spaces at the front of the building. This is compliant with London Plan Policy T5
(Cycling). TfL request amendments to the access of the long stay cycle parking.
Currently the only access is to walk round the rear of the car parking spaces and
travel through the kitchen. 2 TfL request direct access for cycle users through
the office/lobby. TfL would also welcome the provision of showers, lockers and
changing facilities be provided for staff, as noted in the TfL pre-app meeting.

Officer comment — Not actioned as it would require a redesign and is simply
impractical

Trip Generation & Healthy Streets

TfL welcome the adjustment to the TRICS output to account for the car-free
nature of the development and the excellent access to public transport modes.
The Transport Statement (TS) includes an Active Travel Zone (ATZ)
Assessment, which is welcomed. TfL would strongly support the Council
securing the tactile paving improvement identified at the junction of Mostyn Road
and Martin Way as the highway authority for these roads in line with London Plan
policy T2 (Healthy Streets).

Officer comment — Officers have agreed this with the applicant. The upgraded
pavement area can be secured through a financial contribution as part of the
s106 agreement.

Construction

TfL request Traffic Management information is provided. This must highlight
safety information for pedestrians passing the building, traffic driving past on both
areas & cyclist movements. The applicant must also confirm enough area is clear
for disabled movements past the site. TfL request the applicant confirm the dates
they want to start and finish the works. TfL request the applicant apply for closure
of any bays used during construction. A Temporary Consolidated Suspension

Page 140



5.4.35

Request (TCSR) is required in relation to the temporary suspension of parking,
loading, disabled and/or motorcycle parking bays. This is available on the TfL
website. The Pit Lane must comply with 'Safety at Street Works and Road Works'
code of practice. TfL expect all deliveries to avoid the peak hours of 08:00 —
10:00 and 16:00 — 18:00. This is expected in line with London Plan Policy D3
(Optimising site capacity through the design-led approach), paragraph 3.3.17,
and London Plan Policy T7E (Deliveries, Servicing and Construction).

Officer comment — The applicant has not received planning permission yet and
therefore at the time of writing, an applicant would not know a start date. Details
of traffic management can be provided once known, as part of a planning
condition and in consultation with TFL).

The footway and carriageway on the A24 Crown Lane must not be blocked during
the development. Temporary obstructions during the development must be kept
to a minimum and should not encroach on the clear space needed to provide
safe passage for pedestrians or obstruct the flow of traffic on the A24 Crown
Lane. All vehicles associated with the development must only park/ stop at
permitted locations and within the time periods permitted by existing on-street
restrictions. No skips or construction materials shall be kept on the footway or
carriageway on the TLRN at any time. Should the applicant wish to install
scaffolding or a hoarding on the footway whilst undertaking this work, separate
licences may be required with TfL, please see, https://www.tfl.gov.uk/info-
for/urban-planning-and-construction/highway-licences

TfL request amendments to the disabled parking provision, cycle store access &
further information provided on delivery and construction arrangements prior to

being supportive of the application.

Officer comment — See updated comments below.

The request for additional information on delivery and construction arrangements
can be provided by the applicant once known when discharging the relevant
planning condition (subject of consultation with TFL).

Transport for London (updated comments 10/04/2024

Disabled parking

Satisfied with 2 blue badge spaces being provided.

Healthy Streets improvements

TfL would support any improvements however it is understood this is not required
to make the application acceptable in planning terms as the proposed walking
trip rates are low.

Page 141



5.4.36

TMAN and Construction Logistics

As they have provided an outline CLP this detail can be dealt with by planning
condition.

Bike Store

The justification of it being a very very short walk especially for someone fit
enough to ride a bike in the first place is contrary to the policies of LP T5
(Cycling). Cycle parking and cycle parking areas should allow easy access and
provide facilities for disabled cyclists. Cycle parking needs to take into account
all user needs, so as not to exclude or disadvantage riders of certain types of
cycle. This includes people who use handcycles, tricycles, tandems and models
adapted to suit the rider’s specific needs, as well as cargo cycles. Access to the
long stay cycle parking should be close to the entrance of the property and
avoiding obstacles such as stairs, multiple doors, narrow doorways (less than
1.2 metres wide) and tight corners. New developments must take every
opportunity to overcome barriers to cycling for their prospective residents and for
visitors. Good quality cycle parking is a selling-point. It is a shame that the
Planning Authority has not taken this into account. TfL will not uphold an
objection to the cycle parking, however believe the council should consider the
aforementioned points prior to determination.

Officer comment - In regards to cycle parking, whilst the proposed arrangements
may not be the best solution in some respects, this is similar to lots of cycle
arrangements in the Borough. It should also be noted that the scheme is for a
hotel and not residential units as the TFL comments seem to suggest by the term
residents. Planning officers need to take a balanced view on all planning
consideration, whilst TFL rightly set out best practice guidance, they do not raise
an objection. Officers would agree, in the overall planning balance, this would
not warrant refusal of planning permission. It should also be noted that the
Councils Transport Planner has not suggested refusal of planning permission or
provided a reason for refusal on this point either.

Thames Water

With the information provided, Thames Water has been unable to determine the
Foul water infrastructure needs of this application. Thames Water has contacted
the developer in an attempt to obtain this information and agree a position for
foul water drainage, but have been unable to do so in the time available and as
such, Thames Water request that a condition be added to any planning
permission.

Thames Water would advise that with regard to surface water network
infrastructure capacity, we would not have any objection to the above planning
application, based on the information provided.

With regard to surface water drainage, Thames Water would advise that if the
developer follows the sequential approach to the disposal of surface water we

Page 142



would have no objection

On the basis of information provided, Thames Water would advise that with
regard to water network and water treatment infrastructure capacity, we would
not have any objection to the above planning application but request an
informative be added.

POLICY CONTEXT

List of relevant planning policies

National Planning Policy Framework (2023)

e Chapter 2 Achieving sustainable development

e Chapter 7 Ensuring the vitality of town centres

e Chapter 8 Promoting healthy and safe communities

e Chapter 9 Promoting sustainable transport

e Chapter 11 Making effective use of land

e Chapter 12 Achieving well-designed places

e Chapter 14 Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal
change

e Chapter 15 Conserving and enhancing the natural environment

Relevant policies in the London Plan 2021 are;

e H2 (Small sites)

e H5 (Threshold approach to applications)

e D1 (London’s form, character and capacity for growth)
e D3 (Optimising site capacity through a design lead approach)
e D4 (Design)

e D5 (Inclusive design)

o D11 (Safety & Security)

e D12 (Fire safety)

e E 10 (Visitor infrastructure)

e HC 1 (Heritage and conservation)

e G5 (Urban greening)

e GG2 (Making the best use of land)

e GG6 (Increasing efficiency and resilience)

e SD 6 (Town Centres and High Streets)

e Sl 2 (Minimising greenhouse gas emissions)

e SI.3 (Sustainable drainage)

e T5 (Cycling)

e T6.4 (Hotel and leisure uses parking)

e T7 Deliveries, servicing and construction

Page 143



Merton Local Development Framework Core Strateqy (2011)
e Relevant policies include:

e CS 3 Morden Town Centre

e CS 11 Infrastructure

e CS 12 Economic development

e CS 13 Open space, nature conservation and leisure
e CS 14 Design

e CS 15 Climate Change

e CS 17 Waste

e CS 18 Transport

e CS 20 Parking servicing and delivery

The relevant policies in the Council's Adopted Sites and Policies Plan 2014

are:

e DM D1 Urban design and the public realm

e DM D2 Design considerations

e DM D4 Heritage assets

e DM D5 Advertisements

e DM D7 Shop front design and signage

e DM E1 Employment Areas in Merton

e DM E2 Offices in town centres

e DM E4 Local employment opportunities

e DM R3 Protecting corner/local shops

e DM R5 Food and drink/leisure and entertainment uses

e DM R1 Location and Scale of development in Merton’s town centres and
neighbourhood parades.

e DM R6 Tourism development

e DM EP2 Reducing and mitigating noise

e DM EP4 Pollutants

e DM F1 Support for flood risk management

e DM F2 Suds, waste water and water infrastructure

e DM T1 Support for sustainable transport and active travel

e DM T2 Transport impacts of development

e DM T3 Car Parking and servicing standards

Supplementary planning considerations

e GLA Guidance on preparing energy assessments — 2018
e London Character and Context SPG 2014
e Merton Planning Obligations SPD — 2006

Page 144



7.1.1

7.2
7.2.2

7.2.3

7.2.4

e Merton Borough Character Study 2021
e Merton Small Sites Toolkit 2021
e Merton Borough Character study.

Merton Emerging Local Plan

e N5.1 —Morden
e D12.6 - Tall Buildings

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS

The key issues in the assessment of this planning application are:

e Principle of Development

e Design

e The impact of the development on neighbour amenity;
e Transport, Parking and servicing;

o Trees, Landscaping & Biodiversity;

e Urban greening factor and Biodiversity net gain
o Site security

e Sustainable design and construction.

o Fire safety

e Construction of Development

e Air quality

¢ Flooding and drainage

e Site contamination

e Archaeology

Principle of development

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 states that
when determining a planning application, regard is to be had to the development
plan, and the determination shall be made in accordance with the development
plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

Policy D3 of the London Plan 2021 requires all development to make the best
use of land by following a design-led approach that optimises the capacity of
sites, including site allocations. Optimising site capacity means ensuring that
development is of the most appropriate form and land use for the site.

Loss of Existing Uses

The application site is currently located within a row of two storey terraced
buildings, mainly comprising commercial uses with some instances including

Page 145



7.2.5

7.2.6

7.2.7

residential on the floor above. The site is not located within a designated
shopping parade. Therefore, in planning policy terms, the site would be classified
as a corner/local shop, therefore planning DM R3 Protecting corner/local shops
would be appliable in this instance. Policy DM R3, seeks to protect local shops
that provide a useful service to local residents and to ensure that local shops are
within walking distance of all residents in Merton whilst reducing vacancy rates
in shopping frontages that detract from the local area. The policy permits change
of use of a corner/ local convenience shops (A1 Use Class) to a wide range of
uses including retail (A1), businesses (A2 and B1 [a] Use Class), cafes and
restaurants (A3), public houses (A4), hot food takeaways (A5), health and
community uses (D1), where:

I. There are alternative convenience shops located within 400
metres;

ii. ii. The proposal will have no significant adverse effects on the
amenities of nearby residents, road safety, traffic movements or
car parking impacts; and,

iii. iii. Independent access to upper floors is ensured.

The proposal is would provide a commercial use (Class E, ref to the above use
classes in the policy is outdated, most uses above now form part of Class E),
with the site being located in an area with a wide choice of other shops (within
400m), is not considered to have a significant impact on its surrounding and
access to the offer floors as a hotel is considered to be inline with the objective
of the policy, the character of the parade and emerging changes in the area
(regeneration). More details relating to the proposed use and established
position on the site are set out below.

Currently only 22 Crown Lane is occupied with a café use at ground floor and an
office type use above. All other units within the application site remain vacant at
the time of writing. The applicant has confirmed that the established planning
uses of the three units, is either a restaurant or offices. All such uses fall with use
Class E (Commercial, Business and Service). The commercial accommodation
on the application site is spilt into three units with a modest floor area, therefore
the level of employment generated, when occupied, is considered to range
between low and modest levels. At present only one of the three units is occupied
so as it currently stands the units are not generating much in terms of
employment. The proposal would introduce new commercial building with a
gross internal area of 3,029sgm, which would include a ground floor
restaurant/bar area and 85 bedroom hotel on the upper floors. The hotel use is
therefore expected to generate an overall increase in employment when
compared to the existing situation (6 full time and 18 part time jobs expected to
be created). Officers are therefore content that the proposed use would be inline
with the objectives of employment policies at a local and regional level by
contributing towards sustainable economic growth.

Member may note that the applicant has a permission for various residential uses
under prior approval rights (see planning history section of this report). The

Page 146



7.2.8

7.2.9

7.2.10
7.2.11

applicant has confirmed that these permissions have not been implemented to
date, however they provide a valid full back position which the applicant could
implement. Therefore, technically the loss of the existing commercial units has
already been established. Policy matters relating to the loss of existing
commercial units is therefore irrelevant in this instance given the fallback position
which has been established by formal applications and approvals.

The proposal does provide a healthy reprovision of commercial floorspace and
given its use type (total) would generate new jobs onsite and will help boost
surrounding business with increased visitor footfall. The proposal is therefore
considered to have significant economic benefits, especially given the fallback
position.

Tourism development and the provision of a hotel

London Plan 2021 policies E10 and SD 6 encourage the provision of visitor and
tourist facilities especially in outer London areas well served by public transport
whilst Merton’s Sites and Policies Plan policy DM R6 encourages the provision
of tourism development in Merton’s town centres. DM R6 seeks to ensure that
whilst supporting tourism proposals, the development shall ensure that;

¢ i) The size and character of the site or building are suitable for the proposed
use

e i) The development would be compatible with the character and appearance
of the area

¢ iii) The amenity of local residents and businesses will not be harmed by way
of noise, disturbance, loss of light or privacy

e iv) There will be good access and links to modes of transport other than
private cars

e V) Vehicle access to and from the highway will be safe.

These points will be expanded upon later in this report.
Policy CS 3 Morden Town Centres of Merton’s Core Planning Strategy seeks:

To regenerate Morden through intensified development in and around
the town centre, creating a distinctive and vibrant centre by making more
of what Morden has to offer.

A plan-led approach will increase development capacity and make more
efficient use of land by incorporating higher density housing and
commercial opportunities; exploiting Morden's excellent public transport
links, while conserving and enhancing the character and distinctiveness
of the adjacent suburban neighbourhoods.

.... We will do this by:

Capitalising on Morden's excellent transport links and attractive
suburban surroundings to make Morden a vibrant centre that people
want to visit not simply pass through;

Page 147



7.212

7.2.13

7.2.14

7.2.15

Improving the quantity and quality of commercial, residential and leisure
uses, with a range of uses that is appropriate to a District Centre;

CS 12 Economic Development of Merton’s Core Planning Strategy states:

We will support the development of a diverse local economic base in
Merton by encouraging the increased provision of the overall number
and range of jobs in Merton; particularly in the commercial and business
sectors (including the provision of business, leisure, retail, creative,
cultural and 'green jobs...

Morden Regeneration Zone.

As an additional matter of further background to the appropriateness of a hotel
in this location (something that has been questioned by residents in their
objections) is that the application site, whilst not being located within the
proposed Morden Regeneration Zone, sits adjacent to the boundary of this
proposed area and within the adopted (2014) and emerging (2024) Local Plan
town centre boundary for Morden. The new Morden Regeneration Zone is
proposed to be a site allocation (Mo4) in the Councils New Local Plan. This
follows on from long terms aspirations for the town centre and its regeneration.

The new local Plan is not an adopted document to date, however it has been
submitted to the Secretary of State for examination, has been through five weeks
of public hearings and, at the time of writing (March 2024) is published for seven
weeks of post hearings consultation
(https://www.merton.gov.uk/system/files/Ibm31_accessible_mertons local plan

incorporating_proposed_modifications _accessible feb24 0.pdf within the
adoption process (near full adoption). At present, officers are not giving full
weight to policies contained in the New Local Plan as it has not been fully
adopted by the Council, however Merton’s adopted Core Planning Strategy 2021
and Merton’s emerging Local Plan 2024 include this site within the Morden town
centre boundary and support Morden regeneration at adjacent sites

Emerging Local Plan Policy Morden: N5.1 states that the policy supports the
rejuvenation of Morden to create a modern, attractive and vibrant destination that
meets the needs of the current and future residents, businesses and visitors, and
provides economic, social and environmental benefits. This will be achieved
through intensification and comprehensive development within the Morden
Regeneration Zone...

Page 148



Extract from Policies Map of emerging Local Plan 2024, showing Morden
Regeneration Zone in blue and Morden town centre boundary in grey, site
location indicated in orange

Emerging Local Plan Site Allocation Mo4: Morden Regeneration Zone sets a
regeneration vision that seeks to take the opportunity to enable large-scale
development in Morden town centre, which will secure economic, environmental,
and social benefits in accordance with the London Plan. Amongst 8 opportunity
criteria under this policy, the following are considered to be relevant to the
application before members:

1. The delivery of an appropriate mix of retail, office, commercial,
community and leisure use, including night-time uses, improved
transport infrastructure and public realm, and a significant quantity of
new residential development (circa 2,000 units).

2. Comprehensive regeneration of the site, to optimise the delivery of
new homes, improve the street scene and public realm, make it easier
to get around, and support businesses and other appropriate town
centre uses.

6. The use of tall buildings where appropriate in order to optimise
development that relates well to the surrounding context and public
realm, particularly at street level.

7. The provision of an appropriate mix of retail, office, community and
leisure uses, including night time uses, which provide an appropriate
level of active frontage.

Page 149



7.2.16

7.217

7.3

7.2.18

7.2.19

Conclusion (Principle)

There have been numerous objections relating to the need for a hotel in Morden,
frequently citing a lack of tourist attractions in the borough. Whilst it is
acknowledged that regular events such as AFC Wimbledon home games and
the Wimbledon Tennis Championships would only provide limited ‘tourist’
demand, hotels also provide accommodation for those working away from home,
visiting friends and families and for one off events such as weddings or special
events within the borough.

As set out in the policies above, the principle of a hotel in Morden town centre is
supported by policies in the London Plan 2021 (policy SD6, Town centres and
high streets part G) Merton’s Core Planning Strategy 2011 (policy C6 Centres
Merton’s Sites and policies Plan 2014 (policy DMR6 Culture, arts and tourism
development and Merton’s emerging Local Plan policy TC13.9 Culture Arts and
Tourism development) hotels should be directed to areas of the borough that
are designated town centres or well served by public transport. In this instance,
the location of the hotel would be located within a Morden Town Centre location,
with the site having a PTAL score of 6a (excellent). The application site also sits
directly adjacent to the proposed Morden Regeneration Zone, so would therefore
offer supporting commercial infrastructure to the future planned regeneration
area. The commercial use of the site as a hotel would also generate jobs within
Merton with the operator predicting the provision of 6 full time jobs and 18 part
time jobs. With increased visitors using the hotel and its ground floor restaurant
(mostly accessing the site on foot) would bring more people into the area and
therefore generate higher levels of passing trade for surrounding businesses.
The proposed use would therefore bring economic benefits within Merton and
further afield due to its excellent transport links. The location of the proposed
hotel is therefore supported by officers as planning policy encourages such uses
in these areas.

Design

The NPPF, London Plan policies D3 and D4, Core Strategy policy CS 14 and
SPP Policy DM D2 require well designed proposals which make a positive
contribution to the public realm, are of the highest quality materials and design
and which are appropriate in their context. Thus, development proposals must
respect the appearance, materials, scale, bulk, proportions and character of their
surroundings.

London Plan policy D3 states:

‘All development must make the best use of land by following a design-
led approach that optimises the capacity of sites, including site
allocations. Optimising site capacity means ensuring that development
is of the most appropriate form and land use for the site. The design-led
approach requires consideration of design options to determine the most
appropriate form of development that responds to a site’s context and
capacity for growth, and existing and planned supporting infrastructure
capacity’ That same policy goes on to state ‘Higher density
developments should generally be promoted in locations that are well
connected to jobs, services, infrastructure and amenities by public

Page 150



7.2.20

7.2.21

7.2.22

transport, walking and cycling’.

Massing and heights

There have been a number of objections to the proposed 7 storey height of the
building with the existing terrace being only 2 storeys in height. However, there
are a number of factors to be considered in determining if the height can be
justified. Whilst the proposed building would have a maximum height of 7 storeys,
it must be noted that the application site sits within the Town Centre boundary
where existing taller buildings already exist (including the adjacent 14 storey
Council Office and 4 storey commercial building at Morden Tube Station) and
where is can be expected that more taller buildings would be directed in the
future. In officers opinion, whilst the proposed building would result in a larger
building on the plot, the increased height is not considered to be overall tall or
out of keeping given the existing and emerging context. In terms of future and
emerging context, the application site is located adjacent to the boundary of the
Morden Regeneration Zone where regeneration of the area will include taller and
more dense buildings. If should also be noted that the application site was shown
on the indicative image in the Masterplan drawings as a taller building
(application site with red dot). Noted that the image below is not an approved
master plan in terms of actual building heights (that would follow at a detailed
design stages), however if gives indication of the growth direction for the area.

Extract from Masterplan:

From a design perspective, the taller 7 storey element on the corner section of
the site, is considered to be a sound approach in townscape terms. This element
is considered to respect the context of the site and its town centre setting. The
building would lower in height towards the rear of the site with a stepped down
approach to four storeys adjacent to the more low-rise 2 storey houses in
Windermere Avenue. Whilst this four storey element would sit higher than the
adjacent two storey housing, the four storey element would be set away from the
rear boundary and adjacent houses by approx. 5.7m which would assist in
creating a suitable buffer of height transition within this street scene elevation.

Officers acknowledge that the proposals would result in an uplift in both bulk and
height when viewed in context with the adjoining and adjacent terraces.

Page 151



7.2.23

7.2.24

7.2.25

7.2.26

7.2.27

However, given the site location within the town centre it is highly likely that this
part of the town centre will see growth and naturally result in more taller and bulky
buildings. The proposed treatment to the west elevation has therefore resulted
in new windows or opening facing east to ensure that the proposed development
does not hinder the potential for adjoining sites coming forward for
redevelopment. The treatment of the east elevation would also include brick
detailing to ensure that the wall does not appear as bland elevation as it could
be sometime before adjacent site come forward of redevelopment.

It should also be noted that the Councils Design Officer has raised no objections
to the proposals and the Councils Design and Review Panel were unanimous
that the form, massing and height were appropriate for the site.

Character and Appearance

The proposed hotel use would operate in a building that has been specifically
designed for this purpose and would respond to the town centre location. Whilst
there are some flats on the floors above the commercial uses the character of
this section of Crown Lane is commercial and as such the use would be
considered to accord with the character of the area albeit there is a residential
hinterland.

As set out above, the building height would have a staggered approach to respect
each of the character areas of the site, with Crown Lane being a more town
centre setting and Windermere Avenue moving into a more low-rise residential
environment. This change in character is reflected by not only the lowering height
of the building but the treatment and proportions of the ground floor. The corner
section of the building has a more grand ground floor treatment, with a distinctive
corner feature to mark the entrance to the hotel and double height framing, whilst
on the Windermere Avenue frontage, the proportions of the elevation treatment
reduce in form towards the rear of the site to respond to the more residential
setting.

The choice of brick as the main elevation treatment is welcomed by officers as it
will give the building a strong presence within the street and will help prolong the
quality of the building (rather than the use of render or panels which are often
used on hotels). Framing details and more verticality to the windows (as
requested by the Councils Desing officer) better reflect the building overall. The
corner to be accentuated with glazed green tiles is supported by providing some
visual interest to the scheme and placemaking the entrance to the building from
longer distances. The building includes signage both at higher and lower levels.
Again, this adds interest to the design (acknowledging its past) and con be
controlled via a planning condition. An addition, a planning condition will also be
placed on the development to remove PD rights so that the Council has full
control over any future advertisement to ensure a high quality finish.

Impact on the Merton Park Conservation Area was raised in the objections but
the site is not adjacent, or even very close to the CA and any views that might
be possible of the hotel would be seen in the context of the backdrop of the Civic
centre which is twice the height.

Page 152



7.2.28

7.2.29

7.2.30

7.2.31

7.2.32

7.2.33

Layout

At the pre application stage in consultation with officers and with the DRP a
number of issues were found with the proposed layout. Through a series of
changes the ground floor layout was significantly amended and improved in order
to ensure a better guest experience and to make the facilities more workable. It
would now be possible to keep the back of house activities separate from the
front of house activities and the design is such that the ground floor area would
offer good levels of natural surveillance for this junction and the restaurant would
be an addition to the night time economy and widen the choice of restaurant
facilities in the area for both guests and local residents.

The layout of the development is now considered to be logical, with non-public
spaces being moved, a ground floor restaurant providing an active frontage and
the upper floors providing a satisfactory hotel layout. TfL had suggested that
there should be direct access from the bike store into the main lobby of the hotel
however this is considered by officers to be unreasonable to redesign the building
to facilitate this given the low level of likely use and the short distance that would
need to be walked to go from the store and in through the main doors. The
relatively limited footprint for the upper floors being set back from the adjoining
site has limited the overall level of space that is available. Whilst officers consider
that hallways look fairly narrow for a hotel use, the applicant has confirmed that
is meets their requirements. commercial decision by the applicant and not a
matter upon which a refusal could be justified.

Shop front and signage

The proposed ground floor has been designed to respect the commercial nature
of the building which would conform to its commercial setting. Condition 38 has
been recommended to remove permitted development rights relating to
advertisement (Deemed Advertisement Consent) so that the Council can ensure
that the building retains suitable advertisements that respect the terrace and
design of the original building.

Design Review Panel

The design of the building has been subject to various design iterations following
discussions with planning officers at the pre application stage and following the
Design Review Panel comments and suggestions prior to submission of the
application and further minor changes in response to the Council’s Urban Design
Officer's comments.

As set out in the accompanying Design and Access Statement Part 5 the
applicants have considered to have made efforts to incorporate design features
such as window design, banding features, brick choice and bonding design.
Whilst the DRP were unsupportive of the lightweight materials for the top floor it
is considered that there is merit in this choice as it is a commonly used method
for reducing the visual impact of the upper levels. Had the applicants sought a
more functional render finish to the rear elevations this may have given more
weight to concerns about using the cladding.

Design (conclusion)

In conclusion, officers consider that the proposed building is well designed and

Page 153



7.2.34

7.2.35

7.2.36

7.2.37

7.2.38

would respond to the context of the site. The proposed development is
considered to satisfy London Plan policy D3 which states:

Optimising site capacity means ensuring that development is of the most
appropriate form and land use for the site. The design-led approach
requires consideration of design options to determine the most
appropriate form of development that responds to a site’s context and
capacity for growth, and existing and planned supporting infrastructure
capacity’

Wind tunnel effects

A number of objections were received asserting that the height of the scheme
was such that in conjunction with its proximity to the Civic Centre it would result
in dangerous wind conditions for pedestrians and cyclists. In order to address
these concerns the applicants commissioned a Pedestrian Wind Comfort report
which undertook assessments to understand whether there would be a change
to the microclimate and if there was, whether this would be materially detrimental
to pedestrian and cycle users around the site.

The assessment was undertaken using a specialist computational fluid dynamics
(CDF) software applied to a 3D computer model of the surrounding area
provided, using an Accurcity 3D contextual model. The historical meteorological
data that was applied uses statistical information on an hourly-averaged wind
speeds by direction. The analysis was undertaken using the principles set out in
the Lawson Criteria which is the method used for anticipating wind effects in the
built environment and sets out comfort criteria thresholds for certain activities.

The report acknowledges that CFD wind modelling is not an exact science but
states that it can be used to demonstrate if there is a difference in the wind
microclimate between the existing and proposed situation and is a widely
recognised method for modelling air flows to simulate the flow of oncoming wind
around buildings. It uses steady flow assumptions and provides a good indication
of the locations of high wind speeds. The model excludes both soft and hard
landscaping and as a result represents the worst-case scenario. Landscaping
generally improves the wind environment.

The modelling shows that there is very little difference between the existing and
proposed scenarios and is appropriate for walking in relation to both the Annual
Assessment and the Worst Case Scenario. The report undertook a Strong Wind
assessment which identified that there is a very small area of distressed
conditions in both the Existing scenarios for ‘members of the general public’ and
“frail persons or cyclists. It is noted that in the Proposed scenario, this is no longer
the case and the proposal would therefore actually improve the current situation.

The report concludes that the proposed development would have no noticeable
effect on pedestrian comfort nor distress to ‘members of the general public’ or
“frail or cyclists” with regards to wind around it in comparison with the existing
scenario. Consequently, it is considered that the issue of microclimate impacts
would not be grounds for a refusal of the application.

Page 154



7.3
7.3.39

7.3.40

7.3.41

7.3.42

7.3.43

7.3.44

7.3.45

The impact of the development on neighbour amenity

Planning Policy D6 (Housing quality and standards) of the London Plan 2021
states that the design of development should provide sufficient daylight and
sunlight to new and surrounding housing that is appropriate for its context, whilst
avoiding overheating, minimising overshadowing and maximising the usability of
outside amenity space.

Planning policy CS policy 14 of Merton’s Core Planning Strategy and policy DM
D2 of Merton’s Sites and Policies Plan seek to ensure new developments does
not unacceptably impact on the amenities of the occupiers of any adjoining and
nearby surrounding properties. Planning policy DM D2 (Design considerations in
all developments) states that amongst other planning considerations that
proposals will be expected to ensure provision of appropriate levels of sunlight
and daylight, quality of living conditions, amenity space and privacy, to both
proposed and adjoining buildings and gardens.

Policy DM EP2 (Reducing and mitigating noise) states that development which
would have a significant effect on existing or future occupiers or local amenity
due to noise or vibration will not be permitted unless the potential noise problems
can be overcome by suitable mitigation measures.

There have been a number of objections in relation to the impact on neighbour
amenity, predominantly in relation to loss of light, privacy and visual intrusion due
to the height and scale of the proposal.

Sun and Daylight

The Building Research Establishment (BRE) numerical guidelines should be
considered in the context of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF),
which stipulates that local planning authorities should take a flexible approach
to daylight and sunlight to ensure the efficient use of land. The NPPF states:

‘Local planning authorities should refuse applications which they
consider fail to make efficient use of land, taking into account the policies
in this Framework. In this context, when considering applications for
housing, authorities should take a flexible approach in applying policies
or guidance relating to daylight and sunlight, where they would otherwise
inhibit making efficient use of a site (as long as the resulting scheme
would provide acceptable living standards).”

The applicant has submitted an independent sun, daylight and overshadowing
report produced by CHP Surveyors. The report which utilised BRE guidelines to
identify that 3 neighbouring properties which have windows overlooking the site,
numbers 1 & 2 Windermere Avenue and 34 Crown Lane.

Daylight

The numerical values contained in the BRE guidelines are used to establish
whether the proposals will have a significant effect on the daylight enjoyed by the
neighbouring properties and are based initially on a Vertical Sky Component

Page 155



7.3.46

7.3.47

7.3.48

7.3.49

7.3.50

7.3.51

(VSC) analysis. This analysis establishes the amount of available daylight
received directly from the sky for each individual window. The reference point for
this analysis is the centre point of the window. This analysis advises that each
window should achieve a VSC of 27% or 0.8 times the existing value. These
values are for a suburban location whereas for an urban location, a VSC of 20%
is considered more appropriate.

The second analysis is the No Sky Line (NSL) or Daylight Distribution analysis.
This assesses the change in position of the No Sky Line between the existing
and proposed situations. It does not consider the number and size of windows to
a room. The criteria specify that a significant portion of each habitable room
(>80%), at least 0.8 times the existing area, should lie in front of the No Sky Line
(NSL)

The report's daylight assessment considered 33 windows within those
neighbouring properties that serve 12 rooms. The results of the analysis show
that 30 (91%) of the windows and 12 (100%) of the rooms will fully comply with
the BRE guidelines. Concerning the three windows to No.2A Windermere
Avenue that do not achieve the guidelines, these are secondary high-level
windows in the flank elevation, close to the site boundary.

Sunlight

Concerning sunlight, the BRE guidelines advise that all windows within 90
degrees of due south should achieve 25% of the Annual Probable Sunlight Hours
(APSH) with at least 5% during the winter months. Where this is not achieved
and the different between the existing and proposed APSH is more than 4%, the
BRE guidelines state that the proposals will not have a noticeable effect on the
sunlight, provided the total APSH, as well as during the winter months, are within
0.8 times the existing.

In relation to sunlight the report considered nine rooms within the neighbouring
properties. And found that all nine (100%) would achieve the BRE guidelines.

Detailed site specific findings are set out in sections 8 & 9 of that report.

Overshadowing

This considers the potential impact on amenity spaces for nearby residential
properties. Utilising relevant BRE guidelines the report found that:

‘the only neighbouring properties that have amenity space that needs to
be considered are 2, 4 and 6 Windermere Avenue. This demonstrates
that in relation to No.2, the rear garden currently has 39% of its area that
will enjoy 2 hrs and that with the implementation of the proposals, 38%
(0.98 times existing) will enjoy this. With regards to the rear gardens to
4 and 6 Windermere Avenue, the proposals will see no change, with in
both instances 67% of the garden enjoying at least 2 hrs of direct sunlight
on the 21st March in both the existing and proposed situation. The
proposals will therefore not have a significant implication on the direct
sunlight enjoyed by the amenity space’.

The applicant has subsequently provided a ‘Surrounding Amenity Contour’ plan
compiled by CHP Surveyors that shows not only the results of the permanent

Page 156



7.3.52

7.3.53

7.3.54

7.3.55

7.3.56

shadow analysis for the Windermere Avenue properties, but also the Grasmere
Properties, where the proposals will see no change to their gardens.

Based on these findings officers consider that the applicant has demonstrated
that the proposal would not have a materially harmful impact on neighbour
amenity in relation to light that would provide robust reasons for refusal.

Loss of privacy

The proposals have been designed so that the majority of guest rooms would be
orientated towards the non residential uses along Crown Lane and away from
the residential properties to the rear of the site whilst those on the first three floors
of the rearmost elevation would have privacy louvres. Those windows that do
have unobstructed views in the western most rooms are more than 25m from the
side of 2a Windermere Road. Consequently it is considered that the proposals
would cause no material harm to the privacy amenity of neighbouring residents.

Visual intrusion

The new hotel’s position would be such that it would be at right angles to the front
of houses in Windermere Avenue and very few properties look directly at the
proposal site and for many the new building would be viewed against the
backdrop of the Civic Centre.

2A Windermere Avenue

Located directly to the north of the application site, this neighbour sits at a right
angle to the application site. The majority of the proposed building would sit
adjacent to the flank wall of this neighbouring property. This neighbour has three
flank windows in its side elevation facing towards the application site, two being
high level ground floor windows and a first floor window serving a habitable room.
Whilst part of the frontage of the proposed building would project approx. 6.9m
beyond the frontage of this neighbour, there would be a approx. 5.8m wide gap
between the two sites. Due to the orientation of the neighbour and separation
distance above, it is considered that levels of outlook from the front and rear
openings would not be adversely affected. Whilst there would be views of the
proposed building from this neighbours flank windows, the ground floor windows
are intended for light rather than outlook whilst the first floor window serves as a
secondary window, a degree of separation between the sites would still remain
and given the location of the windows on the flank of the property, these are
relying of levels of outlook across land outside its ownership. Therefore, whilst
there would be a degree of impact on outlook from the side windows, for the
reasons stated above this is not considered to result in adverse loss of amenity
to warrant refusal of planning permission (especially when considering the highly
urban setting)

In relation to the impact of noise from the rear service area of the hotel the only
vehicle of note would be the refuse vehicle which already services the properties
along this part of Crown Lane. The proposed bin stores, bike stores and 2
disabled parking bays would be provided adjacent to the rear access road which
is in use by other businesses on this parade. The facilities ancillary with the use
of the hotel would be primarily located to the flank of this neighbouring property
and separated by the access road. Given the limited uses of these areas, it is

Page 157



7.3.57

7.3.58

7.3.59

7.3.60

7.3.61

considered that there would be no adverse disturbance caused to this
neighbouring property.

The sun and day light report states there would be three windows that do not
achieve the BRE guidelines but these are secondary high-level windows in the
flank elevation, close to the site boundary. All other windows comply with the
BRE guidelines. Therefore, whilst secondary windows fail the BRE guidelines,
the rooms it serves are well lit by their main source from either the front or back
opening, ensuring that adequate light levels are retained to ensure that there
would be no undue loss of amenity.

2B & 2C Windermere Avenue

Originally recorded as r/o 34 Crown Lane this is a two-storey building in
residential use that has been subdivided into two flats apparently without the
benefit of planning permission. The ground floor unit has two windows facing the
site (the rearmost one experiences overshadowing form the existing
arrangements on site) the upper unit has one centrally positioned window facing
the site. Whilst officers note that there would be some visual impact from the
proposed development. Given the level of separation between these
neighbouring properties and the application site and the highly urban setting
(town centre), it is considered that there would be no undue loss of these
neighbours amenity.

2 - 6 Windermere Avenue

Located to the north of 2A Windermere Avenue, the properties are a continuation
of the terrace which is orientated at a right angle to the application site. The
proposed building would therefore have no undue impact light levels or outlook
from the front and rear windows/doors. As set out in the sun and daylight report,
the rear gardens of these neighbouring properties would see no change to
sunlight levels with 67% of both rear gardens still enjoying at least 2 hrs of direct
sunlight on the 21st March in both the existing and proposed situation.

1 Windermere Avenue

This property is aligned at 90 degrees to the application site but would be visible
due to the nature of the oriel window on the closest corner at first floor level. The
windows in the side elevation appear to serve a bathroom at first floor level and
high level garage windows at ground level. There would be a good level of
separation between the application site and this neighbour and consequently it
is considered that the orientation of the two sites is such that the proposal would
not sit directly in line of site from the habitable windows, therefore visual intrusion
would be sufficiently mitigated.

3 - 5 Windermere Avenue

Located to the north of 1 Windermere Avenue, the properties are a continuation
of the terrace which is orientated at a right angle to the application site. The
proposed building would therefore have no undue impact on light levels or
outlook from the front and rear windows/doors as has been demonstrated on the
Surrounding Amenity Contour plan.

Page 158



7.3.62

7.3.63

7.3.64

7.3.65

7.3.66

7.3.67

7.3.68

24 Crown Lane

These neighbours rear windows face towards the rear section of the application
site, however given the commercial nature of this property there would be no
undue loss of amenity.

26 Crown Lane

This property is used as an undertakers and is situated in the same parade as
the application site. This neighbouring property has an existing part single, part
two storey rear wing which extends a considerable distance to the rear of the
site. The flank wall of the rear wing facing the application site has no windows
and the end of the wing is well distanced away from the proposed building to
ensure that there would be undue impact in terms of outlook and light.

16 Crown Lane

This neighbouring property is within a commercial use, therefore there would be
no undue loss of amenity.

12 &14 Crown Lane

Both units are commercial at ground floor level and are in residential use at first
floor. The rear facing windows are also north facing. Therefore, it is considered
that given the oblique angling towards the rear of the application site, combined
with the level of separation, there would be no undue loss of amenity.

Crown Lane (1-10 Crown Parade)

Located to the south of the application site, the buildings opposite the site are
commercial use at ground floor level with Council offices above. Given the
commercial nature of the uses, there would be no undue loss of amenity.

Noise and disturbance

The hotel would be orientated towards the town centre and the principal routes
of access from the underground station and bus routes. There would be no
shortcut route and therefore the main access would be via the busy commercially
orientated Crown Lane. It can be reasonably anticipated that foot traffic from and
along residential neighbourhoods would be minimal. With no function rooms as
part of the proposal, any source of noise would be from the hotel rooms and
ground floor restaurant/bar. The applicant has stated that the primary use of the
ground restaurant/bar would be for use of guests but would also be open to the
public. With such uses, a degree of noise would be generated from coming and
going and noise from within the unit. In this instance, the use is confined to the
ground floor only with no external amenity space being proposed. The site is
located in a town centre location which provides the best environment for such
uses. Planning conditions relating to opening hours and separate control within
the Council (licencing) can limit any impact on surrounding residential properties.

The use of the building as a hotel would also generate some noise and
disturbance on the surroundings, however it is not expected that the use would
generate large numbers of persons all arriving or leaving the building together at
anyone time to justify refusal of planning permission, especially given the town

Page 159



7.3.69

7.3.70

7.4
7.4.71

7.4.72

centre location and other background noise. Given the location of the site and
routes towards public transport infrastructure, any persons traveling to and from
the site would generally travel along the high streets and avoid adjacent
residential streets, thus reducing any potential impact.

The proposed plant for the hotel would be located on the roof at 41" floor level.
The proposed plant would be well distanced away from surrounding residential
properties to ensure that there would be no undue loss of amenity. The hotel
rooms would not have openable windows or balconies and therefore limited
potential for noise emissions. Noise from plant has been assessed by the
Council’s Environmental health Officer who has raised no objection and has
recommended conditions to restrict any noise emissions.

Conclusion on impact on neighbouring amenity

The supporting documentation demonstrates that any shadows and
overshadowing fall within the acceptable allowances set out within BRE
Guidance whilst through a combination of the distances involved and the use of
privacy tools such as louvres it is considered that sufficient measures would be
in place to protect neighbour privacy. The position of the proposed hotel in
relation to residential neighbours and Morden Town centre is such that it is
considered that impacts of noise and disturbance on amenity would not form
robust grounds for refusal.

Site security

Developments should provide a safe and secure environment for residents and
visitors and any application should take account of Safer by Design principles.
The applicant heeded the pre application advice to liaise with Metropolitan Police
SBD officers for advice prior to submitting an application to the Council to ensure
the development will provide a safe and secure environment for occupiers.
Consequently, discussions were held with PC Neal Micklewright, Designing Out
Crime Officer, at the London Safety Centre to ensure the Safer by Design

principles were met.

The officer made a number of recommendations and the applicants response to
each is in italics;

e Consideration to the ground floor layout in particular, the bar area in relation
to the main entrance - Relocation of the bar to increase separation distances
to the main entrance.

e Consider lift access requirements. - The lifts would controlled by key card
access.

e Recommend doorways rated to LPS1175 standard to prevent unauthorised
entry. - All entrance doorways to meet the advised standard.

e Ensure street level planting does not block surveillance. In addition planting
can attract litter and antisocial behaviour. - The landscaping layout has been
re-considered in line with the SBD principles whilst also providing an element
of soft landscaping to soften the building, in accordance with the DRP
comments.

Page 160



7.4.73

7.5
7.5.1

7.5.2

7.5.3

e Controlled side door access onto Crown Lane to avoid unauthorised public
access. - Incorporated into the plans.

e To consider installing gate to main access. - A sliding gate has been
incorporated into the plans.

e Consider security of the undercroft area to avoid rough sleeping. - The
undercroft area to the rear of the site is now enclosed and monitored by
CCTV.

e Bike storage to be secured. - The cycle parking area to the rear of the site is
now secure and CCTV would be incorporated.

e Applicant/ operator to be aware of hiring protocol and vetting procedures. -
The hotel operator would abide by standard hiring protocol and vetting
procedures.

There have been objections to the proposals on the grounds that a hotel would
be a centre for anti-social behaviour but officers are unaware of this being an
issue at any other hotel in the borough and there is no realistic reason to
anticipate that this would be an issue with this proposal. Additionally, with the
increasing importance of a favourable on-line presence and good reviews it
would not be in an operators interest to tolerate anti-social behaviour at their site.

Transport, Parking and servicing

Policy T6 of the London Plan states that the Mayor will support developments,
which generate high levels of trips at locations with high levels of public transport
accessibility and which improves the capacity and accessibility of public
transport, walking and cycling. At a local level Policy CS.19 of the Core Planning
Strategy states that the Council will ensure that proposals do not have an
adverse effect on transport within the vicinity of the site. Policy CS.18 promotes
active transport and encourages design that provides attractive, safe, covered
cycle parking.

Context

The A24 Crown Lane is a single carriageway road subject to a 30mph speed
limit, that operates two lanes of traffic in an eastbound direction adjacent to the
site. It forms the northern side of a three-sided gyratory around Merton Civic
Centre, with all three sides forming part of the A24. Crown Lane, and all three
sides of the gyratory, are part of the TfL Red Route network. Stopping on Crown
Lane is prohibited between 07:00 and 19:00, Monday to Saturday, except within
marked bays.

Car Parking

Core Strategy Policy CS 20 requires proposals not to have a negative impact in
terms of parking, pedestrian movement, safety, serving and loading facilities for
local businesses and manoeuvring for emergency vehicles as well as refuse
storage and collection. London Plan policy T6.4 relates specifically to hotel
parking and states:

‘Hotel and leisure uses should be located in accessible locations to
encourage walking, cycling and public transport use’ and that ‘locations

Page 161



7.5.4

7.5.5

7.5.6

7.5.7

7.5.8

7.5.9

7.5.10

of PTAL 4-6, any on-site provision should be limited to operational
needs, disabled persons parking and parking required for taxis, coaches
and deliveries or servicing'.

There have been concerns raised by objectors in relation to additional parking
and traffic issues relating to the proposed uses. The proposals would only
provide two dedicated disabled car parking spaces. No other general car parking
would be provided onsite. The site is situated within an area with the second best
possible PTAL rating of 6a being 100m from the Northern Line tube station and
a number of bus routes as well as being within relatively easy walking distance
of two mainline train stations and two tram stops. Given the excellent public
transport infrastructure close to the application site, visitors are likely to use
sustainable modes of transport, particularly given that no onsite car parking is
available (apart from 2 disabled spaces) and the surrounding area is controlled
by parking zones. In addition, hotel booking sites make it clear if any parking is
available either on site or in the locality and there are public car parks nearby if
guests did not want to avail themselves of public transport.

The car free approach is considered to be inline with planning policy and
sustainable transport initiatives. Additional car movements and impact on
surrounding street car parking is therefore considered to be fairly low given no
general parking is provided onsite and surround roads are within controls parking
zones.

Consequently, there are not considered to be any grounds upon which parking
would form a robust reason for refusal of the application.

Cycle parking

Planning Policy TS (Cycling) of the London Plan 2021 states that development
proposals should help remove barriers to cycling and create a healthy
environment in which people choose to cycle.

London Plan policy T5 states that for hotels there should be a provision of one
bicycle space for staff for every twenty bedrooms and therefore as the figures
are rounded up there should be five spaces provided. For hotel guests the ratio
is one space for every fifty rooms and therefore a minimum of two spaces should
be provided or them.

As set out in the accompanying Transport Statement it is proposed that the
development will provide seven long-stay cycle parking spaces to the rear of the
site, in the form of three two-tier stands (providing six spaces), and one space
provided for a larger cycle. These would be available for use by staff. One
Sheffield stand (providing two spaces) would also be provided to accommodate
short-stay cycle parking for hotel guests at the front of the site where the existing
open cycle parking area is.

Servicing and deliveries

Policy CS20 of Merton’s Core Planning Strategy states that the Council will
require developments to incorporate safe access to and from the public highway
as well as on-site parking and manoeuvring for emergency vehicles, refuse
storage and collection, and for service and delivery vehicles.

Page 162



7.5.11

7.5.12

7.5.13

7.5.14

7.5.15

At pre application stage the applicant engaged in discussions with Transport for
London who are responsible for Crown Lane as well as Council Officers and as
a result a Delivery and Servicing Plan was submitted with the application. The
report for this plan states that it is anticipated that using delivery vehicles between
10 am and 13m in length there would be the following regular deliveries weekly;

Approx 6x linen deliveries.

Approx 3x food supply/other consumables deliveries
1x alcohol delivery

Approx 3x refuse and recycling collections

Given the constraints of the site, it is not physically possible to accommodate an
on-site loading bay without requiring a large proportion of the site for vehicle
manoeuvring. On Crown Lane, adjacent to the western corner of the site, bays
are provided on both sides of the carriageway. The southern side of the
carriageway includes two disabled bays with no time restrictions, along with a
29m parking bay with a 30-minute restriction. The northern side of the
carriageway includes a 23m layby which permits disabled parking for up to 3
hours, or loading for up to 20 minutes, and a 16m layby which permits parking
for up to 30 minutes. All of these restrictions are enforced during the same time
frames as the red route restrictions (07:00 to 19:00, Monday to Saturday). The
Transport Statement report also identifies that an existing loading bay is provided
on Crown Lane, adjacent to the southwest corner of the site, which can also be
used for disabled parking. Additional short-stay parking bays that can be used
for loading are provided immediately to the west of this loading bay on Crown
Lane as well as adjacent to the east of the site on Windermere Avenue.

The applicant has stated that the proposed hotel use is likely to result in a
significantly reduced impact on the existing on-street loading facilities on Crown
Lane compared to the currently consented use. The Councils Transport Planner
has not contested this claim and raises no objection to the proposal. In any event,
officers still consider that there is sufficient existing capacity to cater for the
proposed demand, i.e. two vehicles per day.

It will be ensured that all deliveries are scheduled outside the network peak hours
of 08:00-10:00 and 16:00-18:00. Servicing will also be encouraged to take place
during the least busy periods of the day, i.e. not during peak hours. Delivery
companies would be advised of the current on-street loading opportunities and
restrictions with servicing vehicles for items such as linen and food deliveries
would utilise the existing loading bays in front of and close to the site on Crown
Lane. Refuse vehicles would, in agreement with TfL, continue to service the site
from the rear on Windermere Avenue. Suppliers will be requested to use low or
zero emission modes of transport.

Refuse and recycling

The refuse stores for the hotel would be located at the rear of the site within a
dedicated refuse store designed to facilitate the provision of the required refuse
and recycling containers for a development of this size. The store can be
accessed from Windermere Avenue with the refuse wagon being able to reverse
onto the site so that it can exit in forward gear. The Councils waste officer has

Page 163



7.5.16

7.517

7.5.18

7.5.19

7.5.20

7.5.21

raised no objections to the proposed arrangement.

Trip Generation

Given that very limited car parking is provided onsite, the number of private
vehicles traveling to and from the site is considered to be limited. The application
was accompanied by a transport statement which included a trip generation
assessment across various forms of transport. The report states that:

‘the proposed hotel is anticipated to generate a low number of trips
across all modes. It is estimated that the development will generate 16
trips in the AM peak and 13 trips in the PM peak on London buses, while
the London underground is anticipated to see approximately 10 and 8
trips generated in the AM and PM peaks respectively’.

Even if the numbers using the tube were to be higher than the 21% forecast and
all residents used the tube, one train leaves Morden every two minutes and it
would be anticipated that a maximum 170 extra passengers could be readily
accommodated on board.

The proposals are therefore not considered to cause an unacceptable impact on
local transport provision.

Travel plan

The application was accompanied by a Travel Plan Statement. The Travel Plan
Statement is primarily directed at ensuring that staff and guests at the site are
aware of the travel choices available to them. Given the development is car free
it also seeks to give encouragement to use active modes of transport by providing
information on travel choices. The requirements of the travel plan and its
monitoring can be secured via a S106 agreement.

Construction of Development

The site location is at the junction of a busy TfL red route road with a residential
road with limited parking and therefore consideration must be given to how any
development will impact the road network during the construction process.
London Plan policy T7 Deliveries, servicing and construction addresses these
issues and states that Construction Logistics Plans and Delivery and Servicing
Plans will be required and should be developed in accordance with Transport for
London guidance and in a way which reflects the scale and complexities of
developments.

The applicant has submitted an outline Construction Logistics Plan. It was
compiled in accordance with the Transport for London (TfL) Construction
Logistics Plan Guidance for Developers and following feedback in Pre-
application discussions with LBM and TfL. The outline CLP sets out a number of
objectives to;

e Ensure safety adjacent to the site along Crown Lane and Windermere
Avenue, including employing traffic marshals to ensure the safety of
pedestrians and cyclists adjacent to the site;

e Reduce the number of construction vehicles to the site particularly during
peak periods - Reduced vehicle trips overall associated with the

Page 164



7.5.22

7.5.23

7.5.24

7.5.25

7.5.26

7.6
7.6.27

7.6.28

construction of the development, especially in peak periods through
measures such as the staff travel plan, scheduling deliveries outside peak
hours and the re-use of materials; and

e Ensure construction vehicles utilise strategic roads for routing purposes.

The proposed construction access and loading strategy would have limited
impact on the Crown Lane section of the red route, with all loading and unloading
activities associated with the construction of the scheme proposed within the site
or on Windermere Avenue. However, integration with the Crown Lane frontage
of the site would be considered during all stages of the demolition and
construction of the development. Some of the parking bays on Windermere
Avenue that form part of the red route will be suspended for periods of the
demolition and construction phases, which is explored in more detail in the CLP.
TfL confirmed that this would be the most appropriate location for loading
activities during the construction phase.

Construction vehicles would stick to the main roads approaching the site rather
than local residential roads.

During the construction phase, given the constrained nature of the site, it is not
possible for construction vehicles to enter the site. Therefore, it is proposed that
13.6m of the on-street parking provision (approximately three spaces) on the
west side of Windermere Avenue are suspended during the construction phase,
with a temporary construction loading bay implemented on-street. On arrival at
the site, construction vehicles would reverse into the access track and then enter
the proposed on-street loading bay in a forward gear. Construction vehicles
would then be able to depart the loading bay in a forward gear routing
southbound on Windermere Avenue.

It should be noted that as a construction contractor has not been appointed a full
Construction Logistics Plan would need to be commissioned, submitted and
approved at a later date. This can be controlled via a suitable planning conditions
requiring further details once known.

Conclusion of transport matters

The applicants undertook pre application discussions with TfL and the results of
that work have been incorporated into the scheme currently before members.
Serving of the development can occur using the existing servicing bays in front
of the site with refuse collections taking place at the rear. The location of the site
within very close proximity to excellent public transport connections combined
with its largely car free nature means that the proposals are not considered to
have such an impact on transport infrastructure as to make the proposals
unacceptable.

Biodiversity

Policy G6 of the London Plan sets out that development proposals should
manage impacts on biodiversity and aim to secure net biodiversity gain.

Whilst the site appears to have no biodiversity assets given that it is either
covered with buildings or is a hard surface car parking, it was identified in the
accompanying Preliminary Ecological Appraisal (PEA) that at the rear of the

Page 165



7.6.29

7.6.30

7.6.31

7.7
7.7.32

7.7.33

buildings, adjacent to Windermere Avenue the site supported some species. The
site investigation offered no evidence of roosting bats, nesting birds or mammals
such as hedgehogs.

The scheme includes providing two sources of greening, the large planters to the
front and those inside the ground floor along with sections of living wall on the
frontage. On the roof there would be blue/green roof that would be utilised to
absorb and slowly release rainwater whilst providing a grass based environment
for biodiversity in an area that would be subjected to limited human involvement
being located on the roofs. The PEA recommends the use of Schwegler brick
nest boxes which can be inserted in to the walls, along with Schwegler Sparrow
Terraces and the use and blue and green roofs suitably planted with wildflowers.

Recommendations for enhancements have been made within the report, aimed
at improving the ecological value of the site and providing a net gain in
biodiversity post-development and a condition requiring the development be
completed in accordance with the recommendation in the PEA is recommended.

Overall, biodiversity on the site would be improved and there would be an overall
biodiversity net gain.

Urban Greening Factor

In accordance with the green infrastructure Development Plan policies, any
planning application for this ‘predominantly commercial’ development will have
to demonstrate the inclusion of appropriate urban greening measures to achieve
an Urban Greening Factor score of 0.3 and to demonstrate that the proposals
will result in biodiversity gains. The application was accompanied by an Urban
Greening Factor Calculation plan that showed that through the use of extensive
blue roofs and permeable paving there would be a resultant UGF of 0.53 which
would exceed the policy requirement.

In order to mitigate any potential environmental impacts from the construction
process the applicants submitted a Construction Environmental Management
Plan compiled by NRG Consulting and dated September 2023. This outlines
proposals for the management of the process and covers such topics as

e General Site Waste Management

e \Waste Stream and Disposal

e Control of Dust and Emissions Methodology

e Sensitivity of Surrounding Environment

e Overall Dust Risks

e Dust, PM10, and NOx Emissions Control Measures
e PM10 Compliant Site Monitoring Procedures and Protocols
e Construction Noise Assessment

¢ Noise Monitoring

e Construction Vibration Assessment

e NRMM and NRMM Registration

Page 166



7.8
7.8.34

7.8.35

7.8.36

7.8.37

7.9
7.9.1

7.9.2

Sustainable design and construction

The London Plan requires that development proposals should make the fullest
contribution to minimising carbon dioxide emissions in accordance with the
Mayor’s energy hierarchy. Merton’s Core Planning Strategy Policy CS15 Climate
Change (parts a-d) requires new developments to make effective use of
resources and materials, minimise water use and CO2 emissions.

The application was accompanied by a Sustainability and Energy Statement, a
Ventilation strategy and a BREEAM Report.

The Sustainability and Energy Statement identifies that the main (58.12%)
energy use of the development would be in the production of hot water for the
guest rooms. A number of different energy sources have been considered with
Photo voltaic panels being the only suitable form of alternative energy provision.

The applicant has undertaken protracted discussions with the Council’s climate
change team on the scheme who recognise that the nature of a hotel operation
is such that it can be difficult to align that operation with overly rigid and
prescriptive criteria. The Councils Climate Change Officer was satisfied with the
proposals and noted that the applicant is also proposing good fabric standards
which go beyond the Part L 2021 notional and Mechanical Ventilation with Heat
Recovery which all contribute to more savings through energy
efficiency. Relevant conditions have been recommended and a carbon offset
contribution figure of £81,058 has been derived.

Fire Safety

Planning Policy D12 (Fire safety) of the of the London Plan 2021 highlights that
fire safety of developments should be considered from the outset. How a building
will function in terms of fire, emergency evacuation, and the safety of all users
should be considered at the earliest possible stage to ensure the most successful
outcomes are achieved, creating developments that are safe and that Londoners
can have confidence living in and using.

All major development proposals should be submitted with a Fire Statement,
which is an independent fire strategy, produced by a third party, suitably qualified
assessor. The statement should detail how the development proposal will
function. The application is accompanied by a detailed Preliminary RIBA Stage
2 Fire Strategy by Orion Fire Engineering Ltd, which sets out that the building
has been designed and constructed in accordance with relevant fire safety
standards and regulations and includes features such as

e Each upper floor is served by either of two protected staircases, a
Category L1 fire alarm and detection system to BS5839-1.

e one evacuation lift is to be provided in the lift core, designed and installed
in accordance with BS EN 81-76

e Disabled refuges will be located in each of the protected staircases
serving the upper floors, as well as the lift lobby

e Automatic fire detectors installed in all rooms and areas of the building,

Page 167



7.9.3

7.10
7.10.4

7.10.5

7.11
7.11.6

detectors within escape routes with smoke detectors, multi-sensor
detectors conforming to the fire sensitivity requirements of BS EN 54-7 or
a mixture of smoke and combustion gas detectors.

e Manual Call Points (MCPs) located on escape routes

e The majority of the fire safety systems within the building will be provided
with secondary power supplies via integral back-up batteries.

e Emergency lighting provided in accordance with BS 5266.
e Car Park Ventilation System

Matters of fire safety would also be controlled by the Building Regulations.
However, the submission demonstrates that matters of fire safety have been
taken into account in the design and provides a satisfactory level of assurance
that measures of fire safety will be addressed.

Air quality

The site is located adjacent to a very busy road within an Air Quality Management
Area (AQMA) and in an Air Quality Focus Area (AQFA), which are declared due
to existing poor air quality. New developments should be designed so as to
reduce the risk to the health of future occupiers. In addition to Merton policy DM
EP 4 on air pollution London Plan 2021 Policy SI1 - Improving air quality, sets
out:

B.1. Development proposals should not: c) create unacceptable risk of
high levels of exposure to poor air quality.

B.2. In order to meet the requirements in Part 1 as a minimum: a)
development proposals must be at least Air Quality Neutral b)
development proposals should use design solutions to prevent or
minimise increased exposure to existing air pollution and make provision
to address local problems of air quality in preference to post design or
retro-fitted mitigation measures.

In line with the London Plan and Merton's Local Plan the Council requires all new
developments to be at least 'air quality neutral’. In addition, an Air Quality Neutral
Assessment should be carried out in line with Greater London Authority (GLA)
guidance. The application was accompanied by an amended Air Quality
Assessment Report and a Construction Environmental Management Plan.
Based on that information the Councils Environmental Health Officer has raise
no objections subject to conditions including a detailed Air Quality Dust
Management Plan and restrictions on Non-Road Mobile Machinery emissions
being imposed.

Flood risk and drainage,

Policy SI 13 of the London Plan (Sustainable drainage) sets out that development
proposals should aim to achieve greenfield run-off rates and ensure that surface

Page 168



7117

7.12
7.12.8

7.12.9

7.13
7.13.10

7.13.11

8.1.1

9.11

water run-off is managed as close to its source as possible. There should also
be a preference for green over grey features.

The site is located within Flood Zone 1 which confirms that there is a low
probability of flooding, but the application was submitted with a Flood Risk
Assessment and SuDS Strategy. This has been assessed by the Council’s Flood
Risk Engineers who raised no objection to the proposals subject to the imposition
of relevant conditions.

Site contamination

Although the site is in commercial use there appears to be no evidence it was
ever used for any purpose that would cause any increased risk of land
contamination although historical potential sites/sources of contamination were
identified in the Preliminary Risk Assessment that accompanied the application.
These have been subject to a risk estimation matrix assessment which indicates
a moderate to low risk with low to unlikely probability of impacts.

The report does note that the demolition of the existing buildings may involve
contact with asbestos and therefore a condition relating to potential
contamination being discovered and appropriately dealt with is recommended.

Archaeoloqgy

The application was accompanied by an Archaeological Desk Based
Assessment that identified that the site lies within the Tier Il Stane Street
(DLO37963) Archaeological Priority Area as designated by the London Borough
of Merton. This Archaeological Priority Area relates to the route of the Roman
Road, Stane Street and its periphery. Stane Street ran from London to
Chichester. This Archaeological Priority Area has been classified as Tier Il
because it is a corridor of land flanking the route of a Roman road with the
potential to reveal elements of the road itself or of roadside activity and
settlement.

Due to its location within an Archaeological Priority Zone the application has to
be assessed in relation to London Plan policy HC 1 and SPP policy DM D4 which
require that developments do not have a harmful impact on heritage assets. The
application and the assessment were looked at by Historic England who
considered that the proposal could harm archaeological remains and that a field
evaluation was needed. The Historic England Officer recommended that a two
stage condition could offer suitable safeguarding and protection of the historic
assets.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT

The application does not constitute Schedule 1 or Schedule 2 development.
Accordingly, there are no requirements in terms of EIA submission.

LOCAL FINANCE CONSIDERATIONS

Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) provides
that a local planning authority must have regard to a local finance consideration

Page 169



9.1.2

10.1.1

10.1.2

10.1.3

10.1.4

10.1.5

11.1.1

10.

11.

as far as it is material. The weight to be attached to a local finance consideration
remains a matter for the decision maker. The Mayor of London's CIL and Merton
CIL are therefore material considerations.

On initial assessment this development is considered liable for the Mayoral and
Merton CIL.

CONCLUSION

The site is located within Morden Town Centre and adjacent to the designated
regeneration area which has yet to see any meaningful regeneration
development undertaken. The principle of the development to provide a new
hotel use with ground floor restaurant is supported by officers, by bringing
employment opportunities to the area, supporting the town centre function and
supporting the planned regeneration of Morden.

The design of the building is considered to be good quality, offering a good
standard of accommodation for future guest of the hotel and visitors using the
ground floor restaurant. Whilst officers acknowledge that the building would be a
noticeable increase in building height, officers consider that the design is
optimising the potential of the site whilst respecting the context of the different
street frontages, with increased height being directed onto the more commercial
street setting and a stepped reduction in height towards the more low rise
suburban housing at the rear of the site. The design of the building has also
considered impact on neighbouring properties, with officers content that there
would be no adverse impact to warrant refusal of planning permission.

Given the location of the site in an area of excellent public transport
infrastructure, with the exception of 2 disable bays, the development would be a
car free development which includes on and off site cycle facilities, whereby
promoting sustainable forms of transport to and from the site. Impact on the
existing highway network and adjoining streets is considered to be modest given
the car free nature of the proposal and existing parking restrictions in the local
area. The proposal can be adequately serviced from the existing service bays on
Crown Lane and refuse collection can take place from the rear of the site. Both
TFL and the Councils Transport Planner have confirmed no objection to the
proposed development.

The accompanying microclimate report demonstrates that it would not create a
hazard to pedestrians and cyclists due to wind tunnel effects. All other planning
consideration set out in the report above are considered to be acceptable, with
internal and external consultees confirming no objection to their subject areas
subject to planning conditions.

Officers consider that the proposal is acceptable in planning terms, subject to
conditions and a legal agreement and therefore the recommendation is for
approval.

RECOMMENDATION

GRANT planning permission subject to conditions and s106 agreement securing
the following:

Page 170



e Carbon offsetting contribution £81,058
e Travel Plan

e Monitoring the travel plan over five years - A sum of £2,000 (two thousand
pounds) is sought.

e Provision of Tactile Paving at the junction of Mostyn Road and Martin Way

e The applicant covering the Council’s reasonable costs of all work in
drafting S106 and monitoring the obligations.

And the following conditions:

1.

4.

Commencement - The development to which this permission relates shall be
commenced not later than the expiration of 3 years from the date of this
permission.

Reason: To comply with Section 91 (as amended) of the Town & Country
Planning Act 1990.

. Approved Plans - Built to plans, Site location plan and drawings 0100 Rev 12,

0101 Rev 12, 0102 Rev 11, 0103 Rev 11, 0104 Rev 12, 0105 Rev 10, 0106
Rev 10, 0107 Rev 08, 0200 Rev 11, 0201 Rev 09, 0202 Rev 06, 0203 Rev
08, 0210 Rev 07 & 0400 Rev 03.

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning

Materials to be submitted - Prior to commencement of above ground works,
full details and samples of all materials to be used in the construction of the
external surfaces of the development hereby permitted shall be submitted to
and approved in writing by the local planning authority. Details must include
a detailed schedule of materials, physical examples of materials from the
manufacturer where appropriate, a photographic sample board, sample
panels where appropriate and notwithstanding the submitted drawings,
rendered drawings, elevations and sections at a scale of 1:20, showing details
of window reveals, glazing type, framing, glazing bars, cills, soffits and
brickwork detailing. The development shall be carried out only in accordance
with the agreed details.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory appearance of the development and to
comply with the following Development Plan policies for Merton: policies D4
and D8 of the London Plan 2021, policy CS14 of Merton's Core Planning
Strategy 2011 and policies DM D2 and D3 of Merton's Sites and Policies Plan
2014.

Surfacing - Prior to the commencement of above ground works, details of the
surfacing of all those parts of the site not covered by buildings or soft
landscaping, including any parking, service areas or roads, footpaths, hard
and soft shall be submitted in writing for approval by the Local Planning
Authority. No works that are the subject of this condition shall be carried out
until the details are approved, and the development shall not be occupied /
the use of the development hereby approved shall not commence until the
details have been approved and works to which this condition relates have
been carried out in accordance with the approved details.

Page 171



Reason: To ensure a satisfactory standard of development in accordance
with the following Development Plan policies for Merton: policy D4 of the
London Plan 2021, policy CS14 of Merton's Core Planning Strategy 2011 and
policies DM D1 and D2 of Merton's Sites and Policies Plan 2014.

. Working Method Statement - Development shall not commence until a
working method statement has been submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority to accommodate:

(i) Parking of vehicles of site workers and visitors;
(i) Loading and unloading of plant and materials;
(iii) Storage of construction plant and materials;
(iv) Wheel cleaning facilities
(v) Control of dust, smell and other effluvia;

(vi) Control of surface water run-off.

No development shall be carried out except in full accordance with the
approved method statement.

Reason: To ensure the safety of pedestrians and vehicles and the amenities
of the surrounding area and to comply with the following Development Plan
policies for Merton: policies T4 and T7 of the London Plan 2021, policy CS20
of Merton's Core Planning Strategy 2011 and policy DM T2 of Merton's Sites
and Policies Plan 2014.

. Demolition and Construction Logistics Plan - Prior to the commencement of
the development hereby permitted, a Demolition and Construction Logistics
Plan (including a construction management plan in accordance with TfL
guidance) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The approved measures shall be implemented prior to the first
occupation of the development hereby permitted and shall be so maintained
for the duration of the use, unless the prior written approval of the Local
Planning Authority is first obtained to any variation.

Reason: To ensure the safety of pedestrians and vehicles and the amenities
of the surrounding area and to comply with the following Development Plan
policies for Merton: policies T4 and T7 of the London Plan 2021, policy CS20
of Merton's Core Planning Strategy 2011 and policy DM T2 of Merton's Sites
and Policies Plan 2014.

. All Non-Road Mobile Machinery (NRMM) of net power of 37kW and up to and
including 560kW used during the course of the demolition, site preparation
and construction phases shall comply with the emission standards set out in
chapter 7 of the GLA's supplementary planning guidance "Control of Dust and
Emissions During Construction and Demolition" dated July 2014 (SPG), or
subsequent guidance. Unless it complies with the standards set out in the
SPG, no NRMM shall be on site, at any time, whether in use or not, without
the prior written consent of the local planning authority. The developer shall
keep an up to date list of all NRMM used during the demolition, site

Page 172



preparation and construction phases of the development on the online
register at https://nrmm.London/

Reason - To manage and prevent further deterioration of existing low quality

air across London in accordance with London Plan policies GG3 and SI1, and
NPPF 181.

Noise levels, (expressed as the equivalent continuous sound level) LAeq (15
minutes), from any external plant/machinery across the site shall not exceed
LA90-10dB at the boundary with the closest residential property.

Reason: To safeguard the amenities of the area and the occupiers of

neighbouring properties and ensure compliance with the following
Development Plan policies for Merton: policies D4 and D14 of the London
Plan 2021 and policies DM D2, DM D3, DM EP2 and DM EP4 of Merton's
Sites and Policies Plan 2014.

External lighting - Any external lighting shall be positioned and angled to

prevent any light spillage or glare beyond the site boundary and in
accordance with Institution of Lighting Professionals, The Reduction of
Obtrusive Light Guidance Note 01/21.

Reason: To safeguard the amenities of the area and the occupiers of
neighbouring properties and ensure compliance with the following
Development Plan policies for Merton: policies DM D2 and DM EP4 of
Merton's Sites and Polices Plan 2014.

10.Air_Quality - The development hereby approved shall be undertaken in

11

accordance with the details submitted within the Air Quality Assessment
report (Ref.: PP1994/CL/AQA/202309-EC) dated September 2023 and
produced by NRG Consulting.

Reason: To safeguard the amenities of the area and protect air quality and
ensure compliance with the following Development Plan policies for Merton:
policies DM D2 and DM EP4 of Merton's Sites and Polices Plan 2014.

.Air Quality Dust Management Plan - The development hereby approved shall

not commence until a detailed Air Quality Dust Management Plan has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning authority and the
works shall be undertaken in accordance with those approved details and
those in the submitted Construction Environmental Management Plan (Ref.:
PP1994/CL/CEMP/202309-EC)

Reason: To safeguard the amenities of the area and protect air quality and
ensure compliance with the following Development Plan policies for Merton:
policies DM D2 and DM EP4 of Merton's Sites and Polices Plan 2014.

12.WSI: No development, excluding demolition, shall take place until a stage 1

written scheme of investigation (WSI) has been submitted to and approved
by the local planning authority in writing. For land that is included within the
WSI, no demolition or development shall take place other than in accordance
with the agreed WSI, and the programme and methodology of site evaluation
and the nomination of a competent person(s) or organisation to undertake the
agreed works.

Page 173



If heritage assets of archaeological interest are identified by stage 1 then for
those parts of the site which have archaeological interest a stage 2 WSI shall
be submitted to and approved by the local planning authority in writing. For
land that is included within the stage 2 WSI, no demolition/development shall
take place other than in accordance with the agreed stage 2 WSI which shall
include:

A. The statement of significance and research objectives, the programme
and methodology of site investigation and recording and the nomination
of a competent person(s) or organisation to undertake the agreed works

B. Where appropriate, details of a programme for delivering related
positive public benefits

C. The programme for post-investigation assessment and subsequent
analysis, publication & dissemination and deposition of resulting material.
This part of the condition shall not be discharged until these elements
have been fulfilled in accordance with the programme set out in the stage
2 WSI.

Reason: In order to provide the opportunity to record the history of the site
and to comply with the following Development Plan policies for Merton: policy
HC1 of the London Plan 2021, policy CS14 of Merton's Core Planning
Strategy 2011 and policy DM D4 of Merton's Sites and Policies Plan 2014.

13.Refuse & Recycling (Implementation) - The development hereby approved
shall not be occupied until the refuse and recycling storage facilities shown
on the approved plans have been fully implemented and made available for
use. These facilities shall thereafter be retained for use at all times.

Reason: To ensure the provision of satisfactory facilities for the storage of
refuse and recycling material and to comply with the following Development
Plan policies for Merton: policies T4 and T7 of the London Plan 2021, policy
CS17 of Merton's Core Planning Strategy 2011 and policy DM D2 of Merton's
Sites and Policies Plan 2014.

14.No Use of Flat Roof - Access to the flat roof of the development hereby
permitted shall be for maintenance or emergency purposes only, and the flat
roof shall not be used as a roof garden, terrace, patio or similar amenity area.

Reason: To safeguard the amenities and privacy of the occupiers of adjoining
properties and to comply with the following Development Plan policies for
Merton: policies D3 and D4 of the London Plan 2021, policy CS14 of Merton's
Core Planning Strategy 2011 and policies DM D2 and D3 of Merton's Sites
and Policies Plan 2014.

15.Fire Strategy — The development shall be carried out in accordance with the
provisions of the Preliminary RIBA Stage 2 Fire Strategy by Orion Fire
Engineering Ltd and must fully comply with The Building Regulation 2010 (as
amended) unless otherwise approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.

Reason: To ensure that the development incorporates the necessary fire
safety measures in accordance with the Mayor's London Plan Policy D12.

Page 174



16.Cycle Parking to be implemented - The development hereby permitted shall
not be occupied until the cycle parking shown on the plans hereby approved
has been provided and made available for use. These facilities shall be
retained for the occupants of and visitors to the development at all times.
Personally not keen on the cycle railings on the pavement

Reason: To ensure satisfactory facilities for cycle parking are provided and to
comply with the following Development Plan policies for Merton: policy T5 of
the London Plan 2021, policy CS18 of Merton's Core Planning Strategy 2011
and policy DM T1 of Merton's Sites and Policies Plan 2014.

17.Drainage - Prior to the commencement of development, a construction level
detail scheme for the provision of surface and foul water drainage shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority for both
phases of the development. The drainage scheme will dispose of surface
water by means of a sustainable drainage system (SuDS). The scheme will
be required to discharge at the agreed run-off rate of no more than 1 I/s and
no less than 8.7m3 of attenuation, in accordance with drainage hierarchy
contained within the London Plan Policies SI12 and SI13 and the advice
contained within the National SuDS Standards.

Reason: To reduce the risk of surface and foul water flooding to the proposed
development and future users, and ensure surface water and foul flood risk
does not increase offsite in accordance with Merton’s policies CS16, DMF2
and the London Plan policy SI 12 & 13.

18.Contamination

a) No development shall occur until:

i) a preliminary risk-assessment is shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the local planning authority. Asking Gavin if this part of it is
needed as they have submitted already

ii) a site-investigation has been conducted to consider the potential for
contaminated-land and shall be submitted to and approved in writing by
the local planning authority.

iii) a remediation method statement, described to make the site suitable
for intended use by removing unacceptable risks to sensitive receptors,
and shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning
authority.

b) Prior to first occupation:

The remediation shall be completed and a verification report, produced on
completion of the remediation, shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the local planning authority.

19.Safer by Design - The development hereby permitted shall incorporate
security measures to minimise the risk of crime and to meet the specific
security needs of the development in accordance with Secured by Design.
Details of these measures shall be submitted to and approved in writing by
the local planning authority prior to commencement of the development and

Page 175



shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details prior to
occupation.

Reason: In order to achieve the principles and objectives of Secured by
Design to improve community safety and crime prevention in accordance with
Policy: Chapters 01B & 01C Merton New Local Plan, Policy D11 London Plan,
Section 17 Crime and Disorder Act 1988 and National Planning Policy
Framework (NPPF).

20.Secured by Design final certificate - Prior to occupation a Secured by Design
final certificate or its equivalent from the South West Designing Out Crime
office shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In order to achieve the principles and objectives of Secured by
Design to provide a safer environment for future residents and visitors to the
site and reduce the fear of crime in accordance with Policy: Chapters 01B &
01C Merton New Local Plan, Policy D11 London Plan, Section 17 Crime and
Disorder Act 1988 and National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF). The
inclusion of any such conditions would assist to reassure local residents and
police that security is a material consideration of the developer

21.Air Quality Dust Management Plan

1. Prior to the commencement of development, including demolition, a
detailed Dust Management Plan (DMP) shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The DMP shall
include:

a) An Air quality management plan that identifies the steps and
procedures that will be implemented to minimise the creation and impact
of dust and other air emissions resulting from the site preparation,
demolition, and groundwork and construction phases of the
development. To include continuous dust monitoring.

b) Construction environmental management plan that identifies the steps
and procedures that will be implemented to minimise the creation and
impact of noise, vibration, dust and other air emissions resulting from the
site preparation, demolition, and groundwork and construction phases of
the development.

2. The development shall not be implemented other than in accordance
with the approved scheme, unless previously agreed in writing by the
Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure the development does not raise local environment impacts
and pollution in accordance with Merton Sites and Policies Plan 2014 policy
DM EP4.

22.CEMP: The development hereby approved shall be undertaken in
accordance with the submitted Construction Environmental Management
Plan compiled by NRG Consulting and these details shall be complied with
throughout the duration of the project unless otherwise agreed in writing by
the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure the development does not raise local environment

Page 176



impacts and pollution in accordance with Merton Sites and Policies Plan 2014
policy DM EP4.

23.Living green wall: Full details of the proposed living green wall systems and
associated method of irrigation shall be submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority and these works shall be carried out as
approved in the first available planting season following the completion of the
development or prior to the occupation of any part of the development,
whichever is the sooner. Details shall include on a plan, full details of the size,
species, quantities and location of the proposed plants.

Reason; To protect and enhance the biodiversity of the development in the
interest of nature conservation and to comply with the following Development
Plan policies for Merton: policies G5 and G6 of the London Plan 2021; policy
CS13 of Merton's Core Planning Strategy 2011 and policy DM02 of Merton's
Sites and Policies Plan 2014.

24 Biodiverse Green Roof: Details of the proposed design, construction and
layout of the green roof shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. Details shall include the size, species and quantities
of the proposed species rich grassland habitat plants. The green roof shall be
maintained, with replacement planting for any plants that become damaged,
diseased or dying with others of the same specification, for the duration of the
development hereby permitted.

Reason; To protect and enhance the biodiversity of the development in the
interest of nature conservation and to comply with the following Development
Plan policies for Merton: policies G5 and G6 of the London Plan 2021; policy
CS13 of Merton's Core Planning Strategy 2011 and policy DM02 of Merton's
Sites and Policies Plan 2014.

25.Schwegler Sparrow Terrace: 6no. Schwegler Sparrow Terrace blocks shall
be inserted into the western wall structure of the development, just below roof
level. The blocks shall be maintained for the duration of the development.

Reason: To enhance the biodiversity of the development in the interest of
nature conservation etc.,

26.Landscape Management Plan: Prior to the occupation of the development a
landscape management plan including long term design objectives,
management, responsibilities and maintenance schedules for all landscaped
areas, including the living green wall, biodiverse green roof and the
Schwegler Sparrow Terrace, shall be submitted to and approved by the Local
Planning Authority. The development shall be undertaken in accordance with
those approved measures unless otherwise agreed in writing by the LPA.

Reason - ; To minimise impacts on and providing net gains for biodiversity
from any new proposed development in accordance with Paragraph 174 of
the National Planning Policy Framework

27.District Heat Networks — London Heat Networks Manual - ‘No development
shall commence until the applicant submits to, and has secured written
approval from, the Local Planning Authority evidence demonstrating that the
development has been designed to enable connection of the site to an

Page 177



existing or future district heating network, in accordance with the Technical
Standards of the London Heat Network Manual (2021).’

Reason: To demonstrate that the site heat network has been designed to link
all building uses on site (domestic and non-domestic), and to demonstrate
that sufficient space has been allocated in the plant room for future
connection to wider district heating, in accordance with London Plan policies
S12 and SI3.

28.Heat Pump System - No development shall commence until the applicant
submits to, and has secured written approval from, the Local Planning
Authority, details of the proposed heat pump system in line with climate
change comments sent to the Applicant on 15th November 2023.

Reason: To ensure that the development achieves a high standard of
sustainability and makes efficient use of resources and to comply with the
following Development Plan policies for Merton: Policy SI2 of the London Plan
2021 and Policy CS15 of Merton's Core Planning Strategy 2011.

29.Non-residential CO2 reductions - ‘Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the
Local Planning Authority, no part of the development hereby approved shall
be used or occupied until evidence demonstrating that the development has
achieved CO2 reductions in accordance with those outlined in the
sustainability and energy statement (dated 5th January 2024), has been
submitted to and acknowledged in writing by the Local Planning Authority.’

Reason: To ensure that the development achieves a high standard of
sustainability and makes efficient use of resources and to comply the
following Development Plan policies for Merton: policy SI2 of the London Plan
2021 and policy CS15 of Merton's Core Planning Strategy 2011.

30.BREEAM - ‘Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning
Authority, no part of the development hereby approved shall be used or
occupied until a Post-Construction Review Certificate issued by the Building
Research Establishment or other equivalent assessors confirming that the
non-residential development has achieved a BREEAM rating of not less than
the standards equivalent to ‘Very Good’ has been submitted to and
acknowledged in writing by the Local Planning Authority.’

Reason: To ensure that the development achieves a high standard of
sustainability and makes efficient use of resources and to comply the
following Development Plan policies for Merton: policy CS15 of Merton's Core
Planning Strategy 2011.

31..BE SEEN’ ENERGY MONITORING —

a) Prior to each Building being occupied, the Owner shall provide
updated accurate and verified ‘as-built’ design estimates of the ‘Be Seen’
energy performance indicators for each Reportable Unit of the
development, as per the methodology outlined in the ‘As-built stage’
chapter / section of the GLA ‘Be Seen’ energy monitoring guidance (or
any document that may replace it). All data and supporting evidence
should be submitted to the GLA using the ‘Be Seen’ as-built stage
reporting webform ( https://www.london.gov.uk/what-

Page 178



wedo/planning/implementing-london-plan/london-plan-guidance-and-
spgs/be-seen-energymonitoring-guidance). The owner should also
confirm that suitable monitoring devices have been installed and
maintained for the monitoring of the in-use energy performance
indicators, as outlined in the ‘In-use stage’ of the GLA ‘Be Seen’ energy
monitoring guidance document (or any document that may replace it).

b) Upon completion of the first year of Occupation or following the end
of the Defects Liability Period (whichever is the later) and at least for the
following four years after that date, the Owner is required to provide
accurate and verified annual in-use energy performance data for all
relevant indicators under each Reportable Unit of the development as
per the methodology outlined in the ‘In-use stage’ chapter / section of
the GLA ‘Be Seen’ energy monitoring guidance document (or any
document that may replace it). All data and supporting evidence should
be submitted to the GLA using the ‘Be Seen’ in-use stage reporting
webform ( https://www.london.gov.uk/what-we-
do/planning/implementing-londonplan/london-plan-guidance-and-
spgs/be-seen-energy-monitoring-guidance). This obligation will be
satisfied after the Owner has reported on all relevant indicators included
in the ‘In-use stage’ chapter of the GLA ‘Be Seen’ energy monitoring
guidance document (or any document that may replace it) for at least
five years.

c) In the event that the ‘In-use stage’ evidence submitted under Clause
b) shows that the ‘As-built stage’ performance estimates derived from
Clause a) have not been or are not being met, the Owner should
investigate and identify the causes of underperformance and the
potential mitigation measures and set these out in the relevant comment
box of the ‘Be Seen’ in-use stage reporting webform. An action plan
comprising measures identified in Clause b) shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the GLA, identifying measures which would be
reasonably practicable to implement and a proposed timescale for
implementation. The action plan and measures approved by the GLA
should be implemented by the Owner as soon as reasonably practicable.

32.Urban greening - The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied
until the Urban Greening factors set out in drawing Urban Greening Factor
Rev 01 (dated 23/06/2023) have been fully implemented and shall be
permanently maintained as such thereafter to the satisfaction of the Local
Planning Authority.

33.Parking - The vehicle parking area shown on the approved plans shall be
provided before the commencement of the buildings or use hereby permitted
and shall be retained for parking purposes for occupiers and users of the
development and for no other purpose.

Reason: To ensure the provision of a satisfactory level of parking and comply
with the following Development Plan policies for Merton: policy T6.4 of the
London Plan 2021, policy CS20 of Merton's Core Planning Strategy 2011 and
policy DM T3 of Merton's Sites and Policies Plan 2014.

Page 179



34.EV Charging: prior to occupation of the development the two disabled vehicle
parking bays hereby approved shall be fitted with electric charging facilities
and shall be retained in full working order at all times thereafter.

Reason; to facilitate the provision of infrastructure for the use of Electric
vehicles to reduce carbon emissions in accordance with London Plan 2021
policy T2.

35.Gates opening over highway The doors of the gates hereby approved shall
not open over the adjacent highway.

Reason: In the interests of the safety of pedestrians and vehicles and to
comply with the following Development Plan policies for Merton: policies
CS18 and CS20 of Merton's Core Planning Strategy 2011 and policies DM
T2, T3, T4 and T5 of Merton's Sites and Policies Plan 2014.

36.Hardstanding All areas of hardstanding shall be constructed of porous
materials or incorporate features to ensure that any water drains within the
confines of the site:

Reason to reduce the risk of surface water flooding on accordance with
Merton Sites and Policies Plan policy DM F1

37.Louvres Prior to occupation of the development hereby approved details of
the design and materials for the privacy louvres shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning authority and shall installed and
maintained in perpetuity in accordance with those approved details unless
otherwise agreed in writing by the LPA.

Reason: To ensure a suitable standard of design and to protect the amenity
of local residents in accordance with Policy DM D2 of the Merton Sites and
Policies Plan 2011.

38.Removal of advertisement Permitted Development rights: Notwithstanding
the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (Control of Advertisements)
(England) Regulations 2007, the development hereby approved shall not
benefit from Deemed Advertising Consent and the display of any
advertisements shall require prior Express Advertising Consent

Reason: To ensure a suitable standard of design and appearance and to
protect the amenity of local residents in accordance with Policies DM D2 and
DM D5 of the Merton Sites and Policies Plan 2011

39.Removal of PD (Use of Premises) —

40.Hours of operation (ground floor restaurant/bar) -

41.Restriction on Music/Amplified Sound - No music or other amplified sound
generated on the premises shall be audible at the boundary of any adjacent
residential building.

Reason: To safeguard the amenities of surrounding area and to ensure
compliance with the following Development Plan policies for Merton:
policies D4 and D14 of the London Plan 2021, policy CS7 of Merton's Core

Page 180



Planning Strategy 2011 and policy DM EP2 of Merton's Sites and Policies
Plan 2014.

Informatives:

42.

43.

44,

45.

46.

This planning permission contains certain conditions precedent that state 'before
development commences' or 'prior to commencement of any development' (or
similar). As a result these must be discharged prior to ANY development activity
taking place on site. Commencement of development without having complied with
these conditions will make any development unauthorised and possibly subject to
enforcement action such as a Stop Notice.

Thames Water will aim to provide customers with a minimum pressure of 10m head
(approx 1 bar) and a flow rate of 9 litres/minute at the point where it leaves Thames
Waters pipes. The developer should take account of this minimum pressure in the
design of the proposed development.

Definitions

“Defects Liability Period” means such period of time following Practical
Completion of a Building in which a contractor may remedy defects as
may be included in the building contract for the relevant Building;

“‘Reportable Unit” means a Reportable Unit (Energy Centre), Reportable
Unit (Residential) or Reportable Unit (Non-Residential);

“‘Reportable Unit (Energy Centre)” means either a connection to a third-
party District Heating Network, a self-contained Energy Centre serving
multiple residential/non-residential properties (within the Site) or a self-
contained energy system serving multiple residential properties (within a
Block or Building);

“‘Reportable Unit (Residential)” means an individual Block or Building of
five or more flats or a group of five or more houses;

‘Reportable Unit (Non-Residential)” means a Building with a single
occupier/tenant (including block of flats' communal areas) or a Building
with multiple tenants.

The applicant is advised to check the requirements of the Party Wall Act 1996
relating to work on an existing wall shared with another property, building on  the
boundary with a neighbouring property, or excavating near a neighbouring building.
Further information is available at the following link:

http://www.planningportal.gov.uk/buildingrequlations/buildingpolicyandle
gislation/current legislation/partywallact

Details of the BREEAM assessment and a list of approved assessors can be found
at www.breeam.org

The survey and report in respect of land contamination must be formulated having
regard to the Contaminated Land Exposure Assessment model (CLEA 2002),
CLR10 and associated guidance developed by DEFRA and the Environment
Agency. Where appropriate the survey shall include a conceptual site model and
a full risk assessment of contaminants on the site.

Page 181



47.

48.

49.

50.

51.

52.

It is the responsibility of the developer to make proper provision for drainage  to
ground, watercourses or a suitable sewer. In respect of surface water it is
recommended that the applicant should ensure that storm flows are attenuated
or regulated into the receiving public network through on or off-site storage. When
it is proposed to connect to a combined public sewer, the site drainage should be
separate and combined at the final manhole nearest the boundary. Connections are
not permitted for the removal of ground water. Where the developer proposes to
discharge to a public sewer, prior approval from Thames Water Developer Services
will be required (contact no. 0845 850 2777).

Demoilition of buildings should avoid the bird nesting and bat roosting season. This
avoids disturbing birds and bats during a critical period and will assist in preventing
possible contravention of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, which seeks to
protect nesting birds/bats and their nests/roosts. Buildings should also be inspected
for bird nests and bat roosts prior to demolition. All species of bat in Britain and their
roosts are afforded special protection under the Wildlife and Countryside act 1981.
If bats are found, Natural England should be contacted for advice (tel: 020 7831
6922).

This permission creates one or more new units which will require a correct postal
address. Please contact the Street Naming & Numbering Officer at the London
Borough of Merton

Street Naming and Numbering (Business Improvement Division)
Corporate Services

7th Floor, Merton Civic Centre

London Road

Morden

SM4 5DX

Email: street.naming@merton.gov.uk

It is Council policy for the Council's contractor to construct new vehicular accesses.
The applicant should contact the Council's Highways Team on 020 8545 3829 prior
to any work starting to arrange for this work to be done. If the applicant wishes to
undertake this work the Council will require a deposit and the applicant will need to
cover all the Council's costs (including supervision of the works). If the works are of
a significant nature, a Section 278 Agreement (Highways Act 1980) will be required
and the works must be carried out to the Council's specification.

You are advised to contact the Council's Highways team on 020 8545 3700 before
undertaking any works within the Public Highway to obtain the necessary approvals
and/or licences. Please be advised that there is a further charge for this work. If your
application falls within a Controlled Parking Zone this has further costs involved and
can delay the application by 6 to 12 months.

Any works/events carried out either by, or at the behest of, the developer, whether
they are located on, or affecting a prospectively maintainable highway, as defined
under Section 87 of the New Roads and Street Works Act 1991, or on or affecting
the public highway, shall be co-ordinated under the requirements of the New Roads
and Street Works Act 1991 and the Traffic management Act 2004 and licensed
accordingly in order to secure the expeditious movement of traffic by minimising
disruption to users of the highway network in Merton. Any such works or events
commissioned by the developer and particularly those involving the connection of
any utility to the site, shall be co-ordinated by them in liaison with the London
Borough of Merton, Network Coordinator, (telephone 020 8545 3976). This must
take place at least one month in advance of the works and particularly to ensure that

Page 182



53.

54.

55.

56.

57.

58.

59.

statutory undertaker connections/supplies to the site are co-ordinated to take place
wherever possible at the same time.

Written schemes of investigation will need to be prepared and implemented by
a suitably professionally accredited archaeological practice in accordance London.
This condition is exempt from deemed discharge under schedule 6 of The Town
and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order
2015

This should include further details on the proposed heat pump system and how this
will operate alongside any other communal system in line with Section 10 of the
GLA’s Energy Assessment Guidance.

A Groundwater Risk Management Permit from Thames Water will be required for
discharging groundwater into a public sewer. Any discharge made without a permit
is deemed illegal and may result in prosecution under the provisions of the Water
Industry Act 1991. We would expect the developer to demonstrate what measures
he will undertake to minimise groundwater discharges into the public sewer. Permit
enquiries should be directed to Thames Water's Risk Management Team by
telephoning 020 3577 9483 or by emailing trade.effluent@thameswater.co.uk .
Application forms should be completed on line via www.thameswater.co.uk. Please
refer to the Wholsesale; Business customers; Groundwater discharges section.

Thames Water will aim to provide customers with a minimum pressure of 10m head
(approx 1 bar) and a flow rate of 9 litres/minute at the point where it leaves Thames
Waters pipes. The developer should take account of this minimum pressure in the
design of the proposed development.

No surface water runoff should discharge onto the public highway including the
public footway or highway. When it is proposed to connect to a public sewer, the site
drainage should be separate and combined at the final manhole nearest the
boundary. Where the developer proposes to discharge to a public sewer, prior
approval from Thames Water Developer Services will be required (contact no. 0845
850 2777.

No waste material, including concrete, mortar, grout, plaster, fats, oils and
chemicals shall be washed down on the highway or disposed of into the highway
drainage system.

Carbon emissions evidence requirements for Post Construction stage assessments
must provide:

. Detailed documentary evidence confirming the Target Emission
Rate (TER), Building Emission Rate (BER) and percentage
improvement of BER over TER based on ‘As Built’ BRUKL model
outputs; AND

. A copy of the Building Regulations Output Document from the
approved software. The output documents must be based on the ‘as
built' stage of analysis and must account for any changes to the
specification during construction; AND

AND, where applicable:

. MCS certificates and photos of all installed renewable
technologies.

Page 183



60. Carbon emissions evidence requirements for Post Construction stage assessments
must provide:

o Detailed documentary evidence confirming the Target Emission Rate
(TER), Building Emission Rate (BER) and percentage improvement
of BER over TER based on ‘As Built BRUKL model outputs; AND

e A copy of the Building Regulations Output Document from the
approved software. The output documents must be based on the ‘as
built’ stage of analysis and must account for any changes to the
specification during construction; AND

AND, where applicable:

« MCS certificates and photos of all installed renewable technologies.

61. In accordance with paragraph 38 of the NPPF, The London Borough of Merton
(LBM) takes a positive and proactive approach to development proposals focused
on solutions. LBM works with applicants/agents in a positive and proactive manner
by:

i) Offering a pre-application advice and duty desk service.

ii) Where possible, suggesting solutions to secure a successful
outcome.

iii) As appropriate, updating applicants/agents of any issues that may
arise in the processing of their application.

In this instance:

i) The applicant/agent was provided with pre-application advice.

ii) The applicant was offered the opportunity to submit amended plans in
order to make the proposal acceptable in planning terms.

iii) The application was considered by the Planning Committee where
the applicant/agent had the opportunity to speak to the committee and
promote the application.

Page 184



NORTHGATE SE GIS Print Template

=

(I

il

This material has been reproduced from Ordnance Survey digital map data with the permission of the controller of Her
Majesty’s Stationery Office, © Crown Copyright.

Page 185



i __H i

___._ .___L___..n__.

__-._..._ ...__ q__-__._ _.h__.. i ._.-. B _F.__

-__._f_.,

|

s o e g
-
.4

=] :_ ___.|__. t=

.hﬂ

g émﬂnqrﬂj =

l-_.. L_.. =

Ty

J =
Faf = ‘T
e .%hl g

&
~

_
.____

W | ! | | 1 i3 .. ._r..!..ﬂ., ....___.._1_.. M__h.._.pl‘

Eid E

._;....

e

,,
.__.../ ., ___.-___._,_..__, / _____._.J___ N mm .. | B } \ ." : = .. . : P 3 A

¥ = .... ..u. ...

., i ,_. f,/ :

Y

,.,:,.._/

D T ,_,J,,.;.,,,,ﬁ, R
L__.,., . __.__,_F e
|2

A
.... i 2 . =L
,f_,.,..,,,,_._____ ,,f_.,,__._.J. & : SHRHY _ ._._,J,,___/J__d_,___,__._ .____,___J __,/,/ .___.__r _____ ../._.__ 4
R ....,_i_;, ,,:,, WA TS T
...,..,./.__,..;_ ,_.,,J__,_, ,,_.,,,..,,J, ,, , .”____.,__;_.___H_., 3 / /, ,f 2_,,__///,__ _____ ,__,___ _/___. :

__. .f_

.____ |

i HRh

_H ___d_...__.__.
\ __F.____ i

"
,_._1_,._2...; e ———. W

i_ ._.,_. W
i J,. :1,,_: ,: /_

% :i

\ } ,,,,.
AP WSO

...._._,...___... ._._.___. .._.._.4__.. .._..._...
; =

_.,___i;_,

_.
Y

-F-

]
|
l

Telephone

it

o
=5

L

-
3 .H-ldq.q.r:'pl'

e LT

=




=y
Q
«Q
Io)) B
[N
00]
~
1:1 0 Q=
0 2000 4000 6000

8000

10000

72000mm

BLUE ROOF

14.9 m?

ot

HOAHOD
wwoos't

01-02

14.9 m?

01-06
14.9 m?

01-07
14.9 m?

NOTES:

This document and its design content is copyright ©. It shall be read in
conjunction with all other associated project information including models,
specifications, schedules and related consultants documents. Do not scale
from documents. All dimensions to be checked on site. Immediately report

any discrepancies, errors or omissions on this document to the Originator. If
in doubt ASK.

N

D

12 FIRE STRATEGY -

DOOR LOCATION BH PM 30/11/2023
WINDOW

1 ARRANGEMENT BH PM 22/11/2023
10 DIMS ADDED BH PM 17/11/2023
09 FOR PLANNING BH PM 23/06/2023
REV DESCRIPTION DRAWN CHECKED DATE
h pE— T p—
— —

() ‘ ( - A [ -

DESIGN + ARCHITECTURE

Wigglesworth House 69 Southwark Bridge Road London SE1 9HH
+44 207 021 0267 info@createdesign.org  www.createdesign.org

CLIENT: CAPITAL HOMES
PROJECT: 18-22 CROWN LANE
BUILDING: -
ADDRESS: SM4 5BL

DRAWING NAME: PROPOSED FIRST FLOOR PLAN

DRAWING SERIES: PROPOSED PLANNING

CDA REF: SCALE(S): ORIGINAL PAPER SIZE:
668 1:100 A1
REVISION: REVISION DESCRIPTION:
12 FIRE STRATEGY - DOOR
LOCATION
PROJECT  ORIGINATOR VOLUME  LEVEL ~ TWPE '~ ROLE  CLASS  NUMBER

668 - CDA - Z1 - 01 -DR - A -05- 0101




NOTES:

This document and its design content is copyright ©. It shall be read in
conjunction with all other associated project information including models,
specifications, schedules and related consultants documents. Do not scale
from documents. All dimensions to be checked on site. Immediately report
any discrepancies, errors or omissions on this document to the Originator. If
in doubt ASK.

N

02-02
14.9 m? -

02-03
14.9 m?

02-04
14.9 m?

02-05

14.9 m?
02-06
14.9 m? )
82 02-07
23 14.9 m?
%3

88T abed

02-08 S
15 m?

02-09 -
15 m?

ot

‘.
f / 4 FIRE STRATEGY -

DOOR LOCATION ~ BH PM 30/11/2023
149 m2 10 XVFI{'\Fl{iﬁ\gEMENT BH PM 22/11/2023
o 14.9 m? 02-12 02-11 Jj oo FoRoESGN TERY GH A rrosams
2 -
18.5m 18.5 m2 0 ) 10 REV DESCRIPTION DRAWN CHECKED DATE

20p m’ N AT
,, CREATL

}k DESIGN + ARCHITECTURE

Wigglesworth House 69 Southwark Bridge Road London SE1 9HH

. . +44 207 021 0267 info@createdesign.org  www.createdesign.org
/ .> CLIENT: CAPITAL HOMES
{ / PROJECT: 18-22 CROWN LANE
. . BUILDING: -
\/ ADDRESS: SM4 5BL
DRAWING NAME: PROPOSED SECOND FLOOR PLAN
DRAWING SERIES: PROPOSED PLANNING
CDA REF: SCALE(S): ORIGINAL PAPER SIZE:
668 1:100 A1
121 0 . ' REVISION: REVISION DESCRIPTION:
2000 4000 6000 8000 10000 12000mm 1 S0 FIRESS'(I')RATE(SEC\:( - DO(())R

If\f‘AT:ell
PROJECT  ORIGINATOR VOLUME ~ LEVEL  TYPE ROLE  cLAss  NumBER

668 - CDA - Z1 - 02 -DR - A -05- 0102




68T abed

NOTES:

This document and its design content is copyright ©. It shall be read in
conjunction with all other associated project information including models,
specifications, schedules and related consultants documents. Do not scale
from documents. All dimensions to be checked on site. Immediately report
any discrepancies, errors or omissions on this document to the Originator. If
in doubt ASK.

N

03-03
14.9 m?

03-04
14.9 m?

03-05
14.9 m?

03-06
14.9 m?

03-07
14.9 m?

+Oaddod
wwoos't

03-08
15 m?

03-09
15 m?

ot

FIRE STRATEGY -

1 DOOR LOCATION BH PM 30/11/2023
WINDOW
) 10 ARRANGEMENT BH PM 22/11/2023
14.9 m 14 9 m2 03_1 2 09 FOR PLANNING BH PM 23/06/2023
. 2 03_1 1 u 08 FOR DESIGN TEAM  BH PM 17/05/2023
1 8'5 m 1 8 5 m2 0 1 0 REV DESCRIPTION DRAWN CHECKED DATE
N L] —_—
\\ - -

DESIGN + ARCHITECTURE

) k Wigglesworth House 69 Southwark Bridge Road London SE1 9HH
+44 207 021 0267 info@createdesign.org  www.createdesign.org

DRAWING NAME:

DRAWING SERIES:

CLIENT: CAPITAL HOMES

Q / PROJECT: 18-22 CROWN LANE
BUILDING: -

ADDRESS: SM4 5BL

PROPOSED THIRD FLOOR PLAN

PROPOSED PLANNING

CDA REF: SCALE(S): ORIGINAL PAPER SIZE:
668 1:100 A1

REVISION: REVISION DESCRIPTION:
1" FIRE STRATEGY - DOOR

LOCATION

PROJECT  ORIGINATOR

668 - CDA - Z1

VOLUME

LEVEL — TWPE' "CROLE  CLASS  NUMBER

- 03-DR- A -05- 0103




06T abed

111 O et
0 2000

4000

6000

8000

10000

72000mm

ot

BLUE ROOF

ROOF

Plant area

24 m?

MAINTENANCE

HOAHOD
wwoos't

ACCESS

ad  14.9m?

04-02
14.9 m?

04-03
14.9 m?

04-04

04-05
15 m?

04-06
15 m?

12 PARAPET

NOTES:

This document and its design content is copyright ©. It shall be read in
conjunction with all other associated project information including models,
specifications, schedules and related consultants documents. Do not scale
from documents. All dimensions to be checked on site. Immediately report
any discrepancies, errors or omissions on this document to the Originator. If
in doubt ASK.

N

D

INCREASED BH PM 13/02/2024
ACOUSTIC

i ENCLOSURE BH PM 31/01/2024
FIRE STRATEGY -

0 poorLocaTion ~ BH PM 30/11/2023

09  FOR PLANNING BH PM 23/06/2023

REV DESCRIPTION

DRAWN CHECKED DATE

CREATL

DESIGN + ARCHITECTURE

Wigglesworth House 69 Southwark Bridge Road London SE1 9HH
+44 207 021 0267

info@createdesign.org

CLIENT:

www.createdesign.org

PROJECT:

CAPITAL HOMES

BUILDING:
ADDRESS:

DRAWING NAME:

DRAWING SERIES:

18-22 CROWN LANE

SM4 5BL

PROPOSED FOURTH FLOOR PLAN

PROPOSED PLANNING

CDA REF:

SCALE(S):
668

1:100

ORIGINAL PAPER SIZE:
A1

REVISION:
12

PROJECT  ORIGINATOR

REVISION DESCRIPTION:
PARAPET INCREASED

VOLUME

668 - CDA - Z1

LEVEL TYPE

- 04 -DR- A -05

ROLE CLASS NUMBER

- 0104




T6T obed

05-01
14.9 m?

05-02
14.9 m?

05-03
14.9 m?

05-04
14.9 m?

HOAHOD
wwoos't

05-05
15 m?

05-06
15 m?

ot

1:1 0 Q= ‘
0 2000 4000 6000 8000 10000 12000mm

NOTES:

This document and its design content is copyright ©. It shall be read in
conjunction with all other associated project information including models,
specifications, schedules and related consultants documents. Do not scale
from documents. All dimensions to be checked on site. Immediately report

any discrepancies, errors or omissions on this document to the Originator. If

in doubt ASK.

N

D

FIRE STRATEGY -

10 SoorLocATION  BH PM 30/11/2023

09  FOR PLANNING BH PM 23/06/2023

08 FORDESIGNTEAM BH PM 17/05/2023
PRE-APP

07 ALTERATIONS BH PM 23/03/2023

REV DESCRIPTION DRAWN CHECKED DATE

CREATL

DESIGN + ARCHITECTURE

Wigglesworth House 69 Southwark Bridge Road London SE1 9HH
+44 207 021 0267 info@createdesign.org  www.createdesign.org

CLIENT: CAPITAL HOMES
PROJECT: 18-22 CROWN LANE
BUILDING: -
ADDRESS: SM4 5BL

DRAWING NAME:

DRAWING SERIES:

PROPOSED FIFTH FLOOR PLAN

PROPOSED PLANNING

ORIGINAL PAPER SIZE:
A1

CDA REF: SCALE(S):
668 1:100
REVISION:

10

REVISION DESCRIPTION:
FIRE STRATEGY - DOOR

LOCATION

PROJECT  ORIGINATOR VOLUME

668 - CDA - Z1

LEVEL — TWPE' "CROLE  CLASS  NUMBER

- 05-DR- A -05- 0105




NOTES:

This document and its design content is copyright ©. It shall be read in
conjunction with all other associated project information including models,
specifications, schedules and related consultants documents. Do not scale
from documents. All dimensions to be checked on site. Immediately report
any discrepancies, errors or omissions on this document to the Originator. If

N in doubt ASK.

N

— @
I
I—
I—
—
——
I—

QObscure
glazed

06-01
18.7 m?

06-02
18.7 m?
JlY) Q.
QJ %b‘l
«Q 29§
D 23
= o
(o] o
S -
06-03
15 m?
] 06-04
o 15 m?
Q
s © e
.
g / 10 DR SR e, BH PM  30/11/2023
B 09  FOR PLANNING BH PM 23/06/2023
2 - 08 FORDESIGNTEAM BH PM 17/05/2023
14.9m 14.9 m? 06-07_ 06.06 I o TR zwovm
18.5m 18.5 m2 0605 REV DESCRIPTION DRAWN CHECKED DATE
.\/.
1:1 0 Qs
0 2000 4000 6000 8000 10000

DESIGN + ARCHITECTURE
72000mm

Wigglesworth House 69 Southwark Bridge Road London SE1 9HH
+44 207 021 0267 info@createdesign.org

www.createdesign.org
CLIENT:

CAPITAL HOMES
PROJECT:

BUILDING:
ADDRESS:

18-22 CROWN LANE

SM4 5BL
DRAWING NAME:

PROPOSED SIXTH FLOOR PLAN
DRAWING SERIES:

PROPOSED PLANNING

CDA REF: SCALE(S): ORIGINAL PAPER SIZE:
668 1:100

A1

REVISION:

REVISION DESCRIPTION:
10 FIRE STRATEGY - DOOR
LOCATION
VOLUME  LEVEL — TWPE ' ROLE

PROJECT  ORIGINATOR

CLASS

668 - CDA

NUMBER

- 05- 0106

- Z1 - 06 -DR - A




€6T obed

N 7 ICTORIA BUILDINGS
0 —— 1 0 ————1]
e e 8 ared 2 g2
IR 2azet e 000
SIXTH FLOOR ROOF '&
_SIXTHFLOORLEVEL"@ 455 -2o2c e = T T
m [[:E:E:‘:{f :E:E:EE [ :E:E:EE [:E:E:[
_FIFTHFLOORLEVEL"S &= i L e = 2ozt sl ==
m :3:3:;‘? oooee [ 3:3:3[[ [3:3:3[
_ FOURTHFLOOR LEVEL*® &= B2 cocotEe=— S R 1= wu——1 i
1M hoe 0% oo == 2Ze2s =06/ =725 1 e e e =06 e == 1
D :3:3:336 it :Z:Z:D[ D:Z:Z:[ it
0150 U (UL acecal etz ofoes aeasal L faes
__ THIRDFLOORLEVEL'wr 7= 535/ |\o1 :: 13 %6208 01 fefet — ocets | 01 faes
.:Zziz’sae 7ot 7ot Zaer Paes
| _§ECQ\ID iop&LEVE—67$ 1S — 05 %Z:Z:Z% 72:2::;;; _EZ:Z:Z%_ .
L1 — —Hp - ool =202 _ etete T — == -
Obsgure D[ ”:”:” :'::'::' :'::':': H H
alazed Un‘:n:‘ Un‘:n:‘ nn‘:n‘: Window Window Window
‘ ‘ ‘ \—“—‘ 77‘3‘:':"::'77 nnn‘:n 77:"::':':'77 2%3.4%_ 22.48
: S S - FIRST FLOOR ROOF >/ I '
FIRSTFLOORLEVEL}’y  +4= = EL YT E L e =T - =¥
08 08 oo ] A
M 4 I Window Window
GROUND FLOOR LEVEL’Sy

APPLICATION SITE

111 0 O
0 2000

4000

6000

8000 10000 72000mm

NOTES:

This document and its design content is copyright ©. It shall be read in
conjunction with all other associated project information including models,
specifications, schedules and related consultants documents. Do not scale
from documents. All dimensions to be checked on site. Immediately report
any discrepancies, errors or omissions on this document to the Originator. If
in doubt ASK.

Brick type 01 - Brown multi

Brick type 02 - Green glazed brick

Metal coping to parapet

Bronze effect cladding

Stone cladding and banding

Bronze DG Windows (non-openable) and doors

Bronze privacy louvres

Louvred doors and vents

Stone coping to parapet

Revolving entrance door

Roll up garage door

Sliding gate

Recessed brick panel

Projecting header detail

Green wall

<al<g<z|<sl-zl<gl<gl<glzl3<5-glE w2

11 PARAPETINCREASED  BH PM 13/0212024
10 e BH PM 31/01/2024
00 O CEMENT BH PM 30/11/2023
08 O MENT BH PM 22/11/2023
REV  DESCRIPTION DRAWN  CHECKED DATE

CREATL

DESIGN + ARCHITECTURE

Wigglesworth House 69 Southwark Bridge Road London SE1 9HH
+44 207 021 0267 info@createdesign.org  www.createdesign.org

CLIENT: CAPITAL HOMES
PROJECT: 18-22 CROWN LANE
BUILDING: -
ADDRESS: SM4 5BL

DRAWING NAME:

DRAWING SERIES:

PROPOSED EAST ELEVATION

PROPOSED PLANNING

CDA REF: SCALE(S): ORIGINAL PAPER SIZE:
668 1:100 A1

REVISION: REVISION DESCRIPTION:
1 PARAPET INCREASED

PROJECT  ORIGINATOR VOLUME

668 - CDA - Z1

LEVEL TYPE ROLE CLASS NUMBER

- XX-DR - A -05- 0200




NOTES:
This document and its design content is copyright ©. It shall be read in
conjunction with all other associated project information including models,
specifications, schedules and related consultants documents. Do not scale
from documents. All dimensions to be checked on site. Immediately report
any discrepancies, errors or omissions on this document to the Originator. If
in doubt ASK.
@
@ ICTORIA BUILDIN G
—
(o] [ B B
& I =222 ool [ I =i I
R KL B ooaie
I :i:i:jm J:i:::t TT === T 0 1T === T T
a%a%a| oded %% a%%a a%a%a
N \ P |’ P P
I T T =kl T AT =TT R P saie
= a2a%a| gfed a%a%a) =a%as =a2as
= == :::- -E:E- gﬂg gﬂg
mr ol i TTE=TTT TTE=TTT F:E:: |
e = gla e o B8 e 8 e o
=%a%a =%a2s =%a%a =%a%a =% <
R = R R I =i I
- 1 I A | R 2220 o2aa
] a%a a%a 2%
= ] ] =%c®a
[ 1] !?%% L L J=e®acll L] Ll J[=e=acll L] L L _J|=e®ell_JL_J] |
L] — —
‘v‘ 7 3 Vodow Window
APPLICATION SITE
07 PARAPET INCREASED BH PM 13/02/2024
ACOUSTIC
06 ENCLOSURE BH PM 31/01/2024
WINDOW
05 ARRANGEMENT BH PM 30/11/2023
WINDOW
04 ARRANGEMENT BH PM 22/11/2023
REV ~ DESCRIPTION DRAWN  CHECKED DATE
h pE—— T p—
-AT [
\ - |
DESIGN + ARCHITECTURE
Wigglesworth House 69 Southwark Bridge Road London SE1 9HH
+44 207 021 0267 info@createdesign.org  www.createdesign.org
CLIENT: CAPITAL HOMES
PROJECT: 18-22 CROWN LANE
BUILDING: -
ADDRESS: SM4 5BL
DRAWING NAME: PROPOSED EAST ELEVATION STREET
DRAWING SERIES: PROPOSED PLANNING
CDA REF: SCALE(S): ORIGINAL PAPER SIZE:
668 1:200 A1
111 0 Qe ' REVISION: REVISION DESCRIPTION:
0 2000 2000 6000 8000 10000 12000mm REVISIO PN APET INCRENGED,
PROJECT ORIGINATOR VOLUME LEVEL TYPE ROLE CLASS NUMBER
668 - CDA - Z1 - XX-DR - A -05- 0210




G6T obed

111 0 O
0

2000

4000

6000

8000

10000

72000mm

5,961

Shared surface and
stopping area

1100L
CARD
9x Cycle storage spaces
1100L Bin Store ! "7 InGluding:
REFUSE 21.9 m? ‘ . 6xLong stay (two tier)
Undercroft ‘ ' 2x Short stay (sheffield)
79.4 m? |

| |
\\ 1x La.:'ger k‘:ycle\
{ ! —
1100L ‘ ‘ ; IERTHUTE

REFUSE { !

240L
Ziss GLASS

240L
Liags GLASS

Commercial Kitchen
49.8 m?

Linen Linen Linen

Restaurant
86.7 m?

Linen Intake
12.5 m?

Linen Linen

Lift lohby
8.8 m?_ /

’
~ v

ANNIAV JUINUIANIM

Staff Iocker

13,507
and shower '
8.8 m? p

Corridor
37.4 m?

GOODS IN

Entrance Lobby
42.5 m?

Bar area
34.5 m?

SITE AREA
700.1 m?

NOTES:

This document and its design content is copyright ©. It shall be read in
conjunction with all other associated project information including models,
specifications, schedules and related consultants documents. Do not scale
from documents. All dimensions to be checked on site. Immediately report

any discrepancies, errors or omissions on this document to the Originator. If
in doubt ASK.

N

12 FIRE STRATEGY -

DOOR LOCATION BH PM 30/11/2023
1 FOR PLANNING BH PM 23/06/2023
10 FOR DESIGN TEAM  BH PM 01/06/2023
09 FOR DESIGN TEAM  BH PM 17/05/2023

REV DESCRIPTION DRAWN CHECKED

DATE

M
/

AT

DESIGN + ARCHITECTURE

Wigglesworth House 69 Southwark Bridge Road London SE1 9HH

+44 207 021 0267

info@createdesign.org  www.createdesign.org

CLIENT: CAPITAL HOMES
PROJECT: 18-22 CROWN LANE
BUILDING: -
ADDRESS:

DRAWING NAME:

DRAWING SERIES:

SM4 5BL
PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR PLAN

PROPOSED PLANNING

CDA REF:
668

SCALE(S): ORIGINAL PAPER SIZE:
1:100 A1

REVISION:
12

REVISION DESCRIPTION:
FIRE STRATEGY - DOOR

LOCATION
PROJECT  ORIGINATOR

668 - CDA

VOLUME  LEVEL ~ TWPE ' ROLE  CLASS  NUMBER

- Z1 - 00 -DR - A -05- 0100




NOTES:

This document and its design content is copyright ©. It shall be read in
conjunction with all other associated project information including models,
specifications, schedules and related consultants documents. Do not scale
from documents. All dimensions to be checked on site. Immediately report
any discrepancies, errors or omissions on this document to the Originator. If
in doubt ASK.

Window design altered to

remove transom on elongated T
windows

|

NOILO3S ONO1

SITEAREA
7001 m

~ ¥°ROOF

B

|- WSIXTHFLOORLEVEL

T

- & FIFTH FLOOR LEVEL

96T abed

T

~ % FOURTH FLOOR LEVEL

T

- $PTHIRD FLOOR LEVEL

- $PSECOND FLOORLEVEL

T

T

¥ FIRST FLOOR LEVEL

L 1 1 ]
S A
=n il

%’ GROUND FLOOR LEVEL

WINDOW
03 ARRANGEMENT BH PM 30/11/2023
WINDOW
02 ARRANGEMENT BH PM 22/11/2023
01 FOR PLANNING BH M 2610912023
REV  DESCRIPTION DRAWN CHECKED DATE

CREATL

DESIGN + ARCHITECTURE

Wigglesworth House 69 Southwark Bridge Road London SE1 9HH
+44 207 021 0267 info@createdesign.org  www.createdesign.org

CLIENT: CAPITAL HOMES
PROJECT: 18-22 CROWN LANE
BUILDING: -
ADDRESS: SM4 5BL
DRAWING NAME: PROPOSED LONG SECTION
DRAWING SERIES: PROPOSED PLANNING
CDA REF: SCALE(S): ORIGINAL PAPER SIZE:
668 1:100 A1
111 0 Qs i REVISION: REVISION DESCRIPTION:
0 2000 4000 6000 8000 10000 72000mm 03 WINDOW ARRANGEMENT
PROJECT ORIGINATOR VOLUME LEVEL TYPE ROLE CLASS NUMBER

668 - CDA - Z1 - XX -DR - A -05- 0400




03

SIXTH FLOOR LEVEL"

Dbseur
glazed

L7 ]

/6T abed

~_____ FIFTHFLOOR LEVEL"“$ W Q

. FOURTH FLOOR ROOF '’

HH [ ]
! ]

07

09 [
__ FOURTHFLOORLEVEL "% 9%

I
TIIT
T[T
i
i

___ THIRD FLOOR LEVEL & =

o T e
glazed
==
. ____SECOND FLOOR LEVEL®’ - ]
| 06
: Dbscure I RR ]
glazed 09
| HEREE — —— - FIRST FLOOR ROOF 3%
__________ _ FIRSTFLOORLEVEL’® 78 T T T
i 08 08
6
) —\_
r’hfr E A A
GROUND FLOOR LEVEL’Sy o — ] |

APPLICATION SITE

1:1 0 Q= ‘
0 2000 4000 6000 8000 10000 12000mm

NOTES:

This document and its design content is copyright ©. It shall be read in
conjunction with all other associated project information including models,
specifications, schedules and related consultants documents. Do not scale
from documents. All dimensions to be checked on site. Immediately report
any discrepancies, errors or omissions on this document to the Originator. If
in doubt ASK.

Brick type 01 - Brown multi

Brick type 02 - Green glazed brick

Metal coping to parapet

Bronze effect cladding

Stone cladding and banding

Bronze DG Windows (non-openable) and doors

Bronze privacy louvres

Louvred doors and vents

Stone coping to parapet

Revolving entrance door

Roll up garage door

Sliding gate

Recessed brick panel

Projecting header detail

Green wall

<al<g<z|<sl-zl<gl<gl<glzl3<5-glE w2

08  PARAPETINCREASED  BH PM 13/0212024
o7 A BH PM 31/01/2024
06 e MENT BH PM 30/11/2023
05 O MENT BH PM 22/11/2023
REV  DESCRIPTION DRAWN  CHECKED DATE

CREATL

DESIGN + ARCHITECTURE

Wigglesworth House 69 Southwark Bridge Road London SE1 9HH
+44 207 021 0267 info@createdesign.org  www.createdesign.org

CLIENT: CAPITAL HOMES
PROJECT: 18-22 CROWN LANE
BUILDING: -
ADDRESS: SM4 5BL
DRAWING NAME: PROPOSED NORTH ELEVATION
DRAWING SERIES: PROPOSED PLANNING
CDA REF: SCALE(S): ORIGINAL PAPER SIZE:

668 1:100 A1

REVISION: REVISION DESCRIPTION:
08 PARAPET INCREASED

PROJECT  ORIGINATOR VOLUME LEVEL TYPE ROLE CLASS NUMBER

668 - CDA - Z1 - XX -DR - A -05- 0203




86T abed

111 O et
0 2000

4000

6000

8000

10000

72000mm

=
-— o c— o
-— o cmm— o o
—0—0—0—0 M
-—
-— o cm—
. cm—

ROO

BLUE ROOF

L
‘.
\
\
‘.
‘.
‘.
‘.
\
\
‘.
‘.
‘.
‘.
\
\
‘.
‘.
‘.
‘.
‘.
\
‘.
‘.
\
\
i
\
\

BLUE ROOF

NOTES:

This document and its design content is copyright ©. It shall be read in
conjunction with all other associated project information including models,
specifications, schedules and related consultants documents. Do not scale
from documents. All dimensions to be checked on site. Immediately report
any discrepancies, errors or omissions on this document to the Originator. If
in doubt ASK.

N

08  FOR PLANNING BH PM  23/06/2023
07  FORDESIGNTEAM  BH PM 17/05/2023
06 FREA NS BH PM  23/03/2023
05  FOR COMMENT BH PM 01/09/2022

04 FOR COMMENT BH PM 221082022

REV DESCRIPTION

DRAWN CHECKED

DATE

NREATE
() - I
DESIGN + ARCHITECTURE

Wigglesworth House 69 Southwark Bridge Road London SE1 9HH
+44 207 021 0267

info@createdesign.org

www.createdesign.org

CLIENT:

PROJECT:

CAPITAL HOMES

BUILDING:
ADDRESS:

DRAWING NAME:

DRAWING SERIES:

18-22 CROWN LANE

SM4 5BL
PROPOSED ROOF PLAN

PROPOSED PLANNING

CDA REF: SCALE(S):
668

1:100

A1

ORIGINAL PAPER SIZE:

REVISION:
08
PROJECT

ORIGINATOR VOLUME

REVISION DESCRIPTION:
FOR PLANNING

LEVEL

668 - CDA - Z1

07 -DR - A -05-

TYPE ROLE CLASS NUMBER

0107




NOTES:

. Do not scale from this drawing.

. This drawing to be read & printed in colour.

N 3. This drawing is for illustrative purposes
only, and not for construction.

>

EXISTING CYCLE PARKING STANDS

REV DETAILS DRAWN |CHECKED DATE

66T obed

CLIENT

Capital Homes

PROJECT

PROPOSED NEW SHEFFIELD STAND 18-22 Crown Lane

DRAWING TITLE

Proposed Short-Stay
Cycle Parking

SCALE SIZE

1:250 A3
DRAWN BY CHECKED BY DATE
14.06.23
———

AG KH
TRANSPORT PLANNING

4 Underwood Row, London, N1 7LQ
Tel: 020 7324 2677
www.pulsartransport.co.uk

PROJECT REF DWG NO REV

21038 001 -

NOTE: THE PROPERTY OF THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS VESTED IN PULSAR TRANSPORT LTD. IT MUST NOT BE COPIED OR REPRODUCED IN ANY WAY WITHOUT THEIR PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT. © Pulsar Transport Ltd. All rights reserved.



Window design altered to

remove transom on elongated
windows

| | | T T T T TT]
WV [ & 320 A 0 XS
— YWVICTORIA BUILDIN G §
. ______ _ SIXTHFLOORLEVEL'S =2oe =sos i = =
[ -2 [[3:3:3[[ W [
9'? . _ . _ . __ __ FIFTHFLOORLEVEL w — 05 g 05 =%
(@]
CD [ H | | | o o | — ==
N 2coc, LN 9
N ,
S [ 2zaz e = [
_______FOURTHFLOORLEVEL'Sp ——:oe" oot &) = =¥
v Ty oeaes Z Y06/ .
2a%a? D:Z:Z:D 3
9.15 coos ::::: — L
___. __ __ ___ _ THIRDFLOORLEVEL ™ 01 QZZ oo e ) 02/
= 2= O Y S
25682 T—ZSL 25.65 0 Q 25'.8 n:n:n n:n:n
— ] | ] : - ceoen Senen
’—’ Brick
:} ! - —— L
Brick Conc ; Brick . . Brick cone Cone - [‘ ra e
— I 1 e 3 T e 2 ] - - | L et o
lectric 5 Blectrics et ?ﬁ\ J
e ] Ole 0 - 1L . L | 11 [TlE
2.8 | DD 22.64 n I 22.66 — | C L] C_ ] : ;,Q O
[ ’7047!1 L " 3.45 Sign = ) Pé‘ ) X ——— =
;E Sign Sign | . i Sign FEaS-ril:LpoiRLEV% B 4 ﬂ H @ T E L SEOTIS : ; == |
—! — bl ' | ]
I I I ] T 1 v
Tiles Tiles ;W" II \a \
- k = G ol .AINE.
— - GROUND FLOOR LEVEL  &&° . [

APPLICATION SITE

1:1 0 Q= ‘
0 2000 4000 6000 8000 10000 12000mm

UL (1] o —
o 1
» L]

NOTES:

This document and its design content is copyright ©. It shall be read in
conjunction with all other associated project information including models,
specifications, schedules and related consultants documents. Do not scale
from documents. All dimensions to be checked on site. Immediately report
any discrepancies, errors or omissions on this document to the Originator. If
in doubt ASK.

<al<g<z|<sl-zl<gl<gl<glzl3<5-glE w2

Brick type 01 - Brown multi

Brick type 02 - Green glazed brick

Metal coping to parapet

Bronze effect cladding

Stone cladding and banding

Bronze DG Windows (non-openable) and doors

Bronze privacy louvres

Louvred doors and vents

Stone coping to parapet

Revolving entrance door

Roll up garage door

Sliding gate

Recessed brick panel

Projecting header detail

Green wall

WINDOW

09 ARRANGEMENT BH PM 30/11/2023
WINDOW
08 ARRANGEMENT BH PM 22/11/2023
07 FOR PLANNING BH PM 23/06/2023
06 FOR DESIGN TEAM BH PM 17/05/2023
REV DESCRIPTION DRAWN  CHECKED DATE
h PR T —
\—/ - A [ -

DESIGN + ARCHITECTURE

Wigglesworth House 69 Southwark Bridge Road London SE1 9HH
+44 207 021 0267 info@createdesign.org  www.createdesign.org

CLIENT: CAPITAL HOMES
PROJECT: 18-22 CROWN LANE
BUILDING: -
ADDRESS: SM4 5BL

DRAWING NAME:

DRAWING SERIES:

PROPOSED SOUTH ELEVATION

PROPOSED PLANNING

CDA REF: SCALE(S): ORIGINAL PAPER SIZE:
668 1:100 A1
REVISION: REVISION DESCRIPTION:

09

WINDOW ARRANGEMENT

PROJECT  ORIGINATOR VOLUME LEVEL TYPE ROLE

668 - CDA - Z1 - XX-DR - A

NUMBER

- 05 - 0201




TOgZ abed

2775
A 4

¥ SIXTHFLOORROOF

09

03

¥ "FOURTH FLOOR ROOF

L

Window

Tiles

Window

Tiles

24.55

Window

22;9

Render

Window

19.30
v

Window Window

3.7

al

13

& FIRST FLOOR ROOF

Render

Window

Door Shutter I

111 0 Q==
0 2000

4000

6000

8000

10000 72000mm

APPLICATION SITE

13

i
i

SEELELE
B

EEEELE

EEEEL

=

¥ ’SIXTH FLOOR LEVEL

¥ FIFTH FLOOR LEVEL

VP FOURTHFLOORLEVEL

W THIRD FLOORLEVEL

& SECOND FLOOR LEVEL

P°GROUND FLOOR LEVEL

NOTES:

This document and its design content is copyright ©. It shall be read in

conjunction with all other associated
specifications, schedules and related
from documents. All dimensions to b

project information including models,
consultants documents. Do not scale
e checked on site. Immediately report

any discrepancies, errors or omissions on this document to the Originator. If

in doubt ASK.

Metal coping to parapet

Bronze effect cladding

Bronze privacy louvres

Louvred doors and vent:

Revolving entrance doo

Roll up garage door

Sliding gate

Recessed brick panel

Projecting header detail

Green wall

<al<g<z|<sl-zl<gl<gl<glzl3<5-glE w2

Brick type 01 - Brown multi

Brick type 02 - Green glazed brick

Stone cladding and banding

Bronze DG Windows (non-openable) and doors

S

Stone coping to parapet

r

08  PARAPETINCREASED  BH PM 13/0212024
o7 A BH PM 31/01/2024
06 e MENT BH PM 30/11/2023
05 O MENT BH PM 22/11/2023
REV  DESCRIPTION DRAWN  CHECKED DATE

CREATL

DESIGN + ARCHITECTURE

Wigglesworth House 69 Southwark Bridge Road London SE1 9HH
+44 207 021 0267 info@createdesign.org  www.createdesign.org

CLIENT: CAPITAL HOMES
PROJECT: 18-22 CROWN LANE
BUILDING: -
ADDRESS: SM4 5BL

DRAWING NAME:

DRAWING SERIES:

PROPOSED WEST ELEVATION

PROPOSED PLANNING

CDA REF: SCALE(S): ORIGINAL PAPER SIZE:
668 1:100 A1

REVISION: REVISION DESCRIPTION:
08 PARAPET INCREASED

PROJECT  ORIGINATOR VOLUME

668 - CDA - Z1 -

LEVEL TYPE ROLE CLASS NUMBER

XX -DR - A -05- 0202




20z abed

1:1250x
0

40

60

80

100

120

140m

NOTES:

This document and its design content is copyright ©. It shall be read in

with all other i project i tion including models,

and related Do not scale

from documents. All dimensions to be checked on site. Inmediately report

any discrepancies, errors or omissions on this document to the Originator. If
in doubt ASK.

N

D

— e o o e APPLICATION BOUNDARY
— - — — DEMARCATION OF

OWNERSHIP
03 FOR PLANNING BH PM 23/06/2023
02 PM 16/12/2021
01 FOR COMMENT 11/11/2021
REV ~ DESCRIPTION DRAWN  CHECKED DATE

CREATLE
DESIGN + ARCHITECTURE

Wigglesworth House 69 Southwark Bridge Road London SE1 9HH
i i org WWW. i Or¢

+44 207 021 0267 g
CLIENT: CAPITAL HOMES
PROJECT: 18-22 CROWN LANE
BUILDING NAME: -
ADDRESS: SM4 5BL

DRAWING NAME: EXISTING SITE LOCATION PLAN

DRAWING SERIES: SITE LOCATION PLAN

CDAREF: SCALE(S): ORIGINAL PAPER SIZE:
668 1:1250
REVISION: REVISION DESCRIPTON:
03 FOR PLANNING

PROJECT ORIGINATOR  VOLUME  LEVEL TYPE  ROLE  GIASS  NUMBER

668 - CDA - Z1 - XX-DR - A -00- 0900




Agenda Iltem 8

Colliers Wood Matters Update

Deed of Easement with Merton and Sainsburys

The form of Deed of Easement for the Bridge was agreed with Sainsburys in February 2023.

The form of Deed of Easement with Merton Council is still to be agreed after 18 months of negotiations.
Merton were originally provided with the form of Deed of Easement agreed with Sainsburys, but wanted
absolute signoff on the specification for the Bridge. We raised the concern that this could leave Clarion
ransomed and proposed a compromised whereby Clarion would provide the specification and Merton
would have 10 working days to approve it or provide their comments. If they failed to either provide
comments or approve the specification within the 10 working days approval would be deemed to be
given.

We proposed this compromise to Merton on 30 October, but we have not heard back from Merton since
then.

It is important to note that the form of Deed of Easement provided to Merton was accepted by
Sainsburys. We have offered a compromised position, but are still yet to hear back. Merton as the Local
Planning Authority would have the power to reject any specification for the Bridge via the planning
process in any event.

Transfer of Land Parcels from the Environment Agency

We were given the Environment Agency's solicitor's details in October 2023 and made contact shortly
afterwards. We received a response from the Environment Agency's solicitor in November 2023 to say
they were yet to be instructed.

At the end of February we received confirmation from the Environment Agency's solicitor that they were
now instructed. We responded raising standard enquiries and they reverted to say that they understand
Clarion have agreed to cover their fees up to £5,000 plus VAT. The HOTSs say that Clarion were to cover
legal fees but did not state an amount. They also stated that Clarion would cover their professional fees
up to £5,500 plus VAT.

We have just sent Clarion a funds request for the £5,000 plus VAT for legal fees as agreed and
understand Clarion are making arrangements for these to be sent over shortly.

Page 203



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 9

Committee: Planning Applications

Date: 25t April 2024

Subject: Planning Appeal Decisions

Lead officer: Head of Sustainable Communities
Lead member: Chair, Planning Applications Committee

Recommendation:

That Members note the contents of the report.

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1 For Members’ information recent decisions made by Inspectors appointed by the
Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government in respect of recent
Town Planning Appeals are set out below.

1.2 The relevant Inspectors decision letters are not attached to this report but can be
viewed by following each individual link. Other agenda papers for this meeting
can be viewed on the Committee Page of the Council Website via the following
link:

LINK TO COMMITTEE PAGE

Application Number 22/P2310

Appeal number: APP/T5720/X/23/3317063

Site: 7 Streatham Road, Mitcham CR4 2AD

Development: LAWFUL DEVELOPMENT CERTIFICATE IN RESPECT OF THE
PROPOSED USE AND ALTERATIONS OF EXISTING GARDEN

LPA Decision: Refused (Delegated Decision)

Appeal Decision: DISMISSED

Date of Appeal Decision: 27" March 2024

click LINK TO DECISION NOTICE

Page 205
IMPORTANT - PERSONAL


https://democracy.merton.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=155
https://planning.merton.gov.uk/MVM.DMS/Planning%20Application/1000119000/1000119455/22P2310_Appeal%20Decision.pdf

Application Number 23/P0541
Appeal number: APP/T5720/W/ 23/3324764

Site:
Development:

Mydentist, 18 London Road, Morden SM4 5BQ

EXISTING GROUND FLOOR COMMERCIAL UNIT (USE CLASS E)
AND FIRST FLOOR REAR EXTENSION AND CONVERSION
FROM OFFICE TO RESIDENTIAL UNIT CREATING 1 X 1
BEDROOM FLAT (USE CLASS C3) WITH ACCESS AT FIRST
FLOOR, AND PROVISION OF REFUSE AND CYCLE STORAGE.

LPA Decision: Refused (Delegated Decision)
Appeal Decision: ALLOWED
Date of Appeal Decision: 20" March 2024

click LINK TO DECISION NOTICE

Alternative options

3.1

3.2

The appeal decision is final unless it is successfully challenged in the Courts. If
a challenge is successful, the appeal decision will be quashed and the case
returned to the Secretary of State for re-determination. It does not follow
necessarily that the original appeal decision will be reversed when it is re-
determined.

The Council may wish to consider taking legal advice before embarking on a
challenge. The following applies: Under the provision of Section 288 of the Town
& Country Planning Act 1990, or Section 63 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and
Conservation Areas) Act 1990, a person or an establishment who is aggrieved
by a decision may seek to have it quashed by making an application to the High
Court on the following grounds: -

1. That the decision is not within the powers of the Act; or
That any of the relevant requirements have not been complied with;
(relevant requirements means any requirements of the 1990 Act or of the
Tribunal’s Land Enquiries Act 1992, or of any Order, Regulation or Rule
made under those Acts).

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN OR PROPOSED
1.1.  None required for the purposes of this report.

Page 206
IMPORTANT - PERSONAL

PART DEMOLITION AND ERECTION OF A REAR EXTENSION OF


https://planning.merton.gov.uk/MVM.DMS/Planning%20Application/1000121000/1000121373/23P0541_Appeal%20Decision.pdf

TIMETABLE
21. N/A

FINANCIAL, RESOURCE AND PROPERTY IMPLICATIONS

3.1. There are financial implications for the Council in respect of appeal
decisions where costs are awarded against the Council.

LEGAL AND STATUTORY IMPLICATIONS

4.1. An Inspector’s decision may be challenged in the High Court, within 6
weeks of the date of the decision letter (see above).

HUMAN RIGHTS, EQUALITIES AND COMMUNITY COHESION
IMPLICATIONS

5.1. None for the purposes of this report.

CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS
6.1. None for the purposes of this report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND HEALTH AND SAFETY IMPLICATIONS
7.1. See 6.1 above.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

8.1. The papers used to compile this report are the Council’s Development
Control service’s Town Planning files relating to the sites referred to above and
the agendas and minutes of the Planning Applications Committee where relevant.

Page 207
IMPORTANT - PERSONAL



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 10

Date: 25th April 2024

Agenda item: Enforcement Report

Wards: All

Subject: PLANNING ENFORCEMENT - SUMMARY OF RECENT WORK

Lead officer: HEAD OF SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES

COUNCILLOR Aidan Mundy, CHAIR of PLANNING APPLICATIONS COMMITTEE

Contact Officer Y Raymond Yeung
Raymond.Yeung@merton.gov.uk

Recommendation:

That Members note the contents of the report.

1. Purpose of report and executive summary

This report details a summary of casework being dealt with by the Planning
Enforcement Team and contains figures of the number of different types of cases
being progressed, with brief summaries of all new enforcement notices and the
progress of all enforcement appeals.

www.pa'g@.%gk



Current Enforcement Cases: 390
New Complaints 7
Cases Closed 13

New Enforcement Notices Issued

Breach of Condition Notices 1
Enforcement Notices 0
S.215: 0
Others (PCN, TSN) 1
Total 2

New Appeals: 0
Existing Appeals 21

There is a high volume of backlog at the Planning
Inspectorates to determine appeals, the waiting time
with them is several months, the existing appeals have
not progressed with the inspectors.

Prosecutions: (instructed) 2
New Instructions to Legal 2
Existing instructions to Legal 6
TREE ISSUES

Tree Applications Received 190
% Determined within time limits: 97%
High Hedges Complaint 1
New Tree Preservation Orders (TPO) 0
Tree Replacement Notice 1
Tree/High Hedge Appeal 0
5-Day notice 5

Note (figures are for the period from (from 15t March 2024 to 15% April 2024).

It should be noted that due to the pandemic the Planning Inspectorate have over
a year’s backlog of planning enforcement appeals to determine. The Planning
Inspectorate have recently stated that they are concentrating on the larger
complexed schemes which take priority over householder and smaller cases.

wp‘ag@ r@ﬂ\_@ov. uk




2. Recent Enforcement Actions

24A & B Cottenham Park Road, West Wimbledon- Served Breach of condition
notice

A breach of conditions notice was served following the breach of planning permission
22/P3729 condition 12 (Construction Management Plan) and 13 (provision to
accommodate all site workers, deliveries and visitors) The site is opposite a
roundabout and bus stop on a busy junction, HGV were obstructing the highway
posing a danger to highway users and pedestrians.

The developers are subsequently working with highway officers to mitigate the
situation.

Latest update Burn Bullock — 315 London Road -Enforcement Notice & Listed
Building Repairs Notice

Planning enforcement notice was hand delivered at the site for the unauthorised
material change of use of the public house main building and ancillary car parking to a
large House of Multiple Occupation (“HMQO”), car-repair and cleaning workshop,
storage, scrapyard and installation of portacabins. Having tried to get the responsible
persons to comply with the notice and arrange another visit, they have appealed
against the notice, we are awaiting for the outcome of the appeal from the planning
inspectorates.

A letter was sent to the representatives to issue a warning to submit documents for the
Listed building consent to be made valid and to comply with the listed building repairs
notice, the council has yet to validate the application due lack of detailed heritage
information.

The committee were updated in November of 2023 of the status of the land and
considering options for the site.

www.pa'g@.@rl.]fk



In April 2024, enforcement successfully persuaded the planning inspectorates
put forward a decision date for the appeal, however a date is yet to be set for the
inspector site visit.

As we await the decision, at the time of print the enforcement team have drafted
further notices to legal to cease any commercial operation on site and a section 215
notice to tidy up the building, it is expected to be served by week commencing 29t
April 2024.

24 Castleton Road, Mitcham, Surrey CR4 1NY -S215 Notice -DIRECT ACTION

The Council re-issued a S215 untidy land notice to clear all rubbish and debris from
the front of the Land, including but not limited to: plastic bags of rubbish, abandoned
bins, householder plastics, wooden boards, pieces of furniture and household plastic
boxes. The council took direct action to clear the waste.

18 Feb 2024 13:07:23

Before & After

wp‘ag@ r@_ﬁLQov. uk



174 Haydons Road, South Wimbledon — S215 Notice -DIRECT ACTION

The Council re-issued a S215 untidy land notice, they are required to clear all rubbish
and debris from the front of the Land including, but not limited to wooden boards,

plastic bags of rubbish, building materials and broken fencing. The council took direct
action to clear the waste.

= S ST

Before & After

162 & 164 Hartfield Road, Wimbledon-Temporary Stop Notice and Breach of
condition notice issued

A temporary Stop Notice has been issued in addition of the Condition notice has been
served, this time condition 11 in addition to condition 14 of the 2018 Permission that
requires full compliance with the construction and ancillary works times, in addition to
the CTMP for the duration of the construction process and paragraph b) of the CTMP
has not been complied with delivery times.

www.pa'g@.mgk



Land at Former La Sporta Community Centre, Church Road, Mitcham -
Enforcement Notice

The Council issued an enforcement notice for the a material change of use of the Land
from a community centre (Use class F2) to the mixed use of the Land for the siting and
use as a hot food takeaway trailer (Use Class Sui-Generis) and; (ii) operational
development comprising of the siting of a static hot food take-away trailer. They are
required to permanently remove the Trailer from the Land that facilitates the
Unauthorised Use. The trailer has ceased trading as a hot food takeaway, butthe
trailer remains on the grounds.

205 London Road, Morden, SM4 5PT -Enforcement Notice-Appealed

An enforcementhas been served for the unauthorised erection of a rear roof extension
and a single storey rear/side extension, an appeal has been submitted against the
notice.

8 Dahlia Gardens -Potential prosecution for non-compliance of enforcement
notice

The Council issued an enforcement notice for the unauthorised construction of an
upper-floor extension to an existing detached outbuilding without the benefit of
planning permission. This came immediately after the refusal of planning application
for the same under ref no. 22/P1540.

What was single storey outbuilding was altered into a two storey outbuilding, and by
reason of its design and form fails to blend and integrate well with its surroundings, is
considered to be unduly dominant and visually intrusive, having a negative impact on
the character and appearance of Dahlia Gardens and Hadley Road. It created
unacceptable loss of light, privacy and outlook toward the adjoining properties along
Dahlia Gardens and Hadley Road.

Officers conducted a Notice of Entry to visit in March to see works are not complied
with the notice and a further letter of alleged offence in April 2023, the council will
review next steps to potential prosecution for non-compliance of the said notice.
Officers are now reviewing formal legal action.

153A Dorset Road Merton Park London SW19 3EQ- Enforcement Notice issued-
Appealed

Notice served against the conversion of the outbuilding on the Land into a
self-contained residential unit.

Wp‘ag'@ rpf.4ov. uk



The conversion of the outbuilding to a self-contained unit, by reason of size and layout
would fail to provide an acceptable standard of residential accommodation and living
space resulting in a cramped and unsatisfactory standard of accommodation to the
detriment of the amenities of current and future occupiers. It does not provide sufficient
secure, integrated, convenient and accessible cycle parking nor refuse and recycling
facilities. It creates a harmful impact to amenity to the hostand neighbouring properties
by reasons of noise, lack of privacy and disruption and creates limited outdoor amenity
space for both the occupiers of the outbuilding and the main dwelling on the site. The
requirementis to cease the use of the outbuilding as a self-contained residential

unit. The notice has been appealed.

37 Octavia Close, Mitcham —Enforcement Notice issued-Appealed

Unauthorised erection of a front porch, and enforcement notice was issued for its
removal. The Porch by the virtue of its size, siting and design is considered visually
obtrusive, incongruous and unsympathetic to the character and appearance of the
dwelling, locality, and character of the area in general. The applicants have appealed
against the notice.

59 Epsom Road, Morden-Enforcement Notice issued-Appealed

Use of the outbuilding at the rear of the Land as a self-contained residential unit.The
change of use has a negative effecton the neighbouring properties and local residents
in terms of noise as the occupiers would use the alley way on a daily basis; the front of
the garage/outbuilding has been fenced off to provide a private amenity space. This
would resultin further noise issues when in use by any occupiers. The amenity space
enjoyed by the occupiers of the host site has been reduced. The gardens abutting the
alleyway are open spaces and are open to crime, no preventive design measures have
been taken into consideration to combat crime. The applicants have appealed against
the notice.

www.pa'g@.@rlgk



The Beeches -Broken fences and untidy land — Before and after

The council were notified about the state of the fences in this residential area,
following contact made by officers, the fence was replaced immediately along
with the clear up paving and repajring of paios slas.q

Before

After

Market Square, Upper Green Mitcham —Informal action- remedy

Officers were notified about the stall erected against the trees, following a discussion
with those responsible it was removed immediately.

wp‘ag@ r@m_@ov. uk



Before

| After -1 week later

156 Merton Hall Road - Before and after -Advertisement -Before & After

An advert was placed on the side of a restaurant facing Kingston Road which is a
designated Merton Hall Road conservation area, the advert had no consent.

Officers visited the property and discussed with the owner and staff of the restaurant,
after negotiations, it was moved via informal enforcement action, the results are below.

www.pa'g@.m.'pk



After advetisement removed

Successful Prosecution case-update

7 Streatham Road, Mitcham, CR4 2AD- Summary of the prosecution;

The Council served two enforcement notices on 6th June 2019 for the unauthourised
outbuilding and roof extension, the enforcement notice required the outbuilding to be
demolished and to clear debris and all other related materials. Following the non-
compliance of said notices, this is a criminal offence which lead to prosecution
proceedings.

The result of the sentencing hearing was:

1. Fine for the outbuilding EN: £6,000, reduced by 10% so £5,400
2. Fine for the dormer EN: £12,000,reduced by 10% so £10,800
3. Surcharge: £181

wp‘ag@ r@_ﬁL.gov. uk



4. Costs: £14,580

5. Total being £30,961. To be paid over a period of three years in monthly
instalments.

The defendant was fined for the outbuilding and the dormer extensions due to non-
compliance with two enforcement notices.

Latest

Enforcement officers have written to the landowner to state that The Council is minded
to take direct action to undertake the works to secure compliance with the enforcement
notices, pursuantto section 178, Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended).
This would resultin further costs that would be recoverable from them directly.

To date the notice still has not been complied with, in October 2022, a meeting was
taken place with a contractor to get quotes for the removal of both outbuilding and roof
extension and rebuilding of the roof.

Quotes were received in November 2022 and discussions were had internally in view

to accept one of the tasks involved to do it in stages due to budget reasons (removal of
outbuilding firstand then dormer and rebuild later), it is understood that any agreement
of such works needs approval by the council.

The council warned about direct action to the owner and responded back in February
that they have not complied with the notice yet and not able to, the council are looking
into going ahead with direct action having obtained quotes form a suitable contractor.

An appeal has been dismissed for the certificate of lawfulness for the outbuilding to be
permitted development, a site was conducted by officers and the inspectors, the
enforcementteam are considering directaction for the outbuilding and to instruct legal.

3. Requested update from PAC

None
4. Consultation undertaken or proposed
None required for the purposes of this report
5 Timetable
N/A

6. Financial, resource and property implications
N/A

www.pa'g@.@rlgk



Legal and statutory implications
N/A

Human rights, equalities and community cohesion implications
N/A

Crime and disorder implications
N/A

Risk Management and Health and Safety implications.
N/A

Appendices - the following documents are to be published with this
report and form part of the report Background Papers

N/A

Wp‘ag’@ r@?@ov. uk



I 32 Glossary of terms Agenda ltem 11

32 Glossary of terms

Glossary of Terms:

A complete glossary of planning terms can be found at the Planning Portal website:
http://www.planningportal.gov.uk/ The glossary below should be used as a guide only and
should not be considered the source for statutory definitions.

Affordable Housing - Affordable Housing addresses the needs of eligible households unable
to access or afford market housing. Affordable housing includes social rented and intermediate
housing and excludes low cost market housing. Affordable housing should be available at a
cost low enough for eligible households to afford, determined with regard to local incomes and
local house prices. Provision of affordable housing should remain at an affordable price for
future eligible households or if these restrictions are lifted, for the subsidy to be recycled for
alternative affordable housing provision. Further information can be found in Planning Policy
Statement 3 (Housing)

Area Action Plan (AAP) — Area action plans are part of the Local Development Framework.
They should be used when there is a need to provide the planning framework for areas where
significant change or conservation is needed. Area action plans should deliver planned growth
areas, stimulate regeneration, protect areas particularly sensitive to change, resolve conflicting
objectives in areas subject to development pressures or focus the delivery of area based
regeneration initiatives.

Area for Intensification (AFl) — As defined in the London Plan. Areas that have significant
potential for increases in residential, employment and other uses through development of sites
at higher densities with more mixed and intensive use.

Brownfield land - Previously developed land is that which is or was occupied by a permanent
structure (excluding agricultural or forestry buildings), and associated fixed-surface infrastructure.
The definition covers the curtilage of the development. Planning Policy Statement Note 3
(Housing) has a detailed definition

Community Plan — refer to Sustainable Community Strategy (SCS).

Comparison Retailing - Comparison retailing is the provision of items not obtained on a
frequent basis. These include clothing, footwear, household and recreational goods.

Convenience Retailing - Convenience retailing is the provision of everyday essential items,
including food, drinks, newspapers/magazines and confectionery.

Conservation Area - An area of special architectural and historic interest, the character or
. appearance of which it is desirable to preserve or enhance.
254

Core Strategy (CS) - The Core Strategy is the key plan within the Local Development
Framework. Every local planning authority should produce a core strategy which includes:

Page 221
age

32 | Core Strategy: July 2011 (1) | London Borough of Merton



32

e anoverall vision which sets out how the area and the places within it should develop;

e strategic objectives for the area focusing on the key issues to be addressed;

e adelivery strategy for achieving these objectives. This should set out how much
development is intended to happen where, when, and by what means it will be delivered.
Locations for strategic development should be indicated on a key diagram; and

e clear arrangements for managing and monitoring the delivery of the strategy.

Development Plan Documents (DPD) — The statutory component parts of the_local
development framework. Core strategies, area action plans and site-specific allocations are
all DPDs. The procedure for their creation is set out in Planning Policy Statement 12.

District Centre — District centres comprise groups of shops often containing at least one
supermarket or superstore, and a range of non-retail services, such as banks, building societies
and restaurants, as well as local public facilities such as a library.

Floodplain - Generally low lying areas adjacent to a watercourse, tidal lengths of the river or
sea, where water flows in times of flood or would flow but for the presence of flood defences.

Floorspace (gross) - all floorspace enclosed within the building envelope

Floorspace (net - for retail purposes) - area of a shop that is accessible to the public: sales
floor, sales counters, checkouts, lobby areas, public serving and in-store cafes. Excludes goods
storage, delivery, preparation area, staff offices, staff amenity facilities, plant rooms, toilets
and enclosed public stairwells and lifts between floors.

Historic environment — All aspects of the environment resulting from the interaction between
people and places through time, including all surviving physical remains of past human activity,
whether visible, buried or submerged, and landscaped and planted or managed flora. Those
elements of the historic environment that hold significance are called heritage assets.

Independent Examination - The process by which a planning inspector may publicly examine
a development plan document before issuing a binding report.

Intermediate Housing — housing at prices and rents above social rent but below market price
or rents. This includes various forms of shared equity products. Homes provided by the private
sector or without grant funding may be included for planning purposes as affordable housing,
providing these homes meet the affordable housing definition as set out in Planning Policy
Statement 3 (Housing).

Issues, Options and Preferred Options - The pre-submission/ pre-production consultation
stages on a development plan document (DPD) with the objective of gaining public consensus
before submission of documents for independent examination.

Page 222
age

London Borough of Merton | Core Strategy: July 2011 (1) | 32




32 Glossary of terms

Listed Buildings - These are buildings or other built structures included in the statutory list
of buildings of special architectural or historic interest of national significance, which is compiled
by the Secretary of State for Culture, Media and Sport. Buildings are graded and are protected
both internally and externally. Listed building consent is required for almost all works to a listed
building.

Local Area Agreement (LAA) - Local Area Agreement is normally a three year agreement,
based on the Sustainable Community Strategy vision that sets out improvement targets for
the priorities of a local area. The agreement is made between central government and local
authorities and their partners on the Local Strategic Partnership.

Local Centre - Local centres include a range of small shops of a local nature, serving a small
catchment. Typically, local centres might include services such as a small supermarket, a
newsagent, a sub-post office and a pharmacy. Other facilities could include a hot-food takeaway
and launderette.

Local Development Framework (LDF) - The Local Development Framework is the collection
of local development documents produced by the local planning authority which collectively
delivers the spatial planning strategy for its area.

Local Development Scheme (LDS) - This is the business plan for production of the local
development framework (LDF). It identifies and describes the development plan documents
(DPDs) and when they will be produced. It covers a three-year timespan and is subject to
updating following production of an annual monitoring report to check progress.

Local Planning Authority (LPA) - The statutory authority (usually the local council) whose
duty it is to carry out the planning function for its area.

Local Strategic Partnerships (LSP) - Local Strategic Partnerships are not statutory bodies,
but they bring together the public, private and third sectors to coordinate the contribution that
each can make to improving localities.

London Plan - the London Plan is the Spatial Development Strategy for London. Produced
by the Mayor of London, it provides the overall spatial vision for the entire region, identifying
the broad locations for growth, often by identification of sub-regions, and major infrastructure
requirements, together with the housing numbers to be provided for in boroughs' LDFs. It is
part of the development plan for Merton together with the borough's LDF documents and should
be used to guide planning decisions across London. All LDF documents have to be in general
conformity with the London Plan

Major Centre — Major Centres normally have over 50,000 square metres of retail floorspace
and their retail offer is derived from a mix of both comparison and convenience shopping.
Some Major Centres, which have developed sizeable catchment areas, also have some leisure
and entertainment functions.

32 | Core Strategy: July 2011 (1) | London Borough of Merton



32

Neighbourhood parades: convenience shopping and other services easily accessible to
those walking or cycling or those with restricted mobility.

Planning Application - Administrative process by which permission to carry out development
is sought from the local planning authority. The form and content of the application is laid down
in guidance. Application can be made in outline or detailed form for some categories of
development.

Planning Permission - The consent given by the |ocal planning authority for building operations
as defined in the Town and Country Planning Act that do not constitute permitted development
as defined in the general permitted development order (GPDO) or uses permitted by the use
classes order. Usually subject to conditions and sometimes a legal agreement.

Planning Policy Guidance Notes (PPG) - Former central government guidance on a range
of topics from transport to retail policy giving advice to regional and local policy makers on the
way in which they should devise their policies in order to meet national planning goals. Most
PPGs have now been replaced by Planning Policy Statements.

Planning Policy Statements (PPS) - Planning Policy Statements set out the government’s
policies on different aspects of spatial planning in England.

Public realm - This is the space between and surrounding buildings and open spaces that
are accessible to the public and include streets, pedestrianised areas, squares, river frontages
etc.

Spatial Development Strategy - (see London Plan)

Registered Social Landlords (RSLs) - Technical name for independent, not-for-profit
organisations registered with and regulated by the Housing Corporation . These organisations
own or manage affordable homes and are able to bid for funding from the Housing Corporation.

Sequential Test - A planning principle that seeks to identify, allocate or develop certain types
or locations of land before others.

Scattered Employment Sites - An employment site that is not a designated employment site
(a site that is not a Strategic Industrial Location or Locally Significant Industrial Site) as detailed
in Merton's adopted Proposals Map (as amended).

Sites of Importance for Nature Conservation (SINC) - Locally important sites of nature
conservation adopted by local authorities for planning purposes and identified in the local
development plan.

Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI) — A site identified under the Wildlife and Countryside
Act 1981 (As amended by the Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000) as an area of special
interest by reason of its plants, animals and natural features relating to the earth’s structure.

Page 224
age

London Borough of Merton | Core Strategy: July 2011 (1) | 32




32 Glossary of terms

Socially Rented Housing - Planning Policy Statement 3 (Housing) states that this is rented
housing owned and managed by local authorities and registered social landlords for which
guideline target rents are determined through the national rent regime. It may also include
rented housing owned or managed by other persons and provided under equivalent rental
arrangements (specified in Planning Policy Statement Note 3 ) as agreed with the local authority
or the Housing Corporation as a condition of grant.

Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) - This sets out how, when and where the council
will consult with local and statutory stakeholders in the process of planning for the local authority
area, both in producing development plan documents and in carrying out the development
control function.

Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA) - A process of environmental assessment of
certain plans and programmes which are likely to have significant effects on the environment.
It is required by European Directive 2001/42/EC (the Strategic Environmental Assessment or
SEA Directive)

Supplementary Planning Documents (SPDs) - Supplementary planning documents (SPDs)
give further guidance on specific policy topic areas such as affordable housing provision, that
have been identified in core policy in the local development framework (LDF), or to give detailed
guidance on the development of specific sites in the form of a master plan framework plan or
development brief.

Sustainability Appraisal (SA) - A form of assessment used in the UK, particularly for regional
and local planning, since the 1990s. It considers environmental, social and economic effects
of a plan and appraises them in relation to the aims of sustainable development. Sustainability
appraisals that fully incorporate the requirements of the SEA Directive (2001/42/EC) are
required for local development documents and regional spatial strategies in England under
the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

Sustainable Community Strategy (SCS) — The overarching strategy for the local area, which
sets out of the overall direction and vision for the borough over the next 10 years. It tells the
story of a place, and what needs to be achieved for the local area and its residents, based on
what is most important to them. It is also known as the Community Plan.

Sustainable development - Development which meets the needs of the present generation
without compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own needs.

Town centre type uses — In accordance with PPS4 Planning for Sustainable Economic
Development, the main uses to which town centres policies can apply are:

o retail development (including warehouse clubs and factory outlet centres)

32 | Core Strategy: July 2011 (1) | London Borough of Merton



32

e leisure, entertainment facilities, and the more intensive sport and recreation uses (including
cinemas, restaurants, drive-through restaurants, bars and pubs, night-clubs, casinos,
health and fitness centres, indoor bowling centres, and bingo halls)

e offices, and arts, culture and tourism development (including theatres, museums, galleries
and concert halls, hotels and conference facilities)

Unitary Development Plan (UDP) - This is the former statutory development plan system
and contains the framework to guide development in local areas. Under the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 it was replaced by Local Development Frameworks. UDP
policies will continue to operate for a time after the commencement of the new development
plan system in 2004, by virtue of specific transitional provisions, though they should all be
eventually superseded by LDF policies

Use Classes Order — Schedule of class of use for land and buildings under Town and Country
Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 as amended 2005:

A1 Shops

A2 Financial and Professional Services
A3 Restaurants and Cafés

A4 Drinking Establishments

A5 Hot Food Take-away

B1 Business

B2 General Industrial

B8 Storage or Distribution

C1 Hotels

C2 Residential Institution

C2A Secure Residential Institution
C3 Dwelling Houses

D1 Non-residential Institutions
D2 Assembly and Leisure

Other Sui Generis

Paage 226
age o

London Borough of Merton | Core Strategy: July 2011 (1) | 32




Agenda Item 12

Development and Planning Applications Committee
Chair’s Procedure

Last updated 13/08/23
Next review 13/11/23

Agenda Publication

The agenda will be published on Merton.gov.uk a minimum of seven clear working
days in advance of the meeting and will confirm: the list of agenda items due to be
considered at the meeting; all accompanying papers; and plans for those items.
Committee members receive papers ten calendar days in advance of the meeting.

The Committee cycle:
Below lists the milestones in a standard committee month. These align to the
committee dates mapper.

e Forward planning meetings & 1:1s

¢ Notification to Chair & Vice Chair of potential applications

e Chair & Vice Chair with officers

e Chair's email to committee

o Draft agenda published internally

e Papers available for sign off

e Papers delivered

e Pack published

e Potential site visit

o Deadline for applicants to register attendees

e Technical briefing

e Applicant panel details circulated to committee. Committee asked to flag
conflicts of interest with Chair and Monitoring Officer

e Deadline for comments and questions by committee and any known conflicts of
interest registration (12pm)

o Deadline for comments on BPAC papers electronically

o Last date for speakers to register (by 12pm)

e Inform public speakers

e Mod sheet Planning

e Mod sheet BPAC

e Washup

o Conditions and decision notice drafted for Chair’s review

e Minutes written up and circulated to Chair review and sign off

e Minutes signed off by Chair and returned to officers

e Actions, conditions, risks and lessons logged

Planning applications
The committee has dual functions over policy and applications. The following relate to
planning applications. Page 227




Agenda setting

The Chair in consultation with Vice Chair and Head of Planning and Development and
Head of Development Policy and officers will decide on the agenda and forward plan

for the committee.

Speakers List

Once the agenda has been published, the speakers list will be open for registration.
All speakers must register in advance by contacting the Planning Department no
later than 12 noon three days before the meeting by phone (020-8545-3445/3448) or
e-mail (planning@merton.gov.uk). Where this falls on a weekend the deadline will be
the previous Friday. The Chair will review requests to speak based on qualifications

and considerations in Table 1.0.

Following the Chair’s review, officers will notify residents and the Committee of the
decision as to who may speak at the committee. This should be no later than 12pm on

the day before the committee.

Table 1.0: Qualifications for speaking at Committee

Type Max Time to Qualifications Considerations for
number | speak allocation
of speaking slots
Resident Two Three e Reside in the e =<6 Proximity to the
supporters minutes London Borough of red line boundary of
or objectors each. Max Merton the development
six minutes e Submitted a written e Can provide the
collectively. representation to the committee with new
planning application insight into the
in question impact development
o |If selected, speaking would bring
slot is not e Where an
transferable application crosses
local authority
boundaries one slot
is always reserved
for a Merton
resident
e =>7 selected by
chance through
computer
programme
e Reserves can be
drawn using same
method
Statutory N/A Max six o A statutory e Can provide the
stakeholders minutes stakeholder committee with new
consultee on a insight into the
planning application impact development
e.g. utilities would bring

Page 228




Ward Three Two minutes | ¢ Councillorin the Where an
Councillors each. Max ward of the application borders
six minutes development two wards or more
collectively. at the discretion of
the Chair ward
speakers can be
drawn from more
than one ward
Members of | 1 Two minutes e Elected Member of | Ibid...
Parliament Parliament for the
constituency the
application is in.
Cabinet 1 Two minutes e Cabinet member | Where pre-existing
member for an area of council policy exists or
material development is of
consideration for strategic importance or
the purposes of pre-engagement with
identifying factual the committee at
information within a|  technical briefing and
planning agenda setting
application meetings identify gaps
in understanding to
facilitate most
appropriate cabinet
member to support
committees
understanding
Agent and N/A Three o Part of the team - Agent and Applicant are
Applicant minutes bringing the expected to address
unless application to questions raised by
opposing council for approval previous opposing
speakers e Arranged between speakers and make
then max speakers as to how arguments using non-
Six this time is split. technical language.
minutes

Officer presentations

Officers will present for a maximum of 30 minutes, and should set the scene for the
application, addressing both the benefits and the risks.

Committee papers

Papers will have clear summaries to the following strategic priorities: Contribution to
ecology, carbon reduction, affordable housing and housing delivery, employment and
economy, smart cities agenda.

Presentations

All presentations from residents and apdl_'l)égt@ s%glgbe verbal. The distribution of
printed documents will not be permitted. Entry and exit is via the side of the




chamber as directed.

Speakers can address the committee remotely or within the Council Chamber. If
within the Council Chamber, a traffic light and timer system will be operated and will
show on screen. Remote speakers will be verbally advised when they have one
minute remaining.

As part of the joining arrangements officers will make speakers aware they do not
have legal privilege when speaking before the Committee. It's important any
statements are supported by fact and reasoned opinion.

Tailoring proceedings

The Chair retains discretion to tailor proceedings to facilitate appropriate information
for the committee

Ability to clarify comments made by applicant or speaker or to seek expert third-
party advice

To make informed decisions Committee members may ask any of the speaker's
questions for the purpose of seeking factual information to better inform decision
making. Such questions will be subject to the direction of the Chair if necessary. They
are not a means to provide speakers with additional time to make speeches.

If information cannot be verified through publicly available sources there may be a need
to secure additional expert witness statements to support deliberations.

Submission of additional information before the meeting

Any additional information not requested by officers relating to an item on the agenda
should be sent to the Planning Department before 12 noon three days before the
meeting by email (planning@merton.gov.uk). Where this falls on a weekend the
deadline will be the previous Friday. Only in exceptional circumstances will Information
sent directly to committee members be considered in the decision-making process.

Briefing

Committee members are invited to a technical briefing from planning officers prior to
the Committee meeting. This meeting is an opportunity to clarify any technical issues
and identify what further information the committee requires for decision ready
proceedings. The questions and answers will form part of the modification sheet.

The Modifications Sheet

No later than 12pm the day of the meeting, a modifications sheet will be published on
the Council’s website and circulated to committee members via email. This will
include responses to written questions, material discussion in the technical briefing
or changes to applications and may be referred to during officer presentations at the
meeting.

Site visits

In person tours of a site are valuablg%gg t%%gn a greater understanding of its
location, physical characteristics and relationship to neighboring properties or land



use. The information gained can aid the Committee in bringing to life the words and
observations in officers reports.

All site visits should be coordinated and provide value to the Committee. They will be
organised through democratic services and only on the authorisation of the Chair.
Site visits are not open for general attendance. For the purpose of factual record,
attendance at a site visit will be recorded by the lead officer including the locations
visited.

Applicants and agents may accompany committee members on site visits. Care
must be taken not to discuss the merits or otherwise of the application. The visits are
for fact finding purposes alone.

Questions by email

Committee members are also able to submit written questions to planning officers until
two days prior to the Committee meeting. Responses will be included in the modification
sheet. Priority will be given to members with follow-up questions who have attended
the technical briefing and questions not already addressed in that briefing.

Seating at the meeting and conduct

Seating

Observers seating at the rear of the chamber is on a first come first served basis. For
major applications, a ticketing system maybe in force.

If an application crosses local authority boundaries and Merton has decision
making powers delegated to it the allocation of seats will be divided in equal
proportion between the local authority residents.

Those speaking at committee will be seated in front of the observation gallery at a
microphone.

Behaviours that are disruptive to the good running of the meeting will result in
individual(s) attending in person or online being asked to leave. To ensure the
safeguarding of the committee and public the meeting may need to be adjourned.

Agenda item order

Planning items will be taken in the order decided by the Chair and announced at the
start of the meeting. This may differ from the Chair’s standing order in Appendix 1. It
is not possible to give the exact time items will be heard. Whilst the Committee will
endeavor to consider all items on the agenda, if it is not possible to hear an item,
every effort will be made to take it at the next meeting of the Committee.

Process for Consideration of ltems
Items will be considered in the following order:

1. Introduction to the Applicatidd §y)Bl52Bihg Officer
2. Registered Speakers in the order listed above. If there are no speakers,



proceed directly to step 4

3. Points of clarification or response from Planning Officers following speeches
4. Questions from the Committee to Planning Officers and at the
discretion of the Chair to applicants, Councillors and residents.
5. Comments or observations from Committee members on the
application. This may include suggestions for conditions.
6. Vote on the application in the following order: Voting against the

recommendation, not voting in favour of the recommendation; voting in
favour of the recommendation

Members must be present for the entirety of an item to be able to vote on it. The
Chair and officers will check which members are present before starting each item.

Conditions

Before a vote is taken the Committee may wish to place additional or remove
conditions from an application to enhance benefits for the community or compel the
applicant to conduct development in a prescribed way. These should be agreed with
the majority consensus of the committee formally secured at the discretion of the
Chair and will then form part of the vote on the recommendation.

Voting

The Chair will call a vote on the recommendation within the officer report noting any
changes to conditions. These conditions will be included in a separate log. An
officer or the Chair will verbally announce the result of the vote. The numbers of
votes will be recorded in the minutes. Note: Committee members retain the right to
vote remotely.

If a vote on the recommendation falls, a further vote will be required to agree a
planning basis for the refusal or granting of an application in contradiction to Officer
recommendation. If the committee is unable to agree a reason the committee will vote
again on the original recommendation.

Following the meeting Planning Officers will gain agreement in writing from the Chair
of the conditions to be placed on the item so as to ensure the committee’s decision
is translated accurately into action. Appropriate amendments maybe made with the
agreement of the Chair to the decision notice as required to provide an informative
and accurate response referencing appropriate policies

The Chair can vote on applications, entitled to a casting vote, or call a second vote in
the event of the committee is unable to come to a clear decision.

Supporting effective decision making

Deliberating on planning applications is a mentally demanding task. To support
effective decision making the Chair will propose regular breaks and is able to close
the meeting at any stage even if all the agenda items have not been heard. The
Chairs standing instructions are for a break after 1.5 - 2 hours and for business to be
completed 4 hours from the commencement of the meeting.

Interests
Declarations of Interests

Members need to have regard to t%al‘%r%szp?ﬁ%lished with the agenda and, where
necessary to declare at this meeting any Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (as defined



in the Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012) in
any matter to be considered at the meeting. If a pecuniary interest is declared, they
should withdraw from the meeting room during the whole of the consideration of that
matter and must not participate in any vote on that matter. If members consider they
should not participate because of a non-pecuniary interest, including other
registrable interests or other matters which may give rise to a perception of bias,
they should declare this, withdraw and be replaced by a substitute for the
consideration of the item. Members should have regard to the Code of conduct for
members and for further advice speak with the Council's Monitoring Officer
(John.Scarborough@merton.gov.uk) or deputy (Fabiola.hickson@merton.gov.uk).

FOR ANY QUERIES ON THIS INFORMATION AND OTHER COMMITTEE
PROCEDURES please contact Democratic Services.

Phone — 020 8545 3356 e-mail — democratic.services@merton.gov.uk

Call-in

Appendix two notes the call-in process for planning applications. As granted by full
council the Chair of the committee will publish a process including the criteria for call-
in.

All call-ins must have a planning reason not addressed through condition or legal
agreement, made between the start and end dates of the public consultation period,
relate to the latest application being consulted on, and should be accompanied by a
declaration of interest. Call-ins are not a tool for casework management. Councillors
will be expected to evidence how other options have been explored other than call-in.
Call-ins can be made on the discharge of conditions.

Summary of call in process

(A) Call-ins start with an informal conversation with the Chair of the committee so a
shared understanding of the issues of the case can be formed.

(B) If a call-in is to proceed a form will be completed including details of the
rationale and steps taken by the Councillor to address the matter outside of call-
in. The form must be submitted during the public consultation stage.

(C)The submitted form is validated. Valid forms are reviewed at the Chair — Vice
Chair agenda setting meeting. The substance of the arguments for call-in is
reviewed and this may require the Councillor to attend the meeting to answer
questions.

(D) The outcome is reported at the next meeting of the Committee, or item of
business included in the agenda.

(E) Call-ins may be heard by committee or through mediation. If mediation fails
cases can return to the committee.

(F) If an appropriately validated call-in request is not supported, Councillors can
request the committee take the business. This may be granted with the inclusion
of the call-in decision report and copy of the submission form.

Call-ins follow same process in committee as other applications with one exception —
Planning Committee members are unqbﬁrg%p?gge over an application they may
call-in or have advised to be called-in. Committee members who advise residents on
matters of call-in must take care and declare their interest to the Chair and Head of


mailto:John.Scarborough@merton.gov.uk
mailto:Fabiola.hickson@merton.gov.uk
mailto:democratic.services@merton.gov.uk

development at the earliest opportunity to avoid accusations access is used to secure
outcome.

Records for the call-in process will inform further iterations to secure balanced use.

Development
The following relate to the committees development policy function

Dedicating time

Every quarter at least 2 hours of the committees time should be planned for
development work. Over a year this is the equivalent of four meetings of the previous
Borough Plan Advisory Committee.

Forward agenda

The committee will meet once a year to map out recommendations for commissions.
These commission suggestions will be sent to the Cabinet member for Housing and
Development and other cabinet members as relevant. Those commissions supported
will form part of the committees forward plan and map out accordingly.

Products to created
(A) Call-in form; (B) Validation guidance; (C) Updated decision log; (D) Chair and
Vice Chair meeting process guide (E) Updated design of committee paper for (i)
Call-ins (ii) standard (F) Risk log

Page 234



Appendix 1: Standard order of business

The items for consideration will normally be taken in the order below. In the case of a
tie, the application which has received the highest number of representations will be
taken first:

. Housing (Organised by number of units)

Applications with credible social housing

Proportion of significant proposed affordable housing
Private sale

HMOs

Alterations, extensions to existing

Other housing applications

O O O O O O

. Commercial (Organised by estimated number of jobs created or
maintained, or the capital cost of the development)
o Square footage
o High jobs/capital cost
o Low number jobs/capital cost

. Parks, allotments, street scene
. Trees Protection Orders

. Advertising boards

. Reports from third party

. Reports as part of conditions

No priority will be given to called in items. They will be taken in the priority listed
above.

Page 235



CURRENT

Appendix 2: Call in process

v—VaHd planning reason not
Merton Councillor

contacts Planning Chair Call-in form submitted

provided

—»Call-in form validated

for informal discussion with planning reason

of concerns

|

Call in sub-committee. Chair or in
absence Vice Chair in consultation with
head of planning meets to consider the
councillor's request. This should ideally
be an extension to the monthly Chair and
Vice Chair agenda setting meeting.

QO
Q
@D
N
w

(o))

Call in not supported

Published to Planning Is

Committee

Valid planning reason provided

Directive response

_LPCaII-in supported

Facilitative response

Example: Councillor B has concerns about an application rejected by officers that would have
provided measures to cut carbon. Officers have made a professional judgement and mediation is
not appropriate. The matter is called direct to committee who set future case law for Council
delegated decision making.

Planning Committee take  Final decision planning
item of business " committee
—PReferred to Committee

——»Mutually not addressed

Outcome published in
——~4——»Mutually addressed Aext committee papers

Example: Councillor A is concerned the building of a new school playground is

not meeting the conditions the application was approved on. Through

mediation the councillor and applicant agree on steps for the condition to be Decision implemented
discharged. Saving committee time for new applications.

No request or request for review not supported

. Councillor decision to agree with

Chair receives confirmation of call in ——

" recommendation or insist on call-in



	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting
	5 58 - 62 Haynt Walk, Raynes Park, SW20 9NX
	01) PAC Report 58 Haynt Walk 23P1812.pdf (p.1-48)
	02) Site Plan.pdf (p.49)
	03) Block Plan.pdf (p.50)
	04) Proposed First Floor_Amended_30.01.2024.pdf (p.51)
	05) Proposed Front Rear & Side Elevations_Amended_30.01.2024.pdf (p.52)
	06) Proposed Ground Floor_Amended_30.01.2024.pdf (p.53)
	Plans
	07)  Proposed House Type A (Inclusive Design) Plan_Amended_30.01.2024.pdf (p.1)
	08) Roof Plan.pdf (p.2)
	09) Proposed Second Floor_Amended_30.01.2024.pdf (p.3)
	10) Proposed Sectional Side Elevations & Typical House Cross Section Detail.pdf (p.4)
	11) Site Location Plan.pdf (p.5)


	6 11 Streatham Road, Mitcham, CR4 2AD
	01) PAC Report 11 Streatham Road 24P0137.pdf (p.1-25)
	02) Site Plan.pdf (p.26)
	03) Existing Plans.pdf (p.27)
	04) Pre Existing Plans.pdf (p.28)
	Model

	05) Proposed Elevations & Sections.pdf (p.29)
	06) Proposed Plans_Amended 10.04.2024.pdf (p.30)
	Model

	07) Site Location Plan.pdf (p.31)
	08) Site Plans_Amended 10.04.2024.pdf (p.32)
	Model


	7 18 - 22 Crown Lane, Morden, SM4 5BL
	01) PAC Report 18 22 Crown lane 23P2711.pdf (p.1-80)
	02) Site Plan.pdf (p.81)
	03) CGI of Proposed Hotel.pdf (p.82)
	04) Proposed 1st Floor_Amended_05.12.2023.pdf (p.83)
	05) Proposed 2nd Floor_Amended_05.12.2023.pdf (p.84)
	06) Proposed 3rd Floor_Amended_05.12.2023.pdf (p.85)
	07) Proposed 4th Floor_Amended 13.02.2024.pdf (p.86)
	08) Proposed 5th Floor_Amended_05.12.2023.pdf (p.87)
	09) Proposed 6th Floor_Amended_05.12.2023.pdf (p.88)
	10) Proposed East Elevation 01_Amended 13.02.2024.pdf (p.89)
	11) Proposed East Elevation 02_Amended 13.02.2024.pdf (p.90)
	12) Proposed Ground Floor_Amended_05.12.2023.pdf (p.91)
	13) Proposed Long Section_Amended_05.12.2023.pdf (p.92)
	14) Proposed North Elevation_Amended 13.02.2024.pdf (p.93)
	15) Proposed Roof Plan_Amended_05.12.2023.pdf (p.94)
	16) Proposed Short-Stay Cycle Parking.pdf (p.95)
	17) Proposed South Elevation_Amended_05.12.2023.pdf (p.96)
	18) Proposed West Elevation_Amended 13.02.2024.pdf (p.97)
	19) Existing Site Location Plan.pdf (p.98)

	8 Update Report - Provision of footbridge at 42 Station Road, Colliers Wood
	9 Planning Appeal Decisions
	Subject: Planning Appeal Decisions
	That Members note the contents of the report.
	1.	Purpose of report and executive summary
	1.1	For Members’ information recent decisions made by Inspectors appointed by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government in respect of recent Town Planning Appeals are set out below.
	1.2	The relevant Inspectors decision letters are not attached to this report but can be viewed by following each individual link. Other agenda papers for this meeting can be viewed on the Committee Page of the Council Website via the following link:
	LINK TO COMMITTEE PAGE
	Date of Appeal Decision:	27th March 2024
	Date of Appeal Decision:	20th March 2024
	2.	That any of the relevant requirements have not been complied with;   (relevant requirements means any requirements of the 1990 Act or of the Tribunal’s Land Enquiries Act 1992, or of any Order, Regulation or Rule made under those Acts).

	1	Consultation undertaken or proposed
	1.1.	None required for the purposes of this report.

	2	Timetable
	2.1.	N/A

	3	Financial, resource and property implications
	3.1.	There are financial implications for the Council in respect of appeal decisions where costs are awarded against the Council.

	4	Legal and statutory implications
	4.1.	An Inspector’s decision may be challenged in the High Court, within 6 weeks of the date of the decision letter (see above).

	5	Human rights, equalities and community cohesion implications
	5.1.	None for the purposes of this report.

	6	Crime and Disorder implications
	6.1.	None for the purposes of this report.

	7	Risk management and health and safety implications
	7.1.	See 6.1 above.

	8	Background papers
	8.1.	The papers used to compile this report are the Council’s Development Control service’s Town Planning files relating to the sites referred to above and the agendas and minutes of the Planning Applications Committee where relevant.



	10 Planning Enforcement - Summary of Current Cases
	11 Glossary of Terms
	12 Chair's Procedure Guide
	Development and Planning Applications Committee  Chair’s Procedure
	Speakers List
	Ability to clarify comments made by applicant or speaker or to seek expert third-party advice
	Submission of additional information before the meeting
	Briefing
	The Modifications Sheet
	Questions by email
	Agenda item order
	Process for Consideration of Items
	Voting
	Interests
	Call-in
	Appendix two notes the call-in process for planning applications. As granted by full council the Chair of the committee will publish a process including the criteria for call-in.
	All call-ins must have a planning reason not addressed through condition or legal agreement, made between the start and end dates of the public consultation period, relate to the latest application being consulted on, and should be accompanied by a declaration of interest. Call-ins are not a tool for casework management. Councillors will be expected to evidence how other options have been explored other than call-in. Call-ins can be made on the discharge of conditions.
	Summary of call in process
	(A)	Call-ins start with an informal conversation with the Chair of the committee so a shared understanding of the issues of the case can be formed.
	(B)	If a call-in is to proceed a form will be completed including details of the rationale and steps taken by the Councillor to address the matter outside of call-in. The form must be submitted during the public consultation stage.
	(C)	The submitted form is validated. Valid forms are reviewed at the Chair – Vice Chair agenda setting meeting. The substance of the arguments for call-in is reviewed and this may require the Councillor to attend the meeting to answer questions.
	(D)	The outcome is reported at the next meeting of the Committee, or item of business included in the agenda.
	(E)	Call-ins may be heard by committee or through mediation. If mediation fails cases can return to the committee.
	(F)	If an appropriately validated call-in request is not supported, Councillors can request the committee take the business. This may be granted with the inclusion of the call-in decision report and copy of the submission form.
	Call-ins follow same process in committee as other applications with one exception – Planning Committee members are unable to preside over an application they may call-in or have advised to be called-in. Committee members who advise residents on matters of call-in must take care and declare their interest to the Chair and Head of development at the earliest opportunity to avoid accusations access is used to secure outcome.
	Records for the call-in process will inform further iterations to secure balanced use.
	Development
	The following relate to the committees development policy function
	Dedicating time
	Every quarter at least 2 hours of the committees time should be planned for development work. Over a year this is the equivalent of four meetings of the previous Borough Plan Advisory Committee.
	Forward agenda
	The committee will meet once a year to map out recommendations for commissions. These commission suggestions will be sent to the Cabinet member for Housing and Development and other cabinet members as relevant. Those commissions supported will form part of the committees forward plan and map out accordingly.
	Appendix 1: Standard order of business



